DOCKET NO. : A-125063
RESPONDENT OR APPLICANT: WPS ENERGY SERVICES INC
PARTY OR COMPLAINANT:

ENTRY TYPE DATE BUREAU PERSONNEL
1 N 12/01/99 SEC FAHNESTOCK
APP OF WPS ENERGY SERVICES INC AS SUPPLIER, BRK,MKT & AGGREGATOR NATURAL GAS
2 N 12/08/99 SEC FAHNESTOCK
SEC MEMO TO FUS ASSIGNING APPLICATION
3 N 12/08/99 SEC FAHNESTOCK
SEC LTR TO APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF APPLICATION
4 N 12/15/99 SEC FRISCIA
RECEIPT OF $350.00 FILING FEE ISSUED _
5 N 0l1/27/00 SEC HANCOCK
ORDER SERVED TQ PARTIES
6 N 01/27/00 SEC HANCOCK
LICENSE FOR NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER DATED 1/27/00 ISSUED
7 N oi1/27/00 SEC PATRICK
RECOM ADOPTED- LICENSE APPLICATION APPROVED CONDITIONALLY
8 N oz2/1z2/01 SEC ADAMS
APPLICANT FILED NEW ADDRESS & CONTACT INFORMATION
9 N 03/14/07 SEC HENRYJAMIE
APPLICANT FILED REQUEST OF NAME CHANGE TO INTEGRYS ENERGY SERVICES, INC.
10 N 03/20/07 SEC HENRYJAMIE

SEC MEMO TO FUS ASSIGNING REQUEST FOR NAME CHANGE



CAPTION SHEET CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

REPORT. DATE: oo/oc.;
BUREAU: FUS :
SECTION(S) : : 4. PUBLIC MEETING DATE:
APPROVED BY: : 00/00/00

DIRECTOR: :

SUPERVISOR: :
6. PERSON IN CHARGE: : 7. DATE FILED: 12/01/99
8. DOCKET NO: A-125063 : 9. EFFECTIVE DATE: 00/00/00

nwn P

PARTY/COMPLAINANT:
RESPONDENT/APPLICANT: WPS ENERGY SERVICES INC

COMP/APP COUNTY : UTILITY CODE: 125063

ALLEGATION OR SURBJECT

APPLICATION OF WPS ENERGY SERVICES, INC., FOR APPROVAL TO OFFER, RENDER, FUR-
NISH OR SUPPLY NATURAL GAS SERVICES AS A SUPPLIER, BROKER/MARKETER AND AGGREG-
ATOR TO THE PUBLIC IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, SPECIFICALLY IN THE
SERVICE TERRITQRIES OF NUI VALLEY CITIES GAS (NUI TRANSPORTATION SERVICES);
NATIONAL FUEL GAS DISTRIBUTION CORP.; PENN FUEL (NORTH PENN GAS COMPANY & PENN
FUEL GAS)}; THE PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY; T.W. PHILLIPS GAS AND OIL COMPANY;
UGI; PG ENERGY; EQUITABLE GAS COMPANY; CARNEGIE NATURAL GAS COMPANY; COLUMBIA
GAS OF PA, INC.; AND PECO.
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ENERGY SERVICES e

v

677 Baeten Road  Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304  Telephone: 920-496:9000  Fax: 920-496-9399

NPT LN/

Mr. James J McNulty
Secretary of Commission

D¢
B20 North Office Building ,p( — / ;) goé Z Y1 1999

Harrisburg PA 17120 FAPLB N Ty
9 e DTUTY Comisaron

L.J‘LC_LJ;: i
il ’Af':a\f S BUR!L-EAL!

RECEIVED

Re: Application to Supply Natural Gas in Pennsylvania

Dear Mr. McNulty:
Enclosed is the signed and verified original and eight copies of WPS Energy Services,
Inc.'s application to operate as a Marketer and Aggregator supplying Natural Gas to retail

customers in Pennsylvania. An electronic version of the application is included with the
paper copies.

A copy of the application is aiso being mailed to the Small Business Advocate, the Office
of the Attorney General, and Natural Gas Distribution Companies through whose facilities
we intend to supply customers.

Also enclosed is a check for $350.00 to cover the licensing fee.

If you have any questions concerning‘this application please contact me at 920-490-6053.
Sincerely,

sl &2l

Mark A Radtke
President

Enclosures

MAR/slg




BEFORE THE PQNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTIL['I‘:OMMISSION

Application of WPS Energy Services, inc., d/bfa FSG Eneray Services, for approval to offer, render, furnish, or as

a(n)__[as specified in item #8 below] to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: A \ &5__0 é 3
1. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the
Applicant are: HEL}E‘VED
WPS Energy Services, Inc.
677 Baeten Road
Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304 DrC 99
920-496-9000 ULk
920-496-9399 fax
A PUBLIC LITILITY COMMISSION
SECRETARY'S B JREAU
Please identify any predecessor(s) of the Applicant and provide other namié{s:%nder which the Applicant has
operated within the preceding five (5) years, including name, address, and telephane number,
Packerland Energy Services, [nc.
2670 S. Ashland Avenue Suite 203
Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304 A
414-496-9000
2.a CONTACT PERSON: The name, title, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the person to whom
questions about this Application should be addressed are:
Mark A. Radtke
President
677 Baeten Road DEC (8 1999
Green Bay, Wl 54304
920-490-6053
920-496-9399 fax &
—-'-'.-'_.'y.-';.';z.-'-.'é".-; S 7
b. CONTACT PERSON-PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY: The name, title, address
telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should be made by PEMA:
Same as 2a
3.a. ATTCORNEY: If applicable, the name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the Applicant’s
attorney are;
Barth J. Wolf
700 North Adams
Green Bay, WI 54307-8002
920-433-1727 SRR mex
820-433-1526 fax @GCU ME%E 'f
Nawral Gas Supplier License Application 2

PA PUC Document #: 139346



b. REGISTERED AGENT: If ‘pplicant does not maintain & principal oﬁ. the Commonwealth, the
required name, address, telephone number and FAX number of the Applicant's Registered Agent in the
Commonwealth are:

CT Corparation System
1635 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
215-563-4474
215-563-7773 fax

4, FICTITIOUS NAME: (select and complete appropriate statement)
X The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as {“d/b/a"):
FSG Energy Services, a division of WPS Energy Services, Inc.
Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's filing with the Commonwealth’s Department of State
pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-853.

Qur application was filed on November 23, 1999. A copy of that application is
attached as Exhibit C.

or

d The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name.

5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: (select and complete appropriate
statement)

L The Applicant is a sole proprietor.

If the Applicant is located outside the Commonweaith, provide proof of compliance with 15 Pa. C.S. §4124
relating to Department of State filing requirements.

or

[ The Applicant is a:

dormestic general partnership (*)

domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511)

foreign general or limited partnership (15 Pa. C.5. §4124)
domestic limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201)
foreign limited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211)
foreign limited liability limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211)

Cooodo

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated
above.

Give name, d/bfa, and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify the business nature of
the partner entity and identify its partners or officers.

Natural Gas Supplier License A pplication 3
PA PUC Document #; 139346



Evig .+ C
Microfiim Number . : Fited with tr.apcn‘menr of Sfo’i"e on

Entity Number__

Secretary of the Commonwealth

APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF FICTITIOUS NAME

DSCB:54-311 (Rev 90)

In compliance with the requirements of 54 Pa.C.S. § 311 [relating to registration). the undersigned entity(ies) desiring to
register a fictitious name under 54 Pa.C.5. Ch. 3 [relating fo fictitious na mes), hereby state(s) that:

1. The fictitious name is: FSG-Energy Services

2. A brief statement of the character or nature ¢f the business or other activity to be camed on under or through the
fictitious name is: ' '

natural gas and electricity sales and energy-related consulting and services

3. The address, including number and street, if any. of the principal ploce of business of the business ar other activity to be
camed on under or through the fictitious name is {P.O. Box alone is not acceptable}:

Suite 314, 6797 North High Street, Worthington, QOH 43085

Number and Street City State lin County
4. The name and address, including number and street, if any. of each individual interested in the business is:
Name Number and Street City State Iip
N/A

5. Each enfity, other than an individual, interested in such business is {are):

Name Form of Qrganization QOrganizing Jurisdiction Principal Office Address Pa. Registered Office, if any
. . ) . Corporation Systen
WPS Energy Services, Inc. Corporation  Wisconsin 677 Baeten Road 1635 Markst Street

Green Bay, WI Philadelphia, PA

54304 19103
4. The appiicant is familiar with the provisions of 54 Pa.C 5. § 332 {relating to effect of registration) and understands that filing
under the Fctitious Names Act does not create any exclusive or other right in the fictitious name.

7. (Optional): The name(s) of the agent(s). if any, any one of whom is authorized to execute amendments to, withdrawals
from or cancellation of this registration in behalf of all then existing parties ta the registration, is {are]:




"DSCB:54-311 (Rev 90)-2 Bty C

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF, the undersigned have caused this Application for Registration of Fictitious Name o be executed
this day of . .

(Individual Signature) {Individual Signature)
{Individual Signature) {Individual Signature)
WPS Energy Services, Inc.
{(Name of Enfity} {Name of Enity)
BY: BY:
BaFth /0. Wolf |

TITLE: nLe:  Secretary




O +ifa corporate partne

he Applicant's domestic partnership is no.niciled in Pennsylvania, attach

a copy of the Applicant's Department of State filing pursuant to 15 Pa. C.S. §4124.

[J The Applicantis a:

[J domestic corporation (none)

X foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124)

or

(1 domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.5. §8913)
J foreign limited liabifity company {15 Pa. C.S. §8981)

D Other

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above.
Additionally, provide a copy of the Applicant’s Articles of Incorporation.

See Exhibits A & B attached

Give name and address of officers.

Chief Executive Officer
President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President
Secretary

Treasurer

Phillip M. Mikulsky
Mark A. Radtke
Darrell W. Bragg
Rugaiyah Z. Lolles
Betty J. Merlina
Daniel J. Verbanac
Larry L. Weyers
Barth J. Wolf
Ralph G. Baeten

677 Baeten Road Green Bay, WI 54304

677 Baeten Road Green Bay, Wl 54304

6797 N. High Street Worthington, OH 43085

3 Westhrook Corp. Center Westchester, IL 60154
6797 N. High Street Worthington, OH 43085

677 Baeten Road Green Bay, Wl 54304

700 North Adams Green Bay, Wi 54307

700 North Adams Green Bay, W! 54307

700 North Adams Green Bay, Wi 54307

The Applicant is incorporated in the state of WISCONSIN.

6. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: (select and complete appropriate

statement)

X Affiliate(s) of the Applicant doing business in Pennsylvania are:

Give name and address of the affiliate(s) and state whether the affiliate(s) are jurisdictional public

utilities.

WPS Power Development, Inc.

677 Baeten Road

Green Bay, WI 54304

This affiliate and its subsidiaries are not jurisdictional public utilities.

[ Does the Applicant have any affiliation with or ownership interest in:
(a)} any other Pennsylvania retail natural gas supplier licensee or licensee applicant,
(b} any other Pennsylvania retail licensed electric generation supplier or license applicant,
{c) any Pennsylvania natural gas producer and/or marketer,
(d) any natural gas welis or
{e) any local distribution companies (LDCs) in the Commonwealth

Natural Gas Supplicr License Application
PA PUC Document #: 139346

4



Exhibit A
Page 1 of 3

SYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF .’I‘E 68
CORPORATION BUREAU
ROCM 308 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING
P.O. BOX 8722
HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722

WPS ENERGY SERVICES INC

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS EHAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT.
PLEASE NCTE THEE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE
COMMONWEALTH. THE CORPCRATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YCU AND WANTS
TO THANK YOU FOR DOING EBUSINESS IN PENNSVLVANIA. IF YOU EAVE ANY
QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU, CALL (717) 787-1057.

ENTITY NUMBER: 2662028

MICROFILM NUMBER: 09567
1631-1632

WPS ENERGY SERVICES INC
2670 S ASHLAND AVE STE 203
GREEN BAY, WI 543Q2
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LT Exhibit A
" Entity Numberm Jc// Page 2 of 3
Ry A

&

Secretary of the Commonwealth 2=

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
DSCB: 15-4124/6124 (Rev 90)
Indicate type of corporation (check one}:
X Foreign Business Corporation (15 Pa.C.S. § 4124)

Foreign Nonprofit Corporation (15 Pa.C.S. § 6124)

In compliance with the requirements of the applicable provisions of 15 Pa.C.S. (relating to corporations and unincerpo-
rated associations) the undersigned association hereby states that:

1. The name of the corporation is; W25 Znezxw fazvizas

2. The name which the corporation adepts for use in this Commaonwealth is (complete only when the corporation must
adopt a corporate designator for use in Pennsylvania):

3. (If the name set forth in paragraph 1 or 2 is not available for use in this Commonweaith, compiete the foilowing):

The fictitious name which the corporation adepts for use in transacting business in this Commonweaith is:

The corporation shall do business in Pennsyivania only under such fictitious name pursuant to the attached resolution
of the board of directors under the appiicable provisions of 15 Pa.C.S. (relating to corporations and unincorporated
associations) and the attached form DSCB:54-311 (Application for Registration of Fictitious Name).

4. The name of the jurisdiction under the laws of which the corporation is incorporated is:

5. The address of its principal office under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorpoarated is:

2279 2z-:7m 2zhilapd Avs Suisa 783 Zrzaern Zav, WD T390
Numter and Strest City State Zip County
PADERT.OF STATE
‘nES SE BRI

07 23
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oA Page 3 of 3

6. The (a) address of this corpor&'s proposed registered office in this Commonweatlth or (b) name of its commercial
registered office provider and the county of venue is:

(a)
Number and Strest Cay State Zip Courty
(b) C/0: CT Corcoration Svsmams 1535 Markst S, Philadalconiz, =3 19193 Philadeiohis Jounny
Name cf Cammercial Registered Cffice Provider County

For a corparation represented by a commercial registered office provider, the county in (b} shall be deemed the county in which the
corporation is located for venue and official publication purposes.

7. {Check one of the following):

X (Business corporation): The corparation is a carporaticn incarperated for a purpose or purposes invelving pecuniary
profit, incidental or otherwise.

(Nonprofit corporation): The corperation is a corporation incorporated for @ purpose or purposes not invohving
pecuniary profit, incidental or otherwise.

IN TESTIMCNY WHEREOQF, the undersigned corparation has caused this Application for a Certificate of Authority to be

signed by a duly authorized officer thereof this 14 day of 2z-:zec 19 Lges
WEZ ZInma-zs Ssovices
Name of %
BY: /M)ﬁ/
AcmsrT J/h. Knuth (Signature)

STFOANS



Exhibit B
. . Page 1 of 2
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

WPS ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

The undersigned, acting as an incorporator of a corporation under the Wisconsin

Business Corporation Law, Chapter 180 of the Wisconsin Statutes, adopts the following Articles
of Incorporation for such corporation.

ARTICIE 1
The name of the Corporation is WPS Energy Services, Inc.

ARTICLE 2

The Corporation is organized for the purpose of engaging in any lawful activity

within the purposes for which corporations may be organized under the Wisconsin Business
Corporation Law.

ARTICLE 3

The aggregate number of shares which the Corporation shall have authority to

issue is Ten Thousand (10,000), consisting of one class only, designated as "Common Stock,”
with a par value of one dollar ($1) per share.

ARTICLE 4

The number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall initially be four

(4) and thereafter such other number as may be designated from time to time by the Board of
Directors. The names and addresses of the initial directors shail be:

Name Address

700 North Adams Street
P. O. Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307

700 North Adams Street

Daniel A. Bollom

T
v oy

Patrick D. Schrickel

"

Atk 1T
HER R

IR

P. O. Box 19001 g
Green Bay, WI 54307 Y
Daniel P. Bittner 700 North Adams Street g é

P. Q. Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307



Exhibit B

' Page 2 of 2

Name Address
Richard A. Krueger 700 North Adams Street
P. O. Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307
ARTICLEF §

The address of the initial registered office of the Corporation is 700 North Adams
Street, P.O. Box 19001, Green Bay, Wisconsin, 54307. The name of the Corporation’s initial
registered agent at such address is R. H. Knuth.

ARTICLE 6

The name and address of the sole incorporator of this Corporation is Michael S.
Nolan, ¢/o Foley & Lardner, 777 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202.

Executed on this 12th day of October, 1994.

Lig.

Michael S. Nolan
Sole Incorporator

This instrument was drafted by and should be returned to Michael S. Nolan of Foley & Lardner,
777 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202.

TE OF WISCONSIN
| STATE 0L %0

OCT |2 1994

CAWPS\DOCRWPRWESIAT| 10711/94 101 pm | STWOOR | MSN uch



If the response to parts a, b, €, or d above is affirmative, provide a detaile&ascription and explanation of the
affiliation and/or ownership interest.

1 Provide specific details concerning the affiliation and/or ownership interests involving:
(a) any natural gas producer and/or marketers,
(b) any wholesale or retail supplier or marketer of natural gas, electricity, oil, propane or other
energy Sources.
WPS Power Development, Inc.
677 Baeten Road
Green Bay, Wi 54304

This affiliate and its subsidiaries own and operate non-utility electric generation
facilities within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Output from the facilities is
marketed to the non-regulated energy marketplace by WPS Energy Services, Inc.

L] Provide the Pa PUC Docket Number if the applicant has ever applied:
(a) for a Pennsylvania Natural Gas Supplier license, or
(b) for a Pennsylvania Electric Generation Supplier license.
Electric Generation Supplier Docket Number: A-110110

X Ifthe Applicant or an affiliate has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give
name and address of the predecessor(s) and state whether the predecessor(s) were jurisdictional
public utilities.

Fuel Services Group
6740 Huntly Road
Suite 103

Columbus, OH 43229

This company was not a jurisdictional public utility.
or

[ The Applicant has no affiliates deing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done
business in Pennsylvania.

7. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate statement)

X The Applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a

L

natural gas interstate pipeline.

[:I municipal providing service outside its municipal limits.

[ iocal gas distribution company

X retail supplier of natural gas services in the Commonwealth
a a natural gas producer

Other. (ldentify the nature of service being rendered.)

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 3
PA PUC Document #; 139346



10.

11.

12.

or

I The Applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania.

APPLICANT’S PRCPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a:

supplier of natural gas services.
Municipal supplier of natural gas services.

Cooperative supplier of natural gas services.
Broker/Marketer engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services.
Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services.

Other (Describe):

L > LI

PROPOSED SERVICES: Generally describe the natural gas services which the Applicant proposes to offer.

WPS Energy Services will offer, render, furnish or supply natural gas and energy related services to retail
customers that can benefit from energy products designed to meet their specific energy needs.

SERVICE AREA: Generally describe the geographic area in which Applicant proposes to offer services.

The entire Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to initially provide services to:

Residential Customers

Commercial Customers - (Less than 6,000 Mcf annually)
Commercial Customers - (6,000 Mcf or more annually)
Industrial Customers

Governmental Customers

All of above
Other (Describe):

LI > > < Q0

START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin delivering services on [deliveries are currently underway,
and have been since October 1995].

Naturat Gas Supplier License Agplication 6
PA PUC Document #: 139346



13. NOTICE: Pursuant to Sec
signed and verified Application with attachments on the following:

Irwin A. Popowsky

Office of Consumer Advocate
5th Floor, Forum Place

555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921

Bernard A. Ryan, Jr.
Commerce Building, Suite 1102
Small Business Advocate

300 North Second Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101

.14 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52.:0de §5.14, serve a copy of the

Office of the Attorney General
Bureau of Consumer Pratection
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor
Harrisburg, PA 17120

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Department of Revenue

Bureau of Compliance
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946

Any of the following Natural Gas Distribution Companies through whose transmission and distribution facilities

the applicant intends to supply customers:

NUI Valley Cities Gas (NUI Transportation Services)

Mike Vogel

PO Box 3175

Union, NJ 07083-1975

PH: 908.289.5000 ext. 5441 FAX: 908.2898.6444

National Fuel Gas Distribution Corp.

James E. Patterson

10 Lafayette Square

Buffalo, NY 14203

PH. 716.857.7130 FAX: 716.857-7823

Penn Fue! [North Penn Gas Company & Penn Fuel Gas]

The Peoples Natural Gas Company

Jim Evans or Tom Olsen Joe Gregorini or Bill McKeown
2 North 9" Street 625 Liberty Avenue

GENAY94 Pittsburgh, PA 15222

Allentown, PA 18101 e-mail: jeregorini@@png.cne.com

PH: 610.774.7981 610.774.4975 PH. 412.497.6851 or 412.497 6840
FAX: 6810.774.5694 610.774.4975 FAX: 412.497.6630

e-mail; jevans@papl.com or teolson@papl.com

T. W. Phillips Gas and Qil Company UGl

Robert M. Hovanec David Beaston or  Bob Krieger

205 North Main Street PO Box 12677 or 225 Morgantown Rd

Butier, PA 16001
PH: 724.287.2725
e-mail: rhovanec@itwphillips.com

FAX: 724.287.5021

Reading, PA 15222
PH: 610.796.3425
FAX: 610.796.3559

Reading, PA 15222
PH: 610.796.3516

PG Energy

Richard N. Marshall

One PEIl Center
Wilkes-Barre, PA 18711-0601
e-mail: marshall@pgenergy.com or saxe@pgenergy.com
PH: 570.829.8795 FAX: 570.829.8652

or Wendy K. Saxe

Equitable Gas Company

Antionette Litchy

200 Allegheny Center Mall

Pittsburgh, PA 15212-5352

PH: 412.395.3117 FAX: 412.395.3156

Carnegie Natural Gas Company
Donald A. Melzer

800 Regis Avenue

Pittsburgh, PA 19236

PH: 412.655.8510 ext. 331 FAX. 412.655.0335

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc.

Paula Frauen or Shirley Bardes-Hasson
650 Washington Road

Pittsburgh, PA 15228

e-mail: pfrauen@columbiaenergygroup.com

PH: 412.572.7131 FAX: 412.572.7161

PECO

Kevin Carrabine

300 Front Street Building 2
Conshohocken, PA 18428
PH: 610.832.6413

Pursuant to Sections 1,57 and 1.58 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1.57 and 1.58, attach Proof of

Service of the Application and attachments upon the above named parties. Upon review of the Application, further
notice may be required pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14.

Naturz] Ga< Supplier License Application
PA PUC Document #: 139346



14.

15.

16.

17.

TAXATION: Complete the ‘ERTIFICATION STATEMENT attached .ppendix B to this application.
Attached as Appendix A

COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person
identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all
proceedings, by name, subject and citation, dealing with business operations, in the last five (3) years,
whether before an administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor
of either, or a person identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the
resolution or present status of any such proceedings.

Neither the applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or person identified in this application have been
convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity.

STANDARDS, BILLING PRACTICES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROVIDING SERVICE AND
CONSUMER EDUCATICN: All services should be priced in clearly stated terms to the extent possible.
Common definitions should be used. All consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain
language with any exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, package offers, limited time offers or other deadlines
prominently communicated. Penalties and procedures for ending contracts should be clearly communicated.

a. Contacts for Consumer Service and Complaints: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and
FAX number of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints.
These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints filed with Applicant,
the Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or cther agencies.

Alternate
Darrell Bragg Betty Merlina
Vice President, FSG Vice President, FSG
6797 N. High Street 6797 N. High Street
Suite 314 Suite 314
Worthington, OH 43085 Worthington, OH 43085
614-846-7888 614-846-7888
614-846-7833 fax 614-846-7833 fax

b. Provide a copy of all standard forms or contracts that you use, or propose to use, for service provided to
residential customers,
We are not pursuing Residential customers at this time.

c. If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial customers, provide a disclosure statement.
A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix B to this Application.
We are not pursuing Residential / Small Commercial customers at this time,

FINANCIAL FITNESS:

A. Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate financial fitness commensurate with the
service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information which may be submitted include the
following:

e Actual (or proposed) organizational structure including parent, affiliated or subsidiary companies.
Exhibit D
e Published parent company financial and credit information.
1998 Annual Report
* Applicant's balance sheet and income statement for the most recent fiscal year. Published financial
information such as 10K's and 10Q's may be provided, if available.
December 31, 1998 10K and September 30, 1999 10Q
s Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and Bradstreet Credit
Report and Robert Morris and Associates financial form or other independent financial service reports.
Dun & Bradstreet Report
* A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are specifically intended
to provide for or support its financial fitness to perform its obligations as a licensee.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application b4
PA PUC Document #; 139346



Exhibit D

WPS Resources
Corporation *

(December 3, 1993)

WPSR Capital
Trust |
{June 9, 1998)

Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation
{July 17, 1883)

Upper Peninsula
Power Company
{February 26, 1947)

WPS Visions, Inc.

(July 12, 1996)

WPS Resources
Capital Corporation
{January 13, 1999)

Upper Peninsula Building
Developmeni Company
{January 18, 1989)

Penvest, Inc.

{QOctober 27, 1995)

WPS Nuclear
Corporation
{February 24, 1999)

WPS Leasing. Inc.

{Septernber 22, 1994}

|

WPS-ESI Gas
Slorage, LLC
(August 26, 1999)

WPS Energy
Services, Inc. **
(October 12, 1994)

WPS Power
Development, Inc.
(December 21, 1994)

Nuclear Management
Company, LLC
{February 25, 1993)

Neulite Industries of
Wisconsin, L.L.C.
(September 25, 1596}

Mid-American Power
Ventures, LLC
{August 21, 1996)

Renewable Fibers Sunbury Holdings,
International, LLC LLC
{January 16, 1998) (April 30, 1999)

Wisconsin
Woodgas LLC

(January 27, 1998)

PDI Operations,
Inc.
{May 30, 1996)

PD1 Stoneman, Inc.

(April 1, 1938)

s |

Wisconsin Energy
QOperations LLC
(January 27, 1898)

ECO Coal

Pelletization #12 LLC
{June 15, 1998)

Sunbury
Generation, LLC
(April 30, 1999)

Penfield Collieries,
LLC
{Agpril 30, 1999}

PDI New England, Inc. ***

(December 14, 1898)

PDI Canada, Inc. ****

(December 14, 1998)

Wisconsin Public Service
Foundation, Inc.
{April 7, 1964}

WPS Community
Faundation, Inc.
{March 28, 1996)

* Holding company structure became effective on Seplember 9, 1994.

** F8G Energy Services is a division of WPS Energy Services, Inc.
*** Doing business in Maine under the assumed name of WPS New England Generation, Inc.
**** Doing business in Maine under the assumed name of WPS Canada Generation, Inc.

Mid-American
Power, LLC
(1996)

Ni\grouplexec\dmsiwpsnorganizs.doc
10-01-99




Exhibit E . .

» Audited financial statements
Contained in Annual Report and 10K filing
* Such other information that demonstrates Applicant's financial fitness.

B. Applicant must provide the following information:

« identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes.
Exhibit F
« Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and FAX number of Applicant's custadian for its
accounting records.

Exhibit F

18. TECHNICAL FITNESS: To ensure that the present quality and availability of service provided by natural gas
utilities does not deteriorate, the Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate technical fitness
commensurate with the service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information which may be
submitted include the following:

» The identity of the Applicant's officers directly responsible for operations, including names and their

professional resumes.

See Exhibit F

« A copy of any Federal energy license currently held by the Applicant.
See Exhibit G — FERC Power Marketer License

« Proposed staffing and employee training commitments.
Pennsylvania business is serviced out of our Columbus, Ohio office. We hire experienced individuals,
and provide on the job training through our existing personnel.

» Business plans.
We intend to continue to provide reliable, cost effective energy solutions to our natural gas
transportation customer base, as we have since 19925 We will continue to evaluate the small
commercial and residential segments, and file a revision to our application should we choose to pursue
those market segments.

i9. TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license to another entity,
it is required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to transferring the license. See 66
Pa. C.S. Section 2208(D). Transferee will be required to file the appropriate licensing application.

20. UNIFORM STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of receiving a license,
Applicant agrees to conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and Disclosure as set forth by the
Commission.

21. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information to the Commission or
the Department of Revenue, as appropriate:

a. Reports of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsyivania intrastate gross receipts to the

Commission on an annual basis no later than 30 days following the end of the calendar year.

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the
Commission to fulfill the Commission’s duty under Chapter 22 pertaining to reliability and to inform
the Governor and Legislature of the progress of the transition to a fully competitive natural gas
market.

Natural Gas Suppliet Ligense Application 9

PA PUC Document #: 139346



EIM
$25 Million

Policy #
900330-96D0O

EXHIBIT E

Wausau
Insurance
Company

Policy #

AEGIS
$25 Million

Policy #
DO215B1A97

Self Insured
$500,000

Director &
Officers
Liability

EIM
$65 Million
(Follow Form Policy)
Policy #
500530-95GL
AEGIS AEGIS
$35 Million $35 Million
Policy # Policy #
F0215A1A96 X0215A1A95
Self Insured Self Insured
$200,000 $200,000
Fiduciary Liability
Liability

0118-00-099395

Bodily Injury

$ 1 Million Each
Accident

Bodily Injury By
Disease

$ 1 Million each
Employee

$1 Million Policy
Limit

Worker's
Compensation -

AEGIS Policy Named Insured: WPSC
AEGIS Policy Namad Insured: WPSC

AEGIS Policy Named Inswed: WPSR
and
Subsidiarias as dafined in AEGIS policy

(tw. <§300 Million Assots of <10% af tha Company's
Tolal Assala)

AEGIS Endorsemanl #68 names;

WPS Enangy Servicas, inc,

Subskdiaries covered under AEGIS policy if notificallon
provided wilhin 60 days of kweplion date

AEGIS Endorsement 1E namas;

WPS £nergy Services, Inc.

Namad Insureds:
WPS Energy Services, Inc.
Stales Listed: State Funds:

Wisconaln (ESI) Ohlo (FSG)
Pennsylvania (ES1 & F5G) Wosl Virginla (FSG)
Naw Jersoy (FSG)

Michigan (ESH

Taxas (ESI}

Hiinole (ES1)



Exhibit F
WFPS Energy Services, Inc.
and its
FSG Energy Services division

Directly Responsible Officer Professional Resumes
and
Custodian for Accounting Records

Phillip M. Mikuisky, Sr. VP Development WPS Resources Corporation, CEO WPS Enerqgy Services, Inc.
Mr. Mikulsky's current focus is on the development and deployment of the unregulated entities under the WPS
Resources Holding Company. He has over 29 years of gas and electric experience, including 21 years in a
leadership/management capacity, in both the regulated and unregulated energy markets. He has also had
significant involvement with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and State Regulatory Commissions.

Mark A. Radtke, President

Mr. Radtke has overall responsibility for WPS Energy Services, Inc. His current focus includes the unregulated
energy markets and development of energy products and services that meet the strategic and operational needs
of customers in a rapidly evolving energy marketplace. He has over 16 years of gas and electric industry
experience, including nine years in a leadership/management capacity in supply, generation and transmission
control, and development of hardware and software energy management products. '

Darrell W. Bragqg, Vice President
Mr. Bragg has corporate responsibility for marketing, financial planning and growth strategies for WPS Energy

Services eastern U.S. division FSG Energy Services. He has over 19 years of natural gas experience, including 9
with major pipelines, where he held various positions in the accounting and marketing departments. He plans to
take the full line of WPS Energy Services' products and to increase services to existing accounts and to increase
customer growth by providing products and services unparalleled in the industry.

Betty J. Mertina, Vice President

Ms. Merlina has corporate responsibility for supply acquisition and supply operations for WPS Energy Services
eastern U.S. division FSG Energy Services. She has over 16 years of natural gas experience including 9 with a
major local distributor company, where she held various positions including IT design, GISB representation,
contracts and gas procurement. Her current and past experience insures that customer service, customer
pricing and customer growth will continue at the highest level WPS Energy Services customers have grown to
expect.

Daniel J. Verbanac, Vice President

Mr. Verbanac has corporate responsibility for the energy trading and supply operations of WPS Energy Services,
Inc. He has over 15 years of gas and electric industry experience, including eight years in a
leadership/management capacity in energy supply and trading, and the technical development of systems
associated with regulated and unregulated energy business operations. This includes development of energy
management systems required of energy supply companies, and the systems necessary to accommodate pipeline
nominations, customer transactions and unbundling functions required to implement FERC Order 636.

Custodian for Accounting Records
Joseph W, Peikert

Accounting Manager

WPS Energy Services, Inc,

677 Baeten Road

Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304
820-490-68047 920-499-9399 fax

Nawral Gas Supplier License Application
PA PUC Document #: 139326
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22. FURTHER DEVELOPMEP. Applicant is under a continuing obl’m to amend its application if
substantial changes occur in the information upon which the Commission relied in approving the original filing.

23. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s) herein may be grounds
for denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority granted pursuant to the
Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in

official matters,

24,  FEE: The Applicant has enclosed the required initial licensing fee of $350.00 payable to the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania.

Applicant:_JPS Entrey Suu-c.r.s_ Lpe.
By:";tr:‘_/( m%

Title:  Phe.s.hEary

Natural Gas Supplier License Applicaticn 10
PA PUC Document 4: 139346



@ AFFIDAVIT@®

State of Wisconsin :

S8,

County of Brown
Mark A. Radtke, Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that:
He is the President of WPS Energy Services, Inc.,;

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;

That WPS Energy Services, Inc., the Applicant herein, acknowledges that WPS Energy Services, Inc. may have
obligations pursuant to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
Title 66 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes; or with other applicable statutes or regulations including Emergency
Orders which may be issued verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly develop
from time to time in the course of doing business in Pennsylvania.

That WPS Energy Services, Inc., the Applicant herein, asserts that he possesses the requisite technical, managerial, and
financial fitness to render natural gas supply service within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the Applicant
will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission.

That WPS Energy Services, Inc., the Applicant herein, certifics to the Commission that it is subject to , will pay,
and in the past has paid, the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles [l and XI of the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, No.
2 ), known as the Tax Reform Act of 1971 and any tax imposed by Chapter 22 of Title 66. The Applicant
acknowledges that failure to pay such taxes or otherwise comply with the taxation requirements of, shall be cause for
the Commission to revoke the license of the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the
Commission its jurisdictional natural gas sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as otherwise required
by the Commission. The Applicant also acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. §506 (relating to the inspection
of facilities and records).

Applicant, by filing of this application waives confidentiality with respect to its state tax information in the possession
of the Department of Revenue, regardless of the source of the information, and shall consent to the Department of
Revenue providing that information to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

That WPS Energy Services, Inc., the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory obligation to conform with
66 Pa. C.S. §506, and the standards and billing practices of 52 PA. Code Chapter 56.

Watural Gas Supplier License Application 11
PA PUC Document #: 139345



That the Applicant agrees to provide all consumer education materials and infor&on in a timely manner as requested
by the Commission’s Office of Communications or other Commission bureaus. Materials and information requested
may be analyzed by the Commission to meel obligations under applicable sections of the law.

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information, and belief,

=4

Signéture of Affiant

Sworn and subscribed before me this __ 1. day of DECEMAER. 1995 .

Y }%c;%gﬁiﬁt ! QlQdiQQEE
Signatufe oflefficial administering oath

My commission expires __ OCTDEER DO

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 12
PA PUC Documem #; 139346



Notice of Application Intention

WPS Energy Services, Inc. intends to publish a notice of application in the following newspapers:
Erie Daily Times
Patriot-News
Philadeiphia Inquirer
Piitsburgh Post-Gazette
Scranton Times
Wiiliamsport Sun Gazetie

When notices are published, and affidavit to that effect will be completed and supplied.

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 13
PA PUC Document #: 139346



® AFFIDAVIT®

State of Wisconsin

58.

County of Brown

Mark A. Radtke, Affiant, being duly swomn according to law, deposes and says that:
He is the President of WPS Energy Services, Inc.,

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;

That the Applicant herein, WPS Energy Services, Inc. has the burden of producing information and supporting
documentation demonstrating its technical and financial fitness to be licensed as a natural gas supplier pursuant to 66
Pa. C.S. §2208(c)(1).

That the Applicant herein, WPS Energy Services, Inc. has answered the questions on the application correctly,
truthfully, and completely and provided supporting documentation as required.

That the Applicant herein, WPS Energy Services, Inc. acknowledges that it is under a duty to update information
provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents.

That the Applicant herein, WPS Energy Services, Inc. acknowledges that it is under a duty to supplement information
provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents as requested by the
Commission.

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief, and that
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at hearing.

= Aol

Signature of Affiant

Sworn and subscribed before me this L day of DELEMPER. 1964

Signﬁure aofﬂciai administering oath

My commission expires _ (X TR & 2.000

Matural Gas Supplier License Application 15
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. APPENDIX A ()

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

A completed Tax Certification Statement must accompany all applications for new licenses, rencwals or transfers,  Failure to provide the requested
information and/or any outstanding stale income, corporation. and saltes (including failure o file or register) will cause your application to be rejected. If

additional space is needed, please use white 81727 x 117 paper. Type or print all information requested.

1. CORPORATE OR APPLICANT NAME 2. BUSINESS PHONE NO. (920-433-1103)
CONTACT PERSON(S) FOR TAX ACCOQUNTS;:
WPS Energy Services, Inc. John R. Wilde

1. TRADEFICTITIOUS NAME (IF ANY)

FSG a Division of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

4. LICENSED ADDRESS (STREET, RURAL ROUTE. P.O. BOX NO.) (POST OFFICE) STATE) ZIP)

PO Box 19001 Green Bay W1 54307-9001

5. TYPE OF ENTITY (] SOLE PROPRIETOR [J PARTNERSHIP (<] CORPORATION

8. LIST OWNER(S), GENERAL PARTNERS, OR CORPORATE OFFICER(S)

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER  (OPTIONAL)

Phillip M. Mikulsky L[ I - ] | |

Chiet Executive Ofticer

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER  (OPTIONAL)

Mark A. Radtke | J- L1 ]-1 | |

President

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER _ (OPTIONAL)

Larry W. Weyers [ ] - | | | - | | [ 1

Vice President

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER  (OPTIONAL}

Ralph Baeten [ - L1 1-1 I [ 1

Treasurer

NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER _ (OPTIONAL)

Barth Wolf L1 i I N l |

Secerclary

9. LIST THE FOLLOWING STATE TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS. (ALL ITEMS: A, B, AND C MUST BE COMPLETED).

A. SALES TAX LICENSE (8 DIGITS) APPLICATION C. CORPORATE BOX NUMBER (7 DIGITS)  APPLICATION
PENDING N/A PENDING

l9|9|-|6|8|6|6|7 ||_4_| O 0 |2le |6 |2|-]0|2 |3| 0

N/A

O

B. EMPLOYER ID (EIN) (9 DIGITS:  APPLICATION
PENDING N/A

3(9f-1]1¢ 3 0 |2 |3 5

Pl frjef2p [Pl o O

10. Do you have PA employes either resident or non-resident? ] YEs [ NO
11. Do you own any assets or have an office in PA? [] vES ] NO
NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING TAX RETURNS

John R. Wilde (920)433-1103 John R. Wilde (920)433-1i03 John R. Wilde (920)433-1103

PA SALES AND USE TAX EMPLOYER TAXES CORPORATE TAXES

Telephone inquiries about this form may be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue at the following numbers:
(717) 772-2673, TDD# (717) 772-2252 (Hearing Impaired Only)

Naturs) Gas Supplier License Application 16
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Exhibit ¥
WPS Energy Services, Inc.
and its
FSG Energy Services division

Directly Responsible Officer Professional Resumes
and
Custodian for Accounting Records

Phillip M. Mikulsky, Sr. VP Development WPS Resources Corporation, CEC WPS Enerqy Services, Inc.

Mr. Mikulsky’s current focus is on the development and deployment of the unregulated entities under the WPS
Resources Holding Company. He has over 29 years of gas and electric experience, including 21 years in a
leadership/management capacity, in both the regulated and unregulated energy markets. He has also had
significant involvement with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and State Regulatory Commissions.

Mark A. Radtke, President

Mr. Radtke has overall responsibility for WPS Energy Services, Inc. His current focus includes the unregulated
energy markets and development of energy products and services that meet the strategic and operational needs
of customers in a rapidly evolving energy marketplace. He has over 16 years of gas and electric industry
experience, including nine years in a leadership/management capacity in supply, generation and transmission
control, and develocpment of hardware and software energy management products.

Darrell W. Braqq, Vice President

Mr. Bragg has corporate responsibility for marketing, financial planning and growth strategies for WPS Energy
Services eastern U.S. division FSG Energy Services. He has over 19 years of natural gas experience, including 9
with major pipelines, where he held various positions in the accounting and marketing departments. He plans to
take the full line of WPS Energy Services' products and to increase services to existing accounts and to increase
customer growth by providing products and services unparalleled in the industry.

Betty J. Merlina, Vice President

Ms. Merlina has corporate responsibility for supply acquisition and supply operations for WPS Energy Services
eastern U.S. division FSG Energy Services. She has over 16 years of natural gas experience including 9 with a
major local distributor company, where she held various positions including IT design, GISB representation,
contracts and gas procurement. Her current and past experience insures that customer service, customer
pricing and customer growth will continue at the highest level WPS Energy Services customers have grown to
expect.

Daniel J. Verbanac, Vice President

Mr. Verbanac has corporate responsibility for the energy trading and supply operations of WPS Energy Services,
Inc. He has over 15 years of gas and electric industry experience, including eight years in a
leadership/management capacity in energy supply and trading, and the technical development of systems
associated with regulated and unregulated energy business operations. This inciudes development of energy
management systems required of energy supply companies, and the systems necessary to accommodate pipeline
nominations, customer transactions and unbundling functions required to implement FERC Order 636.

Custodian for Accounting Records
Joseph W. Peikert

Accounting Manager

WPS Energy Services, Inc.

677 Baeten Road

Green Bay, Wisconsin 54304
920-490-6047 920-499-9399 fax

Natural Gas Supplier License Application 27
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FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT

For The Year Ended December 31, 1998

EEF

WPS Resources Corporation
and
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

(A wholly-owned subsidiary of WPS Resources Corporation)




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

[}(] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998
OR

[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TC SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OQOF
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission Registrant; State of Incorporation
file number Address; and Telephone Humber

1-11337 WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION
(A Wisconsin Corporation)
700 North Adams Street
P. O.- Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307-3001
920-433-4901

1-301s WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
{A Wisconsin Corporation)
700 North Adams Street
P. O. Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307-9001
920-433-1598

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

IRS Employer
Identification No.

39-1775292

38-0715160

Title of Name of each exchange
each class on which registered

WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION Common Stock, New York Stock Exchange

$1 par value

Rights to purchase New York Stock Exchange

Common Stock pursuant
to Rights Agreement
dated December 12, 1996



Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATICN

Preferred Stock, Cumulative, $100 par value
5.00% Series 6.76% Series
5.04% Series 6.88% Series
5.08% Series

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No [ ]

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405
of Regulation $-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the
best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to
this Form 10-K. [X]

State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by nonaffiliates of

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATICON
$806,498,927 as of Maxch 22, 1999
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATICN

None

Number of shares outstanding of each class of common stock, as of December 31,

WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION Common Stock, $1 par value,
26,551,405 shares

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATICON Common Stock, $4 par value,
23,896,962 shares. WPS Resources
Corporation is the sole holder of
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
Common Stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPCRATED BY REFERENCE

(1) Definitive proxy statement for the WPS Resources Corporation Annual
Meeting of Shareholders on May 6, 1999 is incorporated into Parts I and
IIT.
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FART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

A. GENERAL
WPS Resources Corporation

WPS Resources Corporation {("WPSR"}, a Wisconsin Corporation, was
incorporated on December 3, 1993 and operates as a holding company with both
regulated utility and nonregulated business units. WPSR's principal wholly-
owned subsidiaries are: Wisconsin Public Service Corporation ("WPSC"), a
regulated electric and gas utility; Upper Peninsula Power Company ("UPPCO"),
a regulated electric utility; and WPS Energy Services, Inc. ("ESI"} and
WPS Power Development, Inc. ("PDI"}, both nonregulated subsidiaries. WPSC,
ESI, and PDI are Wisconsin corporations, while UPPCO is a Michigan
corporation. WPSC, UPPCO, ESI, and PDI represent approximately 61%, 6%, 33%,
and .5% of WPSR's consclidated revenues for 1998 and 84%, 8%, 5%, and 2% of
WPSR's consolidated assets at December 31, 1998, respectively. All of WPSR's
net income for 1998 was derived from WPSC and UPPCO.

Effective September 29, 1998, Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation
("UPEN") merged with and into WPSR, and UPPCO, UPEN's utility and major
subgidiary, as well as other nonregulated subsidiaries, became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of WPSR. Each of the 2,950,001 outstanding shares of UPEN common
stock (no par value) were converted into the right to receive 0.90 shares of
WPSR common stock (51.00 par value), subject to adjustment for fractional
shares, as provided in the merger agreement.

On January 12, 1999, WPS Resources Capital Corporation was formed as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of WPSR. As an intermediate holding company,
WPS Resources Capital Corporation became the parent of ESI and PDI and a
vehicle to provide financing for ESI and PDI.

On a stand-alone basis, WPSR incurred a net loss in 1998 of
$2.0 million, compared with a net loss of $2.7 million in 1997. The 19%8 and
1997 WPSR stand-alone losses were attributable primarily to expenses
associated with the merger with UPEN and increased interest expense resgulting
from additiconal financing of subsidiary projects.

Within this report, the term "utility" refers to the regulated
activities of WPSC and UPPCO, while the term "nonutility" refers to the
activities of WPSC and UPPCO which are not regulated. The term "nonregulated”
refers to activities other than those of WBSC and UPPCO.

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

At December 31, 1998, WPSC served 381,136 electric retail customers and
224,058 gas retail customers in an 11,000 square-mile service territory in
northeastern and gentral Wisconsin and an adjacent part of Upper Michigan.
Additionally, WPSC provides wholesale (full or partial requirements) electric
service, either directly or indirectly, to seven municipal utilities, three
electric cooperatives, ten investor-owned utilities, six marketers, and one
municipal joint action agency. Operating revenues in the year 1338 were
derived 97% from Wisconsin customers and 3% from Michigan customers. Of total
revenues in 1998, 75% were from electric operations and 25% were from gas



operations. Of total electric revenues, 89% were from retail sales and 11%
were from wholesale sales.

WPSC's retail service areas are principally protected by indeterminate
permits secured by statute in Wisconsin and through franchises granted by
municipalities in Michigan.

Upper Peninaula Power Company

At December 31, 1998, UPPCO served 48,272 electric customers in a
4,000 square-mile area of primarily rural countryside in Upper Michigan.
Additionally, UPPCO provides wholesale {(full or partial requirements) electric
service, either directly or indirectly, to five municipal utilities, two
electric cooperatives, and two investor-owned utilities. UPPCO derives 100%
of its revenues from electric cperations. Of total revenues, 92% were from
retail sales and 8% were from wholesale sales.

Regulatory Oversight

WPSR is exempt from registration under the Public Utility Holding
Company Act of 19235, as amended, but is subject to the various requirements
and prohibitions of the Wisconsin Public Utility Helding Company Act.

Utility rates, service, and securities issues of WPSC are subject to
regulation by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin ("PSCW"); and WPSC
and UPPCO are both subject to the jurisdiction of the Michigan Public Service
Commission {"MPSC"). WESC and UPPCO are also subject to regulation of their
wholesale electric rates, hydroelectric projects, and certain other matters by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"). Both WPSC and UPPCQ are
subject to limited regulation by local authorities. WPSC and UPPCO follow
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Requlation," and, therefore, their financial
statements reflect the different ratemaking principles of the various
jurisdictions. The impacts of utility regulation alsc are reflected, through
consolidation, in the financial statements of WPSR. Utility revenues by
jurisdiction include: the PSCW B81%, the MPSC 11%, and the FERC 8%. The
operation of the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant is subject to the jurisdiction
of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

An Overview of Industry Restructuring
General

In April 1994, the FERC issued Order 888 on open access electrig
transmission and stranded cost recovery due to wholesale competition.
Order 888 directs the creation of power pools and independent system operators
{"ISOs") to meet the copen access requirements and principles.

An IS0 is an independent third party that would regulate on a “real-
time" basis the operation of the transmission systems in a defined geographic
area.. With most ISOs, the transmission system assets may be retained by the
electric utilities. The IS0 would monitor the generation, transmission, and
distribution systems, direct the operations of transmission facilities,
administer open access transmission tariffs, and direct generation redispatch.
Some believe that an ISO may also own transmission assets.



An independent transmission company is an alternative to an ISO. An
independent transmission company would perform functions that are similar to
an ISO; however, an independent transmission company would also own the
transmission assets. The FERC has jurisdiction in setting prices for both
ISOs and independent transmission companies.

In April 1924, the FERC alsoc issued Order 889 which requires that public
utilities develop a system to communicate information about their transmission
systems and services electronically to all potential customers at the same
time. WPSC is included in the system created by the Mid-America
Interconnected Network, commonly known as MAIN, one of the existing electric
reliability regions in the United States.

Effect on Operations

Industry restructuring will create competitive markets which could make
the recovery of investment dollars in customer rates less certain.
Management, however, believes that its utility assets will continue to be
recoverable under such conditions.

Management expects that increased competiticn in a deregulated
environment will put greater emphasis on managing c¢osts and put pressure con
operating margins at WPSC and UPPCO. Management also believes that no
significant changes to depreciable lives of WPSC's and UPPCO's capital assets
would be necessary in a competitive environment. At this time, management
cannot predict the ultimate results of deregulation.

Regional Merger Activities

Industry restructuring has been accompanied by merger activity in the
region which could impact the competitive environment. Mergers and
acquisitions may be a means to gain an advantage in a competitive environment.
Recently, mergers have occurred between WPSR and UPEN, as previously
described, and between WPL Holdings, Inc¢., IES Industries, Inc., and
Interstate Power Company. Additionally, Wisconsin Energy Corporation acquired
ESELCO, Inc., the parent company of the Edison Sault Electric Company. No new
Wisconsin utility mergers or acquisitions were announced in 1998.

Year 2000 Compliance

The Year 2000 issue arises because date sensitive computer software or
embedded chips may not recognize a date using "00" as 2000. This may result
in system failures or disruption of operations.

WPSR has undertaken a program to assess the Year 2000 isgsue and to bring
computer systems into compliance by the year 2000. All systems, including
energy production and delivery systems, other embedded systems, and third
party systems of suppliers are being evaluated to identify and resolve
potential problems.

A Year 2000 plan has been developed and communicated to employees,
customers, suppliers, and other affected parties which includes awareness,
inventory and assessment, remediation, testing, and implementation. The
inventory and assessment phase has been completed. Action plans for
remediation have been completed. Five major systems of the company {customer
information, finance, human resources, materials management, and facility
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management) are currently Year 2000 compliant. Other critical systems are
expected to be compliant by the end of the first quarter of 1999. Worst case
scenarios and contingency plans are being developed.

The most recent estimated future internal labor and third party cost of
Year 2000 compliance is approximately $9.0 million. See further discussion
regarding Year 2000 compliance in MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION on page 72.

Forwarding-Locking Statements

This report includes forward-lecking statements within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
statements speak of plans, goals, beliefs, or expectations of WPSR, WPSC, and
their subsidiaries, refer to estimates, or use similar terms. Although WPSR,
WPSC, and their subsidiaries believe that their expectations are based on
reasonable assumptions, no assurance can be given that actual results may not
differ materially from those in the forward-locking statements included in
this report for reasons that include: the speed and degree to which
competition enters the electric and natural gas industries; state and federal
legislative and regulatory initiatives that increase competition, affect cost
and investment recovery, and have an impact on rate structures; the economic
climate and industrial, commercial, and residential growth in areas served by
WPSC, UPPCO, and ESI; the weather and other natural phenomena; the timing and
extent of changes in commodity prices and interest rates; conditions in the
capital markets; growth in opportunities for ESI and PDI; and the impact of
the Year 2000 issue.

A forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such
statement is made, and WPSR does not undertake to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such
statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New
factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for WPSR, WPSC, or
their subsidiaries to predict all such factors, nor can it assess the impact
of each such factor or the extent to which any factor, or combination of
factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement.

B. ELECTRIC MATTERS
Electric Operationsa

The largest Wisconsin communities served by WPSC at the electric retail
level are the cities of Green Bay, Oshkosh, Wausau, and Stevens Point. The
largest Michigan community served by UPPCO at the electric retail level is the
area of Houghton/Hancock.

Generating Capacity

In 1998, WPSC reached a firm net design peak of 1,606 megawatts on
July 14. Net design peak relates to the 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. period which
is the period most relevant for capacity planning purposes. WPSC reached a
firm net actual peak of 1,685 megawatts on July 13. During the actual peak,
transactions outside WPSC included firm purchases of 132 megawatts and firm
sales of 38 megawatts. Planned generator capability for the 1998 summer
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period was 1,780 megawatts. WPSC's future supply reserves are estimated to be
above the planning criteria of 18% minimum reserves for 1992 and 2000.

See "UTILITY" in Part I, Item 2, PROPERTIES, at page 32 for information
concerning the generation facilities of WPSC and UPPCO.

During 1997, the PSCW authorized De Pere Energy LLC, an affiliate of
Polsky Energy Corporation, an independent power producer, to build the De Pere
Energy Center, a 1l79-megawatt combustion turbine generating facility that is
scheduled to be operational on June 1, 1999. The energy center will be
converted to a combined-cycle unit with a summer rating of 233 megawatts on or
after the fifth year of operation, pursuant to the reguirements of WPSC's
25-year contract with De Pere Energy LLC to purchase capacity and energy from
the center. A combined-cycle unit is a type of combustion turbine in which
the hot exhaust gases pass through a heat recovery steam generator to produce
steam that drives a steam turbine generator which produces approximately
one-third of the power generated. WPSC will furnish the natural gas fuel for
the facility pursuant to existing gas tariffs, The energy center will be
operated by SkyGen Services LLC, an operating subsidiary of Polsky Energy
Corporation. See NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Note 10,
Commitments and Contingencies, at page 101, regarding "Long-Term Power
Supply." WPSC has contracted for combustion turbine peaking capacity from the
De Pere Energy Center beginning June 1, 1999.

In 1998, 85% of UPPCO's total energy requirements were purchased; the
remainder was supplied by hydroelectric and combustion turbine facilities
owned by UPPCO. During 1998, UPPCO purchased firm power of 50 megawatts and
15 megawatts from Commonwealth Edison and WPSC, respectively. In addition,
UPPCO purchased non—firm'power from WPSC, WP&L, and others. The purchase from
Commonwealth represented 50% of UPPCO's total energy requirements in 1998.

The purchase contracts are effective through December 31, 199%9. UPPCO has
contracted for 65 megawatts of capacity and energy from WPSC for the years
2000, 2001, and 2002. '

WPSC has begun construction of a 9-megawatt wind plant. The project
consists of 14 wind turbines installed on private farmlands located in the
Town of Lincoln in Kewaunee County, Wisconsin. The wind plant is expected to
be on-line by June 30, 1999 at an estimated cost of $10.3 million,

WPSC owns 33.1% of the outstanding capital stock of Wisconsin River
Power Company which owns and operates two dams and related hydroelectric
plants on the Wisconsin River having an aggregate installed capacity of
approximately 39 megawatts.

Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
General

The Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant.is a pressurized water reactor plant
with a name plate capacity of 562 megawatts. It is operated by WPSC and is
jointly owned by WPSC (41.2%), Wisconsin Power and Light Company (41.0%), and
Madison Gas and Electric Company (17.8%). The plant's operating license
expires in 2013.



Kewaunee has achieved the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations' top
rating for the seventh time. The Institute of Nuclear Power Operations is an
industry group formed in 1979 to promote excellence in the nuclear industry.

Steam Generator Replacement

On April 7, 1998, the PSCW approved WPSC's application for the
replacement of the two steam generators at the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant.
The total cost of replacing the steam generators could be approximately
$90.7 million. Pending settlement of ownership issues with Madison Gas and
Electric Company, WPSC's share of the cost may be as much as $53.5 million.
The replacement work is being planned for mid-year of 2000 and will take
approximately 60 days.

On October 17, 1998, the plant was shut down for a planned maintenance
and refueling outage. Inspection of the plant's two steam generators showed
that the repairs made to the tubes in 1997 are holding up well and few
additional repairs were needed. In addition to the inspection and repair of
the steam generators, a major overhaul was performed on the main turbine
generator. After an outage duration of 42 days, the plant was restarted and
returned to service on November 27, 1998.

Ownership

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and Madison Gas and Electric Company
finalized an agreement in which WPSC will acquire Madison Gas and Electric
Company's 17.8% share of the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant. This agreement,
the closing of which is contingent upon regulatory approvals and steam
generator replacement, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership in the plant. The other
co-owner, Wisconsin Power and Light Company, will maintain its current
ownership interest in Kewaunee and will support the replacement of the steam
generators.

The agreement provides for WPSC to pay Madison Gas and Electric Company
its depreciated book value for its share of the plant. Madison Gas and
Electric Company will alsco provide to WPSC a fully funded decommissioning
account. WPSC will then assume responsibility for 59% of the costs of
decommissioning the plant. Madison Gas and Electric Company retains its
obligation for its share of the costs of final disposal of spent nuclear fuel
created up to the time of ownership transfer. The agreement also provides
Madison Gas and Electric Company an option to purchase power from WPSC for two
yvears following the date of ownership transfer. The amount of power involved
in this option is approximately equal to Madison Gas and Electric Company's
current share of the power generated by the plant.

WPSC has alsoc entered into an agreement with Madison Gas and Electric
Company whereby WPSC will construct and operate for Madison Gas and Electric
Company an 83-megawatt combustion turbine at WPSC's West Marinette site in
northeastern Wisceonsin. In entering this agreement, the utilities agreed that
the amount owed by WPSC to Madison Gas and Electric Company for the Kewaunee
Nuclear Power Plant asset transfer could be credited against the purchase
price of the combustion turbine. The construction of the combustion turbine
is expected to be completed in the second gquarter of 2000. WPSC will supply
gas to this unit pursuant to existing gas tariffs. 1If, for some reason, the
Marinette station is not completed, the agreement calls for WPSC to pay for




Madison Gas and Electric_Company's share of the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
with a combination of cash and notes.

Formation of Nuclear Management Company

On February 25, 1999, Northern States Power Company, Wisconsin Electric
Power Company, and WPSC announced the formation of a nuclear management
company. Alliant Energy, the parent company of Wisconsin Power and Light
Company, is seeking approval from the Securities and Exchange Commission to
join the management company at a later date. Combined, the four utilities
operate seven nuclear generating plants at five locations for a combined
generating capacity of approximately 3,760 megawatts, representing between 12%
and 25% of the electricity generated by the individual utilities.

The new company was formed to sustain long-term safety, optimize
reliability, and improve the operational performance of the individual nuclear
generating plants. Overall plant operations will continue to be provided by
the same plant personnel. The utilities will continue to own their respective
plants, be entitled to energy generated at the plants, and retain the
financial obligations for their safe operation, maintenance, and
decommissioning. . Each utility will obtain required state or federal
regulatory approvals prior to its participation in the nuclear management
company .

Low-Level Radiocactive Waste Storage

The Midwest Compact Commission, on June 26, 19297, halted development in
Ohioc of a six-state, regional digposal facility for low-level radiocactive
waste. The Midwest Compact Commission, established to implement the federal
Low Level Radicactive Waste Policy Act of 1980, cited dwindling regional waste
volumes, continued access to existing disposal facilities, and potentially
high development costs as the primary reasons for the decision. The Midwest
Compact Commission continues to monitor the availability of disposal for the
low-level radiocactive waste created by all Midwest generators. A site at
Barnwell, South Carolina, continues to be available for the storage of low-
level radicactive waste from the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant. In addition,
because of technology advances, waste compaction, and the reduction of waste
generated, the Kewaunee plant has on-site low-level radiocactive waste storage
capacity sufficient to store the amount of low-level waste expected to be
generated over a 10-year period.

Depreciation and Decommigsioning

In 1997, the PSCW directed the owners of the Kewaunee Nuclear Power
Plant to develop depreciation and decommissioning cost levels based on full
recovery by the end of 2002, whereas previous decommissioning estimates were
based on 2013, the year in which the operating license expires. The order was
prompted by the uncertainty regarding the expected useful life of the plant
without steam generator replacement. In 1998, after the approval of the
project to replace the steam generators, the PSCW ruled that, until the
replacement steam generators are installed, WPSC should continue to depreciate
and collect decommissioning funds at rates such that costs are recovered in
full by 2002. Once the replacement steam generators are installed, the PSCW
has directed WPSC to depreciate and collect decommissioning funds such that
costs are recovered in full by 2008. Further, the PSCW decided that an
accelerated depreciation method should be utilized for calculating
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depreciation expense. The steam generators are expected to be replaced by
mid-2000. A review of the depreciation and decommissioning costs and their
rate of recovery will be made in late 1999.

At December 31, 1998, the net carrying amount of WPSC's investment in
Kewaunee was approximately $35.2 million. The current cost of WPSC's share of
the estimated costs to decommission Kewaunee, assuming early retirement, is
$192.6 million. Decommissioning trust assets at December 31, 1998 totaled
$171.4 million. WPSC's customers in the Wisconsin jurisdiction are
responsible for approximately 91% of WPSC's share of the plant's costs.

During 1998, %8.2 million of depreciation expense related to
unrecovered plant investment was recognized compared with $7.5 million
recognized in 1997. During 1998, the decommissioning funding level was
$17.2 million compared with $16.1 million in 19%7. Customer rates, which
became effective in the Wisconsin jurisdiction on February 21, 1597, are
designed to recover the accelerated plant depreclation and to provide funds
for decommissioning. The increase from 1997 to 1998 reflects the impact of a
full year's accrual at the higher rates.

During 1998, a new site-specific decommissioning cost study was
completed assuming shutdown of the plant in 2013. This study indicates WPSC's
share of Kewaunee decommissioning costs to be $190.7 million and forms the
basis for a revised decommissioning funding plan that reduces decommissioning
funding levels to $8.3 million starting in 1999.

Additional discussion of Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant matters is
included in MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION at pages 60 and 65, and the NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Notes 1{(h), 1(j}, 1(k), and 10 at pages 85, 86, 87, and
102, respectively.

Fuel Supply
Electric Generation Mix

WPSC's electric generation mix in 1998 compared with 1997 was: steam
plants (ccal), 69.2%, up from 68.9%; steam plant {nuclear), 12.5%, up from
B8.2%; hydro, 1.7%, down from 3.0%; combined natural gas and fuel oil, 1.8%, up
from 1.3%; and purchased power, 14.8%, down from 18.6%. Purchased power
represents short-term energy purchases.

Fuel Costs

Fuel costs in 1998 compared with 1997, expressed in dollars per milliomn
British thermal unit ("Btu"), were: nuclear, $0.42, down from $0.43; coal,
$1.04, down from $1.09; natural gas, $2.59, down from $2.96; and No. 2 fuel
oil, $3.89, down from $4.27.

Coal

WPSC's primaxy fuel source is coal. 1In 1998, 99%% of this coal came from
Powder River Basin mines located in Wyoming and Montana. This cocal is very
low in sulfur and meets the standards of the 1990 Clean Air Act for the
Year 2000 and beyond. Further, this cecal is the least-cost coal for WPSC from
any of the subbituminous coal-producing regions in the United States.
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The majority of coal for WPSC's wholly-owned plants and the jointly-
owned Edgewater and, Columbia plants is purchased under relatively short-term
contracts of up to three years duration. WPSC has one long-term contract
which covers approximately 16% of total requirements and has take-or-pay
obligations totaling $130.8 million for the years 1999 through 2016. Coal
transportation for these plants is purchased under contracts of up to five
years duration. Over 90% of the coal transported to these plants is moved
under competitive transportation market conditions which are expected to
continue to yield competitive fuel costs for WPSC for the long term.

See NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Note 10, COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES, at page 101, regarding "Coal Contracts."

Nuclear Fuel Cycle

WPSC purchases uranium concentrates, conversion services, enrichment
services, and fabrication services for nuclear fuel assemblies at the Kewaunee
Nuclear Power Plant. New fuel assemblies replace used assemblies that are
removed from the reactor every 18 months and placed in storage at the plant
site pending removal by the United States Department of Energy.

Uranium concentrates, conversion services, and enrichment services are
purchased at spot market prices, through a bidding process, or using existing
contracts.

A uranium inventory policy requires that sufficient inventory exist for
up to two reactor reloads of fuel. BAs of December 31, 1998, 947,000 pounds of
yellowcake or its equivalent were held in inventory for the plant.

Two contracts are in place to provide conversion services for nuclear
fuel reloads in 2000 and 2001.

A fixed quantity of enrichment services are contracted for through the
year 2004. Additional enrichment services will be acquired under a contract
which is in effect for the life of the plant or by purchases on the spot
market .

Fuel fabrication services are contracted well into the next decade and
contain contractual clauses covering force majeure and termination provisions.

If, for any reason, the Kewaunee plant were forced to suspend operations
permanently, fuel-related obligations are as follows: (1) no financial
penalties asscociated with the present uranium supply, conversion service, and
enrichment agreements exist, and (2) the fuel fabrication contract contains
force majeure and termination for convenience provisions. As of the end of
1998, the maximum exposure would not he expected to exceed $274,000. Uranium
inventories could be sold on the spot market.

Spent Nuclear Fuel Disposal

The federal government has the responsibility to dispose of or
permanently store spent nuclear fuel. Spent nuclear fuel is currently being
stored at the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant. With minor plant modifications
planned for 2001, Kewaunee should have sufficient fuel storage capacity until
the end of its licensed life in 2013. Legislation is being considered on the
federal level to provide for the establishment of an interim storage facility.
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On January 31, 1998, the United States Department of Energy failed to
comply with its obligation to begin removing spent nuclear fuel as required by
the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982. WPSC joined other utilities in a moticn
to enforce the July 1996 mandate of the United States Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia that the Department of Energy had an unconditional
okbligation to begin accepting, transporting, and disposing of spent nuclear
fuel by Januvary 31, 1998.

On May 5, 1998, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia issued a decision denying the motion to enforce the Court's 1996
mandate. The denial centered on the question of whether the Department of
Energy could properly use the Nuclear Waste Fund as a source to pay damages
the utilities have incurred as a result of the Department of Energy's breach
of its obligation and the fact that the question is not ready for review. The
Court also indicated that certain items fall outside the scope of the Court's
mandate including (1) compelling the Department of Energy to submit a detailed
program for disposing of spent fuel from utilities and (2} declaring that the
utilities are relieved of their obligation to pay fees to the Nuclear Waste
Fund for a permanent spent fuel repository and are authorized to place such
fees into escrow until the Department of Energy commences with disposing of
spent fuel pursuant to its obligation. The scope of the Court's mandate was
limited to defining the nature of the Department of Energy's statutory
obligations and did not extend to requiring the Department cof Energy to
perform under its contracts with the utilities. WPSC is currently evaluating
the decision to determine how to proceed with contract remedies.

Funding Decontamination and Decommissioning of Federal Facilities

A surcharge was imposed by the Energy Policy Act of 1992 which requires
nuclear power companies to fund the decontamination and decommissioning of
certain Department of Energy facilities. Pursuant to the provisions of the
Energy Policy Act, WBSC is regquired to pay a surcharge on uranium enrichment
services purchased from the federal government prior to October 23, 1992.
WPSC's obligation is approximately $600,000 per year (adjusted for inflation)
through the year 2007.

WPSC and a number of other nuclear power companies sued the Department
of Enexgy in the United States Court of Federal Claims seeking a refund of the
previocusly paid decontamination and decommissioning surcharge payments. The
suits had been stayed pending the ocutcome of the petition for review filed
with the United States Supreme Court by Yankee Atomic Electric Company.

Yankee Atomic Electric Company contended that the government should not
have the power to impose retroactive finmancial liability, stating it was a
breach of the fixed-price enrichment contracts that Yankee Atomic Electric
Company signed prior to enactment of the Energy Policy Act of 1992. Yankee
Atomic Electric Company filed suit in the United States Court of Federal
Claims and received a favorable decision, only to have it overturned by the
Federal Circuit Court of Appeals in May 1997.

The United States Supreme Court, on June 26, 1998, declined to review
the decision of the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit,
thereby letting stand the decision that held that nuclear power companies must
pay a retroactive surcharge on enrichment services purchased from the
Department of Enerqgy.
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Subsequent to the United States Supreme Court's refusal to grant review,
WPSC joined with a number of other nuclear power companies in challenging the
constitutionality of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 in a Federal District Court
in New York.

Regulatory Matters in the Wisconsin Jurisdiction
Industry Restructuring

In Wisconsin, electric reliability has replaced restructuring and retail
competition as the issue of current focus. The PSCW's first priority is to
develop the utility infrastructure necessary to assure reliable electric
service and to remove the barriers to competition at the wholesale level.

In 1998, the PSCW and the major utilities in Wisconsin, including
WPSC, made legislative proposals which address the planning and approval by
the PSCW of electric power generation and transmission facilities, regiocnal
management of the transmission system, new electric power generation,
including the ownership and operation of wholesale merchant plants, new
electric power transmission facilities, out-of-state retail electric sales,
service standards for electric generation, transmission and distribution
facilities, and the allowable assets of public utility holding companies.
These proposals resulted in the enactment of the Electric Reliability Act
{1997 Wis. Laws 204).

Independent System Operator

The Electric Reliability Act requires all Wisconsin utilities that own
transmission facilities to transfer control of the operation of their
transmission systems to a FERC-approved ISO or to divest their transmissicn
assets by June 30, 2000.

WPSC has been working with a number of groups that are attempting to
form IS0 organizations. The Mid American Power Pool, cne of ten Nationmal
Electric Reliability Council regions, attempted to develop an ISO that would
include utilities in portions of Illinois, Minnesota, North Dakota,

South Dakota, and Wisconsin. In late 1998, this effort failed to receive the
approval of current Mid American Power Pcol members.

Another group of utilities is attempting to form what is known as the
"Midwest ISO." The group filed a FERC application for approval of its ISQO in
mid-1998. The FERC approved the ISO in part, required a compliance filing for
certain issues, and set the rates for hearing. This ISO is presently the only
alternative to meet the requirements of the Electric Reliability Act requiring
Wisconsin utilities to join a FERC-approved ISO by June 30, 2000.

Northern States Power Company and Alliant Energy intend to file with the
FERC in the spring of 19992 for approval of an independent transmission
company. If approved, this independent transmission company could alsc meet
the requirements of the Electric Reliability Act.

In 1998, the PSCW reopened a docket to investigate and determine the
structure and benefits of ISOs. The PSCW considered several proposals
including the Midwest ISC and the Northern States Power Company independent
transmission company, as well as one known as the "Customer ISO" which was
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submitted by Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. The PSCW order established minimum
Wisconsin standards and approved the Customer IS0 indicating that the Midwest
Is0, as formulated at that time, did not meet all of Wisconsin's standards.
The PSCW also rejected the Northern States Power Company independent
transmission company as being insufficiently developed, at that time, to
determine if it meets the Wisconsin standards.

Utility Affiliates

During 1998, the PSCW opened a docket to develop standards of conduct
between public utilities and their affiliates. This docket consists of three
phases. Phase I will develop policies on the extent that diversification into
nonutility activities by utilities should be regulated, limited, or prohibited
by the PSCW. Phase I will also form the basis for Phases II and III, which
will deal with administrative rulemaking and statutory revisions.

In Phase I, a heating, ventilating, and air conditiening alliance is
recommending a "separation" approach which restricts the types of allowable
activities that can be provided by utilities the costs of which can be
recovered in customers rates. Under the separation position, utilities may
only engage in activities that are considered to be essential utility
services, such as those required by law as well as those services that are
provided in response to circumstances which reasonably appear to endanger
public or individual human life, health, or safety. Other activities would be
allowable if they are: (1) related to utility business, {2} incidental to the
utility's business, (3) not provided by others in the market to any
significant degree, and (4) their costs can be reasonably allocated. The
costs associated with these other activities would not be recovered in
customer utility rates. The alliance's position is to restrict regulated
utilities to only the delivery of natural gas and electricity, with any other
services to be provided by nonregulated affiliates. Principal concerns being
considered include cross-subsidization practices and the shift of the cost of
competitive goods and services of the utility to utility customers.

The utilities' position is that an allocation method could be used.
This approach would allow utilities to engage in nonutility activities that
utilize the assets, operations, and expertise associated with the offering of
utility service, provided that the associated costs are determined on an
incremental basis and are not borne by utility ratepayers.

A PSCW order on Phase I is anticipated late in the first quarter of
1999,

Advance Plan and Strategic Energy Assessament

The PSCW's Advance Plan process required electric utilities to submit to
the PSCW, on a biennial basis, their plans for developing generation and
transmission resources for a 20-year period. Advance Plan 8 was filed with
the PSCW on January 15, 1998. An Advance Plan 8 order was issued by the PSCW
on January 19, 199%9. The PSCW ordered that generation and transmission
planning continue, that certain reports and information be filed with the
PSCW, that a certain amount of generation from renewable sources be
constructed, that a state-wide wind siting study be funded, and that certain
requirements concerning electromagnetic fields be modified.

-12-



The Electric Reliability Act repealed the Advance Plan process. In its
place, state law now requires that the PSCW biennially prepare a Strategic
Energy Assessment which will evaluate the reliability of Wisconsin's current
and future electric supply for a three-year forecasted period.

Supply Issues

In late June of 1998, high temperatures, ocutages at out-of-state nuclear
units, tornado damage to significant transmission systems, and scarce
generation resources in the region resulted in unprecedented high prices for
wholesale energy. However, WPSC maintained its normal reserve levels and, for
the most part, was unaffected. The relatively warm summer and the addition of
market-based pricing in the wholesale market resulted in higher energy market
prices in 1998 and increased hours of economic buycuts or interruptions for
WPSC's large industrial customers who chose to be served at interruptible
rates. An economic buyout is an option given interruptible customers who wish
to continue to have service in lieu of interruption whereby the customers
choose to pay higher rates in return for which they receive continued service.

Customer Rates

In the Wisconsin jurisdiction, of the major investor-owned utilities,
WPSC is the low-cost electric provider {based on the Edison Electric Institute
Summer 1998 Typical Bill Rate Report) with rates being 84% of the state
average for residential rates, 79% for commercial rates, and 82% for large
industrial rates.

WPSC filed for increases in rates on April 1, 1998, in compliance with
the PSCW's biennial rate case schedule. O©On January 14, 1999, the PSCW ordered
a $26.9 million (or 6.3%) increase in electric rates for 1999, effective
January 15, 1999. The PSCW also allowed a 12.1% return on equity, an increase
from the previously authorized return of 11.8%.

The electric rates for 2000 will be determined by a rate case reopener
in the fall of 1999 to resolve several issues, including certain Kewaunee
Nuclear Power Plant issues regarding ownership, depreciation and
decommissioning cost recovery after steam generator replacement, the
construction of a combustion turbine for Madison Gas and Electric Company,
recovery of certain deferred Pulliam 3 generation costs, and anticipated
changes in fuel transportation contract costs.

The PSCW had approved the deferral of anticipated 1998 Kewaunee steam
generator repair costs. During the 1998 refueling outage, inspections found
little additional steam generator degradation, and a Nuclear Regulatory
Commission technical specification change resulted in minimal steam generator
repair costs during this refueling.

Regulatory Matters in the Michigan Jurigdiction
Industry Restructuring
Cn June 5, 1997, the MPSC ordered utilities under its jurisdiction to
file electric open access plans and related tariffs. This action followed two
years of public hearings and the inability to reach consensus among the

interested parties. The MPSC order called for generation open access in
increments of 2.5% of retail load each year starting in 1997 and ending in
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2001. Generation open access is the ability of customers to purchase electric
generation from any supplier and to use existing transmission and distribution
lines to transport the energy to the purchaser's facilities at the same price
that the local supplier would charge itself for such transportation services.
Based on MPSC orders, there would be full generation open access for retail
load in 2002.

Although the MPSC has issued a number of generation open ac¢cess orders,
including orders requiring open access pilot programs in Lower Michigan,
little progress has been made on permanent open access in Michigan to date.
On February 2, 1999, the MPSC closed ocut its open access orders affecting the
Upper Peninsula utilities, including WPSC and UPPCO. On March 11, 1999, the
Michigan Supreme Court heard oral arguments on a challenge to the MPSC's
authority to order utilities to provide generation open access on a pilot
basis. A decision is expected, later in 1999, which could reguire the
enactment of enabling legislation before generation open access can be
implemented. The Upper Peninsula utilities, including WPSC and UPPCO, may
file an agreement with the MPSC this spring calling for open access for all
Upper Peninsula customers by January 1, 2002. This agreement may include a
condition setting the agreement aside if the Supreme Court decides the MPSC
does not have the authority to order open access.

Customer Rates

WPSC is the lowest cost provider of electric service in Michigan for all
customer classes. WPSC's electric rates are 80% of the Michigan residential
customer average rate and 87% of the large industrial average rate.

Other than power supply cost recovery, WPSC has not had an electric rate
increase in Michigan since 1987.

UPPCO's retail base rates are frozen until January 1, 2001 as part of
the merger agreement between WPSC and UPPCO. This rate freeze does not affect
power supply cost recovery. UPPCO is required to obtain MPSC approval each
vear to recover projected power supply costs. Over or under recovery amounts
are deferred on UPPCO's balance sheet, and such deferrals are relieved as
refunds or additional billings are recorded.

Regulatory Matters in the FERC Jurisdiction
Wholesale Status

WPSC procures, packages, markets, and sells electric energy, capacity,
ancillary services, and other associated energy-related products and services
primarily to municipal electric utilities and electric distribution
cooperatives. In 1998, WPSC provided 27 wholesale electric customers with
either all or a portion of their power supply needs. The customer mix in 1998
included seven municipal customers, three electric cooperatives, ten investor-
owned utilities, six marketers, and one municipal joint action agency. The
total wholesale sales for resale in 1998 were approximately 2.0 million
megawatts of firm and various levels of interruptible service. The total
wholesale sales for resale represented 17% of WPSC's electric sales wvolume in
1998 compared with 16% in 1997.

Forces that continue to influence the wholesale electric market are:
transmission availability, including transfer capability; the availability of
reliable and economically-priced capacity and energy in the region; changing
market participation (both suppliers and consumers); state and federal
regulatory and legislative agendas; and uncertainties regarding the timing and
pace of deregulation.
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Industry Restructuring

As part of the FERC's approval of the WPSR/UPEN merger, UPPCO's wheeling
tariff filed in response to FERC Order 888 was set for review and approval by
the FERC. Settlement discussions with the FERC staff have been ongoing since
mid-year 1998. The final tariff will result in a combined WPSC/UPPCO
document, with zonal rates for service to delivery points within each
utility's service area.

The FERC waiver of UPPCO's need to comply with Order 889 was rescinded
and, as a result, the power marketing and transmission operations functions
for UPPCO will be separated, using WPSC operating personnel.

Customer Rates
WPSC has not had a FERC wholesale rate case since 1987.

UPPCO's wholesale tariff rates include a base rate charge and are
subject to a fuel clause (such clause includes certain purchased power costs),
with a 30-day billing lag without reconciliation provisions. Most of UPPCO's
wholesale customers are now taking service under special contracts.

In 1988, the FERC approved WPSC's settlement with its wholesale
customers in regard to open access transmission rates filed in response to
FERC Order 888. The open access transmission rates settlement will be in
effect for two years beginning with their implementation in 1997. The FERC
also approved WPSC's request for authority to use market-based rates.

Transmission Interface

Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. regquested transmission service across the
WPSC and Wisconsin Power and Light Company portions of the constrained
Minnesota to eastern Wisconsin interface to serve five of Wisconsin Public
Power, Inc.'s municipal customers (Sturgeon Bay, Algoma, Eagle River,
New Holstein, and Two Rivers) in the Wisconsin Power and Light Company centrol
area. The interface is owned by Wisconsin Electric Power Company (52%),
Wisconsin Power and Light Company (28%), and WPSC (20%). Due to disagreements
between the parties as to who had rights to the use of the constrained
interface pursuant to the FERC's recently developed first-come, first-served
transmission scheduling process, complaints were filed by WPSC, Wisconsin
Public Power, Inc. and Madison Gas and Electric Company, who also joined the
complaint process in connection with previous applications. The FERC
determined that WPSC had legitimate network service contracts but had made an
error in applying its rights to extend use of the interface, and granted
Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. the requested interface capacity. Wisconsin
Public Power, Inc. eventually took the interface capacity from Wisconsin Power
and Light Company which was also under FERC orders to provide this
transmission service.

The complaint included a claim that WPSC used the Capacity Benefit
Margin in determining its available transmission capacity. Capacity Benefit
Margin is the use of the transmission system to provide reserve generation
capacity for reliability of the system. The FERC is expected to address this
issue on a national basis during 1999.
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Hydroelectric Licenses

All of WPSC's hydroelectric facility licenses, issued by FERC, are
current.

All of the licenses for UPPCO's hydroelectric facilities, except for
Bond Falls and Dead River, are current. In 1998, UPPCO reached agreement on
the term of a settlement agreement with federal and state agencies and special
interest groups with regard to the Bond Falls license. This agreement will
provide the basis for the new FERC license which will have a term of 40 vyears.
The new license is expected to be issued in 1999. The Dead River project
licensing is progressing. A long-term water lease agreement was reached with
the adjacent landowners. The FERC license for the Dead River project is
expected in the last gquarter of 1999, with a 40-year term from August 1991,
the date the FERC claimed jurisdiction over the project.

Other Matters

Research and Development

Electric research and development expenditures totaled $1.5 million for
1998, 51.3 million for 1997, and $1.9 million for 1996. These expenditures
were made for WPSC sponsored projects and were primarily charged to electric
operations.

Customer Segmentation

Twenty-eight paper mills account for 12% of WPSC's electric revenues.
There is no single customer, or small group of customers, the loss cf which
would have a materially adverse effect on the electric business of WPSC under
the current regulatory environment.

Electric Financial Summary

The following table sets forth the revenues, net income, and assets
attributable to electric utility operations:

Electric Utility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO)

Consolidated Electric Operating Revenues $ 543,260 5 536,885 § 548,701
Net Income $ 50,488 $ 53,294 3 59,907

Total Assets 51,117,438 $1,089,875 51,095,996

See Note 13 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements at pages 107 and
108. The consolidated electric operating revenues, above, reflect the
elimination of intercompany sales and do not agree with regulated electric
operating revenues shown in Note 13, Segments cf Business, which do not
reflect such elimination.
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ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues (Thousands)
Residential and farm $164,961 $163, 766 $169,587
smali commercial and industrial 141,203 138,949 144,055
Large commercial and industrial 119,601 120,312 118,997
Resale and other 61,575 56,361 57,867
Total 5487,340 $479,388 5$450,506
Kilowatt-hour sales {Thousanda)
Residential and farm 2,627,498 2,565,432 2,570,397
Small commercial and industrial 3,004,134 2,876,832 2,761,278
Large commercial and industrial 3,977,829 3,943,275 3,744,153
Resale and other 1,990,705 1,873,788 1,936,014
Total 11,600,164 11,259,327 11,011,842
Customers served (End of period)
Residential and farm 339,881 334,134 328,522
Small commercial and industrial 40,247 39,400 38,376
Large commercial and industrial 211 197 168
Resale and other 853 B36 B26
Total 381,152 374,567 367,892
Annual average use {(Kilowatt-hours}
Residential and farm 7,803 7,751 7,905
Small commercial and industrial 75,537 74,082 72,995
Large commercial and industrial 18,978,191 21,606,984 22,115,491
Average kilowatt-hour price (Cents)
Residential and farm 6.28 6.38 6.60
gsmall commercial and industrial 4.70 4.83 5.22
Large commercial and industrial 3.01 3.05 3.18
Production capacity (Summer - kilowatts)
Steam 1,307,800 1,326,000 1,325,400
Nuclear 205,200 212,200 213, 800
Hydraulic 53,000 53,000 53,100
Combustion turbine 206,340 205,930 208,600
Other 7,800 7,800 4,200
Purchased capacity 14,750 14,750 27,250
Total system capacity 1,794,890 1,819,680 1,832,350
Generation and purchases
(Thousands of kilowatt-hours)
Steam 8,513,537 8,213,518 7,956,378
Nuclear 1,526,702 973,485 1,305,751
Hydraulic 212,607 351,034 359,750
Purchases and other 1,994,828 2,327,334 2,050,782
Total 12,247,672 11,865,371 11,672,641
Steam fuel coste
{(Cents per million Btu)
Fossil 105.353 110,124 115.132
Nuclear 41.565 43.174 46.674
Total 95.735 103.093 105.439
System peak - firm {kilowattas) 1,685,000 1,607,000 1,578,000
Annual load factor 78.35% 79.42% 78.20%



ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS

UPPER PENINSULA POWER COMPANY

1998 1987 1996
Cperating revenues {Thousands)
Residential and farm $21,894 522,626 $23,554
Small commexcial and industrial 16,688 16,611 16,833
Large commercial and industrial 9,773 9,271 8,405
Resale and other 14,310 11,694 9,586
Total 562,665 560,202 $58,378
Rilowatt-hour sales (Thousands)
Residential and farm 241,517 252,897 259,807
Small commercial and industrial 223,282 223,040 220,609
Large commexrcial and industrial , 225,565 222,143 188,722
Resale and other . 148,153 147,297 152,173
Total 838,517 845,377 821,311
Customers served (End of period)
Residential and farm 42,783 42,551 42,315
Small commercial and industrial 5,286 5,254 5,155
Large commercial and industrial 9 8 B
Resale and other 194 190 190
Total 48,272 48,003 47,668
Annual average use (Kilowatt-hours)
Residential and farm 5,646 5,945 6,140
Small commercial and industrial 42,23% 42,454 42,800
Large commercial and industrial 25,062,778 26,708,834 23,072,194
Average kilowatt-hour price {Cents)
Residential and farm 9.07 8.95 9.07
small commercial and industrial 7.43 7.45 7.63
Large commercial and industrial 4.34 4.17 4.45
Production capacity (Summer - kilowatts)
Steam 17,700 17,700 17,700
Hydraulic 30,000 30,000 30,000
Combustion turbine 55,000 55,000 55,000
Purchased capacity 55,000 65,000 65,000
Total system capacity 157,700 167,700 167,700
Generation and purchases
[Thousands of kilowatt-hours)
Steam 4,029 (298) (327)
Hydraulic 57,988 138,923 172,391
Purchases and other 5,230 795,599 722,614
Total 107,247 934,224 894,678
Steam fuel costa
(Cents per million Btu}
Fossil 2.67943 - -
System peak - firm (kilowatts) 137,000 138,600 137,000
Annual load factor T4.44% 73.23% 73.23%
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C. GAS MATTERS
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation's Gas Market

As of December 31, 1998, WPSC provided natural gas distribution service
to 218,857 customers in 221 cities, villages, and towns in northeastern and
central Wisconsin, and 5,201 customers in and around the c¢ity of Menominee,
Michigan, for a total of 224,058 gas distribution customers. This represents
an increase of 5,759 customers, or 2.6%, compared to December 31, 1997. The
principal cities serwved by WPSC include Green Bay, Oshkosh, Sheboygan,

Two Rivers, Marinette, Stevens Point, and Rhinelander, all in Wisconsin, and
the city of Menominee in Michigan.

WPSC's gas distribution business has a significant seasonal component
and is impacted by varying weather conditions from year-to-year. In 1998,
66.0% of WPSC's gas sales and 58.3% of WPSC's total gas system throughput
(i.e., total gas delivered by WPSC--includes gas sales and gas delivered for
transportation customers) occurred during the five winter months of November
through March. Competition with other forms of energy exists in varying
degrees, particularly for large commercial and industrial customers who have
the ability to switch between natural gas and alternate fuels. WPSC offers
interruptible gas sales and gas transportation service for these customers to
enable them to reduce their energy costs and use natural gas instead of other
fuels. There are currently 282 gas transpcrtation customers on the WPSC
system. These customers purchase their gas from other suppliers and contract
with WPSC to transport the gas from ANR Pipeline Company tc the customer's
facilities. BAnother 134 customers still purchase their gas commodity from
WPSC but have elected to do so on an interruptible basis. Additional
customers are switching from firm system supply to either interruptible system
supply or transportation service each year as the economics and service
options become attractive for them.

WPSC's gas operations also provide interruptible gas service to WPSC's
electric operations for power generation in combustion turbine peaking
generators and for start-up, flame stabilization, and peaking use at WPSC's
Weston and Pulliam coal-fired steam plants.

Gas sales for customer-owned power generation use are provided on an
interruptible basig, with the power plants maintaining alternate fuel
capability. In 1999, WPSC will begin to provide interruptible gas supplies to
the De Pere Energy Center, and in 2000, WPSC will also provide interruptible
gas supplies to a combustion turbine owned by Madison Gas and Electric
Company .

Total gas deliveries by WPSC in 1998, including customer-owned gas
transported by WPSC, were 60,944,394 dekatherms, a 9.4% decrease as compared
with 1997 due to warmer than normal weather. A dekatherm is egquivalent to
10 therms or 1 million Btu of energy. OQf the total gas delivered,
26,557,300 dekatherms, or approximately 43.6%, was gas transported for end-
user transport customers,

WPSC's peak day gas throughput in 1998 occurred on January 13 with
390,971 dekatherms total gas throughput at an average Green Bay temperature of
minus 1.6 degrees Fahrenheit. This compares with WPSC's record gas system
throughput of 432,928 dekatherms set on February 2, 1996 at an average
Green Bay temperature of minus 23.8 degrees Fahrenheit.
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Gas Supply
General

Since the implementation of FERC Order 636 in November 1993, WPSC has
had full responsibility for the design, acquisition, and management of gas
supplies and the pipeline transportation and storage services required to meet
the varying daily, seasonal, and annual lcad regquirements of its customers.
WPSC manages a portfolio of gas supply contracts, pipeline transportation, and
storage services designed to reliably meet WPSC's varying load pattern at the
lowest reasonable cost.

Pipeline Capacity and Storage

WPSC is presently directly served by a single interstate pipeline,
ANR Pipeline Company. Because ANR Pipeline Company's pipeline system in
Wisconsin has reached its maximum capacity, and because lower prices are
generally available in other areas where there is competition for pipeline
services, WPSC is investigating potential suppliers of pipeline services in
addition to those offered by ANR Pipeline Company.

Previously, WPSC had contemplated the construction of natural gas
laterals to connect the WPSC gas distribution system to a proposed Viking
Voyageur gas pipeline. However, in May of 1998, that pipeline was placed on
hold at the FERC with the Viking Voyageur parthners instead contemplating
replacing the proposed gas pipeline from Canada with a pipeline from Chicago
to Wisconsin. Subsequently, that project was withdrawn. However, similiar
projects are being studied by other third parties. At this time, it is not
known whether WPSC will be connecting to any pipeline from the Chicago area.
WPSC, however, continues to study various options to bring a competitive gas
pipeline into the WPSC gas service territory.

ANR Pipeline Company's system serving WPSC directly or indirectly
accesses three major gas producing areas of North America: (1) the Gulf of
Mexico, (2) the mid-continent areas of Oklahoma, Texas, and Kansas, and
{3) the Province of Alberta in western Canada. WPSC holds firm long-term
transportation capacity on ANR Pipeline Company in roughly equal proportions
from each of these three supply areas. The term of these ANR Pipeline Company
firm transportation contracts from the Gulf Ceast and mid-continent areas
extends through October 2003. WPSC holds firm transportation capacity with
Viking Gas Transmission Company, to deliver gas on a firm basis from Viking
Gas Transmission Company's interconnection with TransCanada Pipelines at
Emerson, in the Canadian Province of Manitoba, to the interconnection with
ANR Pipeline Company at Marshfield, Wisconsin. The Canadian suppliers, from
whom WPSC purchases gas, hold firm capacity on TransCanada Pipelines from
Emerson back into the preoduction areas in Alberta, Canada.

In 1998, WPSC entered into a project with Wisconsin Electric Power
Company - Gas Operations for construction of a pipeline. This jointly-owned
eight-inch pipeline is interconnected with Great Lakes Gas Transmission
Company in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan near Watersmeet and provides an
alternate source of supply into northern Wisconsin. In order to serve this
pipeline, WPSC modified and extended the term of portions of its existing
pipeline capacity and storage contracts with ANR Pipeline Company and added a
new transportation service on Great Lakes Transmission Company's pipeline to
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deliver up to 7,000 dekatherms per day into the jointly-owned pipeline system
during the winter periods.

Because of the substantial daily and seasonal swings in gas usage in
WPSC's service territory, WPSC also has contracted with ANR Pipeline Company
for firm underground storage capacity located in Michigan. There are no known
geological formations in Wisconsin capable of being developed inte underground
storage facilities.

Besides providing WPSC the ability to manage significant changes in
daily gas demand, storage also provides WPSC the ability to purchase gas from
the production areas at high load factors, thus minimizing supply costs.
During the summer, gas purchased in excess of market demand is injected into
storage. During the winter, gas is withdrawn from storage and combined with
gas purchased in the production areas to meet the increased winter demand.
Gas from storage provides up to 65% of WPSC's supply on winter peak days,
approximately 34% of WPSC's winter sales volumes, and approximately 23% of
WPSC's total annual sales volumes. WPSC's total firm storage capacity with
ANR Pipeline Company is 11.3 million dekatherms.

For peak day needs, WPSC also contracts with third-party suppliers for
high deliverability storage in the Gulf Coast and/or mid-continent production
areas during the winter. This storage capacity provides a back-up supply of
gas into WPSC's transportation contracts when other supplies cannot be
delivered due to production supply losses caused by extremely cold weather in
the production areas.

Supply Contracts

WPSC contracts for firm term supplies with approximately 12 to 16
suppliers each year for gas produced in each of the 3 production areas. WPSC
initially designed its supply portfolic with terms ranging from one to ten
years so that only a portion of WPSC's supply contracts expired in any given
year. As long-term contracts expire, WPSC has been replacing them with
contracts of a one-year term or less due to the current uncertainty regarding
the role of the gas utility in continuing the gas supply function. This will
minimize potential stranded gas supply contract costs if retail gas
deregulation should proceed quickly in Wisconsin. WPSC's supply portfolio, as
of December 31, 1998, contained contracts with remaining terms ranging from
five months to five years.

£

Additional supplies are purchased on the monthly spot market as regquired
to supplement supplies from long-term firm contracts. WPSC has been an active
spot market purchaser since 1985 and has contracts in place with a number of
suppliers of spot market gas.

Regulatory Mattera in the Wisconsin Jurisdiction
Industry Restructuring

During 1998, there was little progress on gas restructuring issues in
Wisconsin because the PSCW's primary focus was on electric reliability issues.

The PSCW has an ongeoing investigation into gas industry restructuring.
Phase I of this investigation addresses the issues of unbundling rates,
pricing of contracted service in potential utility bypass situations, and
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separation of the gas distribution function from the gas supply function.
Phase II establishes standards of conduct regarding how gas utilities can
interact with their marketing affiliates. Phase III explores the issue of how
to determine when a competitive market exists for various segments of
customers. This investigation could find that a regulated utility in the

Wisconsin jurisdiction cannot sell natural gas in a market which is considered
to be competitive. :

Because of the complexity of the issues inveolved, industry work groups
were formed to study particular issues and bring recommendations back to the
PSCW. The work groups will study issues regarding: (1) pipeline capacity,
(2) market-based pricing for interruptible customers, (3) end-user price
reporting, (4) marketer certification, (5) changes needed in the form of
legislation or administrative rules, and (6) essential natural gas services
and gas consumer protections. The study is expected to be completed in
November of 1999.

A separate docket was opened to assist the work group dealing with
esgsential natural gas services and gas consumer protection issues to ensure a
customer safety net in the transition to and within a restructured gas
industry environment. The work group's report is expected to be completed in
early 199%9. Based on this report, the PSCW will forward recommendations to
the legislature for proposed changes in the law.

Cost Recovery Mechanism

The PSCW investigated alternatives to gas cost recovery mechanisms in
light of the evolving natural gas market. In November 1996, the PSCW issued
an order which gave gas utilities a choice between continuing under a modified
one-for-one gas cost recovery mechanism, or switching to a mechanism called
performance-based rates. Under performance-based rates, gas utilities may
keep a portion of any cost savings relative to a gas cost target value. WPSC
elected to continue under a modified one-for-one mechanism. This mechanism
returns all savings to customers and maintains appropriate regulatory
oversight. In December 1998, the PSCW issued an order authorizing WPSC's
modified one-for-one gas cost recovery mechanism with a start date of
January 1, 1999,

Customer Rates

On January 14, 1999, the PSCW authorized a $10.3 million, or 5.1%,
increase in WPSC's retail natural gas rates. The rates are effective
January 15, 1999. WPSC has among the lowest gas rates in Wisconsin with
rates being 93% of the state average for residential rates and 921% for
commercial rates.

WPSC anticipates filing an application with the PSCW on April 1, 2000,
for new gas rates to be effective for the years 2001 and 2002.

Regulatory Matters in the Michigan Jurisdiction
Industry Restructuring
The MPSC is also investigating the deregulation of retail gas markets
and expansion of gas transportation service in Michigan. The MPSC decided it

would be appropriate to conduct a series of pilet projects to test the
development of competitive retail gas markets in Michigan. Michigan's four
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largest gas utilities were approached by the MPSC regarding development and
implementation of pilot programs.

Because of the small size and limited number of customers in WPSC's
Michigan service territory and the service territories of two other utility
companies, the MPSC did not conduct pilot transportation programs for these
three utilities.

Customer Rates
WPSC has not had a natural gas rate case in Michigan since 1986.
Regulatory Matters in the FERC Jurisdiction

WPSC's involvement in federal regulatory activities in the natural gas
area has been through the Wisconsin Distributor Group which is made up of
several Wisconsin gas utilities. Over the past several years, the Wisconsin
Distributor Group has participated in numerous dockets filed by ANR Pipeline
Company, Viking Gas Transmission Company, and the FERC. Although Wisconsin
bistributor Group members may file individual interventions, the bulk of the
interventions have been done through the group. Past successes by the
Wisconsin Distributor Group in various FERC dockets have resulted in
substantial refunds for natural gas customers in Wisconsin as well as lower
pipeline transportation rates charged by ANR Pipeline Company.

WPSC and Wisconsin Distributor Group are participating in several FERC
dockets as described below.

viking Gas Transmission Company, supported by its incremental shippers,
is seeking rolled-in rate treatment for recent expansions on its pipeline
system in a rate case. The impact of this rate treatment would result in a
rate increase for existing shippers, such as WPSC, and a rate decrease for
incremental shippers. The Wisconsin Distributor Group and existing shippers
on Viking Gas Transmission Company’s pipeline are proposing phase-in of system
expansion costs to minimize rate shock and minimize overall costs to their
customers.

In a notice of proposed rulemaking on short-term natural gas
transportation serviges, the FERC is seeking to eliminate cost-based
regulation in the short-term market and to foster competition as a way to
protect against the exercise of market power. The FERC's main focus has been
a proposed daily auction of pipeline capacity. Currently, the Wisconsin
Distributor Group and WPSC do not support the FERC's proposed mandatory
auction. Instead, the Wisconsin Distributor Group and WPSC believe increased
reporting and disclosure reguirements may be enough to meet the FERC's goal of
stimulating competition.

In a notice of inquiry on regulaticn of interstate natural gas
transportation services, the FERC is seeking comments on its pricing peolicies
in the existing long-term market and on its pricing policies for new capacity.
The Wisconsin Distributor Group and WPSC support the FERC's efforts to
formulate pro-competitive, long-term pricing policies to ensure that the FERC
continues to fulfill its statutory obligation to protect consumers while also
encouraging the evolution of a competitive natural gas industry.
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Gas Financial Summary

The following table sets forth the amounts of revenues,
assets attributable to gas utility operations:

Gas Utility Operations (WPSC)

net income, and

Consolidated Gas Operating Revenues
Net Income

Total Assets

$165,111
$ 5,912

$246,365

$211,090
$ 7,878

$246,842

$211,357
$ 2,350

$268,622

See Note 13 in Notes to Consolidated
108.

Financial Statements at pages 107 and

-24 -



GAS OPERATING STATISTICS

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues {(Thousandas)
Residential 5 96,223 $122,782 $122,224
Small commercial and industrial 19,333 23,790 22,392
Large commercial and industrial 37,482 53,517 55,211
Other 12,073 11,001 11,530
Total $165,111 $211,090 $211,357
Therma delivered (Thousands)
Residential 172,007 202,558 216,963
Small commercial and industrial 38,104 43,056 46,614
Large commercial and industrial 103,226 127,132 142,033
Other 29,182 21,148 9,709
Total therm sales : 342,519 393,894 415,319
Transportation 265,573 268,114 251,279
Total 508,092 662,008 666,598
Customers @erved (End of period)
Residential 203,665 198,524 192,947
Small commercial and industrial 17,656 16,770 16,133
Large commercial and industrial 2,454 2,780 2,846
Gther 1 1 1
Transportation customers 282 224 167
Total 224,058 218,299 212,094
Average annual use (Therms)
Residential B58.0 1,037.3 1,146.6
Small commercial and industrial 2,207.8 2,619.4 2,937.2
Large commercial and industrial 40,7%82.7 45,558.7 51,882.4
Average therm price {Cents)
Residential 55.94 60.62 56.33
Small commercial and industrial 50.74 55.25% 48.04
Large commercial and industrial 36.31 42.10 38.87
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D. NONREGULATED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
General

The energy marketplace in the United States is moving toward
deregulation and a competitive, commodity-driven environment which is leading
to a significant change for vertically integrated utilities in general and for
WPSR specifically. WPSR has a strategy to participate nationally in both the
existing and the new energy marketplaces.

WPSR is transitioning from a monopoly environment to a competitive,
commodity-driven environment. This involves significant investment in
technical support systems such as billing, communications, software, and
hardware, in addition to addressing human resource issues relating to
training, hiring, and retaining qualified employees and also aligning benefit
and incentive packages with a competitive environment.

At the end of 1998, WPSR had two principal nonregulated subsidiaries:
ESI and PDI. These subsidiaries were formed in 1994 and 1995, respectively,
for the purpose of positioning WPSR strategically for participation in
nonregulated energy markets.

WPS Energy Services, Inc.

ESI is a diversified energy company. ESI targets retail energy sales
and related services in midwestern and eastern states with an emphasis on
serving commercial, industrial, and wholesale customers. Principal operations
are located in Illinois, Michigan, Ohio, and Wisconsin. ESI also is
participating in retail pilot projects in each of these states. Wholesale
energy sales and related services are provided nationwide.

ESI provides electric, natural gas, and alternate fuel preoducts; real-
time energy management services; and project management and energy utilization
consulting.

The gas markets in which ESI participates are characterized by strong
competition, narrow margins, and volatile commeodity and transportation prices.
ESI uses various financial instruments to minimize the risks present in energy
markets. See NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Note 1l{e) at page 84 regarding "Price Risk
Management Activities.®

Revenues at ESI were $351.3 million in 1998 compared with
$189.4 million in 1997, an increase of 85.5%. Electric retail access has been
slow to develop in ESI's target market areas. ESI's strategy is to bring
electric products and services to existing gas customers.

ESI experienced a loss of $6.9 million in 1998 compared with a loss of
$4.9 million in 1997, an increase of 40.8%. The primary reasons for the loss
at ESI were increased electric and gas trading losses primarily due to market
volatility, and higher operating expenses due to expansion of the energy
trading business. Partially offsetting these factors was an increase in the
gas margin.
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WPS Power Development, Inc.

PDI develops and owns electric generation projects and provides services
to the electric power generation industry nationwide. PDI's services include
acquisition and investment analysis, project development, engineering and
management services, and operations and maintenance services. PDI's areas of
expertise include cogeneration, distributed generation, generation from
renewables, and generation plant repowering projects.

An emerging trend in the restructuring of the electric utility industry
is the divestiture of generation facilities. PDI is continually monitoring
and assessing investment opportunities in this area. PDI owns a two-thirds
interest in the Stoneman Power Plant, a S55-megawatt merchant steam plant
located in Cassville, Wisconsin. The redevelopment of the plant as a
300-megawatt to 500-megawatt gas-fired combined cycle facility is planned for
the 2002 time pericod.

PDI was the successful bidder for the purchase of approximately
92 megawatts of hydroelectric and cil-fired facilities from Maine Public
Service Company. PDI is awaiting regulatory approvals required to conclude
this transaction. The asset acquisition is expected to close in the second
quarter of 1999.

In 1998, PDI entered into a joint venture with an affiliate of Earthco,
a Nevada corporation, to turn residue from coal mining at the Alabama Land &
Minerals site in Jasper County, Alabama into briquettes. The project began
operation in June 1998 and is eligible to receive federal tax credits because
of the briguette's status as a synthetic fuel.

PDI experienced a loss of $2.4 million in 1998 compared with a
$1.9 million less in 1997, an increase of 26.3%. The increased loss at PDI
was primarily due to additional expenses incurred in 1998 for the start up of
new projects.

See MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITICN AND
RESULTS OF CPERATION at page 65 for additional information regarding
nonregulated operations.

E. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
General

WPSC is subject to regulation with regard to the impact of its
operations on air and water quality and solid waste disposal, and may be
subject to regulation with regard to other environmental considerations by
various federal, state, and local authorities. The application of federal and
state restrictions to protect the environment involves or may involve review,
certification, or issuance of permits by various federal and state
authorities, including the United States Envirconmental Protection Agency and
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Such restrictions
(particularly in regard to emissions into the air and water, and solid waste
disposal) may limit, prevent, or substantially increase the cost of the
operation of WPSC's generating facilities and may require substantial
investments in new equipment at existing installations. Such restrictions may
also require substantial additional investments for any new projects and may
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delay or prevent authorization and completion of the projecta. WPSC cannot
forecast the effects of such regulation upon its generation, transmission, and
other facilities, or its operations, but WPSC believes that it is presently
meeting existing requirements.

Air Quality

WPSC's generation plants are in compliance with all ¢urrent sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxide, and particulate emission standards.

The Pederal Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, hereinafter referred to as
the Clean Air Act, required reductions in sulfur dioxide in 1995 (Phase I) to
meet limitations based on an emission rate of 2.5 pounds per Btu multiplied by
a historical generation baseline for Pulliam Unit 8 and Edgewater Unit 4
generation units. The Clean Air Act requires further reductions beginning in
the year 2000 (Phase I1I). The year 2000 limits are based on an emission rate
of 1.2 pounds per million Btu multiplied by a historical generation baseline
for all generation units. WPSC's generation facilities met the year 2000
standard in 1995. WPSC achieved compliance with Wisconsin and federal sulfur
dioxide emission limitations by switching to low sulfur coal.

Because of the emission allowance system included in the Clean Air Act,
operations during Phase I produce surplus allowances which will be available
to aid in compliance with the requirements of Phase II. To the extent WPSC
determines that it will have allowances available beyond its own requirements
in both Phase I and Phase 1I, it will consider the sale of the excess
allowances. The PSCW has ordered that profits from the sale of allowances be
used to benefit utility customers.

The Clean Air Act also requires the installation of low nitrogen oxide
burners on several units. Low nitrogen oxide burners were installed at
Pulliam Unit 8 early in 1994. Phase I of the Clean Air Act allows units
smaller than 100 megawatts, such as Pulliam Unit 7, to be designated Phase I
units, thus building up sulfur dioxide credits. Having made this election,
low nitrogen oxide burners were installed on Pulliam Unit 7 in 1994. Low
nitrogen oxide emissions from Pulliam Units 7 and 8 and Weston Unit 3 are
averaged with Weston Units 1 and 2. This averaging plan generates additional
emission allowances in Phase I and locks in Phase I nitreogen oxide limits for
these units. This should reduce Phase II compliance costs.

Expenditures of $1.0 million to $2.0 million for Phase II of the Acid
Rain Program are projected through 1999 to assure nitrogen oxide emission
compliance at the Pulliam and Weston plants.

In September of 1998, the Environmental Protection Agency required
certain states, including Wisconsin, to develop plans to reduce the emissions
of nitrogen oxides frowm sources within the state by May of 2003. On a
preliminary basis, WPSC projects potential capital costs of between
$37.0 million and $96.0 million to comply with possible future regulations.
The cumulative incremental annual operating and maintenance expense associated
with these possible future regulations projected to be incurred by 2010 range
from $29.0 million to $106.0 million. The costs will depend on the
state-specific compliance method to be adopted in the future as well as the
effectiveness of the various technologies available for nitrogen oxide
emission contrcl. Under WPSC's current practice, the capital costs {as
reflected in depreciation expenses) and the annual operating costs are
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anticipated to be recovered through rates charged to customers. ©On

December 24, 1998, WPSC and five other parties filed a petition challenging
the Environmental Protection Agency's regulations that required Wisconsin to
prepare and submit the Nitrogen Oxide State Implementation Plan (Wisconsin
Paper Council v. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Case No. 98-4269 (7th
Cir. 1998)). On January 22, 1999, the State of Wisconsin moved to intervene
in the litigation and challenged the geographic scope of the rule (as applied
to Wisconsin)} and the time by which nitrogen oxide controls must be
implemented by facilities in the state. No decisions have been rendered on
the merits of the case.

Toxic air provisions in the Act will not be applied until the
Environmental Protection Agency determines if those standards need to be
applied to utilities.

Water Quality

WPSC is subject to regulation by the Envircnmental Protection Agency and
the Department of Natural Rescurces with respect to thermal and other
discharges into Lake Michigan and other waters of Wisconsin from WPSC's power
plants. Wastewater discharge permits with a term of five years were reissued
by the Department of Natural Resources to WPSC for the Kewaunee Nuclear Power
Plant in 1995 and for the Pulliam and Weston power plants in 1996. No new
permit conditions or associated material costs were imposed compared to
permits issued during earlier renewals. Revisions to state water guality
rules as a result of the Great Lakes Initiative should not result in any
significant changes when wastewater permits are reissued in 2000 for Kewaunee
and in 2001 for the Pulliam and Weston plants.

Gas Plant Cleanup

WPSC'is investigating the cleanup of eight manufactured gas plant sites
which it previocusly operated in Green Bay, Two Rivers, Oshkosh, Marinette,
Sheboygan (two sites), Stevens Point, and Menominee (Michigan). In general,
WPSC is proceeding with these projects as the designated responsible party for
cleanup, alilthough for two sites, Sheboygan II and Oshkosh, formal agreements
have been executed with the Department of Natural Resources covering the
investigation and restoration activities. The agreement for Sheboygan II
allows WPSC to work with Wisconsin on restoration. The site is not associated
with the larger Sheboygan River and Harbor Superfund site. The agreement for
Oshkosh was entered into in order to resolve a unilateral administrative order
that was issued by the Department of Natural Resources.

Work at the Stevens Point site was substantially completed in 1998 with
monitoring of the site continuing. Cleanup costs were within the range
expected for this site. Total costs of cleanup for the remaining seven sites,
as estimated by an enviroenmental consultant, should be in the range of
$33.9 million to $41.0 million. The estimates assume removal of significantly
contaminated soil and groundwater treatment and monitoring for up to 25 years,
depending on site conditions. The cost estimates for five of the sites
include removal and disposal of contaminated river sediments. As remedial
feasibility studies and initial remedial activities are completed, remediation
cost estimates may be adjusted and these adjustments could be significant.
Other factors that can affect these estimates are changes in remedial
technology, regulatory requirements, and experience gained through cleanup
activities.
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Expenditures for the gas plant sites are estimated to be made over the
next 32 years. An initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 million had been
established with an offsetting regulatory asset (i.e., a deferred charge).
Expenditures have reduced the liability to $39.0 million at December 31, 1998.
Based on discussions with regulators and a Wisconsin rate order, management
believes that these costs, but not the carrying costs associated with the
deferred charges, will be recoverable in future customer rates. WPSC filed
with and received an order from the MPSC authorizing WPSC to defer the
Michigan portion of these costs, using Wisconsin methods for future cost
recovery.

The cost estimates presented above do not take into consideration any
recovery from insurance carriers or other third parties which WPSC has
obtained. Insurance recoveries are deferred as a reduction to the regulatory
asset; therefore, neither adjustments to the estimated liability nor insurance
recoveries have an immediate impact on net income. To date, WPSC has received
insurance settlements of approximately $12.6 million, thereby reducing the
regulatory asset to $29.0 million at December 31, 1998.

Ash Disposal Site

The ash disposal site for UPPCO's John H. Warden Station was closed to
receiving ash in 1993. Subsequent groundwater testing indicated elevated
levels of boron and lithium. Supplemental remedial investigations were
performed and a revised remedial action plan was developed. The plan will be
submitted to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for approval in
1999. BAn estimated liability of $1.5 million and a regulatory asset of
*$1.3 million has been recorded for future costs associated with this site.

F. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

WPSR's principal utility subsidiary, WPSC, makes large investments in
capital assets. Construction expenditures for WPSC are expected to be
approximately $250.0 million in the aggregate for the 1992 through 2001
period. This includes expenditures for the replacement of the Kewaunee
Nuclear Power Plant's steam generatoxrs.

In addition, other capital requirements for WPSC for the three-year
period include Kewaunee decommissioning trust fund contributions of
$16.8 million,.

WPSC's agreement to. purchase electricity from the De Pere Energy Center
will be accounted for as a capital lease. While not a capital expenditure,
the $77.8 million lease will affect the capital structure beginning in 1999.

WPSR's other utility subsidiary, UPPCO, will incur construction
expenditures of approximately $23.0 million for the period 1989 through 2001,
primarily for electric distribution improvements.

Investment expenditures for nonregulated projects are uncertain since
there are few firm commitments at this time. Approximately $38.0 million will
be incurred in 19%9 to purchase generating units located in the State of Maine
and in the Canadian Province of New Brunswick. Financing for most
nonregulated projects is expected to be obtained through a subsidiary,
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WPS Resources Capital Corporation, which was formed in January 1999 to obtain
funding for those projects.

WPSR will use internally-generated funds and short-term borrowing to
satisfy most of its capital reguirements. WPSR may periodically issue
medium-term debt, additional long-term debt, and common stock to reduce
short-term debt and to maintain desired capitalization ratics.

The specific forms of financing, amounts, and timing will depend on the
availability of projects, market conditions, and other factors. At this time,
however, it is anticipated that common stock will be issued by WPSR in mid-
1999. WPSR began issuing new shares of common stock for the Stock Investment
Plan in January 1939. WPSR may alsc expand its leveraged employee stock
ownership plan during the three-year period.

See NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Note 10 at page 104
regarding "Future Utility Expenditures."

G. EMPLOYEES

At Decembef 31, 1998, WPSR, including all of its subsidiaries, employed
2,673 persons. Of this number, 2,372 employees were employed by WPSC and 195
were employed by UPPCO.

Of the employees of WPSC, 1,876 were considered electric utility
employees and 496 were considered gas utility employees. Local 310 of the
Internaticnal Union of Operating Engineersg represents 1,184 of WPSC's
employees.

On April 24, 1998, WPSC signed a contract with IUQOE Local 310. That
contract will expire on Octcber 28, 2000.

Of the employees of UPPCO, 131 are represented by Local 510 of the

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, AFL-CIO. The current
collective bargaining agreements for Local 510 expire on April 30, 1999.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
A. UTILITY
WPSC'a Facilities

The following table includes information about the electric generation
facilities of WPSC, including jointly-owned facilities:

Rated
Capacity (a}
Type Name Location Fuel {Kilowatkts)
Steam Pulliam Green Bay, WI Coal 402,400 (b)
Weston Wausau, WI Coal or Gas 480,100 (<)
Kewaunee Kewaunee, WI Nuclear 210,500 (d)
Columbia -
Units No. 1 & 2 Portage, WI Coal 340,200 (d)
Edgewater
Unit No. 4 Sheboygan, WI Coal 110,700 (d)
Total Steam 1,543,900
Hydro Various 68,400 (e)
{15 Plants)
Combustion Various Gas, 0il, 267,096 (£)
Turbine (8 Plants) or Diesel
& Diesel e
1,879,396

Total System =========
(a} Based on winter 1998-1999 capacity ratings.
(b} This plant has six units.

{c) This plant has three units. Two units burn only coal and the
other unit can burn ccal or natural gas.

(d) These facilities are jeintly-owned by WPSC, Wisconsin Power
and Light Company, and Madison Gas and Electric Company. The
Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant is operated by WPSC. The
Columbia and Edgewater units are operated by Wisconsin Power
and Light Company. The capacity indicated is WPSC's portion
of total plant capacity based on the percent of ownership.
The Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant's ownership is based on the
percent of ownership before the proposed acquisition by WPSC
of Madison Gas and Electric Company's share of the plant.

(e) Includes 12,900 kilowatts purchased from Wisconsin River Power
Company .

() WPSC and the Marshfield Electric and Water Department jointly

own 112,200 kilowatts of combusticon turbine peaking capacity
which WPSC operates.
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WPSC owns 56 transmission substations with a transformer capacity of
5,649,710 kilovelt-amperes, 111 distribution substations with a transformer
capacity of 3,018,420 kilovolt-amperes, 1,549 miles of electric transmission
lines, and 19,556 miles of electric distribution lines.

Gas properties include approximately 4,774 miles of main, 70 gate and
city regulator stations, and 209,419 lateral services. All gas facilities are
located in Wisconsin except for distribution facilities in and near the city
of Menominee, Michigan.

Substantially all of WPSC's utility plant is subject to a first mortgage
lien.

UPPCO's Facilities

The following table includes information about the electric generation
facilities at UPPCO:

Rated
Capacity (a)
Type Name Loecation Fuel (Kilowatts)
Steam Warden (b) L'Anse, MI Coal/Gas 17,700
Hydro Various
{9 plants) {(c) Hydro 37,910
Combustion Portage Houghton, MI 0il 27,500
Turbine Gladstone Gladstone, MI 0il 27,500
Total System 110,610
{a) Based on winter-rated capacity.
(b} The J. H. Warden station is capable of burning gas and/or
coal in any combination. The station was taken out of
gservice on January 1, 1994 and is in standby or inactive
reserve status.
{c) Included in the nine hydro plants are Escanaba 1, Escanaba 3

and Boney Falls, a total of 7,850 kilowatts. All energy
produced at these facilities is sold directly to a paper
industry customer located in Escanaba, Michigan.

UPPCO owns B06 miles of electric transmission and 2,753 miles of
electric distribution lines,

Substantially all of UPPCO's utility plant is subject to a first
mortgage lien.
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B. HONREGULATED

The following table includes information about the jointly-owned
electric generation facilities of PDI:

Rated
Capacity
Type Name Location Fuel {Kilowatts)
Steam Stoneman Cassville, WI Coal 55,000 (a)
(a) The Stoneman facility is owned by Mid-American Power, LLC.

PDI Stoneman, Inc. {a wholly-owned subsidiary cof WPS Power
Development, Inc.) and B. M. Stoneman, Inc., {a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Burns and McDonnell) own 66-2/3% and 33-1/3%,
respectively, of Mid-American Power, LLC.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Spent Nuclear Fuel Disposal
See the section titled Spent Nuclear Fuel Disposal under Part I,
Item 1B, ELECTRIC MATTERS, Fuel Supply, at page 9 for a description of various
proceedings relating to spent nuclear fuel.
Funding Decontamination and Decommigsioning of Federal Facilities
See the section titled Funding Decontamination and Decommissioning of
Federal Facilities under Part I, Item 1B, ELECTRIC MATTERS, Fuel Supply, at
page 10 for a description of various proceedings relating to decontamination
and decommissioning liabilities.
Environmental
See Part I, Item 1E, ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS, at page 27 for a description
of various proceedings relating toc environmental matters.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Mo matters were submitted to a vote of .security holders during the
fourth quarter of the fiscal year.
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ITEM 4A. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Information about outside directors is omitted for the reason that such
information will be included in a proxy statement for the Annual Meeting of

Shareholders of WPSR which is scheduled to be held on May 6, 1999.

A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF WP5 RESOURCES CORPORATION ("WPSR")

Current Position and Business Effective
Name and Age Experience During Past Five Years Date
Larry L. Weyers 53 Chairman, President, and Chief Executive
cfficer - 02-12-98
President and Chief Executive Officer 05-01-97
President and Chief Operating Officer 01-01-96
Patrick D. Schrickel 54 Executive Vice President 12-29-96
Vice President 12-09-93
Phillip M. Mikulsky 50 Senior Vice President-Development 02-12-98
Vice President-Development 09-01-95
Manager-System Operations 10-01-91 *
Pirector-System Operations 09-28-91 *
Daniel P. Bittner 55 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 05-01-97
Vice President 12-29-96
Richard E. James 45 Vice President-Corporate Planning 12-29-96
Vice President-Corporate Planning 08-01-95 *
Assistant Vice President-Corporate Planning 05-09-94 *
Agsgistant Vice President-Rates and Economic
Evaluation 03-01-92 *
Thomas P. Meinz 52 Vice President-Public Affairs 02-12-98
Bernard J. Treml 49 Vice President-Human Resocurces 02-12-98
Neil A. Siikarla 51 Vice President 06-01-98
Treasurer, Northern States Power - Wisconsin 06-01-92
Glen R. Schwalbach 53 Assistant Vice President-Corporate Planning 12-29-96
ARssistant Vice President-Corporate Planning 07-28-96 *
Assistant Vice President-Gas Engineering
and Supply 06-01-90 *
Francis J. Kicsar 59 Secretary 01-01-96
Ralph G. Baeten 55 Treasurer 12-09-93
Diane L. Ford 45 Controller and Chief Accounting Officer 05-01-97
Controller 12-15-93
Barth J. Wolf 41 ‘Assistant Secretary and Manager-Legal Services 07-12-98
George R. Wiesner 41 Assistant Centrollex 12-15-96
Director-Financial Accounting ESI/PDI 0B~25-96 *
Financial Reporting Supervisor 05-01-87 *

* Identifies experience with Wisconsin Public Service Corporation ("WPSC") for
Richard E. James, Phillip M. Mikulsky, Glen R. Schwalbach, and George R. Wiesner.
The other listed officers of WPSR, except for Neil A. Siikarla, are alsc officers of
WPSC and their experience with WPSC is indicated below.
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E. EXECUTIVE

Name and Age

Larry L. Weyers

Patrick D. Schrickel

Daniel P. Bittner

Clark R. Steinhardt

Charles &. Schrock

Bradley W. Andress

Ralph G. Baeten

Mark L. Marchi

Thomas P. Meinz

wWayne J. Peterscn

Bernard J. Treml

Francis J. Kicsar

Diane L. Ford

OFFICERS OF WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION ("WPSC")

54

55

57

45

44

S5

51

52

40

49

59

45

Current Position and Business
Experience During Past Five Years

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer
President and Chief Operating Officer
Senior Vice President-Power Supply and
Engineering

Vice President-Power Supply and Engineering

Vice President-Energy Supply

President and Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President

Senior Vice President-Finance and Corporate
Services

Senior Vice President-Operations

Senior Vice President-Ffinance

Senior Vice President-Finance and Corporate
Services

Senior Vice President-Customer Service
Senior Vice President-Finance

Senior Vice President-Nuclear Power

Senior Vice President-Energy Supply
Vice President-Energy Supply
Manager-Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
Manager-Nuclear Engineering

Vice President-Marketing
Vice President-Marketing, Lund Holding Intrntl.
Vice President-Sales, Plastics Inc, Div.
of Newell
Vice President-Marketing, Anchor Plastics
Division of Newell

Vice President-Treasurer
Treasurer

Vice President-Nuclear

Site Vice President-Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
Manager-Nuclear Business Group

Manager-Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant

Vice President-Public Affairs

Vice Pregsident-Power Supply and Engineering
Power Supply and Engineering Executive
Senior Corporate Planning Executive
Manager-System Planning and Licensing

Vice President-Distribution and Customer
Service

Agssistant Vice President-Customer Service

Manager-System Operations

Site Leader

Electric Superintendent

Vice President-Human Resources
Asgsistant Vice President-Human Resources

Secretary
Assistant Secretary

Controller
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Effective
Date

02-12-58
05-04-37
01-01-96

08-01-95
05-09-94
01-01-92

02-12-98
12-29-9¢

05-09-94
06-01-B5%

05-17-98

12-28-36
05-09-94
03-01-92

06-01-91

12-13-98
05-21-98
02-20-95
10-01-91

09-01-98
10-28-95

11-01-94
08-01-921

08-01-95
03-01-92

12-13-98
05-03-98
02-20-95
10-01-91

02-12-98
02-23-97
01-14-96
05-09-94
03-01-91

02-12-98
02-23-97
10-01-95
10-01-94
04-01-92

05-09-94
07-01-93

01-01-96
03-01-32

03-01-92



Current Pesition and Business Effective

Name and Age Experience During Past Five Years Date

Barth J. Wolf 41 Assgistant Secretary and Manager-Legal Services 07-12-98
Manager-Legal and Risk Management 05-19-96 *
Administrator-Risk Management 03-01-92 *

NOTE: All ages for the officers of WPSR and WPSC are as .of December 31, 1998. Ncone of the
executives listed above for WPSR or for WPSC are related by blood, marviage, or adoption
to any of the other officers listed or to any director of the Registrant. Each officer
shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified,

or until his or her death, resignation, disqualification, or removal. Clark R. Steinhardt
retired on January 31, 1999.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

WPS Resources Corporation Common Stock Two-Year Comparison

Dividends
Share Data Per Share* Price Range
High Low
1998
1st Quarter $ .485 33-13/16 32
2nd Quarter .485 34 29-15/16
3rd Quarter .495 35-3/4 31-5/8
4th Quarter .495 37-1/2 33
Total $1.960
1997
1st Quarter $ .475 28-3/4 26-1/8
2nd Quarter .47% 27-7/8 23-3/8
3rd Quarter .485 29-1/4 26-3/4
4th Quarter .485 34-1/4 28-1/16
Total $1.920

* Dividend rates are those of WPS Resources Corporation.
Dividend Restrictions

WPSC, WPSR's principal subsidiary, is restricted by a PSCW order to
paying normal common stock dividends of no more than 109% of the previous
year's common stock dividend without prior notice to the PSCW. Also,
Wisconsin law prohibits WPSC from making loans to WP3R and its nonregulated
subsidiaries and from guaranteeing their obligations. '

At December 31, 1998, WPSR had $328.5 million of retained earnings
available for dividends.

UPPCO's indentures relating to first mortgage bonds contain certain
limitations on the payment of cash dividends on common stock. Under the most
restrictive of these provisions, approximately $7.9 million of consolidated
retained earnings were available at December 31, 1998, for the payment of
common stock cash dividends by UPPCO.

WPSR made a $34.0 million equity infusion into WPSC during the second
quarter of 1998. In December 19%8, WPSC paid to WPSR a special common
dividend of $20.0 million. The special dividend allowed WPSC's average common
equity capitalization ratio to remain at approximately 54.0%, the level
approved by the PSCW for ratemaking purposes.
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Commen Stock
Listed: New York Stock Exchange

Ticker Symbol: WPS

Transfer Agent and Registrar: Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A.
P. ©. Box 2077
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201

As of December 31, 1998, there were 26,319 common stock shareholders of

record.
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ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

WPE RESQURCES CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND

FINANCIAL STATISTICS

A,

=mew

(1994 TO 1998)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1)

cEEmEC:mmssuE=x mmman scmmmEz
Conasolidated Statements of Incame and Comprehensive Income
GssmexssesscseszEmEE amsca SEAMmEEEEEEAEEEAEESCEEEEEmEA =
Year Ended December 31 {Thousands, except share amcunts) 1958 1997 1994 199% 1994
Operating revenuea
Electric utilicy $ 543,260 $536, 885 $548,701 $550,105 $543, 346
Gas utility 165,111 211,090 211,357 174,693 182,058
Nonregulated energy and other 355,365 187,B52 156,391 56,1585 10,921
Total operating revenuss 1,063,736 935,8}7 316,449 780,553 736,325
mmcmMmma=EMszzus [r—— EREsEsESEsBEECCEEEETCoEEEEEEMsEmmmEE .-

Operating expenses
Electric production fuels 110,809 107,988 145, 449 105,085 111, 240
Purchased power 56,447 63,947 55. 844 59,339 58,570
Gag purchased for resale 105,908 147,758 149,388 116,253 126,351
Nonregulated energy cost of sales 146,662 182,863 155,133 53,981 10,663
Other operating expenses 172,876 165,982 183, 768 169,067 164,981
Maintenance 52,813 44,325 51,782 54,658 53,988
Depreciation and decommissioning 86.274 83,441 70,762 71,345 61,879
Taxes other than income 31,502 31,375 31,871 30,555 30,577
Total operating axpenses 963,692 827,676 803,797 660,285 618,249
mEmsmmsAMmGEMEMsEEECONNEOOREEDOEE 2mmn EaEEEESCEEEECCTEEEIERREEEARICESSEESNsEEESEESAMEEEEEEREESESCNEENDOEEEAR
Oparating income 100,044 108,161 112,652 120,668 118,076
Other income and (deductions)
Allowance Eor equity funds

ugsed during construction 173 154 255 180 116
Other, net 2,505 11,952 {ge3) 5,852 4,338
Total cother income and (deductions) 2,678 12,1086 {648) 6,032 4,454
A EENFSSATSSEECEEEECCIESESARRECEEmsSdAMCCEEREGSCAETSCEEESCENNCS TR EEIITSARREREERSRE AT RS TS AzFmEAuSESScORSEICERAKSE
Income bafore interest expense 102,722 120, 267 112,004 126,700 122,530
Interest on long-term debt 23,4987 26,273 25,494 26,839 27,404
Other incerestc 4,827 4,910 3,922 2,677 1,856
Allowance for borrowed funds

used during construction (177) {167} {299) {ag) (143)
Tetal interest expense 28,637 31,016 29,117 29,436 23,111

Distributions - preferred sacurities of

subsidiary trust

CELLLE] O

1,488 - - - -

EmuuEER.

NN EEEREIR AR EErE AR EANEER AR FAAEAANEE AT AN AR AR

Income baforae income taxas 72.5%7 8%, 251 82,887 97,264 93,419
Income taxes 23,445 31,106 27,216 33,494 32,157
Minority interest (611) {797) (348) - -
Praferrad stock dividends of subsidiary 3,132 3,133 3,134 3,136 3,140
Net income 46,631 55,809 52,885 60,634 58,122
ammscsEEECIsEEsESsEAREsEEEEEEEGSSECEEEEERAEECTEEEYENSESE A EA A S EEEEMECACECARSENSRER = CEEEEEEsascsamsoEsECEseERSSa

Other comprehensive incoma

= =

Comprehensive income

Sharss of common stock
Qutstanding at December 31
Average

Baaic and diluted aarnings per averags share of cammon stack

P T T

Dividend per share of copmon stock (2}

$ 46,631 5 60,634 5 5a,122
e —mmmn -

26,502 26,518 26,537 26,551 26,551
26,511 26,527 26,545 26,551 26,551
$1.76 $2.10 $1.99 $2.28 $2.19

1.96 1.92 1.88 1.84 1.80

AR RS sl ASEMSEERSEEE

(1) These statements give effect te the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
{2) Dividend rates are those of WPS Resources Corporation.

-40-



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
WI;S RESOURCES CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICS (1994 TO 1998)

B. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (1)

RSN A AR NN NE NN NN NN AN A NN ARSI R R AN O AN

Consolidated Balance Sheets

AmEuUNEE-ANSEcE=S LI o

Assers

At December 31 (Thousands) 1998 1997 199§ 1995 1994
Utilicy plant

Electric $1,715,882 $1,685,41) $1,639,490 51,603,832 $1,567,346
Gas 267,892 251,603 240,791 228,346 202,903
Total 1,983,774 1,937,016 1,880,281 1,831,978 1,770,249
Less - Accumulated depreciacion and decommisgioning 1,206,123 1,113,142 1,028,266 977,163 913,423
Total 777,851 823,874 852,015 854,915 856,826
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 171, 442 134,108 100,570 4z,108% 64,147
Construction in progress 42,424 11,776 24,827 18,508 20,577
Nuclear fuel, nec 18,641 19,062 19,381 14,275 13,417
Net utility plasnt 1,610.155 988,820 956,793 969,707 960,967
Y R N 0 ny
Current asseks 240,712 213,453 233,933 202,399 185,582
Het nonukility and nonregulated plant 41,215 28,188 28,470 9,033 5,878
Regulatory and other assets 218,282 205, 343 204,120 212,769 186,544
Tetal assets $1.510, 387 $1,435,804 $1.463,3186 $1,393,508 $1,1338,971
AR MRS OME NSNS AR RN AR AN AR AN AR A . mnn
RN AR A AR EEEEsSEEANESNSAEASEEESEASCOEEESOEEELDASESMEENEESMEEERE coxsmzzmm mma
Capitalization and Liabilities

Capitalizatien

Common stock equity § 517,190 § 518,764 $ 510,642 $ 505,178 $ 486,682
Preferred’ stock of subsidiaries 51,200 51,645 51,656 51,703 51.776
Long-term debt 393,921 353,679
Total capitalization 262,311 917,424 911,352 906,979 B%2,137
NN EEES NN NI EEN NN NSNS EEEENOANSANIOASEUCANENERE R ——
Liabilities

Short-term borrowings 60,293 40,466 63,192 27,428 22,708
Deferred income taxes 122,642 131,197 135, 904 141,518 131,541
Other liapilities and credits 365,141 346,717 152,868 317,986 292,505
Total liabilities 548,07¢ 518,380 551,964 486,929 446,834
Gzmammammzsxaas mswommnza P =mcamm=s
Total capitalization and liahilitiea 81,510,387 51,435,804 $1,463,316 $1,3%3,49048 $1,338,971

(1} These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICS (1994 TO 1998)

C. FINANCIAL STATISTICS

Year Ended December 31 1998 1997 1988 1995 1994

Stock price $35-1/4 $33-13/186 $28-1/2 $34 $26-3/4
Book value per share $19.52 $19.56 $19.24 $19.03 $18.323
Return on average equity 9.0% 10.8% 10.3% 12.2% 12.0%
Mumber of common stock shareholders 26,319 27,369 27,922 28,416 29,629
Number of employees 2,873 2,302 3,032 3,002 3,077

Capitalization ratios

Common equity including ESOP 53.8 56.6 56.0 55.7 54.6
Preferred stock of subsidiaries 5.3 5.6 5.7 5.7 5.8
Trust preferred securities of subsidiary trust 5.2 - - -

Long-term debt of subsidiaries 5.7 37.8 38.3 38.86 15.6
Weather information

Cocling degree days 519 255 352 BOB 519
Cooling degree days as a percent ¢f normal 107.0% 53.3% 73.6% 170.1% 107.0%
Heating degree days 6,530 8,099 8,566 7,813 7,578
Heating degree days as a percent of normal B2.4% 101.6% 107.5% 98.0% 95.5%

Dividends
Common Stock Comparison (by gquarter) Per Share* High Low
1998
lst quarter 5 .485 33-13/16 32
2nd gquarter . 485 34 28-15/16
3rd gquarter . 495 35-3/4 31-5/8
4th quarter .4585 37-1/2 33
$1.96
1997
1st guarter $ .47s 28-3/4 26-1/8
2nd quarter .475 27-7/8 23-3/8
3rd gquarter .485 29-1/4 26-3/4
4th quarter .485 34-1/4 28-1/16
51.392

* Dividend rates are those of WPS Resources Corporation.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICS (1996 TO 1998)

D. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

{Millions) 1998 1997 1996

Operating revenues $§ 652.5 $ 690.5 $ 701.9
Net income ) 57.2 64.7 60.4
Total assets {at December 31} . 1,267.6 1,234.0 1,258.9
Long-term debt, net (at December 31) 304.0 307.6 310.8
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL S$TATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICE (19596 TO 1998)

E. FINANCIAL STATISTICS

(Millions) 1998 1997 1996
Coverage
Times interest earned before income taxes 4.48 4.48 4.36
Times interest earned after inccme taxes 3.29 3.30 3.21
Times interest and preferred dividends .

earned after income taxes 2.93 2.97 2.88

Capitalization ratics

Commeon equity including ESOP 57.6 56.0 55.3
Preferred stock 6.1 6.3 6.3
Long-term debt 36.3 37.7 38.4
Percent long-term debt to net utility plant 33.5 34.7 34.8

Average rate

Bonds 7.2 7.0 7.0
Preferred stock 6.1 6.1 6.1
Number of preferred stock shareholders 2,501 2,734 2,965
Weather information

Cooling degree days 519 255 352
Coocling degree days as a percent of normal 107.0% 53.3% 73.6%
Heating degree days 6,530 B,09% B,564
Heating degree days as a percent of normal 82.4% 101.6% 107.5%
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
UPPER PENINSULA POWER COMPANY
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICS (19%6 TO 1998)

F. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Millions) 1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues $ 62.7 5 60.2 $ 58.4
Net income 3.5 3.7 5.2
Total assets (at December 31) 127.3 131.3 124.9
Long-term debt, net (at December 31} 38.8 38.9 39.0
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
UPPER PENINSULA POWER COMPANY
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL STATISTICS (1996 TC 1598)

G. FINANCIAL STATISTICS

(Millions) 1898 1997 1996
Coverage
Times interest earned before income taxes 2.31 2.34 3.05
Times interest earned after income taxes 1.81 1.87 2.32
Times interest and preferred divigdends

earned after income taxes - 1.87 2.31

Capitalization ratios

Common egquity 47.6 5¢.4 50.4
Preferred stock - 0.6 0.6
Long-term debt 52.4 43 .0 49._0
Percent long-term debt to net utility plant 38.2 37.9 37.5

Average rate

Bonds 8.9 8.9 8.9
Preferred stock - 4.9 5.0
Number of preferred stock shareholders - 48 53
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ITEM 7, MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

RESULTS OF CPERATIONS - WPS RESOURCES CORPORATICN

WPS Resources Corporation ("WPSR") is a holding company. Approximately
69% of WPSR's assets at December 31, 1998, approximately 52% of its 1998
revenues, and 87% of its 1998 net income were derived from electric utility
operations. WPSR's wholly-owned subsidiaries include two regulated utilities,

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation ("WPSC"), an electric and gas utility,
and Upper Peninsula Power Company ("UPPCO"}, an electric utility, and two
primary nonregulated subsidiaries, WPS Energy Services, Inc. ("ESI"), and
WPS Power Development, Inc. ("PDI"). :

1998 Compared with 1997
WPS Resources Corporation Overview

WPSR's results of operations and financial position for 1998 and 1997
include the effects of the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation
("UPEN"} which was effective September 29, 1998, and accounted for as a
pooling of interests. In accordance with the terms of the merger, each of the
2,950,001 outstanding shares of UPEN common stock {(no par value) were
converted into 0.90 shares of WPSR common stock, subject to adjustment for
cagsh payments for fractional shares. In conjunction with this merger, WPSR
expensed transaction charges of approximately $1.6 millicon in 1998 and
$2.7 million in 1997. These merger transaction charges consist of the
following:

Merger Charges {(Millions)

1958 1997
Investment Bankers $0.8 $0.9
Legal 0.7 0.9
Accounting - c.2
Other 0.1 0.7
Total 81.6 52.7

In addition, UPPCO, UPEN's primary subsidiary, recorded severance costs
of $1.1 millien and an additicnal $0.5 million in other merger-related
expenses in 1998.

WPSR consolidated operating revenues were $1.1 billion in 1998 compared
with $935.8 million in 1997, an increase of 13.7%. Net income was
$46 .6 million in 1998 and $55.8 million in 1997, a decrease of 16.5%. Basic
and diluted earnings per share were $1.76 in 1998 compared with $2.10 in 1997,
a decrease of 16.2%. The primary reaseons for the decrease in earnings, as
explained below, were the impact of unusually warm winter weather, the effects
of a full year electric rate decrease at WPSC, higher mailntenance expenses at
WPSC, decreased other income, higher other operating expenses, and a decrease
in WPSC's gas margin. Partially offsetting these factors were an increase in
electric utility margins and an increase in nonregulated margins.
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Overview of Utility Operationg (WPSC and UPPCO)

Reventues at WPSC were $652.5 million in 1998 compared with
$690.5 million in 1%97, a decrease of 5.5%. Earnings were 554.1 million in
1998 and $61.6 million in 1997, a decrease of 12.2%. The primary reasons for
the decrease in earnings at WPSC were the impact of urnusually warm winter
weather, increased maintenance expenses, a decrease in other income, an
increase in other operating expenses, and a decrease in the gas margin.
Partially offsetting these factors were an increase in the electric utility
margin and a decrease in interest expense.

Revenues at UPPCO were $62.7 million in 1998 compared with $60.2 millicn
in 1997, an increase of 4.2%. Earnings were $3.5 million in 1998 compared
with $3.7 million in 1997, a decrease of 5.4%. The primary reascons for the
decrease in earnings at UPPCO were higher maintenance and other operating
expenses partially offset by an increase in the electric margin.

Electric Utility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO)

WPSR consoclidated electric utility margins incrzased $11.1 million, or
3.0%, primarily due to increased kilowatt-hour ("kWh") sales of 3.0% to WPSC
customers as a result of a 103.5% increase in cooling degree days in 1998.
Partially cffsetting the increase in electric margins in 1998 was the impact
on WPSC of a Public Service Commission of Wisconsin {"PSCW") rate order which
was effective for the entire year in 1998 but was only effective in 1997 for
the period after February 21, 19%7. This order authorized an B8.1% electric
revenue reduction.

1998 1997 19986
Revenues $543,260 $536,885 $548, 701
Fuel and purchased power 167,256 171,935 161,293
aren . Paen e P
Sales in kWh {Thousands)* 12,172,432 11,993,358 11,828,788

* Does not include UPPCO unbilled kWh.

WPSR consolidated electric utility revenues increased $6.4 million, or
1.2%, largely due to increased revenues of $4.8 million from WPSC's wholesale
customers and $1.5 million from WPSC's commercial and industrial customers as
a result of the warmer weather. Also included in 1998 electric revenues are
surcharge revenues at WPSC of $3.8 million related to the recovery of the
deferred costs for the 1997 Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant ("Kewaunee") steam
generator repairs. Partially offsetting these increases to revenues were the
electric rate reduction and a $1.0 million refund of WPSC's transmission
revenues as the result of a 1998 Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC")
settlement related to open access transmission tariff rates.
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WPSR consolidated electric production fuel expense increased
$2.8 million, or 2.6%, primarily as a result of increased generation expense.
Kewaunee was out of service for the first six months of 1997 as the result of
an extended outage to repair steam generators, thus, in comparison, the higher
generation expense in 1998. WPSC is currently the operator and 41.2% owner of
Kewaunee.

WPSR consolidated purchased power expense decreased $7.5 million, or
11.7%, primarily due to decreased purchase requirements at WPSC in the first
half of 1998. Purchase requirements at WPSC in the first half of 1997 were
higher due to lack of production at Kewaunee in the first and second quarters
of 1997 as a result of an extended outage. Kewaunee was also off-line in 1998
for a six-week scheduled refueling cutage. Also contributing to lower
purchased power expense at WPSC was a $1.2 million credit to purchased power
expense in the fourth quarter of 1998 related to the settlement of litigation
involving a contract with a power supplier.

The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in the cost of fuel and purchased
power, within a specified range, on to its customers through a fuel adjustment
clause.

Gas Utility Operations (WPSC)

WPSR conseclidated gas margin decreased $4.1 million in 1998, or 6.5%,
primarily due to a 19.4% reduction in heating degree days.

1998 1597 1996
Revenues $165,111 $211, 090 $211, 357
Purchase costs 105,908 147,755 149,388
Margin $ 59,203 $ 63,335 $ 61,969
Volume in therms (Thousands) 608,092 662,008 666,598
Gas operating revenues decreased $46.0 million, or 21.8%. This decrease

was due to unusually mild weather in 1998 resulting in lower gas thexrm sales
for 1998 of B.1%. Also contributing to the decrease in gas operating revenues
was a reduction in revenues of $7.5 million for refunds from ANR Pipeline
Company which WPSC passed on to its gas customers in the second quarter of
1598.

Gas purchase costs decreased $41.8 million, or 28.3%. This decrease was
due to reduced customer demand as a result of the mild weather during 1998.
Also contributing to the decrease in gas costs was a $7.5 million refund from
ANR Pipeiine Company which was credited to gas expense in the second quarter
of 1898. Under current regulatory practice, the PSCW allows WPSC to pass
changes in the cost of gas on to customers through a purchased gas adjustment
clauge ("PGACY).
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Other Utility Expenses/Income (WPSC and UPPCO)

Other operating expenses at WPSC increased $4.1 million, or 3.1%,
primarily due to higher benefit costs in 1998.

Other operating expenses at UPPCO increased 50.6 million, or 3.6%,
primarily as the result of the accrual of $1.1 million in merger-related
severance expense in 1998. Other operating expenses at UPPCO in 1997 included
costs incurred related to the termination of UPPCO's Presque Isle Plant
Operating Agreement with Wisconsin Electric Power Company ("WEPCO"). UPPCO
had staffed and operated WEPCO's Presque Isle Power Plant through December 31,
1997, at which time the operating agreement was terminated.

Maintenance expense at WPSC increased $7.8 million, or 18.6%, primarily
as a result of increased expenses at Kewaunee during the second and fourth
quarters of 1998. This increase was partly due to the recognition in the
second quarter of 1998 of the 1997 deferred expenses for Kewaunee steam
generator repairs. The PSCW approved deferral of the repairs in 1997, the
cost of which has been collected in the second guarter of 1998 through a
$3.8 million electric revenue surcharge. In addition, maintenance expense at
Kewaunee increased in the fourth quarter of 1998 due to a scheduled refueling
outage.

Depreciation and decommissioning expenses at WP3C increased
$2.4 million, or 2.1%, due to an increased plant base and to the accelerated
recovery of investment in Kewaunee and accelerated funding of Kewaunee
decommissioning costs. Accelerated recovery of investment and funding began
on February 21, 1997 and, therefore, was effective for all of 1998 but only a
portion of 1997.

Other income at WPSC decreased $5.8 million, or 46.3%, primarily due to
one-time gains on sales of nonutility property which occurred in 1997. These
gains represented an increase in earnings for 1997 of approximately $0.11 per
share.

Overview of Nonregulated Operations

Nonregulated operations primarily consist of the gas and electric sales
at ESI, an energy marketing subsidiary. Nonregqulated operations also include
those of WPSR as a holding company and those of PDI which develops electric
generation projects, invests in generating projects, and provides services to
the electric power generation industry.

Nonregulated operations experienced a loss of $11.0 million in 1998
compared with a loss of $9.5 million in 1997. Although nonregulated margins
continue to grow, losses are being experienced due to gas and electric trading
losses and expenses associated with the expansion of customer base.

Overview of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

Revenues at ESI were $351.3 million in 1998 compared with $189.4 million
in 1997, an increase of 85.5%. ESI experienced a lcss of $6.9 million in 1998
compared with a loss of $4.9 million in 1957. The primary reasons for the
increased loss at ESI were increased electric and gas trading losses primarily
due to market volatility, and higher operating expenses due to expansion of
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the energy trading business. Partially offsetting these factors was an
increase in the gas margin.

Nonregulated Margins (ESI)

Gas margins at ESI were $4.0 million in 1998 compared with $1.9 million
in 1997, an increase of 110.5%. Electric margins at ESI remained fairly
stable. Gas revenues at ESI were $330.0 million in 1998 compared with
$182.2 million in 19297, an increase of $147.7 million, or 81.0%. This
increase was the result of sales volume growth and expansion to additional
gecgraphic areas. Electric revenues at ESI were $20.% million in 1998 and
$6.4 million in 1997, an increase of $14.1 million, or 220.3%. This increase
was also the result of sales volume growth.

ESI's cost of sales were 5346.4 million in 1998 and $186.6 million in
1997, an increase of 5$1592.8 million, or 85.6%. This increase was primarily
due to increased gas purchases and purchased power of $145.6 million and
514.2 million, respectively, as a result of customer growth and higher c¢osts
of purchases.

Other Nonregulated Expenses/Inccome {(ESI)

Other operating expenses at ESI increased $1.1 million, or 13.6%, due to
expansion of the business. ESI experienced gas trading losses of $4.9 million
in 1998 and $1.4 million in 1597 largely due to market wvolatility. ESI also
experienced electric trading losses of $1.2 million in 1998 primarily due to
losses in the third gquarter related to the unprecedented market volatility in
the electric trading market.

Price Risk Management Activities (ESI)

WPSR has not experienced significant price risk activities at its
utility coperations which are not recoverable through customer rates; however,
price risk is experienced at ESI.

ESI utilizes derivative financial and commodity instruments
("derivatives"), including futures and forward contracts, to reduce market
risk associated with fluctuations in the price of natural gas and electricity
sold under firm commitments with certain of its customers. ESI also utilizes
derivatives, including price swap agreements, call and put option contracts,
and futures and forward contracts, to manage market risk associated with a
portion of its anticipated supply requirements. In addition, ESI utilizes
derivatives, within specified guidelines, for trading purposes.

Gains or losses on derivatives associated with firm commitments are
recognized as adjustments to the cost of sales or to revenues when the related
transactions affect earnings. Gains and losses on derivatives associated with
forecasted transactions are recognized when such forecasted transactions
affect earnings. At December 31, 1998, $7.2 million in losses related to firm
commitments and forecasted transactions were deferred. If it is no longer
probable that a forecasted transaction will occur, any gain or loss on the
derivative instrument as of such date is immediately recognized in earnings.
Derivatives for trading purposes are marked to market each accounting period,
and gains and losses are recognized as a component of other income at that
time. In 199%8 and 1997, trading losses of $6.1 million and $1.4 million,
respectively, were recognized.
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At December 31, 1998, ESI had outstanding 22.0 million noticnal
dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option agreements and 1.3 million
notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap agreements for purposes of
managing market risk. The financial instruments outstanding at December 31,
1998 expire at various times through August 2000. ESI has certain gas sales
commitments through August 2000 with a range of sale prices from $2.36 to
52.38 per dekatherm and a range of associated gas purchase costs of $2.29 to
$2.31 per dekatherm.

As of December 31, 1998, the fair value of trading instruments included
assets of $0.7 million. Except for a minimal level of electric trading
instruments, financial instruments used for trading in 1998 and 1997 were
natural gas derivatives. At December 31, 1598, ESI had outstanding
13.6 million noticnal dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option
agreements and 1.6 million notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap
agreements for trading purposes.

Carrying Fair

Amount Value
Inventory $5.9 $5.9
Fixed-price purchase obligations $115.0
Fixed-price sales obligations 599.8

————————————————— Fair
1999 2000 Total Value
Futures NYMEX - Hedging

Long {(billion cubic feet) 34.8 2.2
Weighted average settlement price

{per dekatherm) 52.26 $2.32
Contract amount $78.8 $5.1 $83.9 $70.5
Short (billion cubic feet) 18.4 0.8
Weighted average settlement price

{per dekatherm) $2.18 £2.50
Contract amount $40.0 $2.1 $42.1 $35.9

Futures NYMEX - Trading

Long (billion cubic feet) 33.5
Weighted average settlement price

{(per dekatherm) $2.28
Contract amount $§76.3 $76.3 $61.0
Short (billion cubic feet) 37.0
Weighted average settlement price

{per dekatherm) $2.25 )
Contract amount 583.2 . $83.2 $67.2
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————————————————— Fair
' 1999 2000 Total Value
-~ - _———
Fixed-Float Futures Swap - Hedging
Zong (billion cubic feet) 7.2 3.4
Weighted average settlement price
{per dekatherm) 52.21 $2.28 -
Contract amount $15.9 57.8 523 .7 $22.2
Short (billion cubic feet) 1.5 0.1
Weighted average settlement price
(per dekatherm) $2.12 $2.18
Contract amount $31-1 $0.3 $3.4 $3.0
Fixad-Float Futures Swap - Trading
Long (billion cubic feet) 6.0
Vi=zighted average settlement price
(per dekatherm) $2.21
lontract amount $13.1 $13.1 $11.3
Short (billion cubic feet) 3.1 0.1
Mzighted average settlement price ‘
{per dekatherm) $2.15 $1.85
(lsntract amount $6.8 $0.2 $7.0 $6.0
Opi:ions - Hedging
Liong calls {(billion cubic feet) 0.6
Vlzighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.46
(sntract amount $1.6 $l.6 50.2
l:ong puts (billion cubic feet) 0.6
{raighted average strike price
{(per dekatherm) 51.87
‘(ontract amount $1.1 $1.1 $0.0
Short calls (billion cubic feet) 0.7
irzighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.43
(ontract amount $1.7 $1.7 50.2
fhort puts (billion cubic feet} 0.8 0.5
Wieighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.25 52.43
tontract amount 51.8 $1.1 52.9 50.3
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Related Derivatives (continued)

—————————————————— Fair
1999 2000 Total Value
Options - Trading
Long calls (billion cubic feet) 2.2
Weighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.27
Contract amount $5.1 $5.1 $0.3
Long puts (billion cubic feet) 5.9
Weighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.08
Contract amount $12.0 $12.0 $0.7
Short calls (billion cubic feet) 1.5 ‘
Weighted average strike price
(per dekatherm) $2.17
Contract amount $3.2 $3.2 $0.2
Short puts (billion cubic feet) 5.0 0.5
Weighted average strike price
(per dekathexrm) $2.14 $2.30
Contract amount $10.7 $1.0 $11.7 $0.9
Basis Swaps - Hedging
Long (billion cubic feet} 12.2 0.9
Weighted average settlement price
{per dekatherm) 50.17 $0.29
Contract amount $2.1 50.3 $2.4 531.5
Short (billion cubic feet) 13.5 0.5
Weighted average settlement price
{(per dekatherm) $0.20 $0.09
Contract amount 52.7 52.7 $1.5
Basis Swaps - Trading
Long (billion cubic feet) 80.5 2.6
Weighted average settlement price
(per dekatherm) 50.2% 50.24
Contract amount $20.9 50.6 $21.5 $9.3
Short (billion cubic feet) 82.1 3.8
Weighted average settlement price
{per dekatherm) $0.25 $9.23
Contract amount $20.4 50.9 $21.3 $9.7

Other Nonregulated Operations

Losses at PDI were %$2.4 million in 1998 compared with $1.9 million in
1997. The increase in losses at PDI was primarily due to additional expenses
incurred in 1998 for the start-up of new projects. Other cperating expenses
at PDI increased $1.1 million, or 25.4%, due to higher project expenses.
Other income at WPSR included a dividend on a venture capital investment of
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$2.0 million in the first quarter of 1998 compared with $0.2 million in the
first quarter of 1997.

1957 Compared With 1996
WPS Resources Corporation Overview

WPSR consclidated operating revenues were $935.8 millicon in 1997 and
$916.4 million in 1996, an increase of 2.1%. Net income increased 5.5% to
$55.8 million in 199%7 from $52.9 million in 1996, Basic and diluted earnings
per share were $2.10 in 1997 compared with $1.9% in 1996, an increase of 5.5%.
The primary reasons for the increase in earnings were decreased operating and
maintenance expenses, increased other income, an increased nonregulated energy
margin, and an increased gas utility margin. Partially offsetting these
factors were a decrease in the electric utility margin, an increase in
depreciation and decommissioning expense, and an increase in income tax
expense.

Overview of Utility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO)

Revenues at WPSC were $690.5 million in 1997 compared with
$701.9 million in 1996, a decrease of 1.6%. Earnings were $61.6 million in
1997 and $57.3 million in 1996, an increase of 7.5%. The primary reasons for
the increase in earnings at WPSC were a decrease in operating and maintenance
expenses, an increase in other income, and an increase in the gas utility
margin. Offsetting these factors were a decrease in the electric utility
margin, an increase in depreciation and decommissioning expense, and an
increase in income tax expense.

Revenues at UPPCO were $60.2 million in 1997 compared with $58.4 million
in 1996, an increase of 3.1%. Earnings were $3.7 million in 1997 and
$5.2 million in 1996, a decrease of 28.8%. The primary reason for the
decrease in earnings at UPPCO was a decrease in the electric utility margin.

Electric Utility Operationas (WPSC and UPPCO)

WPSR consolidated electric utility margins decreased $22.5 million, or
5.8%, primarily due to implementation of a PSCW rate order at WPSC which
authorized a $35.5 million, or 8.1%, electric revenue reduction. A second
factor contributing tec decreased margins was increased replacement power costs
as a result of an extended ocutage at Kewaunee. A surcharge authorized by the
PSCW partially offset increases in replacement power costs in the latter part
of the first quarter and in the second quarter of 193%7.

In spite of a 27.6% decrease in cooling degree days, WPSR consolidated
electric kWh sales increased by 1.5% primarily due to increased demand by
WPSC's commercial and industrial customers. WPSC's commercial and industrial
kWh sales increased 4.8%, while wholesale kWh sales decreased 3.4%. WPSR
consolidated electric utility revenues decreased 511.8 million, or 2.2%,
primarily due to the electric rate decrease at WPSC.

WPSR consolidated electric production fuel expense increased
$2.5 million, or 2.4%. ©Nuclear fuel expense at WPSC was $2.0 millicn lower
than in 1996 due to decreased generation at Kewaunee in the first and second
quarters of 1997 as a result of an extended outage. Steam fuel expense at
WPSC was higher by $1.0 million and combustion turbine generation expense was
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higher by $3.2 million due to increased generation requirements from these
sources during the extended outage at Kewaunee.

WPSR consclidated purchased power expense increased $8.1 million, or

14.5%, primarily due to increased purchase requirements and higher costs of
purchased power at WPSC during the extended ocutage at Kewaunee.

The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in the cost of fuel and purchased
power, within a specified range, on to its customers through a fuel adjustment
clause. WPSC is required to file an application to adjust rates either higher
or lower when costs are plus or minus 2% from forecasted costs on an annual
basis. The additional fuel costs in 1997 did not result in WPSC being outside
this 2% window.

Gasg Utility Operations (WPSC)

WPSR consolidated gas margin increased $1.4 million, or 2.2%, primarily
due to WPSC's implementation of a PSCW rate order which authorized a
$5.7 million, or 2.7%, increase in gas revenues.

Gas operating revenues remained relatively stable reflecting the rate
increase offset by a 5.5% reduction in heating degree days. Gas revenues also
reflect a one-time reduction of $0.2 million in the first quarter of 1997 as a
result of a PSCW directive to change the accounting treatment for previous
customer line extensions. This reduction represented a decrease of
approximately $.02 per share after income tax effects.

Gas purchase costs showed a net decrease of $1.6 million, or 1.1%,
primarily due to. reduced purchases because of decreased demand as a result of
the reduction in heating degree days. The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in
the cost of gas on to customers through a PGAC.

Other Utility Expenses/Income (WPSC and UPPCO)

Other operating expenses at WPSC decreased $24.1 million, or 15.2%.
Cost saving initiatives and decreased amortization of deferred demand-side
management expenditures resulted in lower customer service and sales expenses
of 59.5 million. Administrative expenses decreased $5.8 million due to cost
saving measures and reduced postretirement medical, dental, and other benefit
expenses. Generation operating expenses were lower by $7.3 million primarily
as a result of the completion in 1996 of an amortization of deferred expenses
related to a previous coal contract settlement. Gas operating expenses
decreased $1.5 million as the result of a PSCW directive requiring gas
servicing revenues and expenses to be classified as other income and
deducticons beginning in 1997.

Maintenance expense at WPSC decreased 357.1 million, or 14.5%. Electric
transmission and distribution expenses decreased $3.4 million as a result of
cost saving initiatives and less maintenance of cverhead lines in 1997 due to
less storm damage. Maintenance expenses were $1.9 million lower at Kewaunee
in 1997 because Kewaunee was out of service in 1996 for scheduled maintenance.
Gas distribution expenses were lower by $0.9 million due to cost saving
initiatives and decreased maintenance activities. Steam costs decreased
$0.6 million at WPSC's coal-fired plants due to changes in maintenance
schedules as a result of the extended ocutage at Kewaunee.
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Depreciation and decommissioning expenses at WPSC increased
$12.0 million, or 18.8%, largely due to the accelerated recovery of investment
in Kewaunee and accelerated funding of Kewaunee decommissioning costs.

Other income at WPSC increased $7.5 million, or 141.7%, primarily due to
gains in 1997 on the sale of nonutility property of $4.8 million which
represented an increase of approximately'$.ll per share after income tax
effects. Also included in other income in 1997 was interest of $2.2 millicn
resulting from an income tax audit settlement. Income tax expense increased
$1.9 million reflecting higher net income in 1997.

Overview of Nonregulated Operations

Nonregulated operations experienced a loss of $9.5 million in 1997
compared with a loss of $9.6 million in 1996. Operating losses at the
nenregulated subsidiaries were anticipated by management as the companies
developed infrastructure and financed additional working capital needed to
support growth. Losses were also incurred at the WPSR holding company in 1997
due to expenses incurred as a result cf the merger with UPEN.

Overview of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

Revenues at ESI were $189.4 million in 1997 compared with $161.8 million
in 1896, an increase of 17.1%.

ESI incurred a loss of $4.9 million in 1997 and a loss of $6.3 million
in 1996.

Nonregulated Margins (ESI)

Gas margins at ESI were a positive $2.1 million in 1997 and a negative
$1.1 million in 1996, an increase of $3.2 million. 1In 1996, customer
commitments at ESI were not fully hedged during a period of veolatile gas
commeodity markets and certain gas suppliers defaulted which negatively
impacted margins. Electric margins at ESI increased $0.9 million in 1997.

Gas sales at ESI increased $26.2 million in 1997, or 17.1%, as a result
of customer growth. Electric sales at ESI increased $5.6 million in 1997, or
716.0%, alzso as a result of customer growth.

Gas purchases and purchased power expense increased $20.5 million and
$4.7 million, respectively, in 1997.

Other Nonregulated .Expenses/Income {(ESI)

Other operating expenses at ESI increased $1.3 million, or 19.4%, due to
expansion of the business and the development of infrastructure as ESI
positions itself for the future. Although increased margins more than offset
other operating expenses, interest costs increased due to the financing of
additional working capital needed to support the growth of ESI.

EST experienced trading losses of $1.4 millien in 1997 and $2.5 million
in 1996.
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Other Nonregulated Cperations

PDI incurred a loss of $1.9 million in 1997 and a loss of $4.0 million
in 1896. Other operating expenses at PDI increased $0.4 million as a result
of expansion of the business and operation of the Stoneman Power Plant
{"Stoneman"). Project revenues at PDI partially offset costs related to the
investigation of possible energy-related investments and a loss from Stoneman
operations. PDI alsc experienced a loss of $4.0 million in 1996 related to
the write-off of an investment im an industrial processing facility. This
write-off represented a decrease in 1996 earnings of $.09 per share after
income tax effects.

Other operating expenses at WPSR increased $2.7 million in 1997 due to
expenses associated with the UPEN merger.

BALANCE SHEET - WPSR
1998 Compared With 1997

Nuclear decommissicning trusts increased $37.3 million due to continued
funding and favorable investment returns. Construction in progress increased
$30.6 million largely as a result of construction expenditures related to the
Kewaunee steam generator replacement project, the combusticn turbine project
at West Marinette, and the transmission line for the De Pere Energy Center
project. Customer receivables increased $21.1 million primarily as a result
of incredsed sales at ESI. Net nonutility and nonregulated plant increased
$13.0 million as a result of the acguisition of additional assets at PDI.
Investments and other assets increased $18.5 million primarily due to an
increased unrealized gain on the nuclear decommissioning trust at WPSC and an
increased unrealized loss on hedging activities at ESI.

Commercial paper increased $26.9 million due to increased operational
cash needs at WPSC and WPSR. Cash requirements exceeded internally generated
funds at both WPSC and WPSR. Accounts payable increased $25.7 million due to
increased payables at WPSC related to the 1998 Kewaunee refueling outage and
cther construction projects, and higher payables at ESI as a result of
increased sales activity.

FINANCIAL CONDITION - WPSR
Investmentg and Financing

WPSR made a $34.0 million equity infusion into WPSC during the second
quarter of 1998. WPSC retired $50.0 million of first-mortgage bonds on
July 1, 1998 and issued $50.0 million of senior notes secured by
first-mortgage bonds on Decembexr 14, 1998. A special common stock dividend of
$20.0 million was paid by WPSC to WPSR in December 1998. The special dividend
allowed WPSC's average equity capitalization ratio to remain at approximately
54%, the level approved by the PSCW for ratemaking.

Short-term borrowings increased $26.9 million during 1998 as a result of
cash requirements in excess of internally generated funds. Pretax interest
coverage was 4.48 times for the 12 months ended December 31, 1998 for WPSC.
WPSC's bond ratings are AA+ (Standard & Poor's and Duff & Phelps} and Aa2
(Moody's) .
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WPSR will use intermnally-generated funds and short-term borrowing to
satisfy most of its capital requirements. WPSR may periodically issue
additicnal leong-term debt and common stock to reduce short-term debt and to
maintain desired capitalization ratios.

The specific forms of financing, amounts, and timing will depend on the
availakility of projects, market conditions, and other factors. At this time,
however, it is anticipated that common stock will be issued by WPSR in
mid-1999. WPSR began issuing new shares of common stock for the Stock
Investment Plan in January 1999. WPSR may also expand its leveraged employee
stock ownership plan during the next three-year period.

WPSC makes large investments in capital assets. Construction
expenditures for WPSC are expected to be approximately $250.0 million in the
aggregate for the 1999 through 2001 period. This includes expenditures for
the replacement of Kewaunee steam generators.

In addition, other capital requirements for WPSC for the three-year
period will include Kewaunee decommissioning trust fund contributions of
$16.8 million.

WPSC's agreement to purchase electricity from the De Pere Energy Center,
a gas-fired cogeneration facility, will be accounted for as a capital lease.
The De Pere Energy Center lease will be capitalized at 3$77.8 million in 1999.
While not a capital expenditure, this will affect the capital structure.

UPPCO will incur construction expenditures of about 523.0 million in the
aggregate for the period 1999 through 2001, primarily for electric
distribution improvements.

Investment expenditures for nonregqulated projects are uncertain since
there are few firm commitments at this time. Approximately 3$38.0 million will
be incurred in 1999 to purchase generating units located in the State of Maine
and-the Canadian Province of New Brunswick. Financing for most nonregulated
projects is expected to be obtained through a new subsidiary, WPS Resources
Capital Corporation, which was formed in January 1999 to obtain funding for
those projects.

On July 30, '1998, WPSR Capital Trust I ("Trust"), a Delaware business
trust of which WPSR owns all of the ocutstanding $1.5 million trust common
securities, issued $50.0 million of trust preferred securities to the public.
The sole asset of the Trust is $51.5 million of WPSR subordinated debentures
due in 2038. The terms and interest payments on these debentures correspond
to the terms and distributions on the trust preferred securities.

Regulatory

WPSC received a rate order in the Wisconsin jurisdiction on January 15,
1999. The impact is a $26.9 million increase in electric revenues and a
$10.3 million increase in gas revenues on an annual basis. The new rates will
be effective for 1999 and 2000. The PSCW authorized a 12.1% return on WPSC
equity for 1999 and 2000.
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Merger

On September 29, 1998, UPEN merged with and into WPSR, and UPPCO, UPEN's
utility subsidiary, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of WPSR. The exchange of
stock qualifies as a tax-free transaction and the transaction has been
accounted for as a pooling of interests.

Kewaunee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and Madison Gas and Electric Company
{"MG&E") finalized an arrangement in which WPSC will acquire MG&E's 17.8%
share of Kewaunee. This agreement, the closing of which is contingent upon
regulatory approvals and steam generator replacement scheduled for the spring
of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership in Kewaunee.

The arrangement provides that the book value of MG&E's share of Kewaunee
at the time of the transfer could be credited against the purchase price of a
planned 83-megawatt, natural gas-fired, combustion-turbine electric generation
station to be built near Marinette, Wisconsin. WPSC had previously agreed to
build this station for MG&E. If, for some reason, the Marinette station is
not completed, the arrangement calls for WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of
Kewaunee with a combination of cash and notes.

MG&E has agreed to retain certain of its obligations related to the
period of time that it had been an owner of Kewaunee. MG&E will effectively
transfer its nuclear decommissioning funds to WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of
the currently estimated decommissioning costs of the plant at the closing for
the asset swap. WPSC and Wisconsin Power and Light Company, the joint owners
of the plant after the desecribed change in ownership, will be responsible for
the decommissioning of the plant.

Year 2000 Compliance

The Year 2000 issue arises because software programs, computer hardware,
and equipment that have date sensitive software or embedded chips may
recognize a date using "00" as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This
may result in system failures or other disruptions of operations.

WPSR and its subsidiary companies are committed to eliminating or
minimizing adverse effects of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue on their
business operations, including the products and services provided to
customers, and to maintaining WPSR's reputation as an efficient and reliable
supplier of energy. WPSR, however, is unable to guarantee that there will be
no adverse effects as a result of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue
because many aspects of compliance are beyond WPSR's 'direct control.

WPSR has undertaken a program to assess Year 2000 compliance and to
bring computer systems into compliance by the year 2000. All systems,
including energy production and delivery systems, other embedded systems, and
third party systems of suppliers are being evaluated to identify and resolve
potential problems.

A Year 2000 project plan which includes awareness, inventory and
assessment, remediation, testing, and implementation has been developed. The
formal awareness phase of the Year 2000 project which includes understanding
and communication of the issue to employees, customers, suppliers, and other
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affected parties has essentially been completed. The Year 2000 issue has been
communicated to WPSR employees and customers via several media. All WPSR
business unit leaders have been made aware of the Year 2000 project plan and
their roles in implementing the plan. Communicaticn and response to Year 2000
inquiries continue.

The inventory and assessment phase which includes identification of all
information and non-information technelogy systems and of non-compliant
systems, applications, and hardware, has been completed. Action plans for
remediation, which includes modifications to bring systems into compliance,
and action plans for testing including validation of compliance have been
completed.

Modifications of major in-house supported systems to correct Year 2000
problems have been underway since 1%96. WPSR's Information Technology
Department has identified five major systems. &All of these systems {customer
information, finance, human resources, materials management, and facility
management) are currently Year 2000 compliant.

In addition, non-information technology systems have been identified and
ranked as to the risk posed by non-compliance. HNon-information technology
systems include computer and embedded systems related to WPSR's power plant
operating, system operating, hydraulic, transmission, and cother cperating
functions. All systems ranked as "critical," "severe," or "high" are
scheduled to be Year 2000 compliant by the end of the first quarter of 1999.

WPSR has hired an external consulting group to monitor the progress of
its Year 2000 compliance activities. The consulting group's responsibilities
include performing a status check on WPSR's ability to achieve Year 2000
compliance.

In addition, WPSR is identifying, contacting, and assessing suppliers
and cother business partners for Year 2000 readiness, as these external parties
may have the potential to impact WPSR's Year 2000 readiness. WPSR is also
working to address Year 2000 issues related to all joint ownership facilities.
At the present time, WPSR is not aware of problems that would materially
impact the company's operations. However, WPSR has no means of ensuring that
all third parties will be Year 2000 compliant in a timely manner, and the
inability of these parties to resolve successfully their Year 2000 issues
could have a material impact on the operations of WPSR's subsidiaries.

Due to fewer expenditures for hardware and software than originally
anticipated, the estimate of total Year 2000 project costs has been reduced to
$2.0 million. This estimate is considered reasonable and has been approved
for rate recovery by the PSCW. This estimate includes internal labor costs of
$4.5 million, software replacement costs for non-compliant products of
$2.0 million, and contract labor costs of $2.5 millicn. Expenditures for the
Year 2000 project incurred through December 31, 1298, are $2.2 million. Major
expenditures for hardware, software, and other equipment were made in the
fourth quarter of 1998 and additional expenditures will be made in the first
quarter of 1999.

The failure to correct a material Year 2000 prcblem could result in an
interruption in, or the failure of, certain normal business activities ox
operations which could materially affect WPSR's results of operations.
However, due to the general uncertainty inherent in the Year 2000 issue, WPSR
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is unable to determine at this time whether the consequences of Year 2000
failures will have a material impact on operations. A preliminary
identification of potential risks related to the failure to be in compliance
by the Year 2000 has been made. A better understanding of actual risks will
be developed during the remediation, testing, and contingency planning
processes. The development of WPSR's contingency planning process is intended
to minimize the problems associated with these risks.

WPSR is assessing the potential impact of failure to achiewve Year 2000
compliance with respect to each of the following:

- Generation availability

- System monitoring and control functions

- Ability to restart generators that are out of service for planned or
unplanned cutages

- Company-owned voice/data communications

- Transmission facilities

- System protection

- Critical operating data (i.e., generation plant data)

- Electric and gas distribution systems

- Pipelines' constraints to the supply or pressure of natural gas

- Major support systems

Contingency plans for dealing with Year 2000 issues will be developed by
hpril 1599 for each application that has been identified as "critical" or
"gevere." In addition, a proposal for a "gquick response team" concept has
been drafted, and a process for handling unexpected Year 2000 problems will be
formalized in early 1992. A most reasonabkly likely worst case Year 2000
scenario will be identified and addressed by a crisis management team in early
1999. The team plans to conduct a crisis management drill using a Year 2000
scenario.

TRENDS - WPSR
Accounting Standards

WPSC and UPPCO follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFASY") No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,™
and their financial statements reflect the effects of the different ratemaking
principles followed by the various jurisdictions regulating each utility. For
WPSC these include the PSCW, 89% cof revenues; the Michigan Public Service
Commission {"MPSC"), 3% of revenues; and the FERC, 8% of revenues. In
additicn, Kewaunee is regulated by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Environmental matters are.primarily governed by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency and the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." This
statement requires all derivatives to be measured at fair value and recognized
as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position. The
accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative is dependent upon the
use of the derivative and its resulting designation. Unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met, changes in the derivative's fair value must be
recognized currently in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after Jume 15, 1999. WPSR will be adopting the requirements
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of this statement on January 1, 2000, and has not yet determined the method of
adoption or its impact. However, the requirements of this statement could
increase volatility in earnings and other comprehensive income.

In March 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
{("AICPA"}) issued Statement of Position 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use." This statement
requires the capitalization of certain costs related to software developed or
obtained for internal use. The statement is effective for pericds beginning
after December 15, 1998. WPSR will be adopting the requirements of this
statement in January 1999. Although the total impact of WPSR's adoption of
this statement has not been determined, WPSC's adoption of this statement is
expected to result in a reduction in operating expenses which will be
considered in the ratemaking process. The capitalized software costs will
then be charged toc amortization expense in future years.

In April 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting
on the Costs of Start-up Activities." This statement provides guidance on the
financial reporting of start-up costs and organization costs. Costs of
start-up activities and organization costs are required to be expensed as
incurred. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
1998. WPSR will be adopting the requirements of this statement in 1999 and
does not anticipate any material impact to its financial statements.

Utility Restructuring

Electric reliability issues have replaced restructuring and retail
competition issues in Wisconsin, and the PSCW announced that its first
priority is to develop the utility infrastructure necessary to assure reliable
electric service and to remove the barriers to competition at the wholesale
level. 1In 1998, the PSCW and the major utilities in Wisconsin, including
WPSC, made legislative proposals to address reliability and restructuring
concerns, including market power, among other issues. This resulted in the
Electric Reliability Bill (1997 Wis. Laws 204) ("Act 204"}). Act 204 contains
provisions which relate to the planning and approval by the PSCW of electric
power generation and transmission facilities, the regional management of the
transmission system, new electric power generation, including the ownership
and operation of wholesale merchant plants, new electric power transmission
facilities, out-of-state retail electric sales, service standards for electric
generation, transmission, and distribution facilities, and the allowable
assets of public utility holding companies.

On June 5, 1997, the MPSC ordered utilities under its jurisdiction to
file electric open access plans and related tariffs. The MPSC order called
for generation open access in increments of 2.5% of retail load each year
starting in 19297 and ending in 2001. The MPSC order requires full generation
open access for retail load in 2002. WPSC and UPPCO submitted plans which
provide retail open access starting in 2000 when the MPSC order requires open
access for 10% of retail load. The plans then continue on the MPSC schedule
including full open access in 2002.

Should electric deregulation occur such that WPSC and UPPCO would no
longer qualify to reflect the effects of ratemaking under SFAS No. 71 in their
financial statements, no impairment of significant recorded assets or
reduction in reported equity is anticipated. WPSC and UPPCO do not have any
significant assets which are foreseen as being potentially stranded and no
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potential disparity between the depreciable lives of capital assets and those
lives applicable to a competitive environment has been identified. Increased
competition is likely to put pressure on electric utility margins. At this

time, however, management cannct predict the ultimate results of deregulation.

Part of electric utility restructuring involves establishing independent
system operators ("ISOs"). An IS0 is an independent third party which
potentially owns the transmission facilities, oversees the operationsg of
transmission facilities, administers open access transmission tariffs, and
directs power dispatch. WPSC is working with several groups which are
attempting to form ISOs.

Both the PSCW and the MPSC continue to review gas industry
restructuring. In a current docket, the PSCW is addressing gas restructuring
issues including unbundling of rates, pricing of contracted services in
potential utility bypass situations, and the separaticn of gas utilities from
their nonregulated gas marketing affilijates. The MPSC is conducting pilot
studies to test the development of competitive retail gas markets in Michigan.

WPSC has historically recovered gas costs through a PGAC. The PSCW has
recently allowed utilities to select either an incentive gas cost recovery
mechanism or a modified one-for-one mechanism for gas cost recovery. WPSC has
selected the modified one-for-one gas cost recovery plan, and implementation
of the new mechanism, which is similar to the recovery received under the
existing PGAC, began in January 1999.

Environmental

WPSC continues to investigate the environmental cleanup of eight
manufactured gas plant sites. The cleanup of WPSC's Stevens Point
manufactured gas plant site has been substantially completed with monitoring
of the site continuing. Costs of this cleanup were within the range expected
for this site. Future investigation and cleanup costs for the remaining seven
sites is estimated to be in the range of $33.9 million to $41.0 million.

These estimates may be adjusted in the future contingent upon remedial
technology, regulatory requirements, and experience gained through cleanup
activities.

An initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 million had been established
with an offsetting regulatory asset (deferred charge). Of this amount,
approximately $2.7 million has been spent to date. DManagement believes that
cleanup costs net of insurance recoveries, but not the carrying costs
associated with the cleanup expenditures, will be recoverable in current and
future customer rates. WPSC has received 512.6 million in insurance
recoveries which have been recorded as a reduction in the regulatory asset.

WPSC is in compliance with both the Phase I and II sulfur dioxide and
nitrogen oxide emission limits established by the Fedexal Clean Air Act
Aamendments of 19%0. Additional capital expenditures of $1.0 wmillion to
$2.0 million are projected through 1992 for Wisconsin and for federal air
quality compliance. Management believes that all costs incurred for
additional compliance will be recoverable in future customer rates.

In late September 1998, the United States Environmental Protection

Agency ("EPA") required certain states, including Wisconsin to develop plans
to reduce the emissions of nitrogen oxides ("NOx") from sources within the
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state by late 2003. On a preliminary basis, WPSC projects potential capital
costs of between $37.0 million and $96.0 million to comply with possible
future regulaticns. The cumulative incremental annual operating and
maintenance expense associated with these possible future regulations
projected to be incurred by 2010 range from $29.0 million to $106.0 million.
The costs will depend on the state-specific compliance method to be adopted in
the future as well as the effectiveness of the various technologies available
for NOx emission contrel. Under WPSC's current practice, the capital costs
(as reflected in depreciation expenses} and the annual operating costs are
anticipated to be recovered through future customer rates.

On December 24, 1998, WPSC joined other parties in a petition
challenging the EPA's regulations that require Wisconsin to prepare and submit
a NOx implementation plan. On January 22, 1999, the State of Wisconsin
intervened in the litigation and challenged the geographic scope of the rule
and the required timing for implementation of NOx controls within the state.
No decisions have yet been rendered.

Kewaunee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MG&E finalized an arrangement in which
WPSC will acguire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This agreement, the closing
of which is contingent upon regulatory approval and steam generator
replacement scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership
in Kewaunee.

Cn QOctober 17, 1998, Kewaunee was shut down for a planned maintenance
and refueling outage. Inspection of the plant's two steam generators showed
that the repairs made in 1997 were holding up well and few additional repairs
were needed. In addition to the inspection and repair of the steam
generators, a major overhaul was performed on the main turbine generator. The
plant was back in operation on November 27, 1998.

Nonregulated Activities

ESI incurred a $6.9 million loss in 1998 and a %4.9 million lossg in
1997. A primary strategy for ESI is to gain market presence which is
reflected in a 117.1% growth in revenues during the three-year period 1996
through 1998, from $161.8 millicn in 1996 to $351.3 million in 1898. To
support this growth, significant expenditures were made for personnel
additions and system improvements. These expenditures, coupled with extreme
gas market volatility, contributed to the losses incurred at ESI. Gas market
volatility was reflected in the NYMEX gas futures prices per dekatherm which,
in 1998, ranged from a high of $2.73 to a low of $1.61. 1In 1897, gas futures
prices ranged from a high of $3.55 to a low of %$1.82. Gas market volatility
has a direct impact on revenue and trading income.

PDI expects to improve the overall performance of its investment in
Stoneman due to a multi-year capacity sales agreement. Stconeman was also
grandfathered by the PSCW as a merchant plant which increases the probability
that PDI will repower the plant as a 300-megawatt toc 500-megawatt gas-fired
combined cycle generating facility. Operational problems related to the
bending process at ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC are being addressed with
expected resolution before the second guarter of 1999.
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IMPACT OF INFLATION - WPSR

WPSR's current financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and report operating results in terms
of historic cost. They provide a reasonable, objective, and quantifiable
statement of financial results; but they do not evaluate the impact of
inflation. Under rate treatment prescribed by utility regulatory commissions,
WPSC's and UPPCO's projected operating costs are recoverable in revenues.
Because forecasts are prepared assuming inflation, the majority of
inflationary effects on normal operating costs are recoverable in rates.
However, in these forecasts, WPSC and UPPCO are only allowed to recover the
historic cost of plant via depreciatiocn.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

WPSC is a regulated electric and gas utility. Electric operations
accounted for 75% of 1998 revenues, while gas contributed 25% to 1998
revenues.

1998 Compared with 1997
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation Overview

Revenues at WPSC were $652.5 million in 1998 compared with
$690.5 million in 1997, a decrease of 5.5%. Earnings were $54.1 million in
1998 and $61.6 million in 1997, a decrease of 12.2%. The primary reasons for
the decrease in earnings at WPSC were the impact of unusually warm winter
weather, increased maintenance expenses, a decrease in other income, an
increase in other operating expenses, and a decrease in the gas margin.
Partially offsetting these factors were an increase in the electric utility
margin and a decrease in interest expense.

Electric Utility Operations

WPSC's electric utility margins increased $8.6 million, or 2.6%,
primarily due to increased kWh sales of 3.0% to WPSC customers as a result of
a 103.5% increase in cooling degree days in 1998. Partially offsetting the
increase in electric margins in 1998 was the impact of a PSCW rate order on
WPSC which was efféective for the entire year in 199%8 but was only effective in
1997 for the period after February 21, 1997. This order authorized an 8.1%
electric revenue reduction.

1998 1997 1996
Revenues $487, 340 $479,388 490,306
Fuel and purchased power 152,783 153,414 143,155
Margin $334,557 $325,974 347,351
B e T T Y T T

Electric utility revenues increased %8.0 million, or 1.7%, largely due
to increased revenues of $4.8 million from WPSC's wholesale customers and
$1.5 million from WPSC's commercial and industrial customers as a result of
the warmer weather. Also included in 1998 electric revenues are surcharge
revenueg at WPSC of $3.8 million related to the recovery of the deferred costs
for the 1997 Kewaunee steam generator repairs. Partially offsetting these
increases to revenues were the electric rate reduction and a $1.0 million
refund of WPSC's transmission revenues as the result of a FERC settlement
related to open access transmission tariff rates.
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~ Electric production fuel expense increased $2.9 million, or 2.7%,
primarily as a result of increased generation expense. Kewaunee was out of
service for the first six months of 1997 as the result of an extended ocutage
to repair steam generators, thus, in comparison, the hHigher generation expenge
in 1998.

Purchased power expense decreased $3.5 million, oxr 7.7%, primarily due
to decreased purchase requirements in the first half of 1998. Purchase
requirements in the first half of 1997 were higher due to lack of production
at Kewaunee in the first and second gquarters of 1997 as a result of an
extended outage. Also contributing to lower purchased power expense was a
$1.2 million credit to purchased power expense in the fourth quarter of 1998
related to the settlement of litigation invelving a contract with a power
supplier.

The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in the cost of fuel and purchased
power, within a specified range, on to its customers through a fuel adjustment
clause.

Gas Utility Operations

WPSC's gas margin decreased $3.1 million in 1998, or 4.%%, primarily due
to a 192.4% reduction in heating degree days.

1998 1997 19986
Revenues $165,111 $211,090 $211,3%7
Purchase costs 104,608 147,493 149,388
e R A et
Volume in therms (Thousands) 608,092 662,008 666,598

Gas operating revenues decreased $46.0 million, or 21.8%. This decrease
was due to unusually mild weather in 1998 resulting in lower gas therm sales
for 1998 of 8.1%. Also contributing to the decrease in gas operating revenues
was a reduction in revenues of $7.5 million for refunds from ANR Pipeline
Company which WPSC passed on to its gas customers in the second quarter of
1998.

Gas purchase costs decreased $42.9% million, or 29.1%. This decrease was
due to reduced customer demand as a result of the mild weather during 1998.
Also contributing to the decrease in gas costs was a $7.5 million refund from
BANR Pipeline Company which was credited to gas expense in the second quarter
cof 1998. Under current regulatory practice, the PSCW allows WPSC to pass
changes in the cost of gas on to customers through a PGAC.
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Other Utility Expenses/Income

Other operating expenses at WPSC increased 54.1 million, or 3.1%,
primarily due to higher benefit costs in 1998.

Maintenance expense increased $7.8 million, or 18.6%, primarily as a
result of increased expenses at Kewaunee during the second and fourth quarters
of 1998. This increase was partly due to the recognition in the second
quarter of 1998 of the 1997 deferred expenses for Kewaunee steam generator
repairs. The PSCW approved deferral of the repairs in 1997, the cost of which
has been collected in the second quarter of 1998 through a $3.8 million
electric revenue surcharge. In additicn, maintenance expense at Kewaunee
increased in the fourth quarter of 1998 due to a scheduled refueling ocutage.

Depreciation and decommissioning expenses increased $2.4 wmillion, or
3.1%, due to an increased plant base and to the accelerated recovery of
investment in Kewaunee and accelerated funding of Kewaunee decommissioning
costs. Accelerated recovery of investment and funding began on
February 21, 1997 and, therefore, was effective for all of 1998 but only a
portion of 1997.

Other income decreased $5.8 million, or 46.3%, primarily due to one-time
gains on sales of nonutility property which occurred in 1997. These gains
represented an increase in earnings for 1997 of approximately $0.11 per share.

1997 Compared With 1996
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation Overview

Revenues at WPSC were $690.5 million in 1997 compared with
$701.9 million in 1996, a decrease of 1.6%. Earnings were $61.6 million in
1997 and $57.3 million in 1996, an increase of 7.5%. The primary reasons for
the increase in earmnings were a decrease in operating and maintenance
expenses, an increase in other income, and an increase in the gas utility
margin. Offsetting these factors were a decrease in the electric utility
margin, an increase in depreciation and decommissioning expense, and an
increase in income tax expense.

Electric Utility Operations

WPSC's electric utility margins decreased $21.4 million, or 6.2%,
primarily due to implementation of a PSCW rate order which authorized a
$35.5 million, or 8.1%, electric revenue reduction. A second factor
contributing to decreased margins was increased replacement power costs as a
result of an extended outage at Kewaunee. A surcharge authorized by the PSCW
partially offset increases in replacement power costs in the latter part of
the first quarter and in the second guarter of 1997.

In spite of a 27.6% decrease in cooling degree days, electric kWh sales
increased by 2.2% primarily due to increased demand by WPSC's commercial and
industrial customers. Commercial and industrial kWh sales increased 4.8%,
while wholesale kWh sales decreased 3.4%. Electric operating revenues
decreased $11.1 million, or 2.3%, primarily due to the electric rate decrease.

Electric production fuel expense increased $2.1 million, or 2.0%.
Nuclear fuel expense was $2.0 million lower than in 1996 due to decreased
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generation at Kewaunee in the first and second quarters of 1997 as a result of
an extended outage. Steam fuel expense was higher by $1.0 million and
combustiocn turbine generation expense was higher by $3.2 million due to
increased generation requirements from these sources during the extended
outage at Kewaunee.

Purchased power expense increased $8.1 million, or 21.6%, primarily due
to increased purchase requirements and higher costs of purchased power during
the extended outage at Kewaunee.

The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in the cost of fuel and purchased
power, within a specified range, on to its customers through a fuel adjustment
clause. WPSC is required teo file an application to adjust rates either higher
or lower when costs are plus or minus 2% from forecasted costs on an annual
basis. The additional fuel costs in 1997 did not result in WPSC being outside
this 2% window.

Gas Utility Operations

WPSC's gas margin increased $1.4 million, or 2.2%, primarily due to the
implementation of a PSCW rate order which authorized a $5.7 million, or 2.7%,
increase in gas revenues.

Gas operating revenues remained relatively stable reflecting the rate
increase offset by a 5.5% reduction in heating degree days. Gas revenues also
reflect a one-time reduction of $0.9 million in the first quarter of 1997 as a
result of a PSCW directive to change the accounting treatment for previous
customer line extensions. This reduction represented a decrease of
approximately $.02 per share after income tax effects.

Gas purchase costs showed a net decrease of $1.6 million, or 1.1%,
primarily due to reduced purchases because of decreased demand as a result of
the reduction in heating degree days. The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in
the cost of gas on to customers through a PGAC.

Other Utility Expenses/Income

Other operating expenses decreased 524.1 million, or 15.2%. ' Cost saving
initiatives and decreased amortization of deferred demand-side management
expenditures resulted in lower customer service and sales expenses of
$9.5 million. Administrative expenses decreased $5.8 million due to cost
saving measures and reduced postretirement medical, dental, and other benefit
expenses. Generation operating expenses were lower by $7.3 million primarily
as a result of the completion in 1996 of an amortization of deferred expenses
related to a previous coal contract settlement. Gas operating expenses
decreased $1.5 million as the result of a PSCW directive requiring gas
servicing revenues and expenses to be classified as other income and
deductions beginning in 1997.

Maintenance expense decreased $7.1 million, or 14.5%. Electric
transmission and distribution expenses decreased $3.4 million as a result of
cost saving initiatives and less maintenance of overhead lines in 1997 due to
less storm damage. Maintenance expenses were $1.9 million lower at Kewaunee
in 1997 because Kewaunee was out of service in 1996 for scheduled maintenance.
Gas distribution expenses were lower by %$0.9% million due to cost saving
initiatives and decreased maintenance activities. Steam costs decreased
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$0.6 million at WPSC's coal-fired plants due tc changes in maintenance
schedules as a result of the extended outage at Kewaunee.

Depreciation and decommissioning expenses increased $12.0 millicon, or
18.8%, largely due to the accelerated recovery of investment in Kewaunee and
accelerated funding of Kewaunee decommissioning costs.

Other income increased $7.5 million, or 141.7%, primarily due to gains
in 1997 on the sale of nonutility property cf $4.8 million which represented
an increase of approximately $.11 per share after income tax effects. Also
included in other income in 1997 was interest of $2.2 million resulting from
an income tax audit settlement. Income tax expense increased $1.9 million
reflecting higher net income in 1997.

BALANCE SHEET - WPSC
1998 Compared With 1997

Nuclear decommissioning trusts increased $37.3 million due to continued
funding and favorable investment returns. Construction in progress increased
$28.7 million largely as a result of construction expenditures related to the
Kewaunee steam generator replacement project, the combustion turbine project
at West Marinette, and the transmission line for the De Pere Energy Center
project.

Commercial paper increased $9.5 million due tc increased operaticnal
cash needs at WPSC. Cash requirements exceeded internally generated funds.
Accounts payable increased $14.2 million due to increased payables related to
the 1998 Kewaunee refueling outage and other construction projects, and other
long-term liabilities increased $20.2 million due to an increased liability
for postretirement health care and higher deposits from the joint owners of
Kewaunee as a result of the refueling outage.

FINANCIAL CONDITION - WPSC
Investments and Financing

WPSR made a $34.0 millicn equity infusion in WPSC during the second
cuarter of 1998. WPSC retired $50.0 million of first-mortgage bonds on
July 1, 1998 and issued $50.0 million of senior notes secured by
first-mortgage bonds on December 14, 1998. A special common stock dividend of
$20.0 million was paid by WPSC to WPSR in December 1998. The special dividend
allowed WPSC's average equity capitalization ratioc to remain at approximately
54%, the level approved by the PSCW for ratemaking.

Short-term borrowings increased $9.5 million during 1998 as a result.of
cash requirements in excess of internally generated funds. Pretax interest
coverage was 4.48 times for the 12 months ended December 31, 1998. WPS(C's
bond ratings are AA+ (Standard & Poor's and Duff & Phelps) and Ra2 (Moody's).

WPSC makes large investments in capital assets. Construction
expenditures for WPSC are expected to be approximately $250.0 million in the
aggregate for the 1959 through 2001 period. This includes expenditures for
the replacement of Kewaunee steam generators.
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In addition, other capital requirements for WPSC for the three-year
period include Kewaunee decommissioning trust fund contributions of
$16.8 million.

WPSC's agreement to purchase electricity from the De Pere Energy Center,
a gas-fired cogeneration facility, will be accounted for as a capital lease.
The De Pere Energy Center lease will be capitalized at $77.8 millicn in 1999.
At the same time, a capital lease obligation of the same amount will be
recorded which will affect WPSC's capital structure.

Regulatory

WPSC received a rate order in the Wisconsin jurisdiction on January 15,
199%. The impact is a $26.9 million increase in electric revenues and a
510.3 million increase in gas revenues on an annual basis. The new rates will
be effective for 1999 and 2000. The PSCW authorized a 12.1% return on WPSC
equity for 1999 and 2000.

Kewaunaee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MG&E finalized ian arrangement in which
WPSC will acguire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This agreement, the closing
of which is contingent upon regulatory approvals and steam generator
replacement scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership
in Kewaunee.

The arrangement provides that the book value of MG&E's share of Kewaunee
at the time of the transfer could be credited against the purchase price of a
planned 83-megawatt, natural gas-fired, combustion-turbine electric generating
station to be built near Marinette, Wisconsin. WPSC had previously agreed to
build this station for MG&E. 1If, for some reason, the Marinette station is
not completed, the arrangement calls for WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of
Kewaunee with a combination of cash and notes.

MG&E has agreed to retain certain of its obligations related to the
period of time that it had been an owner of Kewaunee. MG&E will effectively
transfer its nuclear decommissioning funds to WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of
the currently estimated decommissioning costs of the plant at the closing for
the asset swap. WPSC and Wisconsin Power and Light Company, the joint owners
of the plant after the described change in ownership, will be responsible for
the decommissioning of the plant.

Year 2000 Compliance

The Year 2000 issue arises because software programs, computer hardware,
and equipment that have date sensitive software or embedded chips may
recognize a date using "00" as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This
may result in system failures or other disruptions of operations.

WPSC is committed to eliminating or minimizing adverse effects of the
Year 2000 computer compliance issue on its business operations, including the
products and services provided to customers, and to maintaining WPSC's
reputation as an efficient and reliable supplier of energy. WPSC, however, is
unable to guarantee that there will be no adverse effects as a result of the
Year 2000 computer compliance issue because many aspects of compliance are
beyond WPSC's direct contrel.
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WPSC has undertaken a program to assess Year 2000 compliance and to
bring computer systems into compliance by the year 2000. All systems,
including energy production and delivery systems, other embedded systems, and
third party systems of suppliers are being evaluated to identify and resolve
potential problems.

A Year 2000 project plan which includes awareness, inventory and
assessment, remediation, testing, and implementation has been developed. The
formal awareness phase of the Year 2000 project which includes understanding
and communication of the issue to employees, customers, suppliers, and other
affected parties has essentially been completed. The Year 2000 issue has been
communicated to WPSC employees and customers wvia several media. All WPSC
business unit leaders have been made aware of the Year 2000 project plan and
their roles in implementing the plan. Communication and response to Year 2000
inquiries continue.

The inventory and assessment phase which includes identification of all
information and neon-information technelogy systems and of non-compliant
systems, applications, and hardware, has been completed. Action plans for
remediation, which include modifications to bring systems into compliance, and
action plans for testing including validation of compliance have heen
completed.

Modifications of major in-house supported systems to correct Year 2000
preblems have been underway since 1996. WPSC's Information Technology
Department has identified five major systems. BAll of these systems (customer
information, finance, human resources, materials management, and facility
management) are currently Year 2000 compliant.

In addition, non-information technology systems have been identified and
ranked as tc the risk posed by non-compliance. Non-information technology
systems include computer and embedded systems related to WPSC's power plant
operating, system operating, hydraulic, transmission, and other operating
functions. All systems ranked as "critical," "severe," or "high" are
scheduled to be Year 2000 compliant by the end of the first quarter of 19599.

WPSC has hired an external consulting group to monitor the progress of
its Year 2000 compliance activities. The consulting group's responsibilities
include performing a status check on WPSC's ability to achieve Year 2000
compliance.

In addition, WPSC is identifying, contacting, and assessing suppliers
and other business partners for Year 2000 readiness, as these external parties
may have the potential to impact WPSC's Year 2000 readiness. WPSC is also
working to address Year 2000 issues related to all joint ownership facilities.
At the present time, WPSC is not aware of problems that would materially
impact the company's operations. However, WPSC has no means of ensuring that
all third parties will be Year 2000 compliant in a timely manner, and the
inability of these parties to successfully resolve their Year 2000 issues
could have a material impact on company operations.

Due to fewer expenditures for hardware and software than originally
anticipated, the estimate of total Year 2000 project costs has been reduced to
$9.0 million. This estimate is considered reasconable and has been approved
for rate recovery by the PSCW. This estimate includes internal labor costs of
$4.5 million, software replacement costs for non-compliant products of
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$2.0 million, and contract labor costs of $2.5 million. Expenditures for the
Year 2000 project incurred through Decembexr 31, 1998, are %2.2 million. Major
expenditures for hardware, software, and other equipment were made in the
fourth guarter of 1998 and additional expenditures will be made in the first
guarter of 19899.

The failure to correct a material Year 2000 problem could result in an
interruption in, or the failure of, certain normal business activities or
cperations which could materially affect WPSC's results of operations.
However, due to the general uncertainty inherent in the Year 2000 issue, WPSC
is unable to determine at this time whether the consequences of Year 2000
failures will have a material impact on operations. A preliminary
identification of potential risks related to the failure to be in compliance
by the Year 2000 has been made. A better understanding of actual risks will
be developed during the remediation, testing, and contingency planning
processes. The development of WPSC's contingency planning process is intended
to minimize the problems associated with these risks.

WPSC is assessing the potential impact of failure to achieve Year 2000
compliance with respect to each of the following:

- Generation availability

- System moniteoring and control functions

- Ability to restart generators that are out of service for planned or
unplanned outages

- Company-owned vecice/data communications

- Transmission facilities

- System protection

- Critical operating data (i.e., generation plant data)

- Electric and gas distribution systems

- Pipelines' constraints to the supply or pressure of natural gas

"Major support systems

Contingency plans for dealing with Year 2000 issues will be developed by
Bpril 1999 for each application that has been identified as "critical" or
"severe." In addition, a proposal for a '"quick response team" concept has
been drafted, and a process for handling unexpected Year 2000 problems will be
formalized in early 1999. A most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000
gcenario will be identified and addressed by a crisis management team in early
1999. The team plans to conduct a crisis management drill using a Year 2000
scenario.

TRENDS - WPSC
Accounting Standards

WPSC follows SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types
of Regulaticn," and its financial statements reflect the effects of the
different ratemaking principles followed by the various jurisdictions
regulating the utility. For WPSC these include the PSCW, 89% of revenues; the
MPSC, 3% of revenues; and the FERC, 8% of revenues. In addition, Kewaunee is
regulated by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. Environmental matters are
primarily governed by the United States Envircnmental Protection Agency and
the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.
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In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." This
statement requires all derivatives to be measured at fair value and recognized
as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position. The
accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative is dependent upon the
use of the derivative and its resulting designation. Unless specific hedge
accounting c¢riteria are met, changes in the derivative's fair wvalue must be
recognized currently in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after June 15, 1999. WPSC will be adopting the requirements
of this statement on January 1, 2000, and has not yet determined the method of
adoption or its impact. However, the requirements of this statement could
increasge velatility in earnings and other comprehensive income.

In March 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 98-1, "Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use."
This statement requires the capitalization of certain costs related to
software developed or obtained for internal use. The statement is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 1998. WPSC will be adopting the
requirements of this statement in January 19%89. While the total impact of
WPSC's adoption of this statement has not been defermined, WPSC's adoption of
this statement 1is expected to result in a reduction in operating expenses
which will be considered in the ratemaking process. The capitalized scftware
costs will then be charged to amortization expense in future years.

In April 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting
on the Costs of Start-up Activities." This statement provides guidance on the
financial reporting of start-up costs and organization costs. Costs of
start-up activities and organization costs are required £o be expensed as
incurred. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
1998. WPSC will be adopting the requirements of this statement in 1999 and
does not anticipate any material impact to its financial statements.

Utility Restructuring

Electric reliability issues have replaced restructuring and retail
competition issues in Wisconsin, and the PSCW announced that its first
pricrity is to develop the utility infrastructure necessary to assure reliable
electric service and to remcve the barriers to competition at the wholesale
level. In 1998, the PSCW and the major utilities  in Wisconsin, including
WPSC, made legislative proposals to address reliability and restructuring
concerns, including market power, among other issues. This resulted in the
Electric Reliability Bill (1997 Wis. Laws 204) ("Act 204"). Act 204 contains
provisions which relate to the planning and approval by the PSCW of electric
power generation and transmission facilities, the regional management of the
transmission system, new electric power generation, including the ownership
and operaticn of wholesale merchant plants, new electric power transmission
facilities, out-of-state retail electric sales, service standards for electric
generation, transmission, and distribution facilities, and the allowable
assets of public utility holding companies.

On June. 5, 1997, the MPSC ordered utilities under its jurisdiction to
file electric open access plans and related tariffs. The MPSC order called
for generation open access in increments of 2.5% of retail load each year
starting in 1997 and ending in 2001. The MPSC order requires full generation
open access for retail load in 2002. WPSC submitted a plan which provides
retail open access starting in 2000 when the MPSC order requires open access
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for 10% of retail load. The plan then continues on the MPSC schedule
including full open access in 2002.

Sheuld electric deregulation occur such that WPSC would ne longer
qualify to reflect the effects of ratemaking under SFAS No. 71 in its
financial statements, no impairment of significant recorded assets or
reduction in reported equity is anticipated. WPSC does not have any
significant assets which are foreseen as being potentially stranded and no
potential disparity between the depreciable lives of capital assets and those
lives applicable to a competitive environment has been identified. Increased
competition is likely to put pressure on electric utility margins. At this
time, however, management canncot predict the ultimate results of deregulation.

Part of electric utility restructuring involves establishing ISOs. An
IS0 is an independent third party which oversees the operations of
transmission facilities, administers open access transmission tariffs, and
directs power dispatch. WPSC is working with several groups which are
attempting to form ISOs.

Both the PSCW and the MPSC continue to review gas industry
restructuring. In a current docket, the PSCW is addréssing gas restructuring
issues including unbundling of rates, pricing of contracted services in
potential utility bypass situations, and the separation of gas utilities from
their nonregulated gas marketing affiliates. The MPSC is conducting pilot
studies to test the development of competitive retail gas markets in Michigan.

WPSC has historically recovered gas costs through a PGAC. The PSCW has
recently allowed utilities to select either an incentive gas cost recovery
mechanism or a modified one-for-cne mechanism for gas cost recovery. WPSC has
selected the modified one-for-one gas cost recovery plan and implementation of
the new mechanism, which is similar to the recovery raceived under the
existing PGAC, began in January 1998.

Environmental

WPSC continues to investigate the environmental cleanup of eight
manufactured gas plant sites. The cleanup of WPSC's Stevens Point
manufactured gas plant site has been substantially completed with monitoring
of the site continuing. Costs of this cleanup were within the range expected
for this site. Future investigation and cleanup costs for the remaining seven
sites 1s estimated to be in the range of $33.9 million to %$41.0 million.

These estimates may be adjusted in the future contingent upon remedial
technology, regulatory requirements, and experience gained through cleanup
activities.

2n initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 million had been established
with an offsetting regqulatory asset {deferred charge). Of this amount,
approximately $2.7 million has been spent to date. Management believes that
cleanup costs net of insurance recoveries, but not the carrying costs
associated with the cleanup expenditures, will be recoverable in current and
future customer rates. WPSC has received $12.6 million in insurance
recoveries which have been recorded as a reduction in the regulatory asset.

WPSC is in compliance with both the Phase I and II sulfur dioxide and

nitrogen oxide emission limits established by the Federal Clean Air Act
Amendments of 1990. Additional capital expenditures of $1.0 million to
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$2.0 million are projected through 1999 for Wisconsin and federal air quality
compliance. Management believes that all costs incurred for additional
compliance will be recoverable in future customer rates.

In late September 1998, the EPA required certain states, including
Wisconsin to develop plans to reduce the emissions of NOx from sources within
the state by late 2003. On a preliminary basis, WPSC projects potential
capital costs of between $37.0 million and $96.0 million to comply with
possible future regulations. The cumulative incremental annual operating and
maintenance expense associated with these possible future regulations
projected to be incurred by 2010 range from $29.0 million to $106.0 million.
The costs will depend on the state-specific compliance method te be adopted in
the future as well as the effectiveness of the various technologies available
for NOx emission control. Under WPSC's current practice, the capital costs
{as reflected in depreciation expenses) and the annual operating costs are
anticipated to be recovered through future customer rates.

On December 24, 1998, WPSC joined other parties in a petitioen
challenging the EPA's regulations that require Wisconsin to prepare and submit
a NOx implementation plan. On January 22, 1999, the State of Wisceonsin
intervened in the litigation and challenged the geographic scope of the rule
and the regquired timing for implementation of NOx controls within the state.
No decisions have yet been rendered.

Kewaunee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MG&E finalized an arrangement in which
WPSC will acquire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This agreement, the closing
of which is contingent upon regulatory approval and steam generator
replacement scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership
in Kewaunee.

On October 17, 19358, Kewaunee was shut down for a planned maintenance
and refueling outage. Inspection of the plant's twc steam generators showed
that the repairs made in 1997 were holding up well and few additional repairs
were needed. In addition to the inspection and repair of the steam
generators, a major overhaul was performed on the main turbine generator. The
plant was back in operation on November 27, 1998.

IMPACT OF INFLATION - WPSC

WPSC's current financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and report cperating results in terms
of historic cost. They provide a reasonable, objective, and quantifiable
statement of financial results; but they do not evaluate the impact of
inflation. Under rate treatment prescribed by utility regulatory commissions,
WPSC's projected operating costs are recoverable in revenues. Because
forecasts are prepared assuming inflation, the majority of inflationary
effects on normal operating costs are recoverable in rates. However, in these
forecasts, WPSC is only allowed to recover the historic cost of plant via
depreciation.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WP3 RESOURCES CORPORATION

A. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME,
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND RETAINED EARNINGS (1)

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands, except share amounts) 1598 1997 1996
Operating revenussa .

Electric utility $ 543,260 $536,885 $548,701
Gas utility 165,111 211,050 211,357
Nonregulated energy and otherx 355,365 187,862 156,391
Total operating revenues 1,063,736 935,837 916,449

Operating expenses

Electric production fuels 110,809 107,988 105,449
Purchased power 56,447 63,847 55,844
Gas purchased for resale 105,903 147,755 149,388
Nonregulated energy cost of sales 346,663 182,863 155,133
Other operating expenses 172,875 165,982 183,768
Maintenance 52,813 44,325 51,782
Depreciation and decommissiening B6,274 83,441 70,762
Taxes other than income 31,902 31,375 31,871
Total operating expenses 963,692 827,676 B0O3,797
Operating income 100,044 108,161 112,652
Other income and (deductions}
Allowance for equity funds used during construction 173 154 255
Other, net 2,505 11,952 (9¢3)
Total other income and (deductions) 2,678 12,106 (648)
Income before interest expense 102,722 120,287 112,004
Interest on long-term debt 23,887 26,273 25,494
Other interest 4,827 4,510 3,922
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constructien (177} {167) {299}
Total interest expense 28,637 31,016 29,117
Distributions - preferred gecurities of subsidiary trust 1,488 - -
Income before income taxes 72,5397 89,251 82,887
Income taxes 23,445 31,106 27,216
Minority interest (611) (737} {348)
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiaries 3,132 3,133 3,134
Net income 46,631 55,809 52,885
Other comprehenaive income - - -
Compreheﬁsive income 46,631 55,809 52,885
Retained earnings at beginning of year 339,508 333,375 329,150
Cash dividends on common stock (50,585) [49,676) (48,660)
Retained earnings at end of year § 335,154 $339,508 $333,37S
Average shares of common stock 26,511 26,527 26,545
Basic and diluted earnings per average share

of common stock $1.76 $2.10 51.5%9
pividend per share of common stock {2) 1.86 1.92 1.88

{1} These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
{2) Dividend rates are those of WPS Respurces Corporation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

B. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (1)

Utility plant

Electric $1,715,882 $1,685,413
Gas 267,892 251,603
Total 1,983,774 1,937,016
Less - Accumulated depreciation and decommissioning 1,206,123 1,113,142
Total 777,651 823,874
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 171,442 114,108
Construction in progress 42,424 11,776
Nuclear fuel, less accumulated amortization 18,641 19,062
Net utility plant 1,010,158 988,820

Current asseta

cash and equivalents 7,134 8,485
Customey and other receivables, net of reserves 117,206 96,100
Accrued utility revenues \ 34,175 . -30,750
Fogsil fuel, at average cost 13,152 10,622
Gas in storage, at average coOst 20,795 22,080
Materials and supplies, at average cost 21,788 20,761
Prepayments and other 26,462 24,645
Total current assets 240,712 213,453
Regulatory assats 70,041 79,849
Net nonutility and nonregulated plant 41,235 28,188
Penslion assets . 50,018 55,790
Investments and other assets 88,223 69,704
Total 81,510,387 $1,435,804

(1} These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

B. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS CONTINUED (1)

At December 31 (Thousands) 1998 1997
Capitalization

Common stock equity $ 517,190 $ 518,764
Preferred stock of subsidiary with no mandatory redemption 51,200 51,200
Preferred stock of subsidiary with mandatory redemption - 445

Company-cbhligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred
securities of subsidiary trust holding solely WPSR

7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 -
Long-term debt 343,037 347,015
Total capitalization 961,427 917,424

Current liabilities

Long-term debt due within one year 8B4 260
Notes payable 12,703 19,500
Commercial paper 47,590 20,706
Accounts payable 115,450 89,747
Accrued taxes 2,838 10,114
Accrued interest . 7,594 8,711
Other 9,085 12,415
Total current liabilities 196,154 161,453

Long-term liabilities and deferred credits

Accumulated deferred income taxes 122,642 131,197
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 27,150 29,461
Regulatory liabilities 50,474 56,487
Environmental remediation liabilities 40,478 40,848
Other long-term liabilities 112,022 98,924

(1} These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION

C. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION (1)

At December 31 (Thousands, except share amounts} 1998 1937
Common stock equity
Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized;

26,551,405 shares outstandlng $ 26,551 $ 26,551
Premium on capital stock 163,438 163,454
Retained earnings . 335,154 339,508
Shares in deferred compensation trust, 49,477 and 33,430 shares

at an average cost of $30.42 and $2B.44 per

share at Pecember 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively {1,505) (951}
ESOP loan guarantees {6,448) (9,798}
Total common stock equity 517,150 518,764
Preferred stock - Wiscongin Publiec Service Corporation
Cumulative, $100 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized;

with ne mandatory redemptlon

Series Shares Outstanding
5.00% 132,000 13,200 13,200
5.04% a0, 000 3,000 3,000
5.08% 50,000 5,000 5,000
6.76% 150,000 15,000 15,000
6.88% 150,000 15,000 15,000
Total preferred stock of subaidiary with no mandatory redemption 51,200 81,200
Preferred stock -~ nger Peninsula Power Company
Cumulative redeemab $100 par value,
300,000 shares authorized (issuable in series),
issued and outstanding
Shares Outstanding
Series 1998 1997
5.25% - 853 - 85
4.70% - 3,600 - 360
Total preferred stock of subpidiary with mandatory redemption - 445
Company-obligated mandatoriug redeemable trust
Ereferred securities of subsidiary trust
olding solely WEPSR 7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 -
Long-term debt . . . . X
First mortgage bonds - Wisconsin Public Sexvice Corporation
Series Year Due
5-1/4% 1998 - 50,000
7.30% 2002 50,000 50,000
6.80% 2003 50,000 50,000
6-1/8% 2005 9,075 9,075
6.90% 2013 22,000 22,000
8.80% 2021 53,100 53,100
7-1/8% 2023 50,000 50,000
6.08% 2028 50,000 -
First mortgage bonds - Upper Peninsula Power Company
Series Year Due
7.94% 2003 15,000 15,000
10.0% 2008 6,000 6,000
9.32% 2021 18,000 18,000
Installment sales contract for air polluticn contrel
equipment - Upger Peninsula Power Company
Texm Bon Year Due
6.90% 1999 120 230
Total 323,285 323,405
Unamortized discount and premium on bonds, net (817) (890)
Total first mortgage bhonds 322,478 322,515
ESOP loan guarantees 6,448 9,798
Notes payable to bank, secured by nonregulated plant 10,943 19,710
Senior secured note 3,886 4,037
Other long-term debt 166 215
Total long-term debt 343,921 347,275
Less amounts due within one year (884) (260}
Net long-term debt 343,037 347,015
Total capitalizatiom $961,227 $517,424

(1) These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION

D. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (1)

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands) 19298 1997 199¢

Cash flows from operating activities
Net in¢ome § 46,631 S 55, 80% S 52,885

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from
operating activities

Depreciation and decommissioning 86,274 83,441 70,762
Bmortization of nuclear fuel and ather 16,257 14,665 28,691

Deferred income taxes (11,940) (6,220} (7,579)
Investment tax credit restored (2,311) (1,949) (1,961}
Allowance for egquity funds used during construction {173) (154) [255)
Pension income (9,66%) {12,548) {12,953}
Postretirement liability 4,491 6,424 8,047

Other, net {9,220} (7,535) 5,329

Changes in

Customer and other receivables (21,106) 17,343 (27,316)
Accrued utility revenues {3,425) 4,636 2,200

Fossil fuel inventory {2,530} (2,212) 477

Gas in storage 1,285 (2,093} {9,911)
Accounts payable 25,743 (10,794} 30,184

Accrued taxes (7,276} 1,937 (594)
Environmental remediation insurance recovery - 12,374 200

Miscellaneous current and accrued liabilities (4,004) (3,373} (4,352)
Gas refunds 684 (318} (6,175)
Net cash from operating activities 109,711 149,533 127,679

=== =--S===SSSSoo=oSS SO RO SO ERcEM RN ST SSSS oSS SSSSo =SS =SSCSoS oSS oSS SREssTso—SSSSXNMsnm——========

Cash flows from (used for) investing activities
Construction of utility plant and nuclear fuel

expenditures (94,734) (58,258) (84,750}
Purchase of other property and eguipment {16,075) {g,057) (29,441}
Decommissioning funding {17,239) {16,059) (8,978}
Purchase of investments and acquisitions - - (728)
Other 4,046 5,088 {270}
Net cash used for investing activities {124,002) (77,288) {124,167)

cash flows from (used for) financing activities

Issuvance of long-term debt 50,233 1,789 15,296
Redemption of long-term debt {53,660} - (6,900)
Issuance of notes payable 196,353 97,260 145,525
Redemption of notes payable {203,150) (109,360) (129,625)
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable trust

preferred securities 50,000 - -
Issuance of commercial paper 2,157,308 700,540 345,339
Redemption of commercial paper {2,130,924) (711,184, (325, 489)
Cash dividends on common stock {50,985} {49,698) {48,683)
Other {2,745) {1,139} {715)

Cash paid during year fer

Interest, less amount capitalized ’ s 26,879 5 26,669 5 26,146
Income taxes 44,553 17,366 34,210
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 3,132 3,133 3,134

{1) These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION AND
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

E. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Nature of Operations--WPS Resources Corporation {("WPSR") is a
holding company. Approximately 67% of WPSR's 1998 revenues, 92%
of WPSR's assets, and all of its 1998 net income were derived from
WPSR's utility subsidiaries. WPSR's primary wholly-owned
subsidiary, Wisconsin Public Service Corporation ("WPSC"), is an
electric and gas utility engaged in the supply and distribution of
electric power and natural gas in its franchised service
territory. WPSR's other wholly-owned utility subsidiary,

Upper Peninsula Power Company ("UPPCO"), is an electric utility
engaged in the supply and distribution of electric energy in the
Upper Peninsula of Michigan. WPSR also provides gas and electric
marketing and energy-related services in nonregulated markets
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, WPS Energy Services, Inc.
("ESI"). WPS Power Development, Inc. ("PDI"}, another
wholly-owned subsidiary of WPSR, participates in the development
of electric generation projects, provides service to the electric
power generation industry, and owns a two-thirds interest in a
merchant generating plant, the Stoneman Power Plant {"Stcneman").
PDI also has signed agreements to purchase hydro, steam, and
diesel generation facilities from Maine Public Service Company
pending approval by the Maine Public Service Commission. WPSR's
other nonregulated subsidiaries include Upper Peninsula Building
Development Company and Penvest, Inc. In January 1999, WPSR
formed a new subsidiary, WPS Resources Capital Corporaticn, which
will obtain the financing for most nonregulated projects.

Effective September 29, 1398, Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation
{"UPEN") merged with and into WPSR, and UPPCO, UPEN's major
subsidiary, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of WPSR. The
consolidated financial statements have been restated to give
effect to the merger as if the companies had been combined in the
earliest period presented. See Note 12 for additicnal information
related to the merger.

The term "utility" refers to the regulated activities of WPSC and
UPPCC, while the term "nonutility" refers to the activities of
WPSC and UPPCO which are not regulated. The term "nonregulated"
refers to activities other than those of WPSC and UPPCO.

Use of Estimates--The preparation of WPSR's financial statements
is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Management may make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
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during the reporting pexriod. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(e) Acquigitions and Nonregulated Invegtments--At ESI, the price paid
in excess of the fair value of identifiabie assets acquired in
1995 is being amortized over a five-year period.

{d) Conseclidation--WPSR consolidates all majoxity-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated.

(e) Price Risk Management Activities--WPSR has not experienced

significant price risk activities at its utility operaticns which
are not recoverable through customer rates, however, price risk is
experienced at ESI.

ESTI utilizes derivative financial and commodity instruments
(*derivatives"), including futures and forward contracts, to
reduce market risk associated with fluctuations in the price of
natural gas and electricity sold under firm commitments with
certain of its customers. ESI also utilizes derivatives,
including price swap agreements, call and put option centracts,
and futures and forward contracts, to manage market risk
associated with a portion of its anticipated supply requirements.
In addition, ESI utilizes derivatives, within specified
guidelines, for trading purposes.

Gains or losses on derivatives associated with firm commitments
are recognized as adjustments to the cost of sales or to revenues
when the related transactions affect earnings. Gains and losses
on derivatives associated with forecasted transactions are
recognized when such forecasted transactions affect earnings. At
December 31, 1998, $7.2 million in losses related to firm
commitments and forecasted transactions were deferred. If it is
no longer probable that a forecasted transaction will ocecur, any
gain or loss on the derivative instrument as of such date is
immediately recognized in earnings. Derivatives for trading
purposes are marked to market each accounting period, and gains
and losses are recognized as a component of other income at that
time. In 1998 and 1997, trading losses of $6.1 million and

$1.4 million, respectively, were recognized.

At December 31, 1998, ESI had outstanding 22.0 million notional
dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option agreements and
1.3 million notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap
agreements for purposes of managing market risk. The financial
instruments outstanding at December 31, 1998 expire at various
times through August 2000. ESI has certain gas sales commitments
through August 2000 with a range of sale prices from $2.36 to
$2.38 per dekatherm and a range of associated gas purchase costs
of $2.29 to $2.31 per dekatherm.

a5 of December 31, 1998, the fair value of trading instruments
included assets of $0.7 million. Except for a minimal level of
electric trading instruments, financial instruments used for
trading in 1998 and 1997 were natural gas derivatives. At
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(£)

(g}

{h)

December 31, 1998, ESI had cutstanding 13.6 million notional
dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option agreements and
1.6 million notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap
agreements for trading purposes.

Utility Plant--Utility plant is stated at the original cost of
construction which includes an allowance for funds used during
construction ("AFUDC"). BApproximately 50% of WPSC's retail
jurisdictional construction work in progress ("CWIP") expenditures
are subject to AFUDC using a rate based on WPSC's overall cost of
capital. Major new generating facilities earn AFUDC on total CWIP
expenditures. For 1998, WPSC's AFUDC retail rate was
approximately 10.4%.

AFUDC is recorded on WPSC's wholesale jurisdictional electric CWIP
at debt and equity percentages specified in the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission ("FERC") Uniform System of Accounts. For
1998, WPSC's AFUDC wholesale rate was approximately 5.5%.

UPPCO has not had significant construction projects in recent
years and, therefore, has not capitalized AFUDC.

Substantially all of WPSC's and UPPCO's utility plant assets are
subject to first mortgage liens.

Property Additions, Maintenance, and Retirements of Utility
Plant--The cost of renewals and betterments of units of property
(as distinguished from minor items of property) is capitalized as
an addition to the utility plant accounts. Except for land, no
gain or loss is recognized in connection with ordinary retirements
of utility property units. The cost of units of property retired,
sold, or otherwise disposed of, plus removal cost, less salvage,
are charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.
Maintenance and repair costs and replacement and renewal costs
associated with items not qualifying as units of property are
generally charged to operating expense.

Nonutility property and nonregulated property follow a similar
policy except that gains and losses are recognized in connection
with retirements.

Depraeciation--Straight-line composite depreciation expense is
recorded over the estimated useful life of utility property and
includes estimated salvage and cost of removal. Except for the
Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant ("Kewaunee"), WPSC's rates approved
by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin ("PSCW") cn

January 1, 1994, and by the Michigan Public Service Commission
{"MPSC") on January 1, 1994 remained in effect through 1998. New
rates have been approved by the PSCW to be effective January 1,
1999. The estimated effect of the new rates on 1999 depreciation
expense is a decrease of approximately $1.0 million.

UPPCO's depreciation rates approved by the MPSC on January 1, 1994
remain in effect through 2001. A new depreciation study will be
filed with the MPSC in late 2000, with new rates effective
January 1, 2002.
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(1)

(i)

Depreciation expense includes accruals for nuclear decommissioning
which are not included in the annual composite rates shown below.
An explanation of this item is included in Note 1{k).

Annual composite
depreciation rates

Electric 3.57% 3.55% 3.36%
Gas 3.26% 3.26% 3.35%
WPSC

Annual composite

depreciation rates
Electric 3.55% 3.52% 3.33%
Gas 3.26% 3.26% 3.35%

Nonutility property and nonregulated property are depreciated
using straight-line depreciation. Most assets have depreciation
lives ranging from five to ten years.

Property at Stoneman is depreciated using various lives, certain
of which are as long as 40 years.

Depreciation for Kewaunee is presently being accrued based on a
1997 PSCW orxrder allowing for full cost recovery of the remaining
unrecovered investment in Kewaunee by the end of 2002. The PSCW
depreciation rate order authorizing new rates for 1999 also
includes a change in methodology for recovery of Kewaunee
investment after new steam generators have been installed,
estimated to be mid-year 2000. At that time, the unrecovered
basis of Kewaunee, including the new steam generators, will be
recovered over an 8.5 year remaining life through 2008 using the
sum-of -the-years depreciation method.

Impairment--WPSR follows the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed of." SFAS No. 121 requires that long-lived assets and
certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment
whenever circumstances indicate that the carrying amocunt of an
asset may not be recoverable. Impairment losses resulting from
application of this statement are reported in income in the period
in which the recognition criteria are first applied and met. This
statement does not have a material impact on the current carrying
amount of WPSR's assets.

Nuclear Fuel--The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to electric
production fuel expense based on the guantity of heat produced for
the generation of electric energy by Kewaunee. Costs amortized to
electric fuel expense (which assume no salvage values for uranium
and pluteonium) include an amount for ultimate disposal and are
recovered through current customer rates. As required by the
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(k)

Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, a contract has been signed with
the United States Department of Energy ("DOE")} for the ultimate
storage of the fuel; and quarterly payments, based on generation,
are made to the DOE for fuel storage. Interim storage space for
spent nuclear fuel is provided at Kewaunee, and expenses
associated with this storage are recognized as current operating
costs. Currently, there is on-site storage capacity for spent
fuel through the year 2013. BAs of December 31, 1998 and 1997, the
accumilated provisgions for nuclear fuel totaled $156.6 million and
$151.2 million, respectively.

Nuclear Decommissioning--Nuclear decommissioning costs to date
have been accrued over the estimated service life of Kewaunee,
recovered currently from customers in rates, and deposited in
external trusts. Such costs totaled $17.2 willion in 1998,

$16.1 million in 1997, and %$5.0 million in 1996. The increase in
1997 was the result of the PSCW's approval of the acceleration of
Kewaunee depreciation and decommissioning funding as described in
Note 1 (h}.

Based on the standard cost escalation assumptions required by a
July 1994 PSCW order, the undiscounted amount of WPSC's
decommissioning costs forecasted to be expended between the years
2003 and 2039 is $614.0 million under the revised funding plan
which became effective in 19%7. In developing the funding plan, a
long-term after-tax earnings rate of approximately 5.5% was
assumed.

WPSC's share of Kewaunee decommissioning is estimated to be
$192.6 million in current dollars based on a site-specific study.
The study, which was performed in 1992, uses immediate
dismantlement as the method of decommissioning beginning after a
dormant period extending from 2002 until 2015. BAs of December 31,
1998, the market wvalue of the external nuclear decommissioning
trusts totaled 3$171.4 million. A new site-specific study, which
assumed shutdown in 2013, was completed during 1998 with WPSC's
share of Kewaunee decommissioning estimated to be $190.7 willion.
Based on that study, WPSC's contributions for 1999 under the 1999
PSCW rate order will be $8.3 million.

Depreciation expense includes future decommissioning costs
collected in customer rates and an offsetting charge for earnings
from external trusts. As of December 31, 1998, the accumulated
provision for depreciation and decommissioning included
accumulated provisions for decommissioning totaling

$171.4 million. Realized trust earnings totaled $3.3 million,'
$3.7 million, and $3.0 million, and unrealized trust earnings
totaled $16.8 million, $13.8 million, and $6.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively.
Unrealized gains, net of tax, in external trusts are reflected as
an increase to the decommissioning reserve, since decommissioning
expense will be recognized as the gains are realized, in
accordance with regulatory requirements.

Investments in the nuclear decommissioning trusts are recorded at
market value. The investments classified as utility plant are
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(1)

(m)

presented net of related income tax effects on unrealized gains
and represent the amount of assets available to accomplish
decommissioning. The nonqualified trust investments designated to
pay income taxes when unrealized gains become realized are
classified as other assets. An offsetting regulatory liability
reflects the expected reduction in future rates as unrealized
gains in the nongualified trust are realized.

Cash and Equivalents--WPSR considers shori-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Revenue and Customer Receivables--WPSR accrues revenues related to
electric and gas service, including estimated amounts for service
rendered but not billed.

Automatic fuel adjustment clauses are used for FERC
wholesale-electric and MPSC retail-electric portions of WPSC's and
UPPCO's businesses.

The PSCW retail-electric portion of WPSC's business uses a "cost
variance range" approach. This range is based on a gpecific
estimated fuel cost for the forecast year., If WPSC's actual fuel
costs fall outside this range, a hearing may be held and an
adjustment to future rates may result. WPSC has a purchased gas
adjustment clause (“PGAC") which allows it to pass changes in the
cost of gas purchased from its suppliers on to system gas
customers, subject to PSCW and MPSC review. The continued use of
a PGAC for all Wisconsin utilities has been reexamined by the
PSCW, and utilities were given the choice between continuing under
a modified cne-for-one gas cost recovery plan or switching to an
incentive gas cost recovery mechanism. The PSCW has approved a
modified one-for-one gas cost recovery plan for WPSC which is
similar to the gas cost recovery under the existing PGAC.
Implementation of the modified one-for-one gas cost recovery plan
began in January 1999. i

Billings to UPPCO's customers under MPSC jurisdiction include base
rate charges and a power supply cost recovery ("PSCR") factor.
Approximately 40% of UPPCO's operating expense is power supply
costs. UPPCO receives MPSC approval each year to recover
projected power supply costs by establishment of PSCR factors.
These factors are subject to annual reconciliation to actual costs
and permit 100% recovery of allowed power supply costs. Any over
or under recovery is deferred on UPPCO's balance sheet, and such
deferrals are relieved as refunds or additional billings are made.

WPSC and UPPCO are required to provide service and grant credit to
customers within their service territories and are precluded from
discontinuing service to residential customers during certain
periods of the year. WPSC and UPPCO continually review their
customers' credit-worthiness and obtain deposits or refund
deposits accordingly.

Approximately 11% of WPSR's total revenues are from companies in
the paper products industry.
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{n) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities--WPSC and UPPCO are subject to
the provisions of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation." Regulatory assets represent
probable future revenue associated with certain incurred costs
which will be recovered from customers through the ratemaking
process. Regulatory liabilities represent costs previously
collected that are refundable in future customer rates. The
following regulatory assets and liabilities were reflected in the
Conscolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31:

Regulatory assets

Demand-side management expenditures $23,860 531,360
Environmental remediation costs

{net of insurance recoveries) 30,285 29,882
Coal and rail contract buy-out costs 616 2,293
Debt refinancing costs 1,810 2,078
Enrichment facility fee 5,056 5,544
Kewaunee steam generator

resleeving costs - 3,577
Other 8,414 5,115
Total $70,041 579,849

Regulatory liabilities

Income tax related items $29,8617 $32,596
Pensions - 2,443
Conservation costs {2,866) 6,491
Unrealized gain on decommissioning

trust 16,397 11,348
Kewaunee deferred revenue 4,009 2,518
Deferred gain on emission

allowance sales 3,304 1,382
Other 13 (261)
Total $50,474 $56,487
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Regulatory assets

Demand-side management expenditures $23,860 531,360
Environmental remediation costs

(net of insurance recoveries) 25,021 29,249
Coal and rail contract buy-out costs 616 2,293
Debt refinancing costs 1,623 1,859
Enrichment facility fee 5,056 5,544
Kewaunee steam generator

resleeving costs - 3,577
Other B,15% 4,662
Total $68,335 $78,544

Regulatory liabilities

Income tax related items $22,734 $26,119
Pensions - 2,443
Conservation costs {(2,866) 6,491
Unrealized gain on decommissioning

trust 16,397 11,348
Kewaunee deferred revenue 4,009 2,518
Deferred gain on emission

allowance sales 3,304 1,352
Other 13 8
Total $43,591 $50,279

As of December 31, 1998, the majority of WPSC's regulatory assets
are being recovered through rates charged to customers over
periods ranging from two to ten years. Reécovery periods for
UPPCO's regulatory assets are up to 26 years. Carrying costs for
all WPSC's regulatory assets are being recovered except for those
associated with environmental costs. No carrying costs are being
recovered for UPPCO's regulatory assets. Based on prior and
current rate treatment of such costs, management believes it is
probable that WPSC and UPPCO will continue to recover from
ratepayers the regulatory assets described above.

See Notes 8 and 9 for specific information on pension and deferred
tax regulatory liabilities. See Note 10 for information on
envircnmental remediation deferred costs.

{o) Investments and Other Assmets--Investments include ownership
interests in Wisconsin River Power Company and Wisconsin Valley
Improvement Company. Income related to these investments is
included in other income and deductions using the eguity method of
accounting. Other assets include operating deposits for
jointly-owned plants, the cash surrender value of life insurance
policies, the long-term portion of energy conservation loans to
customers, and the decommissioning trust investments designated
for payment of income taxes.
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{p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(v)

Reclassifications--Certain prior year financial statement amounts
have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Retirement of Debt--Historically, gains or losses resulting from
the settlement of long-term utility debt obligations have been
deferred and amortized concurrent with rate recovery as required
by regulators.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities--In June 1958, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 133,
"Accounting for Perivative Instruments and Hedging Activities."
This statement requires all derivatives to be measured at fair
value and recognized as either assets or liabilities in the
statement of financial position. The accounting for changes in
the fair value of a derivative is dependent upon the use of the
derivative and its resulting designation. Unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met, changes in the derivative's fair
value must be recognized currently in earnings. This statement is
effective for fiscal periocds beginning after June 15, 1999. WPSR
will be adopting the requirements of this statement on

January 1, 2000, and has not yet determined the method of adoption
or its impact. However, the requirements of this statement could
increase volatility in earnings and other comprehensive income.

Internally-Developed Software--In March 1998, the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("AICPA"} issued
Statement of Position 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use." This statement
requires the capitalization of certain costs related to software
developed or obtained for internal use. The statement is
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 1998. WPSR
will be adopting the requirements of this statement in 1999.
While the total impact of WPSR's adoption of this statement has
not been determined, WPSC's adoption of this statement is expected
to result in a reduction in operating expenses, which has been
substantially considered in the ratemaking process. The
capitalized software costs will then be amortized to operating
expense in future vears.

Costs of Start-up Activities--In April 1998, the AICPA issued
Statement of Position 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-up
Activities." This statement provides guidance on the financial
reporting of start-up costs and ocrganization costs. Costs of
start-up activities and organization costs. are regquired to be
expensed as incurred. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 1998, WPSR will be adopting the
requirements of this statement in 1999 and does not anticipate any
material impact to its financial statements.
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NOTE 2--JOINTLY-OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES

Information regarding WPSC's share of major jointly-owned electric
generating facilities in service at December 31, 1998 is set forth

below:

WPSC (Thousands, West Marinette Columbia Edgewater

except for percentages) Unit No. 33 Enerqgy Center Unit No. 4 Kewaunee
Ownership 68% 31.8% 31.8% 41.2%
Plant capacity (Megawatts) 83.5 335.2 104.9 221.0
Utility plant in service $15,917 $112,307 $22,542 $133,099
Accumulated depreciation § 2,774 $ 63,592 $13,504 $ 97,93Q
In-service date 1993 1975 and 1978 1969 1574

WPSC's share of direct expenses for these plants is included in the
corresponding operating expenses in the consolidated statements of

income. WPSC has supplied its own financing for all jointly-owned

projects.

Upon cleosing of an agreement with Madison Gas and Electric Company
{"MG&E")}, which is contingent upon steam generator replacement, WPSC
will acquire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This will increase WPSC's
ownership in Kewaunee to 59.0%. See Note 10 for additional information
regarding Kewaunee.

NOTE 3--SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT

To provide short-term borrowing flexibility and security for commercial
paper outstanding, WPSR and its subsidiaries maintain bank lines of
credit. Most of these lines of credit require a fee.

The information in the table below relates to short-term debt and lines
of credit for the years indicated:

(Thousands, except for percentages) 1858 1997 1996

As of end of year

Commercial paper outstanding 547,590 520,706 $31,350
Average discount rate on outstanding

commercial paper 4._84% 6.55% 5.73%
Notes payable outstanding $12,703 $19,500 $31,600
Average interest rate on notes payable 5.88% 7.06% 6.16%
Available lines of credit 562,102 $27,500 $55,900

For the year

Maximum amount of short-term debt $102,033 $80,017 $75,250
Average amount of short-term debt $50,935 $37,609 $31,254
Average interest rate on short-term debt 5.93% 6.06% 5.18%

NOTE 4--LONG-TERM DEBT

First mortgage bonds are secured by utility plant assets. In July 1998,
WPSC retired the entire $50.0 million issue of the 5-1/4% First Mortgage
Bonds. In December 1938, WPSC issued $50.0 million of 6.08% senior

notes due in 2028 secured by a pledge of first mortgage bonds. The 1998
notes become unsecured if WPSC were to call all of its outstanding first
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mortgage bonds. These notes would then be secured by WPSC's general
credit and not by WPSC's assets.

As of December 31, 1998, $8.1 million has been drawn against PDI's
revolving credit note of $11.5 million which is secured by the assets of
Stoneman. An additional $3.3 million, which is tc be paid in the vear
2000, has been committed against this note. The note, which is
guaranteed by WPSR, is due in the year 2000 or when the plant is
converted to a 200-megawatt to 500-megawatt gas-fired combined cycle
facility.

NOTE 5--COMPANY-OBLIGATED MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES
OF SUBSIDIARY TRUST

On July 30, 1998, WPSR Capital Trust I ("Trust"), a Delaware business
trust of which WPSR owns all of the outstanding trust common
securities, issued $50.0 million of trust preferred securities to the
public. The sole asset of the Trust is $51.5 million principal amount
of subordinated debentures due June 3¢, 2038, and bearing interest at
7.0% per annum, issued by WPSR. The terms and interest payments on
these debentures correspond to the terms and distributions on the trust
preferred securities. The Trust has been consolidated into the WBSR
financial statements. The interest payments are reflected as
distributions - preferred securities of subsidiary trust in the
Consolidated Statement of Income and are tax deductible by WPSR. WPSR
may elect to defer interest payments on the debentures for a period up
to 20 consecutive quarters, causing distributions on the trust preferred
securities to be deferred as well.

In case of a deferral, interest and distributions will continue to
accrue, along with guarterly compounding interest on the deferred
amounts. WPSR may redeem all or a portion of the debentures after
July 30, 2003, requiring an equal amount of trust securities to be
redeemed at face value plus accrued and unpaid distributions. WPSR has
entered into a limited guarantee of payment of distributions, redemption
payments, and payments in liguidation with respect to the trust
preferred securities. This guarantee, when considered together with
WPSR's obligations under the related debentures and indenture and the
applicable declaration of trust, provide a full and unconditional
guarantee by WPSR of amounts due on the ocutstanding trust preferred
securities.

NOTE 6--COMMON EQUITY

Under WPSR's Stock Investment Plan, WPSR's common stock has been
purchased in the open market to satisfy shareholder and employee
purchase requirements. Beginning in January 1999, WPSR began issuing
new shares for the Stock Investment Plan.

In December 1996, WPSR adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan designed to
enhance the ability of the Board of Directors to protect shareholders
and WPSR if efforts are made to gain control of WPSR in a manner that is
not in the best interests of WPSR and its shareholders. The plan gives
~existing shareholders, under certain circumstances, the right to
purchase stock at a discounted price. The rights expire on December 11,
2006.
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At December 31, 1998, WPSR had $328.5 million of retained earnings
available for dividends. WPSC is restricted by a PSCW order to paying
normal common stock dividends of no more than 105.0% of the previous
vear's common stock dividend without PSCW approval. Alsc, Wisconsin law
prohibits WPSC from making loans to WPSR and its subsidiaries and from
guaranteeing their obligations.

UPPCO's indentures relating to first mortgage bends contain certain
limitations on the payment of cash dividends on common stock. Under the
most restrictive of these provisions, approximateiy $7.9 million of
consolidated retained earnings were available at December 31, 1998, for
the payment of common stock cash dividends by UPPCO.

WPSR made a $34.0 million equity infusion into WPSC during the second
quarter of 1998. 1In December 1998, WPSC paid to WPSR a special common
dividend of $20.0 million. The special dividend allowed WPSC's average
common equity capitalization ratio to remain at approximately 54.0%, the
level approved by the PSCW for ratemaking.

NOTE 7--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable
to estimate guch value:

Cash, Short-Term Investments, Energy Conservation Loans, Notes Payable,
and Outstanding Commercial Paper: The carrying amount approximates fair
value due to the short maturity of those investments and obligations.

Nuclear Decommissioning Trusts: The value of WPSC's nuclear
decommissioning trust investments is recorded at market value.

Long-Term Debt, Preferred Stock, and ESOP Loan Juarantees: The fair
value of WPSC's long-term debt, preferred stock, and ESOP loan
guarantees is estimated based on the guoted market price for the same or
similar issues or on the current rates offered to WPSC for debt of the
same remaining maturity.
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The estimated fair values of WPSR's financial instruments as of
December 31 were:

{Thousands) 1998 1997
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,134 $ 7,134 $ B,a95 $ 8,495
Energy congservation loans 7,810 7,810 7,195 7,195
Nuclear decommissioning
trusts - utility plant 171,442 171,442 134,108 134,108
Nuclear decommissioning
trusts - other assets 16,397 16,397 11, 348 11,348
Notes payable 12,703 12,703 13,500 19,500
Commercial paper 47,580 47,590 20,706 20,706
ESOP loan guarantees 6,448 6,702 S,7498 10,243
Trust preferred securities 50,000 50,250 - -
Long-term debt 337,473 366,038 337,477 360,506
Preferred stock 51,200 53,026 51,645 49,040
Gas commodity instruments 41,800 34,600 504 436
NOTE 8--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

WPSC and UPPCO have non-contributory retirement plans covering
substantially all employees under which annual contributions may be made
to an irrevocable trust established to provide retired employvees with a
monthly payment i1if conditions relating te age and length of service have
been met. The WPSC pension plans are fully funded, and no contributions
were made in 1998, 1997, or 1996. The WPSC and UPPCO pension plans and
other benefit plans were merged effective December 31, 1998. The net
accrued benefit liability assumed by WPSC at December 31, 1998 was

$5.7 million.

WPSC and UPPCO also currently offer medical, dental, and life insurance
benefits to employees, retirees, and their dependents. The expenses for
active employees are expensed as incurred. The company funds these
benefits through irrevocable trusts as allcowed for income tax purposes.
These funded amounts have been expensed and recovered through customer
rates. The non-administrative plan is a collectively bargained plan
and, therefore, is tax exempt. The investments in the trust covering
administrative employees are subject to federal unrelated business
income taxes at a 39.6% tax rate.

All pension costs and postretirement plan costs are accounted for under
SFAS Nos. 87 and 106, respectively, which require the cost of these
benefits to be accrued as expense over the period in which the employee
renders service. The transition obligation for current and future
retirees is recognized over 20 years beginning in 1993.

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the
plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets over the three
one-year periods ending December 31, 19898, 1997, and 1996, and a
statement of the funded status as of December 31, of each year:
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Obiigation at January 1 $350,66%9 $299,587 $301, 840
Service cost 9,014 7,019 7,404
Interest cost 25,264 22,919 22,493
Participant. contributions - - -
Plan amendments 5,762 7,224 -
Actuarial (gain) loss 26,085 28,989 (17,296}
Acquisitions - - -
Benefit payments {17,430) (15,911} (14,854)
Curtailments - 842 -
Obligation at December 31 $399,364 $350,669 $299,587

Obligation at January 1 $127,705 $116,354 $123,665
Service cost . 3,874 3,500 3,816
Interest cost 9,126 9,496 9,594
Participant contributicns - - -
Plan amendments - 6,803 -
Actuarial (gain} loss 2,599 34 {16,418)
Acquisitions . - - -
Benefit payments (4,489 (4,174} (4,303)
Curtailments - (4,308} -
Obligation at December 31 $138,815 £127,705 $116,354
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Fair value of plan assets at January 1 537,756 $470,176 5431,130

Actual return on plan assets 89,618 79,731 51,833
Acquisitions - - -
Employer contributions 539 3,783 2,067
Participant contributions - - -
Plan expenses paid - {23) -
Benefit payments (17,430} (15,911) (14,854}
Fair_ value of plan assets at December 3t $610,483 $537,756 $470,176
Funded status at December 31 §211,119 $187,087 $170,589
Unrecognized transition (asset) obligation (13,467} (17,043) (20,620}
Unrecognized prior-service cost 19,33¢ 15,523 9,487
Unrecognized (gain} loss {156,972} {132,227) {116,172}
Net amount reccognized $ 60,016 § 53,340 $ 43,264

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 §121, 930 $104, 367 $ 88,950
Actual return on plan assets 21,161 20,376 18,198
Acquisitions - - -
Employer contributions 1,238 1,361 1,522
Participant contributions - - -
Plan expenses paid - - -
Benefit payments {4,489) (4,174) {4,303)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 5139, 841 $121, 930 $104,367
Funded status at December 31 $ 1,026 $ (5,776) $(11,986)
Unrecognized transition {asset} obligation 39,434 42,286 47,663
Unrecognized prior-service cost 4,259 4,583 {1,897)
Unrecognized (gain) loss {87,011} {78,498) (64,432}
Net amount recognized $(42,292) $(37,403) $(30,852)

The net amounts recognized for 1997 and 1996 pension benefits have been
reduced for an additicnal unrecognized regulatory liability related to
pension costs. The entire regulatory liability was recognized by
year-end 1998.

The following table provides the amounts recognized .in the statement of
financial position as of December 31 of each year:
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Prepaid benefit cost $ 60,016 $ 52,867 $ 43,877

Accrued benefit liability - {2,525} (2,208)
Intangible asset - 2,998 1,595
Accumulated other income - - -
Net amount recognized $ 60,016 $ 53,340 % 43,264

Prepaid benefit cost $ - $ - $ -
Accrued benefit liability {(42,292) (37,403) (30,6582)
Intangible asset - - -
Accumulated other income - - -
Net amount recognized 5(42,292) 5(37,403) $(30,652)

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost
for the plans for fiscal years 1998, 1997, and 1996:

Service cost $ 9,014 $ 7,019 $ 7,404
Interest cost = 25,264 22,919 22,493
Expected return on plan assets {38,282) {33,883) {33, 283)
Amortization of transition (asset} obligation (3,576} (3,576} (3,578)
Amortization of prior-service cost 1,550 921 1,023
Amortization of net {gain) loss (507} (781) (122}
Net periodic bhenefit cost 5 (6,137} $ (7,381 $ (6,061}
Curtailment (gain) loss - 1,088 -

Service cost $ 3,874 $ 3,500 5 3,816
Interest cost 9,126 9,496 9,594
Expected return on plan assets {7,356) {6,378) (6,076)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation 2,852 3,010 3,010
Amortization of prior-service cost 324 324 [131)
Amortization of net (gain) loss (2,692} (2,196} {670}
Net periodic benefit cost § 6,128 $ 7,756 5 9,543
Curtailment {gain) loss - 356 -
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailments $ 6,128 $ 8,112 $ 9,543

Under a contract with Wisconsin Electric Power Company ("WEPCO"), UPPCO
had operated WEPCO's Presque Isle Power Plant in Michigan since 1988.
This contract terminated on December 31, 1997, and all emplovees at the
plant became employees of WEPCC. 1In 1997, UPPCO recognized a

$1.1 million pension curtailment loss and a $0.4 million other benefit
plan curtailment loss frowm the termination of the Presque Isle Power
Plant operating agreement.

The assumptions used in the measurement of WPSE's benefit obligation are
shown in the following table:
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Discount rate 6.75% T.25% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets - B.75% 8.75% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%

Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

The assumed health care cost trend rates for 19%8 are 8.0% for medical
and 7.5% for dental, both decreasing to 5.0% by the year 2006. Assumed
health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts
reported for the health care plans. A 1.0% change in assumed health
care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1.0% 1.0%
{Thousands) Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest
cost components of net periodic
postretirement health care benefit cost $ 2,521 $ (1,955)
Effect on the health care component
"of the accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation $24,684 5(19,591)

WPSC has a leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust ("ES0OP")
that held 1,955,468 shares of WPSR common stock (market value of
approximately $68.9 million} at December 31, 1998. At that date, the
ESOP also had one loan guaranteed by WPSC and secured by common stock.
Principal and interest on the loan are to be paid using contributions
from WPSC and dividends on WPSR common stock held by the ESOP. Shares
in the ESOP are allocated tc participants as the loan is repaid. Tax
benefits from dividends paid to the ESOP are recognized as a reduction
in WPSC's cost of providing service to customers. The PSCW has allowed
WPSC to include in cost of service an additional employer contribution
to the plan.- The net effect of the tax benefits and of the employer
contribution is an approximately equal sharing of the tax benefits of
the program between customers and emplovees.

NOTE 9--INCOME TAXES

WPSR accounts for income taxes using the liability method as prescribed
by SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." Under the liability
method, deferred income tax liabilities are established for all
temporary differences in the bock and tax bases of. assets and
liabilities based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the
periods in which the taxes become payable. Taxes provided in prior
vears at rates greater than current rates are being refunded teo
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customers prospectively as the temporary differences reverse. The net
regulatory liability totaled $29.6 million as of December 31, 1598.

As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, WPSR had the following significant
temporary differences that created deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets

Plant related $ 75,400 $ 68,175
Customer advances 10,599 8,187
Conservation escrow {(1,057) 2,859
Capital losses/state net operating losses 3,652 1,345
Employee benefits 28,021 22,772
Other 9,351 ;3,019
Total $126,966 $106, 357

DPeferred tax liabilities

Plant related $210,418 $201,239
Demand-side management expenditures 9,421 12,383
Employee benefits 24,009 17,786
Other 5,760 6,146
Total $249,608 $237,554
Net deferred tax liabilities $122,642 $131,197
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Previously deferred investment tax credits are being amortized as a
reduction to income tax expense over the life of the related utility
plant. The components of income tax expense are set forth in the tables

below:
{Thousands,
except for percentages) 1998 1987 1996
Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount

Statutory federal income tax 35.0% $25,623 35.0% $31,52S 35.0% $29,140
State income taxes, net 5.9 4,344 5.4 4,862 5.1 4,275
Investment tax credit restored (2.6) {1,924) (2.2) (1,949} (2.4) {1,961)
Rate difference on reversal

of income tax temporary

differences (2.4) {1,761} (2.1) (1,888} {1.9) {1,579)
Dividends paid to ESOP (1.9) {1,414} (1.5) (1,381} (1.7) (1,424)
Section 29 credits (1.0) (751} {(0.2) (220} (0.3) (220)
Other differences, net {1.0) (672} 0.2 157 {1.1) (1,015}
Effective income tax 32.0% $23,445 34.6% $31,106 32.7% 527,216
Current provision
Federal $29,482 $31, 444 528,478
State 7,779 7,527 7,729
Total current provision 37,271 38,971 36,207
Deferred (benefit) provision (11,902) (5,916) (7,030}
Invegtment tax credit

restored, net (1,924) (1,94%9) (1,961}
Total income tax expense $23,445 $31,106 $27, 216

NOTE lO--COMMITMEﬁTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Coal Contracts

To ensure a reliable, low-cost supply of coal, WPSC entered into a
long-term contract that has take-or-pay obligations totaling

$130.8 million from 1999 through 2016. The obligations are subject to
force majeure provisions which provide WPSC other options if the
specified coal does not meet emission limits which may be mandated in
future legislation. In the opinion of management, any amounts paid
under the take-or-pay cobligations described above would be considered
costs of service subject to recovery in customer rates.

Purchased Power

WPSC has several take-or-pay contracts for either capacity or energy
related to purchased power. These contracts total $68.2 million through
April 2003. UPPCO has purchased power contracts with external suppliers
for 50 megawatts totaling $12.3 million through 1999%. Management
expects to recover these costs in future customer rates.

Long-Term Power Supply
In November 1995, WPSC signed a 25-year agreement to purchase power from
SkyGen Energy LLC, an independent power producer proposing to build a

cogeneration facility and sell electrical power to WPSC. In October
1997, the PSCW issued a Certificate of Publie Convenience and Necessity
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authorizing construction of the project. Phase I of the project, which
is expected to be operaticnal during 1999, will be accounted for as a
capitalized lease with the capitalized amount being approximately

$77.8 million. If Phase II becomes operaticnal (Phase II is currently
projected to be operational within five years of the start of Phase I),
an additional plant asset of approximately $76.0 million will be
recorded.

Future Nonregulated Commitments

PDI has signed agreements with Maine Public Service Company to purchase,
for approximately $38.0 million, hydro, steam, and diesel units in the
State of Maine and in New Brunswick, Canada, with a total capacity of
approximately 92 megawatts. PDI is currently awaiting approval of the
purchase by the Maine Public Service Commission.

Gas Costsa

WPSC has natural gas supply and transportation contracts that require
total estimated demand payments of $186.2 million through October 2008.

In April 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 which required natural gas
pipelines to restructure their sales and transportation services. As a
result, WPSC was cobligated to pay for a portion of ANR Pipeline
Company's transition costs through various FERC approved surcharges.
Though there may be additional transition costs, which could be
significant, the amount and timing of these costs are unknown at this
time. Management fully expects to recover these costs in future
customer rates since the PSCW and MPSC have allowed such recovery to
date.

Nuclear Liability

The Price-Anderson Act provides for the payment of funds for public
liability claims arising out of a nuclear incident. 1In the event of a
nuclear incident involving any of the nation's licensed reactors, WPSC
is subject to a proportional assessment which is approximately

$36.3 million per incident, not to exceed $4.1 million per incident, per
calendar year. These amounts represent WPSC's 41.2% ownership share in
Kewaunee .

Nuclear Plant Operation

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MG&E finalized an arrangement in which
WPSC will acquire, at MG&E's book value, MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee
including MG&E's decommissioning trust assets and assuming MG&E's share
of the decommissioning obligation. This agreement, the clesing of which
is contingent upon regulatory approval and steam generator replacement
scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership in
Kewaunee.

The net book value of WPSC's share of Kewaunee at December 31, 1998 is
$35.2 million. 1In addition, the current cost of WPSC's share of the
estimated costs to decommission Kewaunee, assuming early retirement,
exceeds the trust assets at December 31, 1998 by $21.2 million. If
retired early, Kewaunee would be placed in a dormant state following the
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trangfer of spent fuel to temporary storage facilities. Under this
plan, Kewaunee would remain intact with minimal monitoring and
maintenance until physical decommissioning begins. Actual
decommissioning would probably not begin until approximately 2015. On
January 3, 1997, the PSCW accepted WPSC's recommendation to accelerate
recovery of the Wisconsin retail portion of both the current
undepreciated plant balance and the unfunded decommissioning costs over
a six-year period, 1997 through 2002. The PSCW depreciation rate order
authorizing new rates for 1999 includes a change in methodclogy for
recovery of Kewaunee investment after new steam generators have been
installed, estimated to be mid-year 2000. At that time, the unrecovered
basis of the Kewaunee plant, including the new steam generators, will be
recovered over an 8.5 year remaining life through 2008 using the

sum-of -the-years depreciation method.

On October 17, 1998, Kewaunee was shut down for a planned maintenance
and refueling outage. Inspection of the plant's two steam generators
showed that the repairs made in 1997 were holding up well and few
additional repairs were needed. In addition to the inspection and
repair of the steam generators, a major overhaul was performed on the
main turbine generator. The plant was back in operation on November 27,
1998,

Clean Air Regulations

WPSC is in compliance with both the Phase I and Phase II sulfur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide emission limits established by the Federal Clean Air
Act Amendments of 1990. Additional capital expenditures of $1.0 million
to $2.0 million are projected through 1999 for Wisconsin and federal air
guality compliance. Management believes that all costs incurred for
additional compliance will be recoverable in future customer rates.

In late September 1998, the United States Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA") required certain states, including Wisconsin, to develop
plans to reduce the emissions of nitrogen oxides ("NOx") from sources
within the state by late 2003. On a preliminary basis, WPSC projects
potential capital costs of between $37.0 million and $96.0 million to
comply with peossible future regulations. The cumulative incremental
annual operating and maintenance expense associated with these possible
future regulations projected to be incurred by 2010 range from

$29.0 million to $106.0 million. The costs will depend on the
state-specific compliance method to be adopted in the future as well as
the effectiveness of the various technologies available for NOx emission
control. Under WPSC's current practice, the capital costs {as reflected
in depreciation expenses) and the annual operating costs are anticipated
to be recovered through future customer rates.

On December 24, 1998, WPSC joined other parties in a petition
challenging the EPA's regulations that require Wisconsin to prepare and
submit a NOx implementation plan. On January 22, 1929, the State of
Wisconsin intervened in the litigation and challenged the geographic
scope of the rule and the required timing for implementation of NOx
controls within the state. No decisions have yet been rendered.
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Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation

WPSC continues to investigate the environmental cleanup of eight
manufactured gas plant sites. The cleanup of WP3C's Stevens Point
manufactured gas plant site has been substantially completed with
monitoring of the site continuing. Costs of this c¢leanup were within
the range expected for this site. Future investigation and cleanup
costs for the remaining seven sites is estimated to be in the range of
$33.9 million to $41.0 million. These estimates may be adjusted in the
future contingent upon remedial techneology, regulatory requirements, and
experience gained through cleanup activities.

An initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 million had been established
with an offsetting regulateory asset (deferred charge). Of this amount,
approximately $2.7 million has been spent to date. Management believes
that cleanup costs net of insurance recoveries, but not the carrying
costs associated with the cleanup expenditures, will be recoverable in
current and future customer rates. WPSC has received 512.6 million in
insurance recoveries which have been recorded as a reduction in the
regulatory asset.

Future Utility Expenditures

Management estimates 1999 utility plant construction expenditures at
WPSC to be approximately $107.4 million and construction expenditures at
UPPCO to be approximately $6.7 million. Demand-side management {"DSM")
expenditures at WPSC are estimated to be $11.1 million. No additiocnal
DSM expenditures will be deferred in 1999, and the outstanding deferred
asset balance at December 31, 1998 of $23.9 million will be amortized
over the next four years consistent with rate recovery.

NOTE 1l1--REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

WPSC received a rate order in the Wisconsin retail jurisdiction on
January 15, 1999. The impact is a $26.9 million increase in electric
revenues and a $1i0.3 miliion increase in gas revenues on an annual
basis. The new rates will be effective for 199%9 and 2000. WPSC was
granted a 12.1% return on eqgquity for 1999 and 2000.

UPPCO is subject to a rate freeze through 2000.
NOTE 12--MERGER WITH UPPER PENINSULA ENERGY CORPORATION

Effective September 29, 1998, UPEN merged with and into WPSR, and UPPCO,
UPEN's utility and major subsidiary, as well as UPEN's other
nonrequlated subsidiaries, became wholly-owned subsidiaries of WPSR.
The merger qualifies as a tax-free transaction and the transaction has
been accounted for as a pooling of interests.

The foregoing consolidated financial statements have been restated to
give effect to the merger as if the companies had combined in the
earliest period presented. Certain adjustments have been made to
conform the presentation of UPEN's financial information with that of
WPSR. In accordance with the terms of the merger, each of the 2,950,001
outstanding shares of UPEN common stock (no par value) were converted
into the right to receive 0.90 shares of WPSR common stock. Taking into
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account the cash paid for fractiocnal shares, an additional 2,654,443
shares are being issued pursuant to the merger.

The summary below depicts selected unaudited financial data for 1998 and

1997 as reported prior to the consummation of the merger and restated to
reflect the effect of the merger under the pooling of interests method.
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Selected Restated Financial Data

(Quarterly Data, Unaudited}

(In thousands, except per share data)

WPSR UPEN
(prior to {prior to
restatement restatement

for pooling)

for pooling)

WPSR
(restated
for pooling
of interests)

First Quarter 1997
Cperating revenues (1)

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Second Quarter 1997
Operating revenues (1)

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Third Quarter 1997
Operating revenues {1)

Net income

Average ocutstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Fourth Quarter 1597
Operating revenues {1)

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Year-End December 31, 1957
Operating revenues (1}

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

First Quarter 19598
Qperating revenues (1)

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Sacond Quarter 1998
Operating revenues (1}

Net income

Average ocutstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Third Quarter 1958
Operating revenues

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Fourth Quarter 1998
Operating revenues

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

Year-BEnd December 31, 1998
Operating revenues

Net income

Average outstanding shares
Basic and diluted earnings

per

per

per

per

per

per

per

per

per

share

share

share

share

share

share

share

share

share

$263,013 $16,303
$ 18,235 4 1,924
23,880 2,969
$0.76 $0.65
$191,360 513,796
$ 9,571 5 666
23,875 2,969
$0.40 $0.22
$185,225 $14,893
$ 12,903 $ (1a7)
23,870 2,954
50,54 5 (0.05)
$238,742 $15,112
$ 13,033 5 (376)
23,866 2,950
$0.55 $(0.12)
$878, 340 $60,104
$ 53,742 $ 2,067
23,873 2,960
$2.25% $0.70
$276,809 $15,573
$ 17,101 $ 851
23,862 2,950
$0.72 $0.29
219,620 $13, 889
s 9,879 § 586
23,858 2,950
50.41 $0.20

{1) Restatement includes adjustment for intercompany sales.
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$279,199
$ 20,159
26,534
$0.76

$204,820
$ 10,237
26,529
$0.39

$158, 843
$ 12,756
26,524
$0.48

$252,975
$ 12,657
26,520
$0.47

$935,837
$ 55,809
26,527
$2.10

$291,226
5 17,952
26,516
$0.68

$232,054
$ 10,465
26,512
$0.39

5247,928
$ 11,799
26,508
$0.45

$292,528
$ 6,415
26,505
$0.24

$1,063,736
$ 46,631
26,511



NOTE 13--SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

Effective December 31, 1998, WPSR adopted SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." WPSR's
reportable segménts are managed separately due to their different
operating and regulatory environments. WPSR's principal business
segments are the regulated electric utility operations of WPSC and UPPCO
and the regulated gas utility operations of WPSC. The other reportable
business segment, ESI, participates in nonregulated energy marketing
operations.

The tables below and on the following page present information for the
respective years pertaining to WPSR's operations segmented by lines of

business.
Nonutility and
Segments of Business (Thousands) Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
1998 Electric Gas ESI PDI and Other

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ 550,004 5165,111 5351, 258 $ 8,506
Depreciation and decommissioning 75,974 7,751 1,148 1,401
Other income (expense)} 5,461 114 (5,765} 4,791
Interest expense 22,820 4,323 592 4,914
Income taxes 27,534 4,429 (4,783) (3,735)
Net income {loss) 50,488 5,912 (6,B869) (2,900)
Balance Sheat
Total assets 1,117,438 246,365 71,839 175,123
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets 64,444 30,537 291 15,537
Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consclidated

Income Statament

Operating revenues $ (12,143} 51,063,736
Depreciation and decommissioning - 86,274
Other income (expense) {1,923} 2,678
Interest expense {4,012} 28,637
Income taxes - 23,445
Net income (loss} - 46,631
Balance Sheet -
Total assets {100, 378) 1,510,387
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets - 110,809
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Nonutility and
Segments of Business (Thousands} Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ 539,590 $211,090 5189,404 $ 5,426
Depreciation and decommissioning 74,016 7,349 1,048 1,028
Other income (expense) 7,395 {701) (1,158} 6,402
Interest expense 25, 266 4,841 905 2,265
Income taxes 29,461 4,211 {3,315) 749
Net income (losas} 53,294 7,878 (4,949) (414)
Balance Sheet
Total assets 1,089,875 246,842 44,779 75,836
Cash expenditures for
leng-lived assets 48,592 14,592 78 3,053
Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ {9,6731 % 935,837
Depreciation and decommissioning - 83,441
Other income {expense) 168 12,106
Interest expense {2,261) 31,016
Income taxes - 31,106
Net income {loss) - 55,809
Balance Sheet
Total assets (21,528) 1,435,804
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets - 66,315

Monutility and
Segments of Business (Thousands} Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operaticns

Income Statement

Operating revenues % S48,88B4 $211,357 $161,838 $ 3,380
Depreciation and decommissicning 61,996 7.128 1,054 584
Other income (expense) 4,993 58 (2,411) (3,306)
Interest expense 24,338 4,229 774 1,533
Income taxes 31,655 2,459 (4,838) (2,100)
Net income {(loss) 59,907 2,350 (6,307) {3,065)
Balance Sheet
Total assets 1,095,996 268,622 51,823 79,190
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets 73,910 24,304 388 15,589
Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ (9,010} $ 916,449
Depreciation and decommissioning - 70,782
Other income (expense} 18 {648}
Interest expense (1,758) 29,117
Income taxes - 27,216
Net income {loss) - 52,885
Balance Sheat
Total assets (32,315} 1,463,316
Cash expenditures for
long-lived assets - 114,191
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NOTE 14--QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

(1)

NS NOEEEEEEEERECHODONAEREICSoaEEaEdESEEECSCCRassdSARSNEEESECRASD

{Thousands, except for share amounts}

Three Months Ended

Cperating revenues $291,22¢ $232,054 $247,928 $292,518 §1.063,736
Net income $ 17,952 $ 10,465 $ 11,799 § 6,415 $ 46,631
Average number of shares of common stock 26,516 26,512 26,508 26,505 26,511
Bagic and diluted earnings per share $.68 $.39 5.45 §.24 $1.76
EoBsonCoNEEEEREGGRYECEREEMRIAIGRERESEIEE mmm= P L L L LT epapen = aumammEzoD
1997
March June September December Total
Operating revenues $279,19% $204,820 $198,843 $252,97% $ 935,837
Net income $ 20,159 5 10,237 $12, 756 $ 12,657 S 55, B0%
Average number of shares of common stock 26,534 26,529 26,524 26,520 26,527
Basic and diluted earnings per share §.76 $.39 £.48 $.47 $2.10

ees=oiuacCOSawonxs EEDcuRoERREREmSE

{1} Schedule gives effect to the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation.

Because of various factors which affect the uvtility business,
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ITEM 8, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION
F. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors of WPS Resocurces Co&poration:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated
gtatements of capitalization of WPS Rescurces Corporation (a Wisconsin
corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the
related conscolidated statements of income, comprehensive income and retained
earnings and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. BAn audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reascnable basis
for our opinicn.

In our opinion, the conscolidated financial statements referred to above
pregsent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

WPS Resources Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1998 and 1997,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Arthur Andersen LLP
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
January 28, 1999
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATICN

G. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e S e e T e 1 T T T T
Year Ended December 311 (Thousands} 1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues

Electric 5487,340 $479,388 5490,506
Gas 165,111 211,090 211,357
Total operating revenues 652,451 690,478 701,863
S e e e e e L g e e L L T L T T o P P ey
Operating expenses

Electric production fuels 110,443 107,538 105,418
Purchased power 42,340 45,878 37,737
Gas purchased for resale 104,608 147,493 149,388
Other operating expenses 138,232 134,113 158,167
Maintenance 49,425 41,661 48,734
Depreciation and decommissioning 78,208 75,819 63,835
Federal income taxes 23,642 26,460 25,267
Investment tax credit restored {1,742) {1,768) {1,778)
State income taxes 7,291 7,569 7,732
Gross receipts tax and other 26,403 26,1396 26,868
Total operating expense 578,848 611,157 621,369
Operating income 73,603 79,321 80,494

Other income and (deductions)

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 173 129 139
Other, net 6,765 12,591 5,123
Income taxes {331) (1,110) {294}
Total other income and (deductiona) 6,607 11,610 4,968
Income before interesgt expense 80,210 90,931 85,462

Interest expense

Interest on long-term debt 20,400 22,530 22,512
Other interest 2,801 3,759 2,688
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction {177) (100) {128)
Total interest expense 23,024 26,189 25,072
Net income 57,186 64,742 60,390
Preferred stock dividend requirements 3,111 3,111 3,111
Earnings on common stock 54,075 61,631 57,279
Other comprehensive income - - -
Comprehensive income $ 54,075 $ 61,631 $ 57,279

The accompanying WPS Resocurces Corporation notes are an integral part of
these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

H. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Utility plant

Electric $1,534,711 51,506,470
Gas 267,892 251,603
Total 1,802,603 1,758,073
Less - Accumulated depreciation

and decommissioning 1,120,058 1,032,149
Total 682,545 725,924
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 171,442 134,108
Construction in progress 35,5986 7,266
Nuclear fuel, less accumulated amortization 18,641 19,062
Net utility plant 508,624 886,360

Current assets

Cash and equivalents 1,882 3,921
Customer and other receivables, net of reserves 63,193 55,893
Accrued utility revenues 30,877 30,750
Fossil fuel, at average cost 12,433 9,964
Gas in storage, at average cost 14,855 17,194
Materials and supplies, at average cost 20,054 18,793
Prepayments and other 19,491 20,155
Total current assets 162,785 156,670
Regulatory assets 68,335 78,544
Net nonutility plant 2,888 2,972
Pengion assets 60,018 52,792
Investments and other assets 64,932 56,616
Total $1,267,582 51,233,954
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

H. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(CONTINUED)

At December 31 (Thousands)

Capitalization

Common stock equity

Preferred stock with no mandatory redemption
Long-term debt to parent

Long-term debt

$ 481,708
51,200
14,061

289,972

Current liabilities

Note pavable

Commercial paper

Accounts payabkle

Accrued interest and taxes
Cther

10,000
25,000
60,680

Long-term liabilities and deferred credits
Accumulated deferred income taxes
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits
Regulatory liabilities

Environmental remediation liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

118,476
24,772
43,591
39,028
99,940

127,512
26,901
50,279
40,215
79,790

The accompanying WPS Resources Corporation notes are an integral part of

these balance sheets.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

I. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

At December 31 (Thousands, except share amounts) 1998 1997

Common stock equity

Common stock $ 95,588 $ 95,588
Premium on capital stock 107,842 73,842
Retained earnings 2B4,726 297,489
ESOP loan guarantees (6,448) (9,798)
Total common stock equity 481,708 457,121

Preferred stock
Cumulative, 5100 par value, 1,000,000 shares
authorized with no mandatory redemption -

Series Shares Qutstanding

5.00% 132,000 13,200 13,200

5.04% 30,000 3,000 3,000

5.08% 50,000 5,000 5,000

6.76% 150,000 15,000 15,000

6.88% 150,000 15,000 15,000
Total preferred stock 51,200 51,200

Long-term debt to parent

Series Year Due

8.76% 2015 5,808 5,914

7.35% 2016 8,253 8,407
Total long-term debt to parent 14,061 14,321

Long-term debt
First mortgage bonds

Series Year Due
5-1/4% 1998 - 50,000
7.30% 2002 50,000 50,000
6.80% 2003 50,000 50,000
6-1/8% 2005 9,075 9,07S
6.90% 2013 22,000 22,000
8.80% 2021 53,100 53,100
7-1/8% 2023 50,000 50,000
6.08% 2028 50,000 -
Total 284,175 284,175
Unamortized discount and premium on bonds, net (817} (890)
Total first mortgage bonds 283,358 283,285
ESOP loan guarantees 6,448 9,798
Other long-term debt 166 215
Total long-term debt 283,972 293,298
Total capitalization 5836, 941 $815, 940

The accompanying WPS Resources Corporation notes are an integral part of
these statements.
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ITEM 8.

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

J. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands) 1998 1997 1996
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 5 57,186 $ 64,742 3 60,390
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash from operating actiwvities -
Depreciation and decommissioning 78,206 75,819 63,835
Amortization of nuclear fuel and other 15,634 14,665 27,687
Deferred income taxes (12,421) (5,848) (6,623)
Investment tax credit restored (2,129) (1,767) (1,778)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (173) (129) (139)
Pension income (9,669) (11,432) {12,413)
Pastretirement liability 9,743 4,952 7,150
Other, net {489) {9, 046) 1,826
Changes in -
Customer and other receivables {7.,300) 10,341 {4,078)
Accrued utility revenues {127) 4,576 2,260
Fossil fuel inventory {2,468} {1,740) 477
Gas in storage 2,339 (754) {6,537)
Accounts payable and accrued taxes 6,561 {13,883) 9,225
Environmental remediaticn insurance recovery - 12,374 200
Miscellaneous and accrued liabilities {5,01%) (1,957) (1,015)
Gas refunds 684 {318) {6,175)
Net cash from operating activities 130,557 140,597 134,292
Cash flows from {(ueed for) investing activitiea:
Construction of utility plant and nuclear

fuel expenditure (89,544) (58,258) (B4, 750}
Decommissioning funding {17,239) (16,059) {8,978}
Purchase of other property and equipment {270} {111) (2,050}
Other 4,565 6,080 948
Net cash used for investing activities {102,488) (68,3248) {94,829)
Cagh flows from (used for) financing activities:
Redemption of long term debt (53,659) - (6,900)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 50,000 - -
Proceeds of long-term debt frem parent - - 8,668
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 290,521 257,100 153,300
Redemptions cf commercial paper (281,021) {270,800) {135,800)
Bguity infusion from parent 34,000 - -
Preferred stock dividends (3,111) (3,111) (3,111)
Common stock dividends (66,838) {55,882) {55,926)
Net cash used for financing activities {30,108) {72,493} {39,769)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents {2,039) 1244} {306}
Casgh and aquivalents at beginning of year 3,921 4,165 4,471
Cash and egquivalents at end of year s 1,882 s 3,921 $ 4,165
Cagh paid during year for:
Interest, less amount capitalized $§ 20,905 $ 22,311 $ 22,100
Income taxes $ 48,781 $ 41,151 $ 35,662

The accompanying WPS Resources Corporation notes are
these statements.

an integral part of
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ITEM B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

K. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands) 15498 1997 1996
Balance at beginning of year $297,489 $291, 740 $290,387
Add - Net income 57,186 64,742 60,390
354,675 356,482 350,777
beduct -
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock
5.00% Series ($5.00 per share) 660 660 660
5,04% Series ($5.04 per share) 151 151 . 151
5.08% Series ($5.08 per share) 254 254 254
6.76% Series ($6.76 per share) 1,014 1,014 1,014
6.88% Series ($56.88 per share) 1,032 1,032 1,032
pividends declared on common stock 46,838 45,882 44,926
Dividend to parent 20,000 10,000 11,000
69,949 58,993 59,037
Balance at end of year $284,726 $297,489 %291, 740

The accompanying WPS Resources Corporation notes are an integral part of
these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
L. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for Wisconsin Public Service

Corporation are incorporated in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
WPS Resources Corporation at page 83 of this report.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

M. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consglidated balance sheets and conscolidated
statements of capitalization of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation (a
Wisconsin corporation) and subsidiary as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and
the related consclidated statements of income, comprehensive income and
retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1998. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence .
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. B&An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31, 19958
and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Arthur Andersen LLP
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
January 28, 1999
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ITEM 9. CHANGE IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information about WPSR's directors and those Class B directors seeking
re-election may be found on pages 4 and S of WPSR's March 22, 1999 Proxy
Statement. Such information is incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.

Information regarding the executive officers, which is not a part of
WPSR's Proxy Statement, is set forth in Part I, Item 4A, at page 35.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required under Item 11 regarding compensation paid by WPSR
to its Chief Executive Qfficer and other executive officers of WPSR may be
found in WPSR's March 22, 1999 Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information concerning principal securities holders and securities
holdings of management which may be found on pages 2 and 3 of WPSR's March 22,
1999 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth
herein.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

There have been no transactions since the beginning of fiscal year
1998, or any currently proposed transactions, or series of similar
transactions, to which WPSR or any of its subsidiaries was or is to be party
in which the amount exceeds $60,000 and in which any director, executive
officer, any nominee for election as a director, any security holder owning of
record or beneficially more than 5% of the Common Stock of WPSR, or any member
of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had or will have a’
direct material interest.
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ITEM 14.

(a)

EXHIBITS,

PART IV

Documents filed as part of this report:

{1)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following financial consolidated statements are included

in Part II at Item B above:

.Degscription

WPS Resources Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income,
Comprehensive Income, and

Retained Earnings for the three years
ended December 31, 1598, 1997, and 1996

Conscolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 1998 and 1997

Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
as of December 31, 1998 and 1997

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the three years ended December 31, 1998, 19597,
and 1996

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Public Accountants
Wigconsin Public Service Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income for the three years

ended December 31, 1998, 19397, and 1996

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 1298 and 1997

Consolidated Statements of Capitalization
as of December 31, 1998 and 1997

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for

the three years ended December 31, 1998, 1997,
and 1996

Consclidated Statements of Retained Earnings

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Public Accountants
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Pages in 10-K

78

79

81

82

83

110

111

112

114

115
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117
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{2)

(3)

Financial statement schedules.

The following financial statement scheadules are included in

Part IV of this report.

Schedules not included herein have

been omitted because they are not applicable or the required
information is shown in the financial statements or notes
thereto.

Description

Schedule III - Condensed Parent
Company Only Financial Statements

A.

All exhibits,

Report of Independent Public
Accountants

statements of Income and Retained
Earnings

Balance Sheets
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Parent Company Financial
Statements
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131
132

133

134

including those incorporated by reference.



Exhibit .
Number Description of Documents

2° Asset Purchase Agreement Among Maine Public Service Company, Main
and New Brunswick Electrical Power Company, Limited and WPS Power
Development, Inc. dated as of July 7, 1998.

3A-1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of WPS Resources Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Amendment No. 1 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S$-4, filed February 28,
1994 [Reg. No. 33-52199]).

3A-2 Articles of Incorporation of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
as effective May 26, 1972 and amended through May 31, 1988
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3A to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1991); Articles of Amendment to Arxrticles of
Incorporation dated June 9, 1993 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3 to Form 8-K filed June 10, 1993).

3B-1 By-Laws of WPS Resources Corporation as in effect September 1,
1998.
3B-2 By-Laws of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation as in effect

September 1, 1998.

4n Copy of Rights Agreement, dated December 12, 1996 between
WPS Resources Corporation and Firstar Trust Company (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-A filed December 13, 1996
[File No.1-11337]).

4B Copy of First Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of January 1,
1941 from Wisconsin Public Service Corporation to First Wisconsin
Trust Company, Trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 7.01
- File No. 2-7229); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
November 1, 18947 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 7.02 - File
No. 2-7602); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1950
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.04 - File No. 2-10174);
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1953 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.03 - File No. 2-10716); Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1954 (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.03 - File No. 2-13572); Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of December 1, 1957 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.03
- File No. 2-14527); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
October 1, 1963 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File
No. 2-65710); Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1964
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.(2B - File No. 2-65710);
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1967 {Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of April i, 196% (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710}); Fifteenth Supplemental

" Schedules and exhibits to this document are not being filed herewith.
The registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any such schedule or
exhibit to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Documents

Indenture, dated ds of May 1, 197% (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Sixteenth Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of August 1, 1973 [(Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Seventeenth Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1973 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Eighteenth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1975 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Nineteenth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 1977 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2.02B - File No. 2-65710); Twentieth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 1980 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4B to Form 10-K for the year ended

Decembér 31, 1980); Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of December 1, 1980 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4B to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1980); Twenty-Second
Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1981 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4B to Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31, 1981); Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of February 1, 1984 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4B to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1983); Twenty-Fourth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 15, 1984 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

June 30, 1984); Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
October 1, 1985 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1985}; Twenty-Sixth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1987 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4A-1 to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 21, 1987); Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of September 1, 1991 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to
Form 8-K filed September 18, 1991); Twenty-Eighth Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of July 1, 1992 (Incorpcrated by reference toc
Exhibit 4B - File No. 33-51428); Twenty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1992 (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed October 22, 1992); Thirtieth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 1993 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed January 27, 1993);
Thirty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 1993
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed July 7,
1993); Thirty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of

November 1, 1993 {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993); Thirty-Third
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1998 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4D to Form 8-K filed December 18, 1998).
All references to periodic reports are to those of Wisconsin
Public Service Corporation (File No. 1-3016).
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Exhibit
Number

4D

4E

4F

10A

10B

10C

Description of Documents

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of WPSR Capital Trust I
dated as of July 30, 1998 among WPS Resources Corporation as
sponsor, State Street Bank and Trust Company as Administrative
Trustee, First Union Trust Company, National Association, as
Delaware Trustee, and Daniel P. Bittner and Ralph G. Baeten, as
Administrative Trustees {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to Form 8-K filed August 6, 1998) (File Mo. 1-11337).

Indenture dated as of July 30, 1998, between WPS Resources
Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust Company, as trustee
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K filed
August 6, 1998); First Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 30,
1998, between WPS Resources Corporation and State Street Bank and

Trust Company, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to >
Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K filed Rugust 6, 1998). References to
periodic reports are to those of WPS Resources Corporation. (File

No. 1-11337).

Trust Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated as of

July 30, 1998, between WPS Resources Corporation and State Street
Bank and Trust Company, guarantee trustee {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Form 8-K filed August &, 1998} (File
No. 1-11337).

Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1998, between Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National
Association {(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4A to Form 8-K
filed December 18, 1998); First Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of December 1, 1998 between Wiscomsin Public Service Corporation
and Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A., National Association
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4C to Form 8-K filed
December 18, 1998}. References to periodic reports are to those
of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation. (File No. 1-03016).

Copy of Joint Power Supply Agreement among Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation, Wisconsin Power and Light Company, and
Madison Gas and Electrie Company, dated February 2, 1967
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.09 in File No. 2-27308).

Copy of Joint Power Supply Agreement (Exclusive of Exhibits) among
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, Wisconsin Power and Light
Company, and Madison Gas and Electric Company dated July 26, 13873
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5.04A in File No. 2-48781).

Settlement and Ownership Transfer Agreement dated September 29,
1998 between Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and Madison Gas
and Electric Company {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99-2 to
Form 8-K/A filed March 2, 1999) (File No. 1-03016).
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Exhibit
Numberxr

10D-2

10D-3

10E

10F

10G-1

10H-1

1CH-2

Description of Documents

Copy of Basic Generating Agreement, Unit 4, Edgewater Generating
Station, dated June 5, 1967, between Wisconsin Power and Light
Company and Wisconsin Public Service Corporation {(Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.10 in File No. 2-27308).

Copy of Agreement for Comnstruction and Operation of Edgewater 5
Generating Unit, dated February 24, 1983, between Wisconsin Power
and Light Company, Wisconsin Electric Power Company, and Wisconsin
Public Service Corporation (Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10C-1 to Form 10-K of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
for the yvear ended December 31, 1983 [File No. 1-32016]).

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for Construction and Operation of
Edgewater 5 Generating Unit, dated December 1, 1988 (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10C-2 to Form 10-K of Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation for the yvear ended December 31, 1988 [File
No. 1-3016]).

Copy of revised Agreement for Construction and Operation of
Columbia Generating Plant among Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation, Wisconsin Power and Light Company, and Madison Gas
and Electric Company, dated July 26, 1973 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 5.07 in File No. 2-48781}.

Copy of Guaranty and Agreements and Note Agreements for Wisconsin
Public Service Corporation Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust
{ESOP) dated November 1, 19%0 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to Form 8-K of Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation filed November 2, 1990 [File No. 1-3016]).

Copy of Power Purchase Agreement Between De Pere Energy LLC and
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation dated November 8, 1995 and
amended by a Letter Agreement dated February 18, 1.997.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10F-1 to the Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1997 [File No. 1-3016]).

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

Copy of amended and restated WPS Resources Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan for executives and non-employee directors,
effective January 1, 1999. :

Copy of Form of Executive Employment and Severance Agreement
entered into between WPS Resources Corporation and each of the
following: Ralph G. Baeten, Daniel P. Bittner, Diane L. Ford,
Richard E. James, Thomas P. Meinz, Phillip M. Mikulsky,

Wayne J. Peterson, Patrick D. Schrickel, Charles A. Schrock,
Clark R. Steinhaxdt, Bernard J. Treml, and Larry L. Weyers
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1997, filed July 25, 1997 [File '

No. 1-113371).
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Exhibit

Number ’ ’ Description of Documents
10H-3 Copy-of WPS Resources Corporation Short-Term Variable Pay Plan
effective January 1, 1998. (Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10G-3 in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1997 [File No. 1-11337]).
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document Pages in 10-K

2° Asset Purchase Agreement Among Maine Public
Service Company, Maine and New Brunswick
Electrical Power Company, Limited and
WPS Power Development, Inc. dated as of

July 7, 1598 135
3B-1 By-Laws of WPS Resocurces Corporation as in
Effect September 1, 1998 202
3B-2 By-Laws of Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
as in Effect September 1, 1998 235
10F-1 WDPS Resources Corporation Amended and Restated
Deferred Compensation Plan Effective January 1,
1999
WPS Resources (Corporation 266
11 Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share
Earnings
WPS Resources Corporation 295
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant 296
23 Consent of Independent Public Accountants 297
24 Powers of Attorney 298
27 Financial Data Schedule
WPS Resources Corporation 307
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation 308

" schedules and exhibits to this document are not being filed herewith.
The registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any such schedule or
exhibit to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
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(b)

Reports on Form 8-K

A Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 29, 1998 filed by

WPS Resources Corporation and Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
on Octeber 6, 1998. The report included under Item S the
announcement of completion of the merger of Upper Peninsula Energy
Company and WPS Rescurces Corporation effective at the close of
business on September 29, 1998 and the finalization of an
arrangement for Wisconsin Public Service Corporation to buy
Madison Gas and Electric Company's share of the Kewaunee Nuclear
Power Plant.

A Current Report on Form B8-K dated December 10, 1998 and filed
December 11, 1998 by WPS Resources Corporation and Wisconsin
Public Service Corporation (1} transmitting a press release
anncuncing that unseasonably warm weather in November and early
December will have a negative impact on its fourth quarter
earnings and a Settlement and Ownership Transfer Agreement between
WPSC and Madison Gas and Electric Company regarding Kewaunee
ownership issues, (2) disclosing certain costs to comply with
Environmental Protection Agency nitrogen oxide regulations, and
(3) disclosing authorization by the WPSR Board of Directors to
issue up to one million shares for WPSR's Stock Investment Plan in
lieu of open market purchases. (A Current Report on Form 8-K/A
dated December 10, 1998 and filed on March 1, 1999 indicating that
portions of Exhibit 99-2, the settlement and ownership transfer
agreement between Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and Madison
Gas and Electric Company, had been omitted based upon a regquest
for confidential treatment. The non-public information has been
filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.)

A Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 14, 19398 and filed
December 18, 1998 by Wisconsin Public¢ Service Corporation
transmitting certain documents relating to the offering of Senior
Notes, 6.08% Series due December 1, 2028 (the "Senior Notes"),
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form S-3
(Reg. No. 333-67979).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION

and

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

(Registrants}

By /s/ L. L. Weyers

L. L. Weyers

Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer
WPS Resources Corporation

L. L. Weyers
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

A. Dean Arganbright

Michael S. Ariens

Richard A. Bemis

Daniel A. Bollom

M. Lois Bush

Clarence R. Fisher

Robert C. Gallagher

Kathryn M. Hasselblad-Pascale
James L. Kemerling

/s8/ L. L. Weyers

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

March 24, 1999

Director By /s/ L. L. Weyers

Director ---

Director

Principal Executive
Officer and Director

Principal Financial

Principal Accounting
Officer
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Attorney-in-Fact

March 24, 1999

March 24, 19599

March 24, 1999



SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

A. REPCRT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
ON SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY
ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of WPS Resources Corporation:

We have audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the
consolidated financial statements of WPS Resources Corporation included in
this Form 10-X, and have issued our report thereon dated January 28, 1999.

our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. Supplemental Schedule III
is the responsibility of the Company's management and is presented for
purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and
is not a part of the basic consolidated financial statements. This schedule
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
basic consolidated financial statements and, in our cpinion, fairly states in
all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

/&/ Arthur Andersen LLP

AFR.THUR ANDERSEN LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
January 28, 1999
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SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED
PARENT CCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

B. STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands) 1598 1997 1996
Income

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries after dividends 5${26,752) $ (1,195} $ (7,518}
Cash dividends from subsidiaries 75,370 59,679 59,916
Income from subsidiaries 48,618 58,484 52,398
Investment income and other 4,516 2,880 2,293
Total income 53,134 61,364 54,691
Operating expeﬁses 4,557 5,122 1,054
Income before interest expense 48,577 56,242 53,637
Interest expense 2,914 583 457
Income hefore income taxes 45,663 55,659 53,180
Income taxes (968) (150} 295
Net Incoma 46,631 55,809 52,885
Retained earningse, beginning of vear 339,508 333,375 329,150
Common stock dividend {50,985) (49,676) (48,660)
Retained earnings at end of year 5335,154 $339,508 $333,3§5
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SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

C. BALANCE SHEETS

Current assets

Cash and equivalents $ 919 $ 23
Accounts receivable - affiliates 1,564 434
Other receivables 1,160 748
Notes receivable - affiliates (note 1) 25,081 4,498
Total current assets 28,734 5,703
Long-term notes receivable - affiliates (note 2) 15,538 15,950

Investments in subsidiaries, at equity

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation 481,707 457,121
WPS Energy Services, Inc. 13,124 4,495
WPS Power Development, Inc. 10,314 7
Upper Peninsula Power Company 35,260 40,283
Other 6,297 4,358
Total inveatments in subasidiaries, at equity S46,702 506,264
Net equipment 1,177 321
Other investments 4,442 3,330
Deferred income taxes 169 45
Total assets $596,762 $531,613

Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 22,590 $ 5,206
Commercial paper 2,400 -
Accounts payable - affiliates 1,545 5,303
Accounts payable 602 1,699
Dividends payable 749 626
Other 186 15
Total current liabilities 28,072 12,849
Other liabilities - -

Capitalization
Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000

shares authorized; 26,551,405 shares outstanding 26,551 26,551
Premium on capital stock 163,438 163,454
Retained earnings 135,154 339,508
ESOP loan guarantees (6,448) (9,798}
Shares in deferred compensation trust (1,505) {951}
Advances from affiliates 51,500 -
Total capitalization 568,690 518,764
Total liabilities and capitalization $596,762 $531,613
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SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

D. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

mk=—=msssooooofSSCOSSSSoooooss==s=sssSs=SS=SSSSSo=sMs—sssc————o—os=—=====ssw-=—=—=======—======z===
Year Ended December 31 (Thousands) 1998 1997 1996
Operating

Net income $ 46,631 $ 55,809 $ 52,885
Add equity in earnings of subsidiaries after dividends 26,752 1,195 7,518
Deferred income taxes (124) 7 46
Other - net (17) 3 1,883

Changes in other items

Receivables {1,542) (25) (442)
Accounts payable (4,855} 3,441 304

Other 2985 {393) 51

Net cash - opsrating 67,140 60,037 62,245

- R e R e b b s P T L T LRI i i I LT T T - ]
Investing

Notes receivable - affiliates {20,181) 10,809 (20,280)
Capital contributicns - affiliates {62,340) (8,709) (6,434}
Investments - other {1,968} (54) {2,792)
Net cash - investing (84,489) 2,046 929,506)
Financing

Proceeds from short-term debt 156,050 537,970 333,975

Payments on short-term debt {153, 650) (549,944) (319,314}
Proceeds from commercial paper 1,867,287 - -

Pdyments on commercial paper (1,849,903) - -

Proceeds from intercompany debt 50,000 - -

Purchase of deferred compensation stock (554) {507) (443)
Common stock dividends (50,985} {49,676} (48,8660)
Net cash - £inancing 18,245 (62,157} {34,442)
Net change in cash 896 (74) (1,703}
Cash, beginning of period 23 97 1,800

Caph, end of period $ 919 $ 23 5 97
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SCHEDULE III - CONDENSED
PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

E. NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following are supplemental notes to the WPS Resources Corporation (parent
company only) financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the
WPS Resources Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto
included herein:

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTES

Note 1 WPS Resources Corporation ("WPSR"} has short-term notes receivable
from WPS Energy Services, Inc. {("ESI"}, WPS Power Development,
Inc., and Upper Peninsula Power Company, [nc¢. for $10.0 million,
$4.0 million and $11.1 million, respectively. Notes payable of
$3.5 million bear interest at 6.9%. The balance of these notes
bear interest at the prime or commercial paper rates.

Note 2 WPSR has long-term notes receivable from Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation for $5.8 million and $8.3 million bearing interest at
8.76% and 7.35%, respectively. The notes are to be repaid in
monthly payments of $51,670 and $63,896 through January 2015 and
May 2016, respectively. WPSR alsoc has a long-term note receivable
from ESI totaling $1.5 million and bearing interest at 7-7/8%.
The note is to be repaid in quarterly payments of $69,076 through
Octobexr 2005.
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COPYRIGHT 1529 DUN & ERADSTREET INC. - PROVIDED UNDER CONTRACT
FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF SUBSCRIBER 087-007455L.

*IN DATE* Statement Date: MAR 31 19989
DUNS: B4-173-9B24 DATE PRINTED SUMMARY
WPS ENERGY SERVICES, INC JUL 08 1959 RATING 4A2
(SUBSIDIARY OF WPS
RESOURCES CORPORATICN, NATURAL GAS STARTED 1994
GREEN BAY, WI) DISTRIBUTICHN SALES $350,000,000
SIC NO. (PROJ}
677 BAETEN RD 49 24 WORTH F $11,423,000
AND BRANCH(ES) OR DIVISION({S) EMPLOYS 63 (32 HERE)
GREEN BAY WI 54304 EISTORY CLEAR
TEL: 920 496-5000 FINANCIAL

CONDITION GOOD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE: PHIL MIKULSKY, PRES-CEO

* x® 0x CUSTOMER SERVICE * o ox %
=== 8 3 3 51 5 T A RS =g 4 S S 3 L F F F F F N F S 1 ey
If you have questions about this report, please call our Customer Service
Center at 1-800-234-3887 from anywhere within the U.S5. If you are outside the
U.5., contact your local D&B office.

*+** pdditional Decision Support Available **%

Additional D&B products, credit recommendations and specialized investigations
are available to help you evaluate this company or its industry. Call Dun &
Bradstreet's Solution Center at 1-800-362-3425 from anywhere within the U.S.

The Summary Analysis section reflects information in D&B's file as of
July 7, 1999.

RATING SUMMARY

The Rating was changed on June 30, 1999 because D&B's analysis of the
financial statement supports a higher Rating. The "4A" portien of the
Rating (the Rating Classification) indicates that the company has a
worth from $10 million te $50 wmillion. The "2" on the right {Composite
Credit Appraisal) indicates an overall “good" credit appraisal. This
credit appraisal was assigned because the payment information in D&B's
file indicates that this company's obligations are retired
satisfactorily and because of D&B's "good" assessment of the company's
March 31, 1999, interim financial statement.

Below is an overview of the company's D&B Rating(s) since 01/26/95:

RATING DATE APPLIED

4A2 06/30/59
3h4 06/17/97



3A2 09/12/96
3A3 05/21/96
1A4 01/12/%6
-- 01/26/95

The Payment Summary section reflects payment information in D&B's file as of
the date of this report.

The PAYDEX for this company is 80.
This PAYDEX score indicates that payments to suppliers are generally within
terms, weighted by dollar amounts. When dollar amounts are not considered,

approximately 97% of the company's payments are within terms.

Below is an overview of the company's dollar-weighted payments, segmented by
its suppliers' primary industries:

TOTAL LARGEST % DAYS SLOW
TOTAL DOLLAR EIGH W/IN
RCV*'D AMOUNTS CREDIT TERMS <31 31-60 61-90 91+
# $ s % % % % %

Total in D&B's file 18 806,850 700,000
Top 10 Industries:

1 Whol computers/softwr 3 5,550 5,000 100 - - - -
2 Whol office supplies 2 7,750 7,500 98 2 - - -
3 Mfg computers 2 10,000 7,500 100 - - - -
4 Petroleum refining 1 700,000 700,000 100 - - - -
5 Natural gas distrib 1 50,000 50,000 10C0 - - - -
6 Misc business service 1 5,000 5,000 100 - - - -
7 Ret mail-order house 1 2,500 2,500 100 - - - -
8 Nonclassified i 250 250 100 - - - -
9 Whol electronic parts 1 250 250 100 - - - -
10 Electric services 1 100 100 100 - - - -
11 OTHER INDUSTRIES 1 100 100 100 - - - -
Other Payment Categories:

Cash experiences 0 0 0

Payment record unknown 3 25,350 25,000

Unfavorable comments ¢] 0 0

Placed for cocllection

with D&B 0 0
other 0 N/A

The highest "Now Owes" on file is $60,000

The highest "Past Due" on file is $25,000

D&B receives over 315 million payment experiences each year. We enter these
new and updated experiences into D&B Reports as this information is received.



PAYMENTS
Antic
Disc
Ppt

REPORTED
06/99
05/98

04/99

03/95

02/99

12/98
09/98

FINANCE
07/07/99

(amounts may be rounded to nearest figure in prescribed ranges)

- Anticipated (Payments received prior to date of invoice)

- Discounted

- Prompt

PAYING HIGH NOW
RECCRD CREDIT OWES
Ppt 500 -0-
Ppt 250 ~0-
(003) 250 -0-
Ppt 700000 60000
Ppt 5000 500
Ppt 5000 -0-
Ppt ’ 250 -0-
Ppt 7500 7500
Ppt 2500 -0-
Ppt 50000 50000
Ppt 7500 1000
Ppt 100 100
Ppt 50 -0-
(014} 25000 25000
Ppt 2500 -0
Ppt 100 50
(027) 100

Ppt-Slow 30 250 T-0-

(Payments received within trade discount period)
(Payments received within terms granted)

PAST SELLING LAST SALE
DUE TERMS WITHIN
-0- N30 6-12 Mos
-0- N30 2-3 Mos
-0- - 1 Mo
-0- 1 Mo
-0- 1 Mo
-0- N30 2-3 Mos
-0- 6-12 Mos
-0- 1 Mo
-0~ N30 1 Mo
-0- 1l Mo
-0- N30 1 Mo
-0- 1 Mo
-0- 2-3 Mos

25000 1 Mo
-0- 6-12 Mos
=0~ 1 Mo .
6-12 Mos
-0- 6-12 Mos

* Payment experiences reflect how bills are met in relation to the

terms granted.

In some instances payment beyond terms can be the
result of disputes over merchandise,

skipped invoices etc.

* Each experience shown represents a separate account reported by a

supplier.
reported.

Interim statement dated MAR 31

Cash 3 1,910,000
Accts Rec 48,687,000
Inventory 997,000
Prepaid 862,000

Curr Assets 52,456,000
Fixt & Equip 1,262,000
Goodwill 868,000
Investments-Cther 2,134,000
Deferred Taxes 3,155,000

Total Assets 59,875,000

Monthly rent $16,000.

Updated trade experiences replace those previously

1999:

Rccts Pay S 40,876,000

Notes Pay-Parent

Company 6,336,000

Accruals 272,000
Curr Liabs 47,584,000

EQUITY 12,291,000
Total 59,875,000

Signed JUN 29 1999 by George Wiesner, assistant controller.

Prepared from books without audit.



-_D_-

Item worth shown in summary section was computed after deduction
of intangibles, goodwill $868,000, totaling $868,000. Fixed assets
shown net less $691,000 depreciation. '

On JUL 07 1999 George Wiesner, contreller, referred to the above
figures as still representative.

HISTORY
07/07/99
PHIL MIKULSKY, PRES-CEO LARRY WEYERS, V PRES
RALPH BAETEN, TREAS FRANCIS KICSAR, SEC-ASST TREAS
MARK RADTKE, V PRES DARYL BRAGGS, V PRES
DIRECTOR(S): THE OFFICER(S) -
BUSINESS TYPE: Corporation - DATE INCORPORATED: 11/28/1995
Profit STATE OF INCORP: Wisconsin
Business started Oct 19%4. Relocated Feb 1996 from 2670 S
Ashland Ave Ste 203. 100% of capital stock is oOwned by parent company
PHIIL MIKULSKY. 1966-1995 with (parent) WPS Resource Corp, Green
Bay, WI. 1995-present active here as president.
LARRY WEYERS born 1%45. 1985 to Present CEO and Chairman of WPS
Resources Corporation.
RALPH BAETEN born 1944. 1970 to present active with Wisconsin
Public Service Corporation, Green Bay, WI where he continues as
treasurer.
FRANCIS KICSAR born 1939. 1965-present active -here.
MARK RADTKE. 1982-present active here.
DARYL BRAGGS. 1995-present active here. Prior to 1995 was
active with Fuel Services Group, Columbus, OH for B years.
OPERATION
07/07/99 Subsidiary of WPS Resources Corporation, Green Bay, WI started

1994 which operates as a holding company. Parent company owns 100% of
capital stock. Parent company has 1 other subsidiaryi{ies}.

As noted, this company is a subsidiary of WPS Resources
Corporaticon, DUNS number 8777192480, and reference is made teo that
report for background information on the parent company and its
management .

Operates as a marketer of natural gas, electricity and energy
related marketing services (100%}.

FACSIMILE NUMBER: 920 456-8399.

Sells on net 10 day terms. Has 20,000 accountis). 8Sells to
distributors, utilities and industrial/commercial firms. Territory
Wisconsin, Missouri, Illinois and East Coast.

Nonseasocnal .

EMPLOYEES: 63 which includes officer(s). 32 employed here.

FACILITIES: Rents 3,600 sg. ft. on 2nd floor of a two story
building.

LOCATION: Central business section on main street.

BRANCHES: Also maintains additional facilities located in Fort



P

Gratiot, MI; Worthington, OH and Westchester, IL.
07-08{7DD /706) 99999 877719260
BANK: Associated Bank, Green Bay, WI

FULL DISPLAY COMPLETE

002162162 H
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

[x] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 19529
OR

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15{(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission Registrant; State cof Incorporation; IRS Employer
File Number Address; and Telephcone Number Identification No.
1-11337 WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION 39-1775292

(A Wisconsin Corporaticon)
700 North Adams Street

P. 0. Box 1%001

Green Bay, WI 54307-9001
920-433-4901

1-3016 WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATICN 39-0715160
(A Wisconsin Corporatiocn)
700 North Adams Street
P. O. Box 19001
Green Bay, WI 54307-9001
920-433-4901

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filted by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1534 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reperts), and (2} has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

WPS Resources Corporation Yes [x] No [ ]
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation Yes [x] No [ ]

Indicate the number of shares cutstanding of each of the issuvers' classes of
common stock, as of the latest practicable date:

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION Common stock, $1 par value,
26,831,172 shares outstanding at
November 1, 1999

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION Common stock, $4 par value,
23,896,962 shares ouistanding at
November 1, 1999
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains statements which are forward-looking. You can identify
these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or
current facts and often include words such as "anticipate," "believe,"
"estimate, " "expect," "intend," "plan," "project," and other similar words.
Although we believe we have been prudent in our plans and assumptions, there
can be no assurance that indicated results will be realized. Should known or
unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions
prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. We
recommend that you consult any further disclosures we make on related subjects
in our 10-Q, B8-K, and 10-K reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The following is a cautiocnary list of risks and uncertainties that may affect
the assumptions which form the basis of forward-looking statements relevant to
our business. These factors, and other factors not listed here, could cause
actual results to differ waterially from expected and historical results.

- General economic, business, and regulatory conditions

- Legislative and regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation and
restructuring of the utility industry which could affect costs and
investment recovery

-~ State and federal rate regulation

- The extent and timing of new business development and additional
competition in the markets of subsidiary companies

- The performance of projects undertaken by subsidiary companies

- Business combinations among our competitors and customers

- Energy supply and demand

- Financial market conditions, including availability, terms, and use
of capital

- Nuclear and environmental issues

- Weather and other matural phenomena

- Commodity price and interest rate risk

- Year 2000 readiness.



Part I.

Ttem 1. financial Statements

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

PINANCIAL EINFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE THCOME,
AND RETATNED EARNINGS

Three Months Ended
September 30

Hine Months Ended
Septembor 30

{Thousands, except per share amounts) 1999 1998 1999 1998
Operating revenues

Electric utility $162,952 $1486,007 5442 ,270 $418,721
Gas urility 30,528 25,880 133,384 115,762
MNonregulated energy and other 57,524 76,031 226,737 244,725
Tota] operating revenues 251,005 247,028 R 7T,
Operating expenses

Electric production fuels 33,413 31,499 B6,528 84,952
Purchased power 25,368 14,372 59,819 41,94%
Gas purchased for resale 21,674 17,235 B2,645 73,234
Honregulated energy cost of sales 51,080 74,313 234,081 23%,008
Other operating expenses 46,821 44,562 136,683 125, 655
Maintenance 15,478 59,313 46,323 36,259
Depreciacion and decommissioning 21,349 21,229 62,104 64,144
Taxes other than income 8,262 7,758 25,123 24,167
Total operating expenses 223,445 220,321 713,306 588, 468
Operating income 27,560 Z'W-—w__ffjﬂr
Other income and (deductions)

Allowance for equity funds used during construction (15} 68 487 136
Qther, net 1,366 {1,006} 6,974 3,218
Total other income and |(deductions) 1,351 (238) 7. 461 3,351
Incoma before interest expense 28,911 26,669 96,546 BG, 094
Interest on long-term debt 6,448 5,664 19,189 18,386
Qther interest 3,199 1,500 5,180 3,453
Allovance for borrowed funds used during construction {1,532) {57) {1,957} {85)
Total Interest expense g,115 T, 107 272,412 21,744
Distrijbutions - preferred securities of subsidiary trust B75 613 2,625 613
Incoipe before income taxes 19,921 18, %49 71,509 63,737
Incolne taxes 5,325 6,547 22,827 21,566
Minority interest - (180} {263) (395)
Prefurred stock dividends of subsidiaries 377 783 2,333 2,350
Net income 13,819 11,799 46,612 40,216
Othor comprehenzive income - _ _ _
Comprehensive income 13,819 11,79% 46,612 40,216
Retajned earnings at beginning of period 341,647 342,857 335,154 334,508
Cash dividends on common stock 13,408 12,773 39,708 37,841
Retained earnings at end of period $347,058 5347, K .
Average shares of commen satock 26,682 296,509 26,602 26,513
Baszig and diluted earnings per average share of common stock $0.52 $0.45 $1.75 51.52
Dividend per share of common steck $0.505 $0.495 $1.495 51.465

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Lhese statements.



WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS September 30 December 31
(Thousands) 19589 1998
ASSETS

Utility plant

Electric 51,775,276 $1,715,882
Gas 282,956 267,892
Property under capital lease 74,130 -
Total 2,132 362 1,983,774
Less - Accumulated depreciation and decommissioning 1,261,858 1,206,123
Total 870,504 777,651
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 182,120 171,442
Construction in progress 65,668 42,424
Nuclear fuel, leas accumulated amortization 15,361 18,641
Het utility plant 1,133,653 1,010,158

Current assets

Cash and equivalents 6,624 7,134
Customer and other rec¢eivables, net of ressrves $2,400 117,206
Accrued utility revenues 23,762 34,175
Fossil fuel, at average cost 13,230 13,152
Gas in storage, at average cost 30,306 20,765
Materials and supplies, at average cost 23,454 21,768
Prepayments and other 24,00% 26,462
Total current assets 213,823 240,712
Regulatery assets 62,000 70, 041
Wet nonutility anéd nonrequlated plant 76,375 41,235
Pension assets €3 ,92¢% &0, 018
Investments and other assets 75,738 88,223
Total $1,625,515 $1,510,387

CAPITALIZATION AND LYABILITIES

Capitalization
Common steck equity $533,931 $517,1%0
Preferred stock of subsidiary with no mandatory redemption 51,195 51,200

Company-cbligated .mandatorily redsemable trust preferred
securities of subsidiary trust holding solely WPSR

7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 50,000
GCapital lease chligation 73,765 -
Long-term debt 340,784 343,037
Total capitalization 1,049,678 961,427

Current liakilities

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligation 1,069 884
Notes payable 10,100 12,703
Commercial paper 96,625 47,590
Accounts payable 83,250 115,480
Accrued taxes 7,763 2,838
Accrued interest 6,470 7,594
Cther 14,498 9,095
Total current liabilities 218,775 156,194

Long-term liabilities and de¥arred credits

Accumulated deferred income taxes 122,385 122,642
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 26,194 27,150
Regulatory liabilities 48,849 50,474
Environmental remediation liabilities 39,928 40,478
Cther long-term liabilities 116,709 112,022
Total long-term liabllities and deferxed credits 356,065 352,766
Total $1,625,515 $1,510, 387

The accompanying notas are an integral part of these stztements.
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WPS RESOURCES CORPCRATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

September 30

December 31

{Thousands, except share amounts) 1999 1898
Cammon stock equity
Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized;
26,749,075 and 26,551,405 shares outstanding
at September 30, 1999 and December 31, 1598, respectively 526,749 $26, 551
Premium on capital stock 171,133 163,438
Retained earnings 342,058 335,154
Shares in deferred compensation trust, 62,935 and 49,477 shares
at average cost of $30.51 and $30.42 per share at
September 30, 1999 and December 31, 1998, respectively {1,920) 11,505}
ESOP locan guarantees {4,089) (6,448}
Total common stock edquity 533,931 517,330
Preferred stock - Wistconsin Public Service Corporation
Cumulative, $100 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized;
with no mandatory redemption
Series Shares Qutstanding
5.00% 131,980 13,196 13,200
5.04% 30,000 2,999 3,000
5.08% 5C, 000 5,000 5,000
6.76% 150,000 15,000 15, 600
6.88% 150,000 15,000 15,000
Total preferred stock with no mandatory redemption 51,195 51,200
Company-cbligated mandatorily redeemable trust
preferred securities of subsidiary trust
holding solely WPSR 7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 50, 000
Capital lease cbligation - Wisconsin Public Service Corporation 74,062 -
Less current portion 1297) -
Net capital lease cbligation 73,765 -
Long-term debt
First mortgage bonds — Wisconsin Public Service Corporatien
Series Year Due
7.30% 2002 50,000 50, 000
6.80% 2003 50,000 50, 000
6-1/8% 2005 9,075 9,075
6.90% 2013 22,000 22,000
8.80% 2021 53,100 53,100
7-1/8% 2023 50,000 50, 000
6.08% 2028 50,000 50, 000
Firat mertgage bends - Upper Feninsula Power Company
Series Year Due
7.94% 2003 15,000 15,000
10.0% 2008 6,000 6, 000
9.32% 2021 18,000 18,000
Installment sales ceontract for air pellution contrel
eguipment - Upper Peninsula Power Company
Term Bonds Year Due
6.90% 1599 - 120
Total 323,175 323,285
Unamortized discocunt and premium on bonds, net {773) {817)
Total first mortgage bonds 322,402 322,478
ESOP loan guarantees 4,089 6,448
Notes payable to bank, secured by nonregulated plant 11,093 10, 943
Senior secured note 3,806 3,886
Other long-term debt 166 166
Total long-term debt 341,556 343,921
Less current portion (772) {884)
Net long-term debt 340,784 343,037
Total capifalization 51,049 575 eyl 4z

The accompanying notes are an {ntegral part of these statemants.
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WES RESOURCES CORPORATION

CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended

{Thousands) September 30
1939 1998

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $46,612 540,216
Rdjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from

operating actiyities
Depreciation and decommissioning 62,104 64,144
Amortization ef puclear fuel and other 11,176 12,718
peferred income taxes (2,715) {12,059}
Investment tax Credit restored {1,343) (1,5%8)
Allowance for equity funds used during construction t481) {136}
Pension income {3,908) {6,824)
Postretirement funding 4,847 3,669
Unrealized gains and losses on gas futures contracts 9,069 1,159
Oother, net 533 {4,290}
Changes in
Customer and other receivables 24,806 4,411
Accrued utility revenues 10,413 11,609
Fossil fuel inveptory (78) 1,010
Gas in storage {9,511) 580
Accounts payable {32,240) {9,063}
Miscellaneous current and accrued liabilities 5,403 {3,002}
Accrued taxes 4,925 {5,156}
Gas refunds - 7i0
Ret cash from operating activities 125,612 58,098
Cash flows from (used for) investing activities
Construction of utility plant and nuclear fuel expenditures {102,141) {58,032}
Purchase of other property and equipment (39,128) {13,060}
Decommissioning funding {5,818B) 112,930
Other 3,268 5,328
Net cash used for investing activities (144,819) (768,684)
Cash flows f£rom (used for) fimancing activities
Issuance of notes payable 34,250 123,752
Redempticons of notes payabla {36,853) {120, 951)
Tssuance of other long-term debt 150 935
Redemptions of other leng-term debt 419 {50,183)
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities - 50, 000
Issuance of commercial paper 1,115,398 1,150,3%1
Redemptions of commercial paper (1,086,363) (1,135,837
Cash dividends on commen stock {39,708) (37,841
Issuance of common stock 7,893 -
QOther {489) {1,935)
Het cash from (used for) financing activities 14,697 (21,449)
Net decrease in cash and equivalents {510} (2,045)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period 7,134 B,495
Cash and equivalents at end of pericd $6,624 $6,450
Cash paid during pericd for
Interest, less amount capitalized 517,916 $16,611
Income taxes 21,570 38,775
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiaries 2,333 2,350

Supplemental schedule ¢f noncash investing and financing activities:

A capital lease pbligation of $74,130 was incurred when

Wisconsin Public Service entered into a long-term lease agreement

for utility plant assets.

The accompanying notes are an lIntegral part of these statements.



WISCONSIN PUBLIC

SERVICE CORFORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Thousands)

Three Months Bnded
September 30

Nine Months Ended
September 30

1999 1998 1999 1958
Operating revenues
Electric $149,346 $132,107 $401,523 $369,971
Gas 30,529 25,880 133,384 115,762
Total operating revenues 174,875 157, 947 534,907 485,733
Operating expenses
Electric production fuels 33,160 31,392 856,127 83,781
Purchased powear 21,357 11,158 47,853 31,314
Gas purchased for resale 19,840 17,211 80,617 72,545
Other operating expenses 36,731 35,215 110,586 102,439
Maintenance 14,081 8,367 43,532 33,901
Pepreciatien and decommissioning 18,735 19,071 54,910 58,029
Federal income taxes 6,705 6,381 22,151 14,102
Investment tax credit restored {402} {436) {1,2086) (1,307
State income taxes 2,173 2,571 6,196 4, 388
Gross receipts tax and cther 6,812 &, 434 20,589 14, 957
Total operating expenses 159,192 137, 364 471,365 426,149
Operating income 20,683 20,633 63,542 59, 584
Other income and (deductions)
Allowance for equity Funds used during construction 19) 68 L1:x8 136
Other, net 1,843 749 6,672 4,995
Income taxes (40) [40) (488) {474)
Total other income 1,784 777 6,665 4,657
Income before interest expense 22,467 21,410 70,207 64,241
Interast expense
Interaest on long—term debt 5,463 4,704 16,393 15,614
Qther interest 1,928 8716 3,578 1, 966
Allowance For borrowed funds used during construction {1,519} {(57) (1,937} 195)
fotal interest expense 5,872 5,523 16,034 17,485
Net income 16,5585 15,887 52,173 416,756
Preferred stock dividend requirements 777 778 2,333 2,333
Earnings on common stock 15,818 15,109 49,840 44,423
other comprehensive income - - - -
Comprehensive income 315,818 $15,109 $49,840 544,422

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements.



WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS September 30 December 31
{Thousands) 1958 1998
ASSETS

Utility plant

Electric 81,593,866 51,534,711
Gas $282,956 $267,892
Property under capital lease 74,130 -
Total . 1,950,952 1,802,603
Less - Accumulated depreciation and decommissioning 1,172,245 1,120,058
Total 778,707 682, 545
Nuclear decommissioning trusts 182,120 171,442
Construction in progress 55,401 35,996
Muclear fuel, less accumulated amortization 15,361 18,641
Net utility plant 1,031,589 ENEPLYL
Current assets

Cash and equivalents 2,347 1,882
Customer and other receivables, net of reserves 53,157 63,193
Accrued utility revenues 21,407 30,877
Fossil fuel, at average cost 12,430 12,433
Gas in storage, at average cost 21,952 14,855
Materials and supplies, at average cost 21,779 20,054
Prepayments and other 14,969 19,491
Total current assets 148,041 162, 785
Regulatory assets 60,356 68,335
Net nonutility plant 1,427 2,888
Pension assets 63,926 60,018
Investments and other assets 60,034 64,932
Total ¥T, 365,373 5T, 267, 582
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

Capitalization

Common stock equity $515,907 $481,708
Preferred stock with no mandatory redemption 51,185 51,200
Capital lease obligation 73,765 -
Long-term debt to parent 13,853 14,061
Long-term debt 287,657 289,872
Total capitalization 942 3T7 B35, 541
Current liabilities

Current portion of capital lease obligation 297 -
Note payable 10,000 16, 000
Commercial paper 20,000 25,000
Accounts payable 48,769 60, 680
Accrued interest and taxes 6,855 2,590
Other 9,028 6,564
Total current liabilities 94,549 104, B34
Long-term liabilities and deferred credits

Accumulated deferred income taxes 118,216 118,476
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 23,953 24,772
Regulatory liabilities 41,886 43,591
Environmental remediation liabilities 3B, 666 39,028
Cther long-term liabilities 105,326 99, 940
Total long-term Tiabilities and deferred credits 328,047 325,807

Total

3T, 355, 373

51,207,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION September 30 December 31
{Thousands, except share amounts) 1558 1558
Common stock aquity
Common stock $95,588 $95, 588
Premium on capital stock 152,842 107,842
Retained earnings 271,566 284,726
ESOP loan guarantees {4,089) (6,448)
Total common stock equity 515,807 481,708
Preferred stock
Cumulative, $100 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized;
with no mandatory redemption
Series Shares Outstanding
5.00% 131,980 13,196 13,200
5.04% 30,000 2,999 3,000
5.08% 50, 000 5,000 5,000
6.76% 150, 000 15,000 15,9000
6.88% 150,000 15,000 15,000
Total preferred =stock 51,195 51,200
Capital lease obligation 74,062 -
Less current portion (297) -
Net capital leage obligation 73,765 -
Long-term debt to parent
Series Year Due
8.76% 2015 5,723 5,808
7.35% 2016 8,130 8,253
Total long-term debt te parent 13,853 14,061
Long~term debt
First mortgage bonds
Series Year Due
7.30% 2002 50,000 50,000
6.80% 2003 50,000 50,000
6-1/8% 2005 9,075 9,075
6.90% 2013 22,000 22,000
8.80% 2021 53,100 53,100
7-1/8% 2023 50,000 50,000
6.08% 2028 30,000 50,000
Total 284,175 284,175
Unamortized discount and premium on honds, net (773) (817)
Total first mortgage bonds 283,402 283, 358
ESQOP loan guarantees 4,089 6,448
Other long-term debt 166 166
Total long-term debt 287,657 289,972
Total capitalization $942,377 $836,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thase statements.
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WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Nine Months Ended
{Thousands) September 30
1999 1998

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $52,173 545,756
Adjustment=s to reconcile net income to net cash from

operating activities
Depreciation and decommissioning 54,910 58,029
Amortization of nuclear fuel and other 10,636 12,411
Deferred income taxes {2,718) {11,324}
Investment tax credit restored (1,206) (1,306}
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (4B1) {136)
Pension income {3,908) (6,824)
Postretirement funding 4,847 2,956
Other, net 2,293 995
Changes in
Customer and other receivables 10,036 4,630
Accrued utility revenues 9,470 12,609
Fossil fuel inventocry 3 1,048
Gas in storage (7,097 11,5661
Accounts payable (11,911) (3,779}
Miscellaneous current and accrued liabilities 2,632 (4,713)
Accrued taxes 5,742 [3,907)
Gas refunds - 710
Net cash from operating activities 125,421 106,589
Cash flows from (used for) investing activities
Construction of utility plant and nuclear fuel expenditures (97,152} {55,042)
Decommissicning funding (6,818) (12,930}
Purchase of other property and equipment (111) (233)
Other 4,531 3,868
Net cash used for investing activities (99,550} (64,337)
Cash flows from {used for) financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 261,500 118,000
Redemptions ¢of commercial paper (266,500} {108, 500)
Redemptions of first mortgage bondgs - {50,000}
Equity infusion from parent 45,000 34,000
Dividend to parent {63,000) (35,009]
Preferred stcck dividends (2,333) (2,333)
Other (73) -
Net cash nszed for financing activities {25,406) {43,842,
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 465 {1,590)
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period 1,882 3,921
Cash and equivalents at end of period 52,347 $2,331
Cash paid during pericd fox
Interest, less amount capitalized 519,647 $18,062
Income taxes 27,449 35,480

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and finanoing activities:
A capital lease obligation of %74,130 was incurred when

Wisconsin Public Service entered into a long-term lease agreement
for utility plant assets.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these stataments.
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WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPOURATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
{Thousands)

Nine Months Ended
September 30

1899 1598
Balance at beginning of period $284,726 $297,489
Add Net income 52,173 46,7586
336,899 344,245
Deduct
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock 2,333 2,333
Dividend to parent 63,000 35,009
65,333 37,342
Balance at end of period $271,566 5306, 903

The accompalying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
CONDENSED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 1999

NOTE 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

We have prepared the consolidated financial statements of WPS Resources
Corporation and Wisconsin Public Service Corporaticn under the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thesge financial
statements have not been audited. Management believes that these financial
statements include all normal recurring adjustments which are necessary for a
fair presentation of the financial results for each period shown. We have
condensed or omitted certain information and footnote disclosures normally
included in financial statements prepared under gemerally accepted accounting
principles. We believe that the discleosures made are adequate to make the
information presented not misleading. These financial statements should be
read along with the financial statements and notes included with our latest
annual Form 10-K report.

Because of the seasonal nature of utility operations, the results reported for
the quarter and nine-months ended may not be representative of annual results.

NOTE 2. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities." This statement requires all derivatives to be
measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities in the
statement of financial position. The accounting for changes in the fair value
of a derivative depends upon the use of the derivative and its resulting
designation. Unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met, changes in
the derivative's fair value must be recognized currently in earnings. 1In

June 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 137 which delays the effective date of
Standard No. 133 to fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2000. Accordingly,
we will be adopting the requirements of this statement on January 1, 2001, and
have not yet determined its impact on ocur financial statements. However, the
requirements of this statement could increase volatility in earnings and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTE 3. SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

Effective December 31, 1998, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.” We manage our reportable segments separately due to theixr
different operating and regulatory environments. Our principal business
segments are the regulated electric utility operations of Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation and Upper Peninsula Power Company and the regulated gas
utility operations of Wisconsin Public Service. The other reportable business
segment, WPS Energy Services, Inc., participates in nonregulated energy
marketing operations. Reconciling eliminations represent intercompany
transactions.

The table below presents summary information pertaining to our operations
segmented by lines of business.

Nonutilicy and

Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
WPS
WPS power WPS
Segments of Business Energy Development Reconciling Resources
{Thousands) Electric Gas Services and Other Eliminations Consclidated
Quarter Ended
September 30, 1959
Operating revenues 5165,439 530,529 $50,854 $8,459 {54,276) $251, 005
Net income (loss) 17,393 (1,%70) {1,242} {362) - 13,819
Quarter Ended
September 30, 1998
Operating revenues $148,022 525,890 $75,049 52,715 ($3,748) §5247,928
Net income {loss) 18,030 (2,606) (2,193) (1,432} - 11,799
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 1999
Operating revenuves $448,278 $133, 384 $213,1893 §1B,739 (511, 203) 5802,391
Net income (loss) 43, 606 6,938 (2,047) {1,885) - 46,612
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 199§
Operating revenues 5415,384 $115,762 $243,594 $5,448 ($8,980) $771,208
Net income (loss) 43,080 2,628 (4,706) {786) - 40,216

NOTE 4. POWER SUPPLY

The De Pere Energy Center cogeneration facility became operaticonal on

June 14, 1999. Wisconsin Public Service's agreement to purchase electricity
from this facility is accounted for as a capital lease and has been
capitalized at $74.1 million.

NOTE 5. ASSET ACQUISITION

On June 8, 1999 WPS Power Developuwent, Inc. purchased generation agssets from
Maine Public Service Company for $37.5 million. The purchase included
hydroelectric, steam, and diesel units in the State of Maine and in the
Canadian Province of New Brunswick with a total capacity of 91.7 megawatts.
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NOTE 6. STOCK OPTICN PLAN

WPS Resources granted stock options under our 1999 Stock Option Plan as
approved by shareholders on May 6, 1999. The stock option plan ig accounted
for under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. 2As a result, the plan
grants fixed stock options and no compensation expense is recognized.

NOTE 7. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON TWELVE MONTH RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

WPS RESCURCES CORPORATION
COMPARATIVE TWELVE MONTHS YEAR-ENDED STATEMENTS

cmsmmms m—mer——m————rS—=cS=========ms®r=-CSSSSSSSSSSohNwmss—o======s===SRTCCCSSSficcomsmms=m===
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME Twalve Months Ended
(Thousands, except per share amounts) September 30

1999 1998@
s===ommsccropiocomomsSSSSSSSSSSSSS oSS SESooskoSSSSEESSoRmssETTCSTCOSCoSSoSCzmsSSESSSSsEssoc—zooo=o
Operating revenues
Electric utility revenues $ 574,809 $ 538,707
Gas utility revenues 182,733 177,428
Nenregulated energy ahd other 337,377 348,048
Total operating ravenues 1,094,919 1,024,183

Operating expenses

Ele¢tric production fuels 113,285 111,076
Purchased power 74,317 53,767
Gas purchaged for resale 115,319 116,373
Honregulated energy cost of sales 321,736 302,093
Other operating expenses 183,904 169,495
Maintenance 62,877 45,982
Depreciation and decommissioning 84,234 85,473
Taxes cther than income 32,858 33,580
Total operating expenses 588,530

QOperating income 106,389

Other income and [dedwctions)

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 524 151
Cther, net 6,261 6,589
Total other income and {deductionsa} 6,785 ,740
EmsmssmssscsonmomoonofSCECCCCCCSESSSSSEESroTo-nSCTSCSCoCSSESooomomSSoSSSSESsrosmsSooCOSCSa_cm—me
Income before interest expense 113,174 115,082
Interest on long-term debt 24,7580 24,865
Cther interest 6,554 5,5%1
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (2,039) (228)

Income before income ftaxes BO,369 84,241
Income taxes 24,706 28,818
Minority interest (479) {583}
Praferred stock dividends of subsidiary 3,115 3,133

Retalned sarnings at beginning of peried 341,883 339,385
Cash dividends on common stock 52,852 50,375
Retained earnings at end of period § 342,058 % 341,882
Average shares of common stock

Earnings per average ghare of common stock £2.00 $1.88
Dividend per share of commoen stock §1.99 $1.95
—=sscsszsstcimcmmssssYSESSssssso=ssSSCSSSScESSSOmSSSSSSsEaMsss—s=mEm=ESCTOCSCSSN-omsss=sssmsssos
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

WPS Resources Corporation is a holding company. Our wholly-owned subsidiaries
include two regulated utilities, Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and
Upper Peninsula Power Company. Another wholly-owned subsidiary, WPS Resources
Capital Corpeoration, is a holding company for our nonregulated businesses
including WPS Energy Services, Inc. and WPS Power Development, Inc.
Approximately B84% of our assets at September 30, 1999, and approximately 67%
of our revenues for the first nine months of 1999 were dexrived from Wisconsin
Public Service, an electric and gas utility. Substantially all of our net
income for the first nine months of 1999 was derived from Wisconsin Public
Service and Upper Peninsula Power, an electric utility.

Third Quarter 199% Compared with Third Quarter 1998
WPS Resourcesg Overview

WPS Resources' consolidated operating revenues were $251.0 million in the
third guarter of 1999 compared with $247.9 million in the third quarter of
1998, an increase of 1.3%. Net income was $13.8 million in the third gquarter
of 1999 and $11.8 million in the third quarter of 1998, an increase of 16.9%.
Bagie¢ and diluted earnings per share were $0.52 in the third quarter of 1999
compared with $0.45 in the third quarter of 1998, an increase of 15.6%. The
reasons for the increase in earnings, as explained below, were higher electric
utility, gas utility, and nonregulated margins and an increase in other
income. Partially offsetting these factors were increases in other operating
expenses and maintenance expenses.

Overview of Utility Operations (Wisconsin Public Service and Upper Peninsula
Power)

Revenues at Wisconsin Public Service were $179.9 million in the third quarter
of 1999 compared with $158.0 million in the third quarter of 1998, an increase
of 13.9%. Earnings on common stock were $15.8 million in the third quarter of
1999 and $1i5.1 million in the third quarter of 1998, an increase of 4.6%. The
primary reasons for the increase in earnings on common stock were higher
electric utility and gas utility margins and an increase in other income.
Partially offsetting these factors were higher other operating and maintenance
expenses.

Revenues at Upper Peninsula Power were $16.1 million in the third quarter of
1999 compared with $15.9 million in the third quarter of 1998, an increase of
1.3%. Barnings on common stock were $0.3 million in the third cquarter of 1999
and $0.5 million in the third quarter of 1998.



Electric Utility Operations (Wisconsin Public Service and Upper Peningula
Power)

WPS Resources' consolidated electric utility margin increased $4.0 million, or
4.0%, primarily due to Wisconsin Public Service's implementation of a

Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rate order which authorized a 6.3%
increase in Wisconsin retail electric rates.

Third Quarter
WPS Resources' Consolidated 000 e e oo -

Electric Utility Margins (Thousands) 1999 1998

Revenues $162, 952 $146,007
Fuel and purchased power 58,781 45,871
Margins $104,171 $E?0,136
Sales in kilowatt-hours (Thousands) 3,265,890 3,306,208

Our consolidated electric utility revenues increased $16.9 million, or 11.6%.
Revenues at Wisconsin Public Service were up 13.0% largely due to the
Wisconsin retail electric rate increase and additional wholesale revenues
because of unusually warm weather early in the third quarter of 1999%. This
occurred in spite of the fact that overall sales volumes at Wisconsin Public
Service were down 1.3%.

Our consolidated fuel expense increased $1.9 million, or 6.1%, due to
increased production at Wisconsin Public Service's combustion turbine
generating plants. Our consolidated purchased power expense increased

$11.0 million, or 76.5%, primarily due to additional purchase requirements at
Wisconsin Public Serxrvice. Purchase requirements and prices were higher during
a period of unusually warm weather early in the third quarter of 19%9. This
increase was partially offset by purchases made late in the third quarter of
1999 when purchased power prices were low.

The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin allows Wisconsin Public Service to
prospectively adjust the amount billed to Wisconsin retail customers for fuel
and purchased power if costs fall outside a specified range. Wisconsin Public
Service is required to file an application to adjust rates either higher or
lower when costs are plus or minus 2.0% from forecasted costs on an annualized
basis. Forecasted annual 1999 fuel costs at September 30, 1999 are expected
to be within this 2.0% window.

Gag Utility Operations (Wisconsin Public Service)

The consolidated gas utility margin represents gas revenues less purchases
exclusive of intercompany transactions. The gas utility margin at

Wisconsin Public Service increased $2.0 million, or 2.3%. This increase was
primarily due to the implementation of a Public Service Commission of
Wisconsin rate order which authorized a 5.1% increase in Wisconsin retail gas

rates.
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Third Quarter
Wisconsin Public Service's = =00 mememmme e memmcnaaa oo

Gas Utility Margins (Thousands) 1999 1998

Revenues $30,529 $25,890
Purchase costs 19,840 17,211
Margins 510,689 5 8,679
Volume in therms ({Thousands) 103, 748 96,586

Wisconsin Public Service's gas revenues increased $4.6 million, or 17.9%.
This increase was due to the implementation of new Wisconsin retail gas rates
and a 7.4% increase in overall therm sales.

Wisconsin Public Service's gas purchase costs increased $2.6 million, or
15.3%. This increase resulted from additional purchase requirements and
highexr gas costs in the third quarter of 1999. Under current regulatory
practice, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin and the Michigan Public
Service Commission allow Wisconsin Public Service to pass changes in the cost
of gas on to customers through a purchased gas adjustment clause.

Other Utility Expensgses/Income (Wisconsin Public Service and Upper Peninsula
Power)

Other operating expenses at Wisconsin Public Service increased $1.5 million,
or 4.3%, primarily due to higher pension and post-retirement medical expenses
as a result of a decrease in the discount rate used to calculate these
obligations.

Maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Sexvice's fossil-fueled generation
plants increased $1.3 million due to additional costs for scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance activities. Electric transmission and distribution
maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Service increased $3.9 millicn
primarily due to costs for repairing storm damage experienced in the third
quarter of 1999 and for precertification costs associated with the proposed
Wausau to Arrowhead transmission line.

Overview of Nonregulated Operations

Nonrequlated operations primarily consist of the gas and electric sales at

WPS Energy Services, an energy marketing subsidiary. Nonregulated operations
alsc include those of WPS Resources as a holding company {primarily
investments, borrowings, and certain unallocated corporate costs) and those of
WPS Power Development which develops electric generation projects, invests in
generating facilities, and provides services to the electric power generation
industry.

Nonregulated operations experienced a loss of $2.3 million in the third
quarter of 1999 compared with a loss of $3.8 million in the third quarter of
1998. Although margins on nonregulated energy sales continue to grow, loszes
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are being experienced primarily due to operating expenses associated with new
facilities, market expansion, and the pursuit of additional projects.

Overview of WPS Energy Services

Revenues at WPS Energy Services were $50.9 million in the third quarter of
1999 compared with $75.0 million in the third quarter of 1998, a decrease of
32.1%. WPS Energy Services experienced a loss of 51.2 million in the third
quarter of 1999 compared with a loss of $2.2 million in the third quarter of
1998. The primary reason for the decrease in losses was improved trading
activities in 1%99. Partially offsetting this factor was a $0.7 million
one-time pretax write-down related to an investment in a gas production field.

Nonregulated Margins (WPS Energy Services)

Gas and electric margins at WPS Energy Services in the third quarter of 1999
remained fairly stable when compared with the third quarter of 1998. Gas
revenues at WPS Energy Services were $49.6 million in the third quarter of
1599 compared with $65.7 willion in the third quarter of 1998, a decrease of
24.5%. The decrease was the result of increased emphasis on higher quality
wholesale transactions versus wholesale transactions with lower margins.
Electric revenues at WPS Energy Services were $51.1 million in the third
quarter of 1999 and $9.1 million in the third quarter of 1998, a decrease of
87.9%. This decrease was the result of WPS Energy Services' effort to focus
participation in the wholesale electric markets, where transactions are based
on physical generation assets controlled by an affiliate of WPS Resources.

WPS Energy Services' gross margins were $0.9% million in the third gquarter of
1999 and $1.0 million in the third quarter of 1998, a decrease of 10.0%. This
change was due to decreased wholesale sales and resulted in a decrease in gas
purchases of $16.1 million and a decrease in electric purchases of

$8.0 million.

Other Nonregulated Expenses/Income (WPS Energy Services)

Improved processes and strategies emphasizing reduced risk at WPS Energy
Services resulted in gas trading gains of $0.1 million in the third quarter of
1999 compared with gas trading losses of $0.9 million in the third quarter of
1998. In addition, the volume of instruments traded has decreased. No
electric trading gains or losses were experienced in the third quarter of 1999
compared with electric trading losses of $1.0 million in the third quarter of
1598,

Price Risk Management Activities (WPS Energy Services)

WPS Resources engages in minimal price risk management activities at its
utility operations because much of the utility price risk exposure is
recoverable through customer rates. (See pages 18 and 19 for descriptions of
electric and gas retail price adjustment mechanisms.} More price risk
exposure is experienced at WPS Energy Services, and WPS Energy Services
actively engages in price risk management activities.

WPS Energy Services uses derivative financial and commodity instruments
including futures and forward contracts. These derivatives reduce the market

-20-



risk associated with changes in the price of natural gas and electricity sold
under fixed price commitments with certain customers. WPS Energy Services
also uses price swap agreements, call and put option contracts, and futures
and forward contracts. These derivatives manage the risk associated with a

portion of the anticipated supply regquirements. WPS Energy Services uses
derivatives, within specified guidelines, for trading purposes.

The notional amount of derivatives outstanding at September 30, 1999,
decreased from December 31, 1998, due to the end of the 1999 winter heating
season. This includes a decrease of approximately 38.0% for hedging
activities and 91.0% for trading activities. Although wholesale activity has
decreased, as WPS Energy Services enters into supply commitments for the
1999-2000 winter season, it expects that the notional amount of derivatives
outstanding will increase accordingly.

Other Nonregulated Operations

Losses at WPS Power Development were $0.7 million in the third quarter of 1999
compared with $0.6 million in the third quarter of 1998. The increased losses
were due to additional costs incurred in the third quarter of 19989 for the
operation of newly acquired facilities and the pursuit of new projects.

WPS Power Development experienced an increase of $3.4 million in its margin on
operating generation facilities in the third guarter of 1999. This increase
was largely due to the operation of the electric generation assets acquired in
Maine and Canada on June 8, 1999. Other operating expenses at WPS Power
Development increased $2.2 million due to operating expenses related to the
Maine Public Service asset acquisition and to higher operating expenses at

ECQ Coal Pelletization #12, LLC. Although not significant for the third
quarter, ECO Coal Pelletization #12 resumed production and sales of coal
briquettes. Also contributing to higher operating expenses at WPS Power
Development were additional costs related to the pursuit and development of
new projects.

Nine Months 199% Compared with Nine Months 1998
WPS Resources Overview

WPS Resources' consolidated operating revenues were $802.4 million in the
first nine months of 1999 compared with $771.2 million in the first nine
months of 1%98, an increase of 4.0%. Net income was $46.6 million in the
first nine months of 19%9 and $40.2 million in the first nine months of 1998,
an increase of 15.9%. Basic and diluted earnings per share were $1.75 in the
first nine months of 1999 compared with $1.52 in the first nine months of
1998, an increase of 15.1%. The primary reasons for the increase in earnings,
as explained below, were higher electric utility, gas utility, and
nonregulated margins and an increase in other income. Partially cffsetting
these factors were higher other operating expenses and maintenance expenses.
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Overview of Utility Operations (Wiscongin Public Service and Upper Peninsula
Power)

Revenues at Wisconsin Public Service were $534.9 million in the first nine
months of 1999 compared with $485.7 million in the first nine months of 1998,
an increase of 10.1%. Earnings on common stock were $49.8 million in the
first nine months of 1999 and $44.4 million in the first nine months of 1998,
an increase of 12.2%. The primary reasons for the increase in earnings on
common stock at Wisconsin Public Service were increased electric and gas
utility margins. Margins increased largely as a result of the implementation
of a January 15, 1999, Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rate order which
authorized a 6.3% increase in Wisconsin retail electric rates and a 5.1%
increase in Wisconsin retail gas rates. Partially offsetting these factors
were increases in other operating expenses and maintenance expense.

Revenues at Upper Peninsula Power were $46.8 million in the first nine months
of 1999 compared with $45.4 millien in the first nine months of 1998, an
increase of 3.1%. Earnings on common stock were $2.2 million in the first
nine months of 1999 and $2.3 million in the first nine months of 1998.

Electric Utility Operations {(Wisconain Public Service and Upper Peninsula
Power)

WPS Resources' consolidated electric utility margin increased $11.2 million,
or 3.9%. Wisconsin Public Service's electric utility margin increased
$12.7 million primarily due to its implementation of a January 15, 1999
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rate order which authorized a 6.3%
increase in Wisconsin retail electric rates.

Nine Months
WPS Resources'! Consolidated =000 c e e m e m e e o

Electric Utility Margins {Thousands} 1999 1998

Revenues $442,270 $410,721
Fuel and purchased power 146,347 126,001
Margins 5295,923 $284,720
Sales in kilowatt-hours (Thousands) 9,399,470 9,189,539

Our consolidated electric utility revenues increased $31.5 million, oxr 7.7%,
largely due to the electric rate increase at Wisconsin Public Service. Also
contributing to higher electric revenues was a 8.5% increase in overall
kilowatt-hour sales at Wisconsin Public Service and a 3.5% increase in
kilowatt-hour sales at Upper Peninsula Power. These sales were largely the
result of weather that was 12.3% colder in the first nine months of 1999 than
in the first nine months of 1998. However, weather was still 8.4% warmer than
normal.
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Our consolidated electric production fuel expense increased $2.5 million, or
2.9%, primarily as a result of increased generation requirements at

Wisconsin Public Service's combustion turbine and nuclear generating plants in
the first nine months of 1999. Partially offsetting this factor was a
decrease in producticon at Wisconsin Pubic Service's fossil-fueled generation
plants as a result of scheduled maintenance activities.

Our consolidated purchased power expense increased $17.9 million, or 42.6%,
primarily due to additional purchase requirements at both Wisconsin Public
Service and Upper Peninsula Power in the first nine months of 19%2. Purchase
requirements increased 40.2% at Wisconsin Public Service due to the lack of
production at its fossil-fueled generation plants which were off-line for
scheduled maintenance activities in the first half of 1999. In addition, the
cost of purchases were 9.0% higher in the first nine months of 199% than in
the same period in 1998.

The Public Sexrvice Commission of Wisconsin allows Wisconsin Public Service to
prospectively adjust the amount billed to Wisceonsin retail customers for fuel
and purchased power if costs fall outside a specified range. Wisconsin Public
Service is reguired to file an application to adjust rates either higher or
lower when costs are plus or minus 2.0% from forecasted costs on an annualized
basis. Forecasted annual 199% fuel costs at September 30, 1999 are expected
to be within this 2.0% window.

Gag Utility Operations (Wisconsin Public Service)

The consoclidated gas utility margin represents gas revenues less purchases
exclusive of intercompany transactions. The consolidated gas utility margin
increased $8.2 million, or 19.3%, in the first nine months of 1999. The gas
utility margin at Wisconsin Public Service increased $9.6 million, or 22.1%,
in the first nine months of 1999. This increase was primarily due to the
implementation of a Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rate corder which
authorized a 5.1% increase in Wisconsin retail gas rates and to an increase in
therm sales.

Nine Months
Wisconsin Public Service's e e o

Gas Utility Margins (Thousands) 1999 1998

Revenues $133,384 3115, 762
Purchase costs 80,617 72,545
Margins $ 52,767 $ 43,217
Volume in therms (Thousands) 475,829 434,315

Wisconsin Public Service gas operating revenues increased $17.6 million, or
15.2%. This increase was due to the implementation of new Wisconsin retail
gas rates and a 9.6% increase in overall therm sales as a result of colder
weather in the first nine months of 1999. Although weather was 12.3% colder
in the first nine months of 1999 than in the first nine months of 1998, it was
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still 8.4% warmer than normal. 1In addition, gas revenues at Wisconsin Public
Service in the first nine months of 1998 were reduced by $7.5 million for
refunds from ANR Pipeline Company which were passed on to its customers.

Wisconsin Public Service's gas purchase costs increased $8.1 million, or
11.3%. This increase was largely due to increased sales. Gas purchase costs
for the first nine months of 1998 were reduced due to the $7.5 million refund
from ANR Pipeline Company which was credited to gas expense in the third
quarter of 1998. Under current regulatory practice, the Public Service
Commission of Wisconsin and the Michigan Public Service Commission allow
Wisconsin Public Service to pass changes in the cost of gas on to customers
through a purchased gas adjustment clause.

Other Utility Expenses/Income (Wisconsin Public Service and Upper Peninsula
Power)

Other operating expenses at Wisconsin Public Service increased $8.1 million,
or B8.0%, primarily due to higher electric distribution expense of

$2.1 million, higher customer service expense of $3.2 million, and higher
pensicon costs of $2.8 million due to a decrease in the discount rate used to
calculate this expense.

Maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Service increased $9.6 million, or
28.4%, primarily due to additional costs of $6.8 million for scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance activities at the fossil-fueled generation plants.
Maintenance of overhead lines also increased largely as a result of
expenditures of $1.4 million for repairing storm damage experienced in the
third quarter of 199%. Precertification costs increased $0.7 million due to
expenses associated with the proposed Wausau to Arrowhead transmission line.

Overview of Nonregulated Operations

Nonregulated operations experienced a loss of $5.4 million in the first nine
months of 1999 compared with a loss of $6.5 million in the first nine months
of 19%8. Although margins on nonregulated energy sales continue to grow,
losses are being experienced primarily due to operating expenses associated
with new facilities, market expansion and the pursuit of additional projects.
In addition, nonregulated earnings in the first nine months of 1998 included
cne-time dividend of $2.0 million received by WPS Resocurces from a venture
capital investment in the first quarter of 1998.

Overview of WPS Energy Services

Revenues at WPS Energy Services were $213.2 millicn in the first nine months
of 1999 compared with $243.6 million in the first nine months of 1998, a
decrease of 12.5%. WPS Energy Services experienced a loss of 352.0 million in
the first nine months of 1999 compared with a loss of $4.7 million in the
first nine months of 1998. The primary reasons for the decrease in losses
were lower electric and gas trading losses primarily due to improved trading
activities in 1999 and an increase in the gas margin due to improved gas
procurement operations and processes, including a reduced emphasis con
wholesale sales. Partially cffsetting these factors was a one-time pretax
write-down of 50.7 million related to an investment in a gas production field.

~-24-



Nonregulated Margins (WPS Energy Services)

Gas margins at WPS Energy Services were $4.3 million in the first nine months
of 1999 compared with $3.1 million in the first nine months of 1998, an
increase of 38.7%. Electric margins remained fairly stable. Gas revenues at
WPS Energy Services were $209.7 million in the firxrst nine months of 1999
compared with $225.5 million in the first nine wmonths of 1998. This decrease
wag the result of increased emphasis on higher quality wholesale transactions
versus wholesale transactions with lower margins. Electric revenues were
$2.9 million in the first nine months of 1999 and 517.5 million in the first
nine months of 1998, a decrease of 83.3%. This decrease was the result of
WPS Energy Services' effort to focus participation in the wholesale electric
markets where transactions are based on physical generation assets controlled
by an affiliate of WPS Resources.

WPS Energy Services' cost of sales were $208.1 million in the first nine
months of 1999 and $2392.8 million in the first nine months of 1998, a decrease
of 13.2%. This decrease was due to decreased gas purchases of $17.1 million
due to lower sales, improvements in gas procurement processes and decreased
electric purchases of $14.6 million due to decreased sales.

Other Nonregulated Expenses/Income (WPS Energy Services)

Other operating expenses at WPS Energy Services increased $0.9 million, or
14.4%, primarily due to costs of $0.7 million associated with entering into
expanded retail customer-choice programs. Improved processes and strategies
emphasizing reduced risk at WPS Energy Services resulted in a slight gas
trading gain in the first nine months of 1999 compared with gas trading losses
of $3.2 million in the first nine months of 1998. Minimal electric trading
losses were experienced in the first nine wmonths of 1999 compared with

$1.1 million in the first nine months of 1998.

Price Rigk Management Activities (WPS Energy Services)

WPS Resources engages in minimal price risk management activities at its
utility operations because much of the utility price risk exposure is
recoverable through customer rates. More price risk exposure is experienced
at WP5 Energy Services, and WPS Energy Services actively engages in price risk
management activities. See the discugsion at pages 20 and 21 for a discussion
of WPS Energy Services' price risk management activities.

Other Nonregulated Operations

Losges at WPS Power Development were $2.4 million in the first nine months of
1999 compared with $1.5 million in the first nine months of 1998. The
increase in losses at WPS Power Development was primarily due to additional
costs incurred in the first nine months of 1299 for the operation of newly
acquired facilities and the pursuit of new projects.

WPS Power Development experienced an increase of $5.7 million in its margin on
operating generation facilities in the first nine months of 1999. This
increase was largely due to the operation of the electric generation assets
acguired in Maine and Canada on June 8, 1999. Other operating expenses at

WPS Power Development increased $4.4 million due to operating expenses related
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to the Maine Public Service asset acquisition and to higher operating expenses
at ECO Coal Pelletization $#12, LLC. aAlthough not significant for the first
nine months of 1999, ECO Coal Pelletization #12 resumed production and sales
of coal briguettes in the third guarter. Also contributing to higher
operating expenses at WPS Power Development were additional costs related to
the pursuit and development of new projects.

The first nine months of 1998 included a cne-time dividend of $2.0 millicn

received by WPS Resources from a venture capital investment. This dividend
represented a four cents per share increase to earnings for the first nine

months of 1998.

FINANCIAL CONDITION - WPS RESOURCES
Investments and Financing

Special common stock dividends of $25.0 million were paid by Wisconsin Public
Service to WPS Resources in the first nine months of 199%. Equity infusions
of $45.0 million were made by WPS Resources to Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation in the first nine monthg of 19%9. These special dividends and
equity infusions allowed Wisconsin Public Service's average eguity
capitalization ratio for ratemaking to remain at its target level as
established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin in its most recent
rate order.

Cash requirements exceeded internally generated funds in the first nine months
of 199% and short-term borrowings increased $46.4 million as a result of
obtaining funds for the acquisition of generating units from Maine Public
Service. Our pretax interest coverage was 3.13 times for the 12 months ended
September 30, 1999. See the table below for WPS Resources' credit ratings.

Credit Ratings Standard & Poor's Moody's

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

Bonds AR+ Aa2

Preferred stock AR aasl

Commercial paper Al+ Pl
WPS Resources Corporation

Trust preferred securities A+ al

Commercial paper Al+ Pl
WPS Rescurces Capital Corporation

Unsecured debt* AR Al

* No securities currently outstanding.

We normally use internally-generated funds and short-term borrowing to satisfy
most of our capital requirements. We may pericdically issue additional
long-term debt and common stock to reduce short-term debt and to maintain
desired capitalization ratios.

The specific forms of financing, amounts, and timing will depend on the
availability of projects, market conditions, and other factors. We recently
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filed a shelf registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission which
allows the issuance of $400.0 million in the aggregate of long-term debt and
common stock. We may issue up to $100.0 million of long-term debt in the next
few months to reduce short-term debt. We began issuing new shares of common
stock for our Stock Investment Plan in January 1999. We may alse expand our
leveraged employee stock ownership plan during the next three-year period.

Wisconsin Public Service makes large investments in capital assets.
Construction expenditures for Wisconsin Public Service are expected to be
approximately $376.0 million in the aggregate for the 199% through 2001
period. This includes expenditures for the replacement of the Kewaunee
Nuclear Power Plant steam generators and construction of a proposed
transmission line between Wausau, Wisconsin and Duluth, Minnesota.

In addition, other capital requirements for Wisconsin Public Service for the
three-year period will include contributions of approximately $20.7 million to
the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant decommissioning trust fund.

Wigconsin Public Service's agreement to purchase electricity from the

De Pere Energy Center, a gas-fired cogeneration facility, is accounted for as
a capital lease. The De Pere Energy Center lease was capitalized at

$74.1 million at the in-service date, June 14, 199%. While not a capital
expenditure, this accounting affects the capital structure.

Upper Peninsula Power will incur construction expenditures of about
$23.0 million in the aggregate for the period 1999 through 2001, primarily for
electric distribution improvements.

On November 1, 1989, WPS Power Development completed the purchase from

PPsL, Resources, Inc. of the Sunbury Station. The purchase includes a

389 megawatt coal fired plant, two oil-fired combusion turbines with a
capacity of 42 megawatts, coal inventories and a coal transshipment facility.
We plan to refinance the acquisition of this project with nonrecourse
long-term debt.

WPS Power Development's purchase of generation assets from Maine Public
Service which was financed with $37.5 million of short-term debt is being
refinanced with $24.0 million of nonrecourse long-term debt and equity from
its parent.

Other investment expenditures for nonregulated projects are uncertain since
there are few firm commitments at this time. Financing for most nonregulated
projects is expected to be obtained through nonrecocurse project financing
and/or through a new subsidiary, WPS Resources Capital Corporation, which was
formed in January 1999 to obtain funding for those projects.

Regulatory

Wisconsin Public Service received a rate order in the Wisconsin jurisdiction
on January 15, 1999. The impact is a $26.9 million increase in electric
revenues and a 510.3 million increase in gas revenues o©n an annual basis. The
new rates are effective for 1999 and 2000. The Public Sexrvice Commission of
Wisconsin authorized a 12.1% return on Wisconsin Public Service's eguity for

1999 and 2000.
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On July 1, 1999 Wisconsin Public Service filed to reopen this rate order to
congider issues related to the Kewaunee Nuclear Power FPlant, the recovery of
deferred expenses related to the repowering of Pulliam Unit 3, and the fuel
forecast for 2000. Hearings on the rate reopener were held on Octocber 12,
1999. As a result of those hearings, we expect to receive a $21.1 million or
4.6% electric rate increase with new rates to be implemented January 1, 2000.
The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin is expected to rule on this request
in December 1999.

Year 2000 Compliance

The Year 2000 issue arises because software programs, computer hardware, and
equipment that have date sensitive software or embedded chips may recognize a
date using "00" as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000. This may result
in system failures or other disruptions of operations.

WPS Resocurces and its subsidiary companies are committed to eliminating or
minimizing adverse effects of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue on our
business operations, including the products and services provided to
customers, and to maintaining our reputation as an efficient and reliable
supplier of energy. We, however, are unable to guarantee that there will be
ne adverse effects as a result of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue
because many aspects of compliance are beyond cur direct control.

We have undertaken a program to assess Year 2000 compliance and te bring
computer systems into compliance by the year 2000. All systems, including
energy production and delivery systems, other embedded systems, and third
party systems of suppliers were evaluated and steps were taken to resolve
potential problems.

A Year 2000 project plan which includes awareness, inventory and assessment,
remediation, testing, and implementation was developed. The formal awareness
phase of the Year 2000 project which includes understanding and communication
of the issue to employees, customers, suppliers, and other affected parties is
complete. The Year 2000 issue was communicated to our employees and customers
via several media. All of our business unit leaders are aware of the

Year 2000 project plan and their roles in implementing the plan.

Communication and response to Year 2000 inguiries continue.

The inventory and assessment phase which includes identification of all
information and non-information technology systems and of non-compliant
systems, applications, and hardware, is complete.

Our Information Technology Department has identified five major systems. Aall
of these systems (customer information, finance, human resources, materials
management, and facility management} are currently Year 2000 compliant.

In addition, all other systems including non-information technology systems
were identified and ranked as to the risk posed by non-compliance.
Non-information technology systems include computer and embedded systems
related to power plant, system operating, hydroelectric, transmission, and
other operating functions. All systems ranked as "critical," "severe," or
'high" are Year 2000 compliant.
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We hired an external consulting group to monitor the progress of our Year 2000
compliance activities. The consulting group's responsibilities include
performing a status check on cur ability to achieve Year 2000 compliance.

In addition, we have identified, contacted, and assessed suppliers and other
business partners for Year 2000 readiness, as these external parties may have
the potential to impact our Year 2000 readiness. We are alsc working to
address Year 2000 issues related to all joint ownership facilities. At the
present time, we are not aware of problems that would materially impact our
operations. However, we have no means of ensuring that all third parties will
be Year 2000 compliant in a timely manner, and the inability of these parties
to resolve successfully their Year 2000 issues could have a material impact on
our operations.

bue to fewer expenditures for hardware and software than originally
anticipated, the estimate of total Year 2000 project costs has been reduced teo
55.1 million. The Wisconsin retail portion of this cost has been approved for
rate recovery by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin. This estimate
includes internal labor costs of $2.0 million, scftware replacement costs for
non-compliant products of $1.2 millicon, and contract labor costs of

$1.9 million. Expenditures for the Year 2000 project incurred through
September 30, 1999, were $3.4 million.

The failure to correct a material Year 2000 problem could result in an
interruption in, or the failure of, certain normal business activities or
operations which could materially affect our results of operations. However,
due to the general uncertainty inherent in the Year 2000 issue, we are unable
to determine at this time whether the consequences of Year 2000 failures will
have a material impact on operations. A preliminary identification of
potential risks related to the failure to be in compliance by the Year 2000
was made. The most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000 scenario includes
loss or unavailability of some generation, partial loss of system monitoring
and control functions, partial loss of voice communications, loss of
transmigsion facilities, and loss of load or uncharacteristic loads. We
believe that the probable extent of any of these events is not significantly
in excess of similar events caused by normal risks and that the handling of
guch events is within the capabilities of the systems.

WPS Resources assessed the potential impact of failure to achieve Year 2000
compliance with respect to each of the following:

- Generation availability

- System menitoring and control functions

- Ability to restart generators that are out of service for planned
or unplanned ocutages

- Company-owned veoice/data communications

- Transmission facilities

- System protection

- Critical operating data (i.e., generation plant data)

- Electric and gas distribution systems

- Pipelines' constraints to the supply or pressure of natural gas

- Major support systems
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Contingency plans for dealing with Year 2000 issues were developed for each
application identified as "critical" ox "severe." 1In addition, a proposal for
a "guick response team" concept was drafted, and a process for handling
unexpected Year 2000 problems was formalized. A crisis management training
sesgion utilizing a Year 2000 case study has been completed.

Environmental

In September 1998, the Envircnmental Protection Agency reguired certain
states, including Wisconsin, to develop plans to reduce the emission of
nitrogen oxides from sources within the state by May of 2003. In May 1999,
the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia found the
national air quality standards for ozone and particulate matter flawed. The
Court stayed the requirement for states to file implementation plans by
September of 1999. The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin held a hearing
on October 19, 1999 to review the plans of Wisconsin utilities to meet the
pollution reduction standards. The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin has
already approved Phase I of the jointly owned Columbia Energy Center's
selective catalytic reduction installation. Wisconsin Public Service's cost
for this installation which is expected to be completed in the spring cf 2000
is $6.3 million.

Capital expenditures for complying with the original requirements in current
vear dollars are projected to be between $61.0 million and $112.0 million in
1999 dollars. The nature of any revised emission standard, the implementation
period for compliance, and the number of Wisconsin utilities required to
implement the new standard could impact future expenditure levels.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Wisconsin Public Service is a regulated electric and gas utility. Electric

operations accounted for 75% of revenues for the first nine months of 1999,

while gas operations accounted for 25% of revenues for the first nine months
of 1999,

Third Quarter 1999 Compared with Third Quarter 1998
Wigconsin Public Service Overview

Revenues at Wisconsin Public Service were $179.9 million in the third quarter
of 1999 compared with $158.0 million in the third quarter of 1998, an increase
of 13.9%. Earnings on common stock were $15.8 million in the third quarter of
1999 and 5$15.1 million in the third guarter of 1998, an increase of 4.6%. The
primary reasons for the increase in earnings on common stock were higher
electric utility and gas utility margins and an increase in other income.
Partially offsetting these factors were higher other operating expenses and
maintenance expenses.

Electric Utility Operations

Wisconsin Public Serxvice's consolidated electric utility margin increased

$5.3 million, or 5.9%%, primarily due to the implementation of a Public Service
Commiggion of Wisconsin rate crder which authorized a 6.3% increase in
Wisconsin retail electric rates.

Third Quarter
Wisconsin Public Service = 00000 mmm e e mmm oo

Electric Utility Margins (Thousands) 199% 1958

Revenues $149, 346 $132,107
Fuel and purchased power 54,517 42,550
Margin $ 94,829 $ B9,557
Sales in kilowatt-hours (Thousands) 3,137,697 3,177,521

Wisconsin Public Service's electric utility revenues increased $17.2 million,
or 13.0%. Although overall sales volumes at Wisconsin Public Service were down
1.3%, revenues were up 13.0% largely due to the Wisconsin retail electric rate
increase and to additicnal revenues from wholesale customers because of higher
prices received during a period of unusually warm weather early in the third
quarter of 1999.

Wisconsin Public Service's fuel expense increased $1.8 million, or 5.6%, due
to increased production at the combustion turbine generating plants.

Wisconsin Public Service's purchased power expense increased $10.2 million, or
91.4%, primarily due to additional purchase requirements during a period of
uniusually warm weather early in the third quarter of 1999. This increase was
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partially offset by purchases made late in the third quarter of 1999 when
purchased power prices were low.

The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin allows Wisconsin Public Service to
prospectively adjust the amount hilled to Wisconsin retail customers for fuel
and purchased power if costs fall outside a specified range. Wisconsin Public
Service is required to file an application to adjust rates either higher or
lower when costs are plus or minus 2.0% from forecasted costs on an annualized
basis. Forecasted annual 1999 fuel costs at September 30, 1999, are expected
to be within this 2.0% window.

Gas Utility Operations

The gas utility margin at Wisconsin Public Service increased $2.0 million, or
2.3%. Thig increase was primarily due to the implementation of a Public
Service Commission of Wisconsin rate order which authorized a 5.1% increase in
Wisconsin retail gas rates.

Third Quarter
Wisconsin Public Service's = 0000 e me

Gas Utility Margins {(Thousands) 199¢% 19298

Revenues $30,529 $25,890
Purchase costs 19,840 17,211
Margins $10,689 $ B,679
Volume in therms (Thousands) 103,748 96,586

Wisconsin Public Service's gas revenues increased $4.6 million, or 17.9%.
This increase was due to the implementation of new Wisconsin retail gas rates
and a 7.4% increage in overall therm sales.

Wisconsin Public Service's gas purchage costs increased $2.6 millicn, or
15.3%. This increase resulted from additional purchase reguirements and
higher gas costs in the third quarter of 1999. Under current regulatory
practice, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin and the Michigan Public
Service Commission allow Wisconsin Public Service to pass changes in the cost
of gas on to customers through a purchased gas adjustment clause.

Other Utility Expenses/Inccme

Other operating expenses at Wisconsin Public Service increased $1.5 million,
or 4.3%, primarily due to higher pension and post-retirement medical expenses
due to a decrease in the discount rate used to calculate these obligations.

Maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Service's fossil-fueled generation
plants increased $1.3 million due to additional costs for scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance activities. Electric transmission and distribution
maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Service increased %3.9% million
primarily due to costs for repairing storm damage experienced in the third
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gquarter of 1999 and for precertification costs associated with the proposed
Wausau to Arrowhead transmission line.

Price Risk Management Activities

Wisconsin Public Service engages in minimal price risk management activities
because much of the utility price risk exposure is recoverable through
customer rates.

Nine Months 1999 Compared with Nine Months 1998
Wisconsin Public Service

Revenues at Wisconsin Public Service were $534.9 million in the first nine
months of 1999 compared with $485.7 million in the first nine months of 1998,
an increase of 10.1%. Earnings on common stock were $49.8 million in the
first nine months of 19%9 and 544 .4 million in the first nine months of 1998,
an increase of 12.2%. The primary reasons for the increase in earnings on
common stock, as explained below, were higher electric and gas utility margins
and an increase in other income. Partially offsetting these factors were
higher other operating expenses and maintenance expenses.

Electric Utility Operations

Wisconsin Public Service's electric utility margin increased $12.7 million, or
5.0%, primarily due to the implementation of a January 15, 1999 Public Service
Commission of Wisconsin rate ordexr which authorized a 6.3% increase in
Wisconsin retail electric rates.

Nine Months
Wisconsin Public Service's = e m e

Electric Utility Margins (Thousands) 1999 1998

Revenues $401,523 $369,971
Fuel and purchased power 133,980 115,095
Margins $267,543 $254,876
Sales in kilowatt-hours (Thousands) 8,955,022 8,748,125

Wisconsin Public Service's electric utility revenues increased $31.6 million,
or 8.5%, largely due to the electric rate increase. Also contributing to
higher electric revenues was an 8.5% increase in overall kilowatt-hour sales.
These sales were largely the result of weather that was 12.3% colder in the
first nine months of 199% than in the first nine months of 1998. However,
weather was still 8.4% warmer than normal.

Wisconsin Public Service's electric production fuel expense increased

$2.3 million, or 2.8%, primarily as a result of increased generation
requirements at Wisconsin Public¢ Service's combustion turbine and nuclear
generating plants in the first nine months of 1999. Partially offsetting this
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factor was a decrease in production at the fossil-fueled generation plants as
a result of scheduled maintenance activities.

Wisconsin Public Service's purchased power expense increased $16.5 million, or
52.8%, primarily due to additional purchase requirements in the first nine
months of 1%9%9. Purchase requirements increased 40.2% at Wisconsin Public
Service due to lack of production at its fossil-fueled generation plants which
were off-line for scheduled maintenance activities in the first half of 1999.
In addition, the cost of purchases were 9.0% higher in the first nine months
of 1999 than in the same period in 1998.

The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin allows Wisconsin Public Service to
prospectively adjust the amount billed to Wisconsin retail customers for fuel
and purchased power if costs fall outside a specified range. Wisconsin Public
Service is required to file an application to adjust rates either higher or
lower when costs are plus or minus 2.0% from forecasted costs on an annualized
basis. Forecasted annual 193%% fuel costs at September 30, 19%9 are expected
to be within this 2.0% window.

Gag Utility Operations

The gas utility margin at Wisconsin Public Service increased $9.6 million, or
22.1%, in the first nine months of 1999. This increase was primarily due to
the implementation of a Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rate order
which authorized a 5.1% increase in Wisconsin retail gas rates and an increase
in therm sales.

Nine Months
Wisconsin Public Service's e e o

Gas Utility Margins (Thousands) 1999 1998

Revenues $133,384 $115,762
Purchase costs 80,617 72,545
Margins $ 52,767 $ 43,217
Volume in therms {Thousands) 475,829 434,315

Wisconsin Public Service's gas operating revenues increased $17.6 million, or
15.2%. This increase was due to the implementation of new Wisconsin retail
gas rates and a 9.6% increase in overall therm sales as a result of colder
weather in the first nine months of 1999. Although weather was 12.3% colder
in the first nine months of 1999 than in the first nine months of 1998, it was
still 8.4% warmer than normal. In addition, gas revenues at Wisconsin Public
Service in the first nine months of 1998 were reduced by $7.5 million for
refunds from ANR Pipeline Company which were passed on to its customers.

Wisconsin Public Service's gas purchase costs increased $8.1 million, or
11.3%. This increase was largely due to increased sales. Gas purchase costs
for the first nine months of 1998 were reduced due to the $7.5 million refund

from ANR Pipeline Company which was credited to gas expense in the third
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quarter of 1998. Under current regulatory practice, the Public Service
Commission of Wisconsin and the Michigan Public Service Commission allow
Wisconsin Public Service to pass changes in the cost of gas on to customers
through a purchased gas adjustment clause.

Other Utility Expenses/Income

Other cperating expenses at Wisconsin Public Service increased $8.1 million,
or 8.0%, primarily due to higher miscellaneous electric distribution expense
of $2.1 million, higher customer service expense of $3.2 million, and higher
pension costs of $2.8 million due to a decrease in the discount rate used to
calculate this expense.

Maintenance expense at Wisconsin Public Service increased $9.6 million, or
28.4%, primarily due to additional costs of $6.8 million for scheduled and
unscheduled maintenance activities at the fossil-fueled generation plants.
Maintenance of overhead lines also increased largely as a result of an
additional estimated cost of $1.4 million for repairing storm damage
experienced in the third guarter of 1999. Precertification costs increased
$0.7 million due to expenses associated with the proposed Wausau to Arrowhead
transmission line.

Price Risk Management Activities

Wisconsin Public Service engages in minimal price risk management activities
because much of the utility price risk exposure is recoverable through
customer rates.

FINANCIAL CONDITION - WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE
Invegstments and Financing

Special common stock dividends of $25.0 million were paid by Wisconsin Public
Service to WPS Resources in the first nine months of 1999. Equity infusions
of $45.0 million were made by WPS Resources to Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation in the first nine months of 1999. These special dividends and
equity infusions allowed Wisconsin Public Service's average equity
capitalization ratio for ratemaking to remain at its target level as
established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin in its most recent
rate order.

Internally generated funds exceeded cash requirements in the first nine months
of 1999 resulting in a $5.0 million reduction in short-term borrowings.

Pretax interest coverage was 4.48 times for the 12 months ended September 30,
1999. See the table below for Wisconsin Public Service's credit ratings.

Credit Ratings Standard & Poor's Moody's

Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

Bends AR+ Aa2
Preferred stock AR aas
Commercial paper Al+ Pl
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See WPS Resources' management discussion at page 26 for additional information
regarding Wisconsin Public Service's financial condition.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclogures About Market Risk
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk are reported under
"price Risk Management Activities (WPS Energy Services)" as part of Item 2,

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, on pages 20 and 21.
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Part II. QOTHER INFORMATION
Item 5. Other Information
Purchase of Electric Generation Units

On November 1, 1999, WPS Power Development, Inc. completed the purchase of the
389 megawatt, coal-fired Sunbury Station from PP&L Resources, Inc. The total
purchase price is $106.0 million. Included in the purchase are two cil-fired
combustion turbines with a capacity of 42 megawatts, coal inventories, and a
coal transshipment facility.

Legislation

On October 27th, the Governor signed the State of Wisconsin Budget Bill. The
Bill included several items affecting utilities and utility holding companies.
The legislation:

- Changes the asset cap for three investor-owned utility holding
companies, including WPS Resources, to allow investments in energy and
energy-related business which would be exempt from the asset cap
calculation,

- Requires the utility subsidiaries of these three utility holding
companies to place their transmission assets into a statewide
transmission company as a condition of applying the new asset cap
provisions, and

- Increases the amount of public benefits spending used for low-income
energy assistance, conservation and renewable energy research.

The statewide transmission company will be owned by those utilities
transferring transmission assets into the new company. This transmission
company will own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin and neighboring
states. These legislative changes do not require any public utility to
contribute its transmission facilities to the transmission company. The bill
only requires such a transfer as a condition of granting relief to a public
utility holding company from the asset cap.
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Item 6.

Exhibite and Reports on Form B-K

(a)

(b)

Exhibits

The following documents are included as a part of this
filing.

Exhibit 12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and
Ratic of Earnings to Fixed Charges
and Preferred Dividends

Exhibit 27 Financial Data Schedule
WPS Resources Corporation
Wiscomsin Public Service Corporation

Reports on Form 8-K

None
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant, WPS Resources Corporaticn, has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

WPS Resources Corporation

Date: November 3, 1999 /s/ Diane L. Ford

Diane L. Ford
Vice President - Controller
and Chief Accounting Officer

(Duly Authorized Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer)
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant, Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Wisconsgin Public Service Corporation

Date: November 3, 1999 /s/ Diane L. Ford

Diane L. Ford
Vice President - Controller

(Duly Authorized Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer)
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WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION AND
WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION
EXHIBIT INDEX TC FORM 10-Q
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 19858

Exhibit No. Description
12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of
Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends
27 Financial Data Schedule

WPS Resources Corporation
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
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WPS Resources Corporatioh at a Glance &@

WPS Resources Corporation

WPS Resources Corporation is a holding company kased in Green Bay, Wisconsin.
System companies provide products and services in both regulated and nonregulated energy markets.

W Wisconsin Pubiic Service Corporation
W {ipper Peninsula Power Company

WISCONSIN PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATION

Business: Wisconsin Public Service Corporation (“WPSC") is a regulated
efectric and gas utility which serves an 11,000 square-mile area of
Northeastern and Central Wiscensin and an adjacent portion of Upper
Michigan (see map abave). WPSG has 2,372 employees.

Market: WPSC provides 381,192 electric and 224,058 natural gas
customers with a full range of products and services customarily offered by
regulated utilities. Electric and gas service is provided to residential, farm,
commercial, and industrial customers. Electric power is also provided to
wholesale customers. Eiectric operations accounted for 75% of 1998
revenues, while gas operations contributed 25%. Electric revenues are
comprised of 88% setail sales and 11% whelesale sales. Wisconsin
customers accounted for 97% of the utility's 1998 revenues, compared with
3% from Michigan customers.

Facilities: Electric generating capacity based on 1998 summer capacity
was 1,795 megawatts, including WPSC's share of joinily-owned facilifies.
WPSC has 1,549 miles of electric transmission and 19,556 miles of electric
distribution lines. Gas properties include 4,774 miles of main and 63 gate
and city requiator stations.

UrPER PENINSULA POWER COMPANY

Business: Upper Peninsula Power Company ("UPPCO™ is a reguiated
electric utility which serves a 4,000 square-mile area of primarily rural
countryside covering 0 of the 15 counties in Upper Michigan (see map
ahove). UPPCO has 195 employeas.

Market: UPPCO provides a full range of electric products and services to
48,272 electric customers in 99 communities and adjacent areas in addition
to providing electric energy to 9 whotesale customers. The main industries
in UPPCO’s service area are forest products, iron mining and processing,
tourism, and small manutacturing, Electric revenues are comprised of 92%
refail sales and 8% wholesale sales.

Facilities: Electric generating capacity based on 1998 summer capacity
was 95 megawatts, including UPPCO's share of jaintly-owned facilities.
UPPCO has 806 miles of electric transmission and 2,753 miles of elestric
distribution lines.

WPS ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

Business: WPS Energy Services, Inc. (“ESI"), is a diversified
nonregulated energy company with principal operations in Iilinois,
Michigan, Ohio, and Wiscansin (see map below). Wholesale sales are
provided on a nalionwide basis.

Markets: ES| operates in the retail and wholesale nonregulated energy
marketptace. Emphasis is on serving commerciai, industrial, and
wholesale customers.

Products and Services: ESI provides individualized energy supply
options and sirategies that allow custamers to manage energy needs while
capitalizing on opportunities resulting from deregulation. ESI provides
natural gas. eleciric, and alternate fuel products, real-time energy
management services, energy ulilization consulting, and project
managsment. Proprietary DEN&{® computer technotogy allows custcmers :
to monitor their energy usage and to access energy stipply information. &

WPS POWER DEVELOPMENT, INC.

W VFS Energy Services, Ine.

W \vPS Power Development, Inc.
W Boih WPS Energy Services, Inc. and WPS Power Development, Inc.

Business: WPS Power Development, fnc. ("PDI") develops and owns
nonregulated electric generation facilities and provides services to the
electric power generation industry nationwide (see map below).
Produets and Services: PDI' services include acquisition and
investmert analysis, project develepment, enginedring and management
services, and operations and maintenance services. POl's areas of expertise
include cogeneration, disiributed generation, generation from renewables,
and generation plant repowering projects.

Facilities: PDI owns 2 two-thirds interast in tha Stoneman Power Plant,
a 53-megawatt coal-fired merchant steam plant located in Cassville,
Wisconsin. PDI also owns landfill gas generating facilities. PDI is in the
final stages of acquiring 82 megawatts of generation assets from Maine
Public Service Company, These facilities are located in the State of Maine
and in New Brunswick, Canada. PDI also is a two-thirds owner and the
operator of a facility in Jasper County, Alabama which turns coal mining
resigue into briquettes which are burned in utility boilers.




A letter to our rka/ehow.r

SETTING THE COURSE FOR THE FUTURE

To OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

In 1998, WPS Rescurces Corporation.set a course thal will lead to

our continued success in the next miltennium. We are driven biy our

" customers’ needs and a regulatory environment that is moving toward
increased competition. Our path promises growih. As we proceed, one
thing will be canstant—our commitment te supplying our customers.with
excellent, reliable, competitively-priced enargy and services. This is the
hallmark of our company. With that in mind, ['d like to review for you where
we've been and map out where we intend to go.on the course ahead.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Let me start by saying that 1998 was a challenging year for us, as it
was for many energy companies. There were notable ascomplishments,
although our financial resufts did not meet expectations.
WPS Resources Corporation
#Revenues exceeded $1.0 billion for the first time.
*Nsai income was $46.6 million in 1998 compared with $55.8 million
in1997.
sEarnings per share for 1998 were $1.76 compared with $2.10
(restated from $2.25 to reflect the merger with Upper Peninsuta
Energy Corporation) in 1997.
Utility Operations - Wisconsin Public Service
Corporation and Upper Peninsula Power Company
o Net income was $57.6 million in 1598 compared with
$65.3 million in 1997,
»Electric margins were $376.0 million in 1898 compared wiih
$365.0 million in 1997.
*(Gas margins were $59.2 million in 1998 compared with
$63.3 million in 1997
*Ngn-fuel operating and mainienance expenses were
$208.1 million in 1998 compared with $194.9 million in 1997.
Nonregulated Subsidiaries - WPS Energy Services, Inc.
and WPS Power Development, Inc.
»Revenues were $357.2 million in 1998 compared with
$192.0 million in 1897,
= _osses lofaled $9.3 mitlion in 1998 compared with $5.9 million
in 1997,

A nusnber of factors contributed to our decreased earnings.
Abnormal weather had a significant impact on operating results. The year
1998 included both an extremely mild first quarier as well as the warmest
December an record for the area served by Wisconsin Public Service.
QOverall, the weather was 17 6 percent warmer than nermal resulting in an
estimated 37-cents reduction in earnings per share. Continued

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

praparation for future growth at our nenregulated subsidiaries anc
unprecedented market volatility leading to electric and gas trading losses
at WPS Energy Services also contributed to reduced earnings. Additionally,
our merger with Upper Peninsufa Energy resulted in a dilution of eamings
last year.

Financial Goals

Our future course includes the following financial goals:

= Aichieving a return for Wisconsin Public Service cansistent with the
Public Service Commission of Wiscansin's {("PSCW") allowed rale
of return of 12.1 percent for 1999 and 2000.

« Achieving profitability within the nonregulated segment of our
business starting in 1999,

s Achigving 10 percent of earnings from our nonregulated operations
by 2000. This will be possible if additional eleciric and gas markels
open to competition in Gur target market areas.in the very
near future,

= Achigving a dividend payoui ratio below 70 percent over time.

«Increasing shareholder value through growth.

ROADWAY TO SUCCESS

The read we traveled during 1998 foslered many successes. These
achievements pave the way for new endeavors and for meeting our financial
goals for the future.

Growth For Qur Nonregulated Businesses - Expansion of our
nonregulated businesses fs both a story of success in 1998 and a glimpse
inte our future, WPS Power Development, Inc. (“PDI"} was ihe successiul
biddar in the purchase of 92 megawatis of Maine Public Service Company’s
generation assets. We expect to complete this acquisition in the spring of
1999. Also, PDI became the co-owner and operator of a facility in Alabama
which turns coal mine waste into briguettes which are then sold for use as
fuel in utility boilers.

WPS Energy Services, Inc. {"ESI"), our nonregulated energy marketer,
continued to expand- aggressively its custamer base and increase revenugs
in 1998. Most of this growth occurred from the sale of natural gas, because
electricity markets havent opened to compefition as fast as many predicted.
An exampte of ESI's ability to aitract customers is its successiul
participation in a customer choice program with Columbia Gas of Ohio.
More than 13,000 Columbia Gas cusiomers, when given the choice;
switched to ESI for their natural gas, and ESI continues to add customers
at a steady pace. This is just one component of the 85 percent revenue
increase at ESI last year. Future growth at WPS Resources will increasingly
be fueled by the successful efforts of our nonregulated companies.



Completion of UPEN Merger - Qur merger with Upper Peninsula
Energy Corporation was completed on September 29, 1998, This is an
imporiant part of our growth strategy, and we are pieased to be providing an
additional 48,000 customers with outstanding energy-related products and
services. The integration of our two companies has gone well, and we are
on track io obtain the long-term savings and sirategic bengfits we expected.

Reliable Power Supply - While other parts of the Midwest
experienced power shartages last summer, WPS Resources’ regulated
ulilities had adequate generation capacity to provide our cusiomers with a
reliable power supply. The demand for electricity in the region last surmmer
alsa enabled our jointly-owned and nenregulated Stoneman generation
facility ko produce more efectricity than we had expected.

Kewaunee Plant's Future Secured - The resolution of both the
owngrship and steam generator replacement issues invoiving our jointly-
owned Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant was @ major accomplishment.

Irs April, the PSCW approved replacement of Kewaunee's steam generators.
In Sepiember, Wiscansin Public Service and Madison Gas and Electric
Company (“MG&E") finalized arrangements for Wisconsin Public Service to
buy MG&E's 17.8 percent share of Kewauneg, bringing our total ownership
share to 59 percent in 2000. We, along with our remaining co-owner,
Wisconsin Power and Light Company, are now prepared to replace the
steam generators in 2000, Kewaunze has histarically provided reliable,
low-cost energy without the environmental cancerns asseciated with fossil
fuel generation. So, we are pleased to be able to keep Kewaunse as an
important part of our energy supply picture.

New Rates and Earnings Picture - The PSCW authorized a
6.3 percent increase in electric rates and a 5.1 percent increase in natural
gas rates for Wisconsin Public Service effective January 15, 1999, The
glectric increase is Wisconsin Public Service’s first since 1993 and follows
several years of electric rate decreases, We are pleased to say that even with
the increase, elestric rates charged by Wisconsin Public Service are the
lowest overall among state utiliies. The PSCW also increased Wisconsin
Public Service's autharized rate of rejurn from 11.8 percent to 12.1 percent,
citing current financial market conditions, managerial performance for utility
operations, relationships between the earings of other Wisconsin utilities,
‘as well as the increasing husiness risk and the need 1¢ maintzin financial
integrity in the interest of our shareholders.

Our FUTURE COURSE
Our strategy for achieving growth includes initiatives in the follawing
areas as stepping stones to success:

WPS Power Development, Inc. in Pursuit of Genaration -
PDI will continue to pursue actively the purchase of generation facilities
from utilities and other companies who are selling their generation assets.

We also plan to develop new generation facilities as we bring our
operations and managemeant expertise to the electric generation segment of
the nonregulated energy market. Our seasch for opportunities will be limited
to the United States and Canada where we understand the business risks.

WPS Energy Services, Inc. in Pursuit of Earnings - We will
focus on improving gas margins while we continue to grow ESI's gas

revenues. Further, we beligve that we are well positioned 1o offer electric

service to our gas customers when electric markets open to campetition.
We will use the generation assets acquired or developed by POI to support
these electric marketing efforts, We're looking forward {0 the challenges and
opportunities provided by competition.

Our Regulated Utilities Seek Expansion - Our merger with
Upper Peninsula Energy is just one example of the growth we seek.
However, we recognize that our regulated utilities also face many
challenges. To position our ufility businesses for the future, we have
established separate genaration, transmission, disiribution, and support
services business units. Not anly does-this allow us to betier manage these
functions today, but it also gives us valuable information with which we can
respond fo indusiry changes.

Infrastructure Development - As fast as our business is
changing, so too is technology changing. To this end, in 1998 we
completed a strategic information systems plan that has identified key
areas for system development. As a result, Wisconsin Public Service will
be installing the first automated meter reading systern in Wiscensin capable
of reading meters remotely on demand. We are also implementing a new
corporate maintenance management system which will allow us to
maintain our facililies in a cost-effective and timely manner, Also, ESI
has expended significant resources acquiting the computer technology
necessary to meet ils customers' needs.

Capitalizing on Alliances and Joint Projects - We realize that
ong way to be successiul on the course we have set is to capitalize on our
strengths by working with other companies who share our vision for the
fulure. The following are examples of steps we are taking ta achieve greater
banefits for our shareholders:

« Marinette Combustion Turbine - When MG&E encountered
difficulty in its efforis to build additional generation capacity,
Wisconsin Public Service stepped forward and offered to build a
gombustion turbine for them at our Maringtte site. This is an
opportunity for us to satisfy a need of MG&E and, at the same iime,
add a generation facility in a portion of our service territory that is
in need of additional capacity.

* Nuclear Management Company - Wiscansin Public Service is
joining with Northern States Power Company, Wisconsin Electric
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Power Company, and Alifant Energy to identify ways we can befter
wark together to manage the seven nuclear units operated by the
group. In addition to gaining efficiencies in the operation of our
Kewaunee plant, it gives us additionat flexibitity in setting our
course for the fuure.

« Noylheast Communications - We have aligned with Northeast
Communications, a telecommunications company, in an effort
to use our combingd resources and facilities te improve
operational efficiency, reduce costs, and provide more cheices
for our customers.

» Badger Energy Alliance - Wisconsin Public Service has joined with
several regional electric cooperatives in forming the Badger Energy
Alliance. Members have found that cooperating in the areas of
planning, purchasing, operations, and maintenance £ould help each
company improve i1s products and services.

Shaping Regulatory and Legislative Actions - We actively
participate in shaping reguiatory and legislative changes in the states where
we provide services. The course we advocate is based upon listening to the
needs and desires of our customers. Our customers are telling us that they
will be hest served by changes which will bring about an adevuate energy
supply, a more rebust fransmission system, the benefits of 4 truly
independent operatar of the eleciric transmission system, and competitive
markets. We concur,

Strengthening Leadership - Cne of our critica! needs as we
embark upon our course is streng leadership throughout WPS Resources.
We are calling upon mare peopie to provide leadership to guide us through
seas of change as we strive to be responsive to our customers' needs.
Therefore, | am personally committed 1o wosking with each of eur senior
leaders to assure that they are reagy for the challenges ahead and have the
support and resources they need. Similar efforts are under way at all levels
of our corporation.

We are 2150 adding new expertise to our leadership team. Most
recently, we brought in Brad Andress as Vice President-Marketing
2 Wisconsin Public Service. He comes to us from outside the-wtility
industry and will be a valuable resource as we move io & competitive
environment. Additionally, Neal Siikarla joined the WPS Resources family
as Vice President, bringing extensive experience in Wisconsin ulility
matters as he focuses on corporate planning and finance.

| also wish to acknowledge two other members of our Ieadership team
far their efforts in setting our course for the future. Sister Lois Bush, a
member of our Board of Directors since 1993, is not seeking re-election in
1999. Clark Steinhardt, Senior Vice President-Nuclear at Wisconsin Public
Service, retired in January after 31 years of dedicated service. They have both
played impertant roles in our success and in seffing our course for the future,

@

—

MovVING FORWARD

The pace of change is not slowing in our industry—it's accelerating.
We know we cannot continue to do things the same way we did in the
past—no matter how successhu! we have been. As a result, we have set
out on a course that will lead to continued growth. | invite you to learn
more about this course in the following article which highlights the vigws
of our management team.

We appreciate the confidence you have shown in our company and
ask for your support in our journey. We are ready for the challenges ahead,
and we lock forward to the future and giving you, our shareholders, an
opportunity to share in our succasses.

Sincerely, .
Larry L. Weyess

Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

February 12, 1999

WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION
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SETTING THE COURSE

Qur vision for WPS Resources Corporation continues 10 be, “People
Creating the World's Premier Energy Company.”

We are challenged in this effort by electric industry restructuring and
a rapidly evolving energy marketplace. We know that our abilily 1o thrive
amid these changes is the key to increased value for our shareholders.
For this reason, the employees of
WPS Resources and its subsidiaries are
sefting a course for our future—one that

“THE GoAL Is
FIXED IN THE MIND
AS ONE.”

"GOOSE SEND-OFF,” OWEN NEILL

will move us from past successes in a
regulated environment e vigorous
growth in competilive markets. We are,
in other words, learning to be successiul
all over again.

SUSTENANCE FOR THE JOURNEY: OUR VALUES AND BELIEFS
Bemara /. remi, Vice Fresident-Human Resources

“The energy industry is changing, and we are creating change within
the WPS Resources system companies. Yet, as we travel the course we set
for our future, our enduring source of strength will be WPS Resources’
values and beliefs. These will not change. These will sustain us.

“First and foremost, we value the capabilities of aur pecple. If we are
to be successful, it will be through our employees. So we trust in their
abilily o learn and change, and we provide the toals they need to prepare
themselves for new challenges.

“Our Learning Centers illustrate his. These centers, tocated
throughout our company, provide the resources for employees to sharpen
their skills or learn a new part of the energy business. We help them
connect with educational advisors and new opportunities so they are ready
to journey with us an the course ahead. Wa are also strengthening leaders
at all levels throughout our WPS Resources companies, so individuals are
prepared 1o step forwarg when and where they are needed. Efforts like
{hese represent a shared responsibility for learning and development
between WPS Resources and gach employee.

“The central belief that will carey us forward is, ‘We must excel at
meeting our customers’ needs.” Qur employees live out this corporate
belief avery day through excellence and dedication in their work, | have
seen employees from all areas of the company drop everything to serve
the customer and do whatever is needed o help. An example is our
employees’ response during unprecedented wind sterms and flooding in
our area last year.

“As we procesd on the course Defore us, our every aclion will
coniinue to be guided by our values and beliefs, and our desire to serve
our customers with excelience.”

STAYING THE COURSE: WPS RESOURCES’ REGULATED UTILITIES
Fatrick 0. Sehritkel Erecuiive Vice Presivent

“To WPS Resources, growing in the energy business means serving
our customers even better than we have in the pasl. It alse means serving
more customers and providing new praducts and services. Each step
of the way, we will increase the value our company holds for eur
shareholdars. This is the course we are setting for our future.

“Improving the way we serve our customers begins with learning
mare about them. As the energy industry changes, WPS Resources’
regulated utilities—Wisconsin Public Service Corporation and
Upper Peninsula Power Company—are conducting research that helps us
better understand our customers’ values and needs. Gur senior managers
are visiting our largest cusiomers to lalk
ahout where thair companies are going and
what's happening in the energy industry.
We're listening as our customers telf us how
we can partner with them going forward.

“With the insights we gain from our
customers, we're able to enhance the
products and services we offer and develop
new choices ihal our customers valug,
Advanced Power Services, far ane, is a
family of services Wisconsin Public Service
reintroduced in November. These services—
power quality analysis, energy demand and
consumption monitoring, and thermal

R Buid Trermi Vige President-Human
scanning to identify heat loss—had always '

been available to our customers. Bul we
hadn't proactively marketed them. When we
listened to our industrial customers, we
learned that power quality and reliability are
ameng their tog energy concerns and that
they weren‘! sure where they could go for
these types of services. So we changed our
approach. We gathered more resources and

Fesources, befieves il Sugporting e
EVITORITIENY 17 Wish our Emplgyees,
customess, and shareholders Ar'm? /5 on¢
G Way {0 SRaW W vallie Hen
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Setting The Course

more expertise 1o offer Advanced Power Services in a way that best meets
our customers’ needs.

“In addition to improving the way we da things for our current
cusiomers, we're pursuing growth in the number and geographic reach of
the customers we serve. Wisconsin Public Service is aggressively
expanding its natural gas system, both in iis existing service area and
beyond. Adding customers
in new markets gives us
room fo grow, because if
we serve these customers
| well, we believe they will
4 choose us as both their
M clectric and natural gas
supplier when they are
given that choice.

“WPS Resources’
merger with Upper
; Peninsula Energy

“ES| seils natural gas and electricity 1o retail and wholesale
customers in unregulated markets. For most cusiomers, natural gas is
deregulated before electricity. Our strateqy is to enter new markets with
our natural gas offerings and earn our new customers' loyalty. Down the
road, when these customers are able to choose their electricily supplier,
we believe we will also have earned their electric business.

“Right now, ESI has regional offices in Green Bay; Chicago; Port
Huron, Michigan; and Columbus, Ohio. In August, we joined 2 program that
allows residential and small commercial customers of Columbia Gas of
(hio to choose heir natural gas supplier. By the end of 1998, FSG Energy
Services. a divisicn of ESI, had acquired more than 13,000 new customers
through the program. This is a promising entry inlo a new market.

“ESI's revenues increased significantly in 1998, with sales reaching
$351.3 million—an 85 percent increase over 1997. Qur gperations,
however, did not show a profit. This is primarily because we experienced
electric and gas trading losses during the year. We are also continuing to
make investments to acquire new

custemers and to develop the systems,

Corporation irt 1938 also
fits this strategy of seeking
room in which fo grow. In

pracesses, and people needed to
operate effectively and expand rapidly.
For example, our risk management
systems are being enhanced so that we
can operals with reduced risk in volatile
markeis, such as the electric market
last June.

“The synergies between our two
unregulated subsidiaries are important

"...THE QUIET
THUNDER OF EAGER
WINGS TRYING
WHAT THE NORTH
WINDS SAY”

"GOOSE SEND-OFF,” OWEN NEILL

{ eadling two nonreguialed energy companies

means festing the waters for what lies ahead.

Phil MkalrS.‘fy, Senior Vice President- this case, Dar[ of our p|an

is to bring natusal gas to
customers in Michigan's
Upper Peninsula.
“Another way
WPS Resources has

Development and an outdoor enthusiast,
accepls this challenge and uses his skills to

successfully lead ESI and PD! info new markels

and to greater levels of achievement.

carried oul its
growth strateqy is by aligning with Northeast Communications, a
telecommunications company. Some wauld ask how telecommunications
{ils with staying the course of energy and energy-related business, but it
is very obvious to us. The networks and products we jointly create with
Northeast Communications will provide more choices for our customers.
As this parinership of energy and communications develops, we anticipate
growth opportunities far both companies.,”

NAVIGATING UNCHARTED WATERS: WPS RESOURCES'
UNREGULATED COMPANIES
Phillip M. Mikulsky, Senior Vice President-Development

“WPS Resources’ unregulated companies—WPS Energy Services,
Inc. ("ESI") and WPS Power Development, Inc. ("PDI"}—are pursuing
growth where our regulated utilities cannot venture.

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

as WPS Resources moves forward, with

ESI marketing energy and PDI building and acquiring generating assets.
ES! can look to POI to generate a portion of the electricity it selts.
Conversely, PD) works through ESI to market the power it generaies,

“PDI continues io be active in unrequlated generation. As states
restructure their electric industries, many utilities are selling their
generating asseis—and we're trying to capitalize on this trend. For
instance, PDI is in the process of acquiring 92 megawatis of genaration
from Maine Public Service Company. PDI also continues to operate ihe
Stoneman Generating Station, a merchant eleciric generating plant located
in Cassville, Wisconsin, which sells the electricity it produces to other
energy suppliers. We own two-thirds of this 55-megawatt plant, and ESI
markets the pawar it produces,

“Beyond generation, PDI operates a facility that retrieves coal fines
leit behind during coal praduction. These fines are formed into briqueties,
which are used as boiler fuel by operalors of electric generation facilities.



[ Setting The Course

“Together, ESI and PD) are setting a cours that allows us to take have this new, approximately 180-megawatt gas-fired power plant
greater advantage of rends in the evalving unregulated marketplace. We on line for the summer of 1999, which is earlier than originally planned.
are preparing for the day when almost all energy consumers will be able in the second phase of the De Pere Energy Cenier project, to be complated
to choose their energy supptier. Certainly, we will encounter ihe by 2004, the plant will be converted to combined cycle operation, and its
unexpected s we navigate the course ahead, but we are confident that capacity will increase to about
our employess are up to the ¢hallenge.” 255 megawalts.
“In addition, in 1998 we

MAINTAINING BALANCE: A RELIABLE ENERGY SUPPLY
Thomas P, Meinz, Vice President—Public Affairs

“Summer 1998 brought a volatile energy market that tested
many energy companies' ability to serve their customers. Regionally,
the supply of electricity became a concern, due in large part 1o outages
at nuclear power plants throughout the Midwest. Nevertheless,

Wisconsin Public Service was able to mainiain & reliable power supply
for our customers because all of our generating facilities—coal,
hydroelectric, and nuclear—as well as our delivery systems,
performed flawlessly.

“The Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant, specifically, is imporiant to
our course for the future far two reasons:; First, it he!ps ensure reliable,
economical power for our customers. Secand, {t's a clean source of power
at a-time when cancerns for the environment are increasing. [n 1998, the
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin ("PSCW™) affirmed the value of
the Kewaunee plant by granting permission.to replace its steam generators
in 2000. This should allow the plant to operate until its license expires in
2013, if not fonger.

"Wisconsin Power and L.ight, one of our ca-owners in the Kewaunee
plant, will proceed with us to replace the steam generators. Madison Gas
and Efectric {"MG&E"), the third
co-owner, has chosen not to proceed.

agreed to assist MG&E by
building, operating, and
maintaining for them an
83-megawatt electric peaking
plant in Marinette, Wisconsin.
This new generating unit will add
to the region’s power supply and
reliability beginning in 2000.
“These efforts shaw that
WPS Resources is dedicated to
and capable of providing reliable
power not only for our customers
but also fer the region. In the
State of Wisconsin, we have
also been extensively involved
in shaping legislation that
will improve pawer supply

Moving Wisconsin from a tully reguiated

glectric industry lo 2 compelitive en..lzrgy

and reliability. market requires vision and strong '
“A 1998 law, for instance,

requires utifities to build

additional renewable generation

in the state by July 1, 2000, and knowledge lo investigate transm!ssifm
1" . . !
WHAT DO WINDS  Because of our confidence in the PSCW is requiring electric '

WHISPER 1 Kewaungee, Wisconsin Public Service
N will acquire MG&E's 17.8 percent share

CLEVER EARS THAT inthe plant, bringing our ownership

level to 59 percent.
MAKES THE TIME P
“In the near future, the

leadership. Dick James, Vice Presfdgnt-
|

Corporate Planning, is using his industry

° oplions and prepare the regional |
utilities to carry a larger reserve

margin than in the past.
Wisconsin Public Service, for its will facilitate compelitive energy markets.
pari, will add 9 megawalts of

renewable generation, We've chosen to build 14 wind turbines in

Lo . to.
transmission system for expansion which

TO GO JUST . ] ) |
J De P?l;e Fnergy senter‘ will also be Northeastern Wiscansin, which will begin producing electricity by July 1, i
rn K
RIGHT? contributing to the region’s power 1999, Our existing 18 percent reserve masgin already meets the.new i
supply. Wisconsin Public Service . . ‘
"Goose SEND-OFF," OWEN NEILL refiability requiraments.

has a 26-year contract to purchase
energy and capacity from the center,
which is being built and will be operated by an independent
power producer, SkyGen Energy LLC. We've worked with SkyGen to

"During 1999, WPS Resources wil! continue doing everything it can
to ensure a plentiful power supaly for our customers’ needs. At the same
iime, we will be working to resofve market issues in ways that help our
company grow and benefit our shareholders.”

o WPS RESQURCES CORPORATION
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Dan Bittner, Viice President and Chief Financial Officer (feft)

and Tom Meinz, Vice President-Public Affairs (right), both

avig cyelists, lead different areas of the company. Still, they

are traveling one course with one goal in mind—helping

B

WPS Resources grow in the energy busingss. As a resuft,

says Bitiner, we will be able to share with you, our

o

shareholders, the rewards c;f our journey.




EXPLORING PATHWAYS: TRANSMISSION UPGRADES AND ELECTRIC
INDUSTRY RESTRUCTURING
Richard £ James, Vice Presideni—Lorporaie Planning

“Flectric industry restructuring is moving slawly in the Midwest,
Many changes are needed, including new generation; additional electric
transmission lines; a leve! playing field for ulility companies,
independent power preducers, and customers alike; and the ability
for custorers to choose their energy supplier.

“Energy supplies, of course, must be adequate to meet
tustomers' needs. And once the energy is procuced, it must be
delivered to customers. Electric transmission lines are the pathways
over which energy suppliers—WPS Resources' compantes included—
transpon electricity to their customers. More transmission lines will be
built in the years ahead to make possible the movement of larger
amounts of power and to facilitate 2 compelitive energy market.

*The Wisconsin legislature recognizes the importance of the
region’s fransmission system to electric industry restrucluring. in 1998,
it enacted a law that requires eleciric utilities to become asscciated with
an independent system operator by mid-2000. The independent system
operator will impartially manage the electric transmission system for the
benefit of energy Suppliers as well &s customers who can choose their
Energy supplier.

"When. it comes to customer choice, WPS Resources continues to
promote the approach we have always recommended—Iet the customer
decide. Some customers, such as our large ingustrial customers, are
already experienced at purchasing natural gas on the open market. I{'s
a logical next step for them to ask for customer choice in the electric
market as well, Other customers, such as-our residential customers,
do not have this experience and probably will embrace customer choice
mose slowly.

“By supporting our customers' needs and desires as greater
customer choice approaches, and by investing in additional capacity
and new transmission lines, we are actively setting a course that
benefits our customers, encourages growth, and means rewards for
our investors. We believe this approach is econamically wise,
yet stll progressive in the changing environment.”

REWARDS OF THE JOURNEY; SHAREHOLDER VALUE
Darvel P Bittner Vice Prasidlent and Ciief Financial Officer

“Each step we take in charting our course for the future, every
preparation we make for our journey, has a singular purpese—helping
WPS Resources grow in the energy business. Through cur growth,
we-will incraase the value of our company.

Setting The Course

*Amid all of the changes described in this report, WPS Resources
is still viewed by the financial community and our shareholders as a ‘
strong. high-guaiity investment. We are also one of only two electric !
utilities in the nation earning a AA+ credit rating by Standard & Poor’s. J
To be keld in this regard validates the seund decisions our company {
makes, such as keeping our rates among the lowest in the region, '
maintaining a conservative capilal structure, and limiting our exposure
to stranded invesiments (costs ulilities incur in a reguiated environment
that may not ba recovered in a competitive marketplace).

“Iry planning our course for the future, we have relied on values
and beliefs thaf are limeless, on leaders who are visionary. We've
created a company where learning never ends, and where learning about
our customers leads o action. We've added new customers in new
markets, and our new businesses have grown substantially, mcluding |
unregulated gas sales in Ohio, unregulated.generation, and the recycling
of coal fines. These arg the ventures thal will lead to increased earnings
far WPS Resources in the years aheac.

"Without a doubt, we are changing with the rapidly evolving

energy environment. At the same time, - T
we're influencing change within this

. "
environment. We support an engrgy Our WORLD...

industry with plentiful power for our
customars and a strong transmission
system. We beligve in offering the
choices our customers are comforable
making when it comes to buying
electricity and natural gas. Ang we're
adamant about a restructured energy :
industry that creates a level playing :

WILL REAP

HAVE MODESTLY
SOWN."”

"GOOQSE SEND-OFF,” DWEN NEILL

field for everyone involved, including
utilities, independent power marketers, cooperatives, and municipalities. i

“Down the road, our success in having chosen a soung course \
for the fulure will be evidenced by an ever-increasing number of loyal
customers who find vatue ir the products and services we provide, !
Our shareholders' faith in WPS Resources is expected to bear itself |
out in increased sharehalder value—a greater reward in exchange
for the greater risks they assume as investors in the changing

nergy business.

“In conclusion, WPS Resources assures you thai we are
seiting a course for the future both financially as well as
operationally. And we look forward ta sharing with you, our
shareholders, the rewards of our joumney.”

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION
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This report includes forward-looking
tatements within the meaning of Section 21E
f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
mended. The statements speak of plans, goals,
eliefs, or expectations of WPS Resousces
orporation ("WPSR"™), refer to estimates, or use
imilar terms. Although WP3R believes that its
xpectations are based on reasonable
ssurmptions, actual resulis may differ materially
-om those in the forward-looking statements
cluded in this report for reasons that include:
ne speed and degree to which competition
nters the electric and natural gas industries;
tate and federal legislative and regulatory
iitiatives that increase competition, affect cost
nd investment recovery, and have an impact on
ate structures; the economic climate and
dustrial, commercial, and residential growth
1 areas served by Wisconsin Public Service
orporation, Upper Peninsula Power Company,
nd WPS Energy Services. Inc. ("ES!"); the
veather and other natural phenomena; the timing
nd extent of changes in commodity prices and
nterest rates; conditions in the capital markets;
ind growth in opportunities for ESI| and
¥PS Pawer Development, [nc.

A forward-looking statement speaks only
s of the date on which such statement is made,
ind WPSR does not undertake to update any
orward-looking statement to reflect events or
ircumstances after the date on which such
statemen! is made or to reflect the occurrence of
inanticipated events which affect such forward-
ooking statements. New factors emerge from
ime to time, and it is not possibte for WPSR to
yredict all such factors, nor can it assess the
mpact of each such faclor or the extent to which
ny factor, or combination of factors, may cause
asults to differ materially Irom those contained
n any forward-looking statement.
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Earnings Per Share*
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Gumulative Total Return™

1989-1998
Dollars
305.24
' 27658
244,99 X
214.08 ' 218.24
9205 .
! 181,43 '
16136 '
‘ ‘ ;
11785 %34 ( t

e
I T

85 90 H 82 93 94 95 96 97 98

' Assumes $1UU invesiment in common slock al yearend 1988 and all dividends reinvested quarterly.
Curnulative total return for the ten-year period is equivalent to an average annual return of 11.8%.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

WPS Resources Corporatian (*WPSR™) is a helding company,
Approximately 63% of WPSR's assets at December 31, 1998, approximately
52% of its 1998 revenues, and 879% of its 1998 net income were derived from
electric utility operations. WPSR's wholly-owned subsidiaries include wo
regutated utilities, Wiscensin Public Service Corporation {*"WPSC"), an electric
and fas utility, and Upper Peninsuta Power Company {*UPPCO™), an electric
ulility, and fwo primary nonregulated subsidiaries, WPS Energy Services, Inc.
{"ESI"y and WPS Power Development, Inc. ("PDI").

1998 Compared with 1997

WPS Resources Corporation Overview

WPSR's results-of operations and financial position for 1998 and 1997
incluge the effects of the merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation
{*UPEN") which was effective September 29, 1998, and accounted for as a
pooling of interests. In accordance with the terms of the merger, each of the
2,950,001 outstanding shares of UPEN common stock (no par valug) were
converted into 0.90 shargs of WPSR comman stock, subject to adjustment for

an increase in other operating expenses, and a decrease in the gas margin.
Partially offsetting these factors were an increase in the electric utility margin
and a decrease in interest expense.

Revenuss at UPPCO were $62.7 million in 1998 compared with
$60.2 millien in 1997, an increase of 4.2%. Eamings were $3.5 millior in 1998
compared with $3.7 million in 1997, a decrease of 5.4%. The primary reasons
for the decrease in earnings at UPPCO were higher mainienance and other
operating expenses partially ofiset by an increase in the electric margin.

Electric Utility Operations (WPSC znd UPPCO)

WPSR consolidated electric utility margins increased $11.1 millian, or
3.0%, primarily due to increased kilowatt-hour ("kWh") sales of 3.0% to WPSC
customers as a result of a 103.5% increase in cooling degree days in 1998,
Partially cffsetting the increase in-electric margins in 1998 was the impact on
WPSC af a Public Service Commission of Wisconsin ("PSCW") rate order
which was effective for the entire year in 1998 but was only effective in 1397
for the period afier February 21, 1997, This arder authorized an 8.1% electric
revenue reduction.

WPSR Consolidated Electric Marging (Thousands)

cash payments for fractional shares. In conjunction with this merger, WPSR 1998 1997 19%
expensed transaction charges of approximately $1.6 million in 1998 and i
$2.7 million in 1997. These merger transaction charges consist of the following: EEVFHUES $543,260 $536,885 $548,701
_ uel an
Merger Charges (Millions) purchased power 167,256 171,935 161,293
1998 1997 Margin $376,004 $364,950 $387.408
Investment Bankers $0.8 $0.9 Saies in kWh
Legal 0.7 0.9 (Thousands)* 12,172,432 11,893,358 11,828,788
Accounting - 0.2 ’
Other 0.1 0.7 “Does not include UPPCO unbilled kWh.
Total $1.5 : $2.7 WPSR consolidated electric utility revenues increased $6.4 million, or

In addition, UPPCO, UPEN's primary subsidiary, recorded severance costs
of $1.1 million and an additional $0.5 million in cther merger-related expenses
in 1698

WPSR consolidated operating revenues were $1.1 billion in 1998
compared with $935.8 million in 1997, an increase of 13.7%. Net income was
$46.6 miliion in 1998 and $55.8 million in 1997, a decrease of 16.5%. Basic
and diluted earnings per share wers $1.76 in 1998 compared with $2.1G in
1997, a decrease of 16.2%. The primary reasens for the decrease in samings,
as explained below, were the impact of unusually warm winter weather, the
effects of a ful! year eleciric rate decrease at WPSC, higher maintenance
expenses at WPSC, decreased other income, higher other operating expenses,
and a decrease in WPSC's gas margin. Partially offsetting these-factors were an
increase in electric ufility margins and an increase in nonreguiated margins.

Overview of Ulility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO)

Revenues at WPSC were $652.5 million in 1998 compared with
$680.5 million in 1997, a decrease of 5.5%. Earnings were $54.1 million in
1998 and $61.6 million in 1997, 2 decrease of 12.2%. The primary reasans
for the decrease in earnings at WPSC were the impact of unusually warm
winter weather, increased mainienance expenses, a decrease in other income,

1.2%, largely due o ingreased revenues of $4.8 million from WPSC's wholesale
customers and $1.5 million from WPSC's commercial and industrial customers
as a result of the warmer weather. Also included in 1998 eleciric revenues are
surcharge revenues at WPSC of $3.8 miltion related to the recovery of the
deferred costs for the 1997 Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant {("Kewaunse") steam
generator repairs. Partially offsetting these increases to revenues were the
electric rae reduction and a $1.0 million refund of WPSC's transmission
revenuss as the result of a 1998 Federai Energy Regulatory Commission
("FERC™) settlement related to open access transmission tariif rates.

WPSR consolidated electric production fuel expense increased
$2.8 miliior, or 2.6%, primarily as a result of increased gensration expense.
Kewaunee was out of service for the first six months of 1997 as the result of an
extended outage to repair steam generators, thus, in comparison, the higher
generation expense in 1998, WPSC is currently the operator and 41.2% owner
of Kewaunee.

WPSR consolidated purchased power expense gecreased $7.5 million, or
11.7%, primarily due to decreased purchase requirements at WPSG in the first
half of 1998. Purchase requirements at WPSC in the first half of 1997 were
higher due 1o lack of production at Kewaunee in the first 2nd second quarters of
1997 as a result of an extended outage. Kewaunee was also off-line in 1998 for
a six-week scheduled refueding outage. Alsa contributing to lower purchased

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSTION AND ANALYSIS

power expense at WPSC was a $1.2 million credil to purchased power expense
in the fourth quarier of 1938 retated to the seitlement of litigation involving a
contract with a power supplier.

The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes in the cost of fuel and
purchased power, within a specifiec range, on to its customers through a
fuel adjustment clause.

Gas Utility Operations {WPSC)
WPSR consolidated gas margin decreased $4.1 million in 1998, or 6.5%,
primarily due io & 19.4% reduction in heating degree days.

WPIR Consolidated, Gas Margins (Thowsandls)

1998 1997 1996
Revenues $165,111 $211,090 $211,357
Purchase costs 105,908 147,755 149,388
Margin $ 59,203 $ 63335 $ 61,965
Volume in
662,008 666,598

iherms (Thousands) 608,092

Gas operating revenuas decreasad $46.0 million, or 21.8%. This decrease
was due to unusually mild weather in 1998 resulting in fower. gas therm saies for
1998 of 8.1%. Also contributing to the decrease in gas operating revenues.was a
reduction in revenues of $7.5 million for refunds from ANR Fipeline Company
which WPSC passed on to its gas custormers in the second quarter of 1998.

Gas purchase cosis decreased $41.8 million, or 28.3%. This decrease
was due to reduced customer dereand as a result of the mild weather during
1998. Also contributing to the decrease in gas costs was a $7.5 million refund
from ANR Pipeline Company which was credited to gas expense in the second
guarter of 1998, Under current regulatory practice, the PSCW allows WPSC fo
pass changes in the cost of gas on ta customers through a purchased gas
adjustment clause (*PGAC™).

Other Ulility Expenses/Income (WPSC and UPPCQ})

{ther operating expenses at WPSC increased $4.1 million, or 3.1%,
primarily due te higher benefit costs in 1998.

Other eperating expenses at UPPCQ incseased $0.6 million, or 3.6%,
primarily as the result of the accrual of $1.1 million in merger-related severance
expense in 1998. Other operating expenses at UPPCO in 1997 included costs
incurred relaied to the termination of UPPCO's Presque Isle Plant Operating
Agreement with Wisconsin Electric Power Company ("WEPCQ™). UPPCO had
staffed and operated WEPCO's Presque Isle Power Plant through December 31,
1997, at which time the operating agreament was terminated.

Maintenance expense al WPSC increased $7.8 miliion, or 18.6%,
primarily as a result of increased expenses al Kewaunee during the second and
fourth quarters of 1998. This increase was partly due ta the ragognition in the
second quarter of 1998 of the 1997 deferred expenses for Kewauneg steam
generaior repairs. The PSCW approved deferral of the repairs in 1997, the
cost-of which has been collected in the second quarter of 1998 through a
$3.8 million electric revenue surcharge. In addition, maintenance expense at

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

Kewaunesg increased ir: the fourth quarter of 1998 due io a scheduled
refueling outage.

Depreciation and decommissioning expenses at WPSG ingreased
$2.4 mitlion, or 3.1%, due to an increased plant base and to the accelerated
recovery of investment in Kewaunee and accelerated funding of Kewaunee
decommissioning costs. Accelerated recovery of invesiment and funding began
on February 21, 1997 and, therefore, was effective for all of 1998 but only a
portion of 1997.

Other income at WPSC decreased $5.8 million, or 46.3%, primarily due
10 one-time gains on sales of nonutility property which occurred in 1997,
These gains represented an increase in earnings fos 1997 of approximately
$0.11 per share,

Overview of Nonrggulated Operations

Nonregulated operations primarily consist of the gas and electric sales at
ESI, an energy marketing subsidiary. Nonregulated operations alse include
those of WPSR as a holding company and those of PDI which develops electric
generation projects, invests in generating projects, and provides services to the
electric power generation industry.

Nonregulaied operations experienced a ioss of $11.0 million in 1998
compared with a loss of $9.5 million in 1997. Although nonregulated marging
continue o grow, losses ara being experienced due to gas and-electric trading
losses and expenses associated with the expansion of customer base.

Overview of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

Revenues at ESI were $351.3 million in 1998 compared with
$189.4 million in 1997, an increase of 85.5%. ESI experienced a loss of
$6.9 millior in 1998 comparad with a loss of $4.9 million in 1997, The primary
reasons for the increased loss at ESI were increased eleciric and gas trading
losses primarily dus to market vofatility, and higher operating expenses due to
expansion of the energy trading Dusiness. Partially offsetting these factors was
an increase in the gas margin,

Nonregulated Margins (ESI)

Gas margins at ESI were $4.0 million in 1998 compared with $1.9 mitlion
in 1997, an increase of 110.5%. Electric margins at ESI remained fairly stable.
(Gas revenues at ESI were $330.0 milfion in 1998 compared with $182.3 miltian
in 1997, an increase of $147.7 million, or 81.0%. This increase was the result
of sales volume growth and expansion to additional geographic areas. Electric
revenues at ESI were $20.5 million in 1998 and $6.4 millien in 1997, an
increase of $14.1 million, or 220.3%. This increase was aiso the result of sales
vglume growih.

ESI's cost of sales wera $346.4 million in 1998 and $186.6 million in
1997, an increase of $159.8 million, or 85.6%. This increase was primariiy
due to increased gas purchases and purchased power of $145.6 million and
$14.2 miilion, respectively, as a result of customer growih and higher costs
of purchases.

Other Nonregulated Expenses/Income (ESI)

Cther operating expenses at ESI increased $1.1 million, or 13.6%, due to
expansion of the business. ES! experienced gas trading losses of $4.9 million
in 1998 and $1.4 million in 1997 largely due to market volatilily. ES] also
experienced electric trading losses of $1.2 million in 1998 primarily due to
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losses in she {hird quarter related to the unprecedented market volatility in the
eleciric irading market.

Price Risk Management Activities (ESI)

WPSR has not experienced significant price risk activities at its utility
operations which are nol recoverable through customer rates; however, price
risk is experienced at ESI.

ESI utilizes derivative financial and commodity instruments (“derivatives"),
including futures and forward contracts, to reduce market risk associated with
fluctuations in the price of natural gas and electricity sold under firm
commitments with certain of its customers. ES| also ulilizes derivatives,
including price swap agreements, call and put option contracts, and fulures
and forward contracts, to manage market risk associated with a portion of its
anticipated supply requirements. In addition, ESI utilizes derivatives, within
specified guidelines, for irading purposes.

Gains or losses on derivatives associated with firm commitments are
recognized as adjustments to the cost of sales or 10 revenues when the refated
transactions affect earnings. Gains and losses on derivatives associated with
forecasted transactions are recognized when such forecasted transactions affect
earnings. At December 31, 1998, $7.2 mitlion in losses related to firm
commitments and forecasted transactions were deferred, If it is no longer

Gas Comsodity Position: (contract amonits it millions)

probable that a forecasted transaction will occur, aay gain or loss on the
derivative instrument as of such date is immediately recognized in earnings.
Derivatives for trading purposes are marked to market each accounting period,
and gains and losses are recognized as a component of other income at that
time. In 1998 and 1997, trading losses of $6.1 million and $1.4 million,
respectively, were recognized.

At December 31, 1998, ESI had outstanding 22.0 million notional
dekatherms of natural gas under fuiures and option agreements and 1.3 million
notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap agreements for purposes
of managing market risk. The financial instruments outstanding at December 31,
1998 expire at various times through August 2000. ESI has certain gas sales
commitments through August 2000 with a range of sale prices from $2.36 to
$2.38 per dekatherm and a range of associated gas purchase costs of $2.29 to
$2.31 per dekatherm.

As of December 31, 1998, the fair value of trading instruments included
assets of $0.7 million. Except for a minimal level of electric trading instruments,
financial instruments used for trading in 1998 and 1997 were natural gas
derivatives. At December 31, 1998, ES! had outstanding 13.6 million notional
dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option agreemenis and 1.6 million
notional dekatherms of natural gas undler basis swap agreements for
trading purposes.

Carrying Fair
Amount Value
Inventary $6.9 $ 59
Fixed-price purchase obligations $115.0
Fixed-price sales obligations $ 998
Retated Derivatives
Expected Maturity
Fair
1999 2000 Total Valug
Futures NYMEX — Hedging
Long (billion cubic feet) 348 22
Weighied average settlement price (per dekatherm) $2.26 $2.32
Contract amount $78.8 $5.1 $83.9 $70.5
Short {biltign cubic feet) 18.4 0.8
Weighted average settlement price (per dekatherm) $2.18 $2.50
Contract amount $40.0 $2.1 $42.1 $35.9
Futures NYMEX — Trading
Long (billion cubic feet) 335
Weighted average seltlement price (per dekatherm) $2.28
Contract amount $76.3 $76.3 $61.0
Short (billion cubic feet) 37.0
Weighted average settlement prige {per dekatherm) $2.25
Contract amount $63.2 $83.2 $67.2
Fixed-Float Futures Swap — Hedging
l.ong (billion cubic feet) 7.2 34
Weighted average settlement price (per dekatherm) $2.21 $2.28
Contract amount $159 $7.8 $23.7 $22.2
Short (ballion cubic feef) 15 0.1
Weighted average settlement price (per dekatherm) $212 $218
Coniract amount $3.1 $03 $34 $3.0
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Relaled Derivatives {continued}

Expected Maturity

Fair
1999 2000 Total Value

Fixed-Float Futures Swap — Trading

Lang (billion cubic feet) 6.0

Weighted average settlement price (per dekatherm) §2.21

Contract amount $131 $13.1 $11.3

Short (billion cubic feet) 31 0.1

Weighted average setilement price (per dekatherm) $2.15 $1.85

Contract amount $6.8 $0.2 $7.0 $6.0
Optiens — Hedging

Long calls (billion cubic feet} 0.6

Weighled average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.48

Contract amount $16 $16 $0.2

Long puts (billion cubic feet) 0.6

Weighled average strike price (per dekatherm) $1.87

Contract amount $1.1 $1.1 $0.0

Short calls (billion cubic feal) 0.7

Weighted average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.43

Contract amount $17 $1.7 $0.2

Short puts (billion cubic [eet) 08 05

Weighted average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.25 $2.43

Contract amount 518 $1.1 $29 503
Options - Trading

Long calls (biltion cubic feet) 22

Weighted average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.27

Contract amount $5.1 $5.1 $0.3

Long puts (billian cubic feet) 59

Weighted average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.05

Contract amount 3120 $12.0 $0.7

Short calls {billion cubic fesl) 15 )

Weighled average strike price (per dekatherm) 8217

Contract amount £3.2 $3.2 $0.2

Short puts (Dillien cubic feet) 3.0 0.5

Weighted average strike price (per dekatherm) $2.14 $2.30

Contract amount $10.7 $10 3117 809
Basis Swaps — Hedging

Long (billion cubic feet) 122 09

Weighted average seftlement price (per dekatherm) $0.17 $0.29

Contract amount 521 50.3 $2.4 £i5

Short (billion cubic feet) 135 05

Weighted average setilemeni price (per dekalherm) $0.20 $0.09

Contract amaunt g2.7 $2.7 $15
Basis Swaps — Trading

Long (billion cubic feed) 80.5 2.6

Weighted average selllement price (per dekatherm} $0.25 $0.24

Contract ameunt $20.9 0.6 $21.5 $9.3

Sherl (billion cubic fest) 82.1 38

Weighted average setilement price (per dekatherm} $0.25 $0.23

Contract amount $20.4 $0.9 $21.3 397
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Other Nonregulated Operations

Losses al POl were $2.4 million in 1998 comparad with $1.9 million in
1997. The increase in losses at PDI was primarily due to additional expenses
incurred in 1998 for the start-up of new projects. Other operating expenses at
PDI increased $1.1 million, or 25.4%, due to higher project expenses. Oiher
income at WPSR included a dividend on a venture capital investment of
$2.0 million in the first quarter of 1998 compared with $0.2 million in the
first quarter of 1997.

1997 Compared With 1996

WPS Resources Corporation Overview

WPSR consolidated operating revenues were $935.8 million in 1997 and
$916.4 million in 1996, an increase of 2.1%. Net income increased 5.5% to
$55.8 miflion in 1997 from $52.9 million in 1995, Basic and diluted earnings per
share were $2.10 in 1997 compared with $1.99 in 1996, an increase of 5.5%.
The primary reasons for the increase in earnings wese decreased operating and
maintenance expenses, increased ather income, an increased nonregulated energy
margin, and an increased gas utility margin, Partially offsetting these factors were
a decrease in the electric ulility margin, an increase in depreciation and
gecommissioning expense, and an increase in income tax expense.

Qverview of Utility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO)

Revenues at WPSC were $690.5 million in 1597 compared with
$701.9 million in 1996, a decrease of 1.6%. Earnings were $61.6 million in
1997 and $57.3 million in 1996, an increase of 7.5%. The primary reasons
for the increase in earnings ai WPSC were a decrease in operating and
maintenance expenses, an incraase in other income, and an increase in the
gas utility margin. Offsetiing these factors were a decrease in the electric utility
margin, an ingrease in depreciation and decommissioning expense, and an
increase in income [3x expense.

Revenues at UPPCO were $60.2 miilion in 1997 compared with
$58.4 million in 1996, an increase of 3.1%. Earnings were $3.7 million in
1997 and $5.2 mitlion in 1996, a decrease of 28.8%. The primary reason for
the decrease in earnings at UPPCO was a decrease in the electric utility margin.

Electric Utility Operations (WPSC and UPPCO}

WPSR consolidated electric utility margins decreased $22.5 million, or
5.8%, primarily due 1o implementation of a PSCW rate order ai WPSC which
authorized a $35.5 million, or 8.1%, elactric revenue reduction. A second faclor
coniributing to decreased margins was ingreased replacement power costs as a
result of an extended outage at Kewaunee. A surcharge authorized by the PSCW
partially offset increases in replacement power costs in the latter part of the first
quarter and in the second guarter of 1397,

Ins spite of a 27.6% decrease in cooling degree days, WPSR consolidated
glectric kWh sales increased by 1.5% primarily due to increased demand by
WPSC's commercia! and industrial customers, WPSC's commercial and
industrial kWh sales increased 4.8%, while whofesale kWh sales decreased
3.4%. WPSR consolidated electric utility revenues decreased $11.8 million,
of 2.2%, primarily due to the electric rate decrease at WPSC.,

WPSR consolidated electric production fuel expense increased
$2.5 million, or 2.4%. Nuclear fuel expense at WPSC was $2.0 million lower
than in 1996 due {o decreased generation at Kewaunee in the first and second
quarters of 1997 as a result of an extended outage. Steam fue! expense at
WPSC was higher by $1.0 million and combustion turbine generation expense
was higher by $3.2 million due to increased generation requirements from these
sources during the extended outage al Kewaunge.

WPSR consolidated purchased power expense increased $8.1 million,
ar 14.5%, primarily due to increased purchase requirements and higher costs
of purchased power at WPSC during the extended outage at Kewaunee.

The PSCW allows WPSC io pass changes in the cost of fuel and
purchased power, within a specified range, on to its customers through a fuel
adjustment clause. WPSC is required to file an application to adjust rates either
higher or lower when costs are plus or minus 2% irom jorecasted costs on an
annual basis. The additional fuel costs in 1997 did not result in WPSC being
outside this 2% window.

Gas Utility Operations (WPSC)

WPSR consolidated gas margin increased $1.4 million, or 2,2%, primarily
due to WPSC’s implementation of a PSCW rate order which authorized a
$5.7 miliion, or 2.7%, increase in gas revenues.

(Gas operating revenugs remained relatively stable reflecting the rate
increase offset by a 5.5% reduction in heating degree days. Gas revenues also
reflect a one-time reduction of $0.9 million in the first quarter of 1997 as a
result of a PSCW directive to change the accounting treatment for previous
customer line extensions. This reductfon represented a decrease of
approximately $.02 per share after income tax effects.

Gas purchase costs showed a net decrease of $1.6 million, or 1.1%,
primarily due to reduced purchases because of decreased demand as a result of
the reduction in heating degree days. The PSCW allows WPSC to pass changes
in the cost of gas on to customers through a PGAC.

Other Uility Expenses/Income (WPSC and UPPCO)

QOther operating expenses at WPSC decreased $24.1 million, or 15.2%,
Cost saving initiatives and decreased amartization of deferred demand-side
management expenditures resulied in lower customer service and sales
expenses of $3.5 million. Administrative expenses decreased $5.8 million dug
to cost saving measures and reduced postretirement medical, dental, and other
benefit expenses. Generation operating expenses were |ower by $7.3 million
primarily as a result of the completion in 1996 of an amortization of deferred
expenses related to a previous coal contract settlement. Gas operaling expenses
decreased $1.5 million as the result of a PSCW directive requiring gas servicing
revenues and expenses to be classitied as other income and deductions
beginning in 1997,

Maintenance expense at WPSC decreased $7.1 million, or 14.5%. Electric
transmission and distribution expenses decreased $3.4 mitlian as a result of
cost saving initiatives and less maintenance of overhead fines-in 1997 due to
less storm damage. Maintgnance expenses were $1.9 million lower at Kewaunee
in 1997 because Kewaunee was out of service in 1996 for scheduled
maintenance. Gas distribution expenses were lower by $0.9 million due 1o cost
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saving initiatives and decreased mainienance activilies. Steam costs decreased
$0.6 million at WPSC's coal-fired plants due to changes in maintenance
schedules as a result of the extended outage al Kewaunee.
Depreciation and decommissioning expenses &t WPSC increased
$12.0 million, or 18.8%, largely due to the accelerated recavery of investment
in Kewaunee and accelerated funding of Kewaunge decommissioning costs.
Other income at WPSG increased $7.5 million, or 141.7%, primarily due
to gains in 1997 on the sale of nonutility praperty o $4.8 millien which
represented an increase of approximately $.11 per share after income tax
efiects. Also included in other income in 1997 was interest of $2.2 million
resulting from an income tax audit settlement. Income tax expense increased
$1.9 million reflecting higher nel income in 1997,

Overview of Nonregulated Operations

Nonregulated operations experignced a loss of $8.5 million in 1997
compared with a loss of $9.6 million in 1996. Operating Josses &t the
nonregulated subsidiaries were anticipated by management as the companies
developed infrastructure and financed additional working capital needed to
support growih. Losses were also incurred at the WPSR holding company in
1997 due to expenses incurred as a result of the merger with UPEN.

Overview of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

Revenues at ESI were $189.4 million in 1997 compared with
$161.8 million in 1996, an increase of 17.1%.

ESl incurred a loss of $4.9 million in 1997 and a loss of
$6.3 million in 1996.

Nonregulated Margins (ESI)

Gas margins al ESI were a positive $2.1 million in 1997 and.a negative
$1.1 million in 1996, an increase of $3.2 million. In 1996, customer
commitments at ESE were nof fully hedged during a period of volatile gas
commadity markets and certain gas suppliers defaulted which negatively
impacted margins. Electric margins at ESI increased $0.9 million in 1997.

(Gas sales at ESI increased $26.2 million in 1997, or 17.1%, as a resull
of customer growth. Electric sales at ESI increased $5.6 million in 1997, or
716.0%, also as a result of customer growth.

Gas purchases and purchased power expense increased $20.5 miliion
and $4.7 million, respectively, in 1997.

Dther Nonregulated Expenses/income (ESI}

Other operating expenses at ESI increased $1.3 million, or 19.4%, due
to expansion of the business and the develapment of infrastructure as £SI
positions itself for the future. Although increased margins more than offset
other operafing expenses, interest costs increased due to the financing of
additional wosking capital needed ta support the growth of ESI.

ESI experienced trading losses of $1.4 million in 1997 and $2.5 million
in 1996
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Other Nonregulated Operalions

POl incurred a loss of $1.9 million in 1997 and a {oss of $4.0 million in
1986. Other operating expenses at PDI increased $0.4 miilion as a resul{ of
expansion of the business and operation af the Stoneman Power Plant
{"Stoneman”). Project revenues at PDI partially offset costs related to the
investigation of possible energy-related investments and a loss from Stoneman
operations. PDI afso experienced a loss of $4.0 million in 1996 refated to the
write-ofi of an investment in an industrial processing facility. This write-off
represented a decrease in 1996 earnings of $.09 per share after income tax effects.

Other gperating axpenses at WPSR increased $2.7 million in 1997 due to
expenses associated with the UPEN merger.

BALANCE SHEET

1998 Compared With 1997

Nuclear decommissioning trusts increased $37.3 million due to continued
funding and favorable investment returns. Construction in progress increased
$30.6 million largety as a result of construction expenditures related o the
Kewaunee steam generztor repfacement project, the combustion turbine project
at West Marinette, and the transmissien fine for the De Pere Energy Center
projeci. Customer receivables increased $21.1 million primarily as a resull
of increased sales at ESI. Net nonutility and nonregulated plant increased
$13.0 million as a result of the acquisition of additional assels at PDI.
Investments and other assets increased $18.5 million primarily due o an
ingreased unrealized gain on the nuclear decommissioning trust at WPSC
and an increased uniealized loss on hedging activities at ESL.

Commerciai paper increased $26.9 million due to increased operational
cash needs at WPSC and WPSR. Cash requirements exceeded internally
generated funds at both WPSC and WPSR. Accounts payable increased
$25.7 million due to increased payables at WPSC related to the 1998 Kewaunee
refueling outage and other consiruction projects, and higher payables at ES1 as
a resuit of increased sales activity.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Investments and Financing

WPSR made a $34.0 millfon equity infusion into WPSC during the second
quarter of 1998. WPSC retired $50.0 million of first-mortgage bonds on July 1,
1998 and issued $50.0 million of senior notes secured by first-mortgage bonds
on December 14, 1998. A special comman stock dividend of $20.0 million was
paid by WPSC to WPSR in December 1998. The special dividend allowed
WPSC's average equity capitaiization ratio to remain at approximately 54%.
the level approved by the PSCW for ratemaking.

Shori-term borrowings increased $26.9 million during 1998 as a resutt
of cash requirements in excess of internally generated funds. Pretax interest
coverage was 4.48 times ior the 12 months ended December 31, 1998 for
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WPSC. WPSC's bond ratings are AA+ (Standard & Poor's and Duff & Phelps)
and Aa2 (Moody's).

WPSR will use internally-generated funds and shori-term borrowing to
satisty most of its capital requirements. WPSR may periodicafly issue additional
tang-term debl and common stock to reduce short-ierm debt and to maintain
desired capitalization ratics.

The specific forms of financing, amaunts, and timing will depend on
the availabilily of projects, maret conditions, and other factars. At this time,
however, it is anticipated that common stock will be issued by WPSR in
mid-1999. WPSR began issuing new shares of common stock for the Stock
Investment Plan in January 1999. WPSR may also expand ils leveraged
employee stock ownership plan during the next three-year period.

WPSC makes large invesiments in capital assets. Construciion
expenditures for WPSC are expected to be approximately $250.0 million in the
aggregate for the 1999 thraugh 20071 period. This includas expenditures far the
replacement of Kewaunes steam generators.

In addition, other capital requirements for WPSC for the three-year period

will include Kewaunee decornmissioning trust fund contributions of $16.8 million.

WPSC's agresment to purchase electricity from ihe De Pere Energy Center,
a gas-fired cogeneration facility, will be accounted for as a capital lease. The
De Pere Energy Center lease will be capitalized at $77.8 million in 1999, While
not a capital expenditure, this will affect Lhe capital structure.

UPPCO will incur construction expenditures of about $23.0 million
in the aggregate for the period 1999 through 2001, primarily for electric
distribution improvements.

Investment expenditures for nonregulated projects are uncertain since
there are few firm commitments at this time. Approximately $38.0 million will
be incurred in 1999 to purchase generating units located in the State of Maine
and the Canadian Province of New Brunswick. Financing for most nonregulated
projects is expected to be obiained through a new subsidiary, WPS Resources
Capital Corporation, which was formed in January 1999 to obiain funding for
those projects.

On July 30, 1998, WPSR Capital Trust | (“Trust”), a Delaware business
trust of which WPSR owns all of the autstanding $1.5 million trust commaon
securities, issued $50.0 millipn of trust preferred securities to the pubfic, The
sole asse! of the Trust is $51.5 million of WPSR subordinated debantures due
in 2038. The terms and interest payments on these debentures correspond to
ihe terms and distributions on the trust preferred securities.

Regulatory
WPSC recsived a rate order in the Wisconsin jurisdiction on January 15,
1999. The impact is 2 $26.9 million increase in electric revenuas and a
$10.3 million increase in-gas révenues-on an annual basis. The new rates
will be effective for 1999 and 2000. The PSCW authorized a 12.1% return
on WPSCG equity for 1999 and 2000.

Merger

On September 29, 1998, UPEN merged with and into WPSR, and UPPCO,
UPEN's utility subsidiary, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of WPSR. The
exchange of stock qualifies as a tax-free transaction and the transaction has
been accounted for as a pooling of interests.

Kewaunee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and Madisen Gas and Electric Company
("MG&E") finalized an arrangement in which WPSC will acquire MG&E's
17.8% share of Kewauneg. This agreement, the closing of which is contingent
upon regulatory approvals and steam generator replacement scheduled for the
spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0% ownership in Kewaunee.

The arrangement provides that the book value of MG&E's share of
Kewaunee al the time of the transfer could be credited against the purchase
price of a planned 83-megawatt, natural gas-fired, combustion-tusbire slectric
generation station to be built near Marinetie, Wisconsin. WPSG had previously
agreed to build this station for MG&E. If, for some reason, the Marinette station
is not completed, the-arrangement calis for WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of
Kewaunee with a combination of cash and notes.

MG&E has agreed to retain certain of its abligations related to the period
of time that it had been an owner of Kewaunee. MG&E wil} effectively transfer iis
nuclear decommissioning funds 1o WPSC to pay for MG&E's share of the
currently estimated decommissiening costs of the plant at the closing for the
assel swap, WPSC and Wisconsin Power and Light Company, the joint owners
of the plant after the described change in ownership, will be responsible for the
decommissioning of the plant.

Year 2000 Compliance

The Year 2000 issug arises because software pragrams, computer
hardware, and equipment that have date sensitive software or embedded chips
may recognize a date using “00" as the year 1900 rather than the year 2000.
This may resul: In system failures or other disruptions of operations.

WPSR and its subsidiary companies are committed to gliminating or
minimizing adverse effects of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue on
their business aperations, including the products and services provided to
customers, and to maintaining WPSR's reputation as an efficient and reliable
supplier of energy. WPSR, however, is unable to guarantee that there will be no
adverse effects as a result of the Year 2000 computer compliance issue because
many aspects of cornpliance are beyond WPSR's direct control.

WPSR has undertaken a program to assess Year 2000 compliance and o
bring computer systems into compliance by the year 2000. All systems,
inclucing energy production ana delivery systems, olher embedded systems,
and third party systems of suppliers are being evaluated to identify and resolve
patential prablems.
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A Year 2000 project-plan which includes awareness, inventory and
assessment, remediation, testing, and implementation has been developed. The
formal awareness phase of the Year 2000 project which includes understanding
and communication of the issue to employees, customers, suppliers, and other
affected parties has essentially been completed. The Year 2000 issue has.been
communicated to WPSR employees and customers via several media. All WPSR
business unit leaders have been made aware of the Year 2000 project pian
and their roles in implementing the plan. Communication and respense to
Year 2000 inguiries continue.

The inveniory and assessment phase which ineludes identification of all
information and non-information technology systems and of non-compliant
systems, applications, and hardware, has besn completed. Action pians for
remediation, which includes modifications fo bring systems into comgliance, and
action plans for festing including validation of compliance have been completed.

Modifications of major in-house suppored systems to correct Year 2000
problems have been underway since 1996. WPSR's [nformation Technology
Department has identified five major systems. Ail of these systems (custorner
information, finance, human resources, materiais management, and facility
management) are currently Year 2000 compliant.

In addition, non-information technology systems have been identified and
ranked as to the risk posed by non-compliance. Non-information technology
systems include computer and embedded systems related to WPSR's power
plant operating, system operating, hydraulic, fransmission, and ather operating
functions. All systems ranked as "critical” “severe," or “high" are scheduled fo
be Year 2000 comptiant by the end of the first quarter of 1998,

WPSR has hired an external. consulting group fo monitor the progress of its
Year 2000 compliance activities. The consulting group’s responsibilities include
performing a status check on WPSR's ability to achieve Year 2000 compliance.

[n additicn, WPSR is identifying, confacting, and assessing suppliers and
other business pariners for Year 2000 readiness, as these extemal parties may
have the potential to impact WPSR’s Year 2000 readiness. WPSR is also
working to address Year 2000 issues related to all joint ownership facilities.

Al the present time, WPSR is not aware of problems that would materially
impact the company's operations, However, WPSR has no means of ensuring
that all third parties will be Year 2000 cormpiiant in a timely manne, and the
inability of these parties to resolve successfully their Year 2000 issues could
have a material impact on the operations of WPSR's subsidiaries.

Due to fewer expanditures for hardware and software than originally
anticipated, the estimate of total Year 2000 project costs has been reduced to
$9.0 million. This estimate is considered reasonable and has been approved
for rate recovery by the PSCW, This estimate includes internal labor costs of
$4.5 million, software replacement costs for non-compliant products of
$2.0 milfion, and contract tabor costs of $2.5 million. Expenditures for the
Year 2000 project incurred through December 31, 1998, are $2.2 million.
Major expenditures for hargware, software, and other equipment were made in
the fourth quarter of 1998 and additional expenditures will be made in the first
quarter of 1999.
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The failure to correct a material Year 2000 problem could resuit in an
interruption in, or the failure of, certain normal business activities or operations
which could materially affect WPSR's results of operations. However, due to the
general unceriainy inherent in the Year 2000 issue, WPSR is unable to
determine at this time whether the consequences of Year 2000 failures will have
a material impact on operations. A preliminary identification of poteniial risks
related to the failure fo be in compliance by the Year 2000 has been made. A
better understanding of actual risks will be developed during the remediation,
testing, and contingency planning pracesses. The development of WPSR's
contingency planning process is intended to minimize the problems associated
with these risks.

WPSR is assessing the potential impact of failure to achieve Year 2000
compliance with respect to each of the following:

» Generalipn avatlability

« System monitoring and control functions

« Ability to restarl generators that are out of service for planned of

unplanned outages

e Company-owned voice/data communications

* Transmission facilities

¢ System protection

+ Critical operating data (i.e., generation plant data)

Electric and gas distribution systems

+ Pipelines’ constraints fo the supply or pressure of natural gas

* Major support systems

Contingency pians for dealing with Year 2000 issues will be developed by
April 1999 for each application that has been identified as “critical” or “severe.”
In addition, a proposal for a "quick response team” concept has been drafted,
and a process for handling unexpected Year 2000 problems will be formalized
in early 1999. A most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000 scenario will be
jdentified and addressed by a trisis management team in early 1999. The team
plans to conduct a crisis management dril! using a Year 2000 scenario.

TRENDS

Accounting Standards

WPSC and UPPCO foliow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS™) No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,” and
their financial statements reflect the effects of the different ratemaking principles
followed by the various jurisdictions requiating each ufility. For WPSC these
include the PSCW, 89% of revenues; the Michigan Public Service Commission
("MPSC"}, 3% of revenues; and the FERC, 8% of revenues. In addition,
Kewaunee is regu'ated by the Nuclear Regutatory Commission: (“NRC™),
Envirenmental matters are primarily governed by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources,

in June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS
No, 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrumments and Hedging Activities.”
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This statement requires all derivatives to be measured &l fair vaiue and
recognized as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position.
The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative is dependent upon
ihe use of the derivative and its resulting designation. Unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met, changes in the derivative's fair value must be
recognized currently in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 1999. WPSR will be zdopting the requirements of this
statement on January 1, 2000, and has not et determined the method of
adoption or ils impact. However, the requirements of this statement could
increase volatility in earnings and other compsehensive inceme.

In March 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
{*AICPA"} issued Statement of Pasition 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” This statement
requires the capitalization of certain costs related to software developed or
obtained for internal use, The statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 1998. WPSR wil! be adopting the requirements of this siatement
in January 1999. Although the total impact of WPSR's adoption of this
staternent has rot been determined, WPSC's adoption of this statement is
expected to result in a reduction in operating expenses which will be considered
in the ratemaking process. The capitalized software costs will then be charged
to amortization expense.in future years.

In April 1998, the AICPA issued Statement of Posilion 98-5, "Reporting
on the Costs of Start-up Activities." This staternent provides guidance on the
financial reparting of start-up costs and organization costs. Costs of start-up
activities and organization costs are required to be expensed as incurred, The
staterment is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 1998, WPSR
will be adopting the requirements of this statement in 1999 and does not
anticipate any material impact o its financial statements.

Utility Restructuring

Electric reliability issues have replaced restruciuring and retail competition
issugs in Wiscansin, and the PSCW announced that its first priority is to develop
the utility infrastructure necessary to assure reliable electric service and to remave
the barriers to competition at the wholesale level. In 1998, the PSCW and the
major utilities in Wisconsin, including WPSC, made legisiative proposals to
address reliability and restructuring concerns, including market power, among
other issues. This-resulted in the Eleciric Reliability Bill (1997 Wis. Laws 204}
("Act 204"). Act 204 contains provisions which relate to the planning and
approval by the PSCW of eleciric power generation and transmission facilities, the
regional management of the transmission system, new eiectric power generation,
inclucing the ownership and operation of wholesale merchant plants, new electric
power transmission facilities, out-of-state retail electric sales, service standards
for electric generation, transmission, and distribution facilities, and the allowable
assets of public utility holding companies.

On June 5, 1997, the MPSC ordered utilities under its jurisdiction to file
electric open access plans and related tariffs. The MPSC order called for
generation open access ir increments of 2.5% of retail load each year starting
in 1997 and ending in 2001, The MPSC arder requires full generation open
access for refail load in 2002. WPSC and UPPCO submitted plans which
provide retail open access starting in 2000 when the MPSC order requires open
aceess for 10% of refail load, The plans then continue on the MPSC schedule
including fult apen access in 2002.

Should electric deregulation oceur such that WPSC and UPPCO would no
longer qualify to reflect the eftects of ratemaking under SFAS No. 71 in their
financial statements, no impairment of significant recorded assets or reduction
in reported equity is anticipated. WPSC and UPPCQ do not have any sigaificant
assets which are foreseen as being potentially stranded and no potential
disparity between the depreciable lives of capital assets and those lives
applicable to a competitive environment has been identified. Increased
cempetition is [ikely to put pressure on electric utility margins. Al this time,
however, management cannot predict the ultimale resulls of deregulation.

Part of electric ufility restructuring involves establishing independent
system operators (“1S0s™. An IS0 is an independent third party which
potentially owns the transmission facilities, oversees the operations of
transmission facilities, administers open access transmission tariffs, and
directs power dispatch. WPSG is working with several groups which are
attempting to form 1S0s.

Both the PSCW and the MPSC continue'to review gas industry
restructuring. In a current docket, the PSCW is addressing gas restructuring
issues including unbundling of rates, pricing of contracted services in potential
utility bypass situations, and the separation of gas utilities fram their
nonregulated gas marketing affiliates. The MPSC is canducting pilot studies to
test the development of competitive retail gas markets in Michigan.

WPSC has historically recovered gas costs through a PGAC. The PSCW
has recently allowed utilities to select either an incentive gas cost racovery
mechanism or a modified one-for-one mechanism for gas cost recovery.
WPSC has selected the modified one-for-cne gas cost recovery plan, and
implementation of the new mechanism, which is similar to the recovery
received under the existing PGAC, began in January 1999.

Environmental

WPSC continues Lo investigate the environmental cleanup of eight
manufactured gas plant sites. The cleanup of WPSC's Stevens Point
manufactured gas plant site has been substantially completed with manitoring
of the site continuing. Costs of this cleanup were within Ihe range expected for
this site. Future investigation and cleanup costs for the remaining seven sites is
estimated to be in the range of $33.9 million to $41.0 million. These estimates
may be adjusted in the future contingent upon remedial technology, requlatory
requiresnents, and experience gainad through cleanup activities.
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An initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 million had been established with
an offsetting requlatory asset (deferred charge). Of this amount, approximately
$2.7 million has been spent {0 date. Manggement believes that cleanup costs
net of insurance recoveries, but not the carrying costs associated with the
cleanup expenditures, will be recoverableiin current and future customer rates.
WPSC has received $12.6 miliion in insurance recoveries which have been
recorded as a reduction i the regulatory asset.

WPSC is in compliance with both the Phase | and Il suffur dioxide and
nitrogen oxide emission limits established Dy the Federal Clean Air Act
Amendrments of 1990. Additional capital expendiiures of $1.0 million to
$2.0 million are projected through 1999 for Wisconsirt and for federai air
quality comptiance. Management betieves that all costs incurred for additional
compliance will be recoverable in future customer rates.

In late September 1998, the United States Environmental Protection.
Agency {“EPA") required certain states, including Wisconsin fo develop plans to
reduce the emissions of nitrogen oxides (“NOX"} from sources within the state
by late 2003. On a preliminary basis, WPSC projects potential capital costs of
between $37.0 million and $96.0 million to comply with possible future
regulations. The cumulative incremental annual operating and maintenance
expense associated with these possible future regulations projected to be
incurred by 2010 range from $29.0 million to $106.0 million. The costs wili
depend on the state-specific compliance method 1o be adopted in the future as
well as the effectiveness of the various technologies available for NOx emission
contral. Under WPSE's current practice, the capital costs (as reflested in
depreciation expenses) and the annual operating costs are anticipated to be
recavered through future customner rates.

On December 24, 1998, WPSC joined other parties in a petition
challenging the EPA' regulations that require Wisconsin to prepare and submit
a NOx implemeniation plan. On January 22, 1999, the State of Wisconsin
intervened in the litigation and chalienged the geographic scope of the rule
and the required timing for imptementation of NOx contrals within the state.
No decisions have yet been rendered.

Kewaunee

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MGA&E finalized an arrangement in
which WPSC will acquire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This agreement,
the clesing of which is contingent upon regulatory approval and steam
generaor replacement scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 59.0%
ownership in Kewaunge.
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On October 17, 1998, Kewaunee was shut down for a planned
maintgnance and refugling outage. Inspeciion of the plant's two steam
generators showed thal ihe repairs made in 1997 were holding up well and few
additional repairs were needed. in addition to the inspection and repair of the
steam generatars, a major overhaul was perfcrmed on the main turbine
generator, The plant was back in operation on November 27, 1998,

Nonregulated Activities

ESI incurred a $6.9 million loss in 1998 and a $4.9 million loss in 1997,
A primary sirategy for ESI is ¢ gain market presence which is reflectad in a
117.1% growth in revenues during the three-year period 1396 through 1998,
from $161.8 million in 1996 to $351.3 million in 1998. To support this growth,
significant expenditures were made for personnel additions and system
improvements. These expenditures, coupled with extreme gas market volatility,
contributed te he losses incurred at ESI. Gas market volatility was reflected in
the NYMEX gas futures prices per dekatherm which, in 1998, rangead from a
high of $2.73 to a low of $1.61. In 1997, gas futures prices ranged fram a high
of $3.55 to 2 low of $1.82. Gas market voiatility has a direcl impact on revenue
and trading incorme.

PDI expects to improve the overall performance of its investment in
Stoneman due to a multi-year capacity sales agreement. Stonemar: was also
grandiathered by the PSCW as a merchant plant which increases the probability
that PDI will repower the plant as a 300-megawatt io 500-megawatt gas-fired
combined cycle generating facility. Operational problems related to the banding
process at ECO Coal Pelletization #12, LLC are being addressed with expected
resolution before the second quarter of 1999.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

WPSR's current financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accapted accounting principles and report operating results in lerms
of histaric cost. They provide a reasonable, objective, and quantifiable statement
of financial results; but they do not evaluate the impact of inflation. Under rate
treatment prescribed by utility regulatory commissions, WPSC's and UPPCO's
projected operating costs are recoverable in revenues, Because forecasts are
prepared assuming inftation, the majority of inflationary etfects on norma!
operating costs are recoverable in rates, However, in these forecasts, WPSC and
UPPCO are only allowed to recover the historic cost of plant via depreciation.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND RETAINED EARNINGS'

Year Ended December 31 (Thousands, except share amauuis) 1998 1997 1996
Operating revenues

Eectric utility $ 543,260 $536,885 $548,701
(as uiility 165,111 211,080 211,357
Nonrequlated energy and other 355,365 187 862 156,391
Total operating revenues 1,063,736 835,837 916,449
Operaling expenses

Electric production fuels 110,809 107,988 105,449
Purchased power 56,447 63,947 55,844
Gas purchased for resale 105,908 147,755 149,388
Nonregulated energy cost of sales 346,663 182,863 155,133
Other operating expenses 172,876 165,982 183,768
Maintenance 52,813 44 325 51,782
Depreciation and decommissioning 86,274 83,441 70,762
Taxes other than income 31,902 31,375 31,671
Total operating expenses 963,692 827,676 803,797
Operating income 100,044 108,161 112,652
Other income and (deductians)

Allowance for equity funds used during consiruction 173 154 255
Other, net 2,605 11,952 {903)
Total other income and (deductions) 2,678 ' 12,106 (648)
Income before interest expense 102,722 120,267 112,004
Interest an long-term deb} 23,987 26,273 25,494
QOther interast 4,827 4910 3922
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (177) (167} (299)
Total interest expense 28,637 31,016 29117
Distributions — preferred securities of subsidiary trust 1,488 - -
Income before income taxes 72,597 89,251 82,687
Income taxes 23,445 31,106 27,216
Minority interest (611) (797) (348)
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiaries 3,132 3,133 3,134
Net income 46,631 55,809 52,885
Other comprehensive income - - -
Comprehensive income 46,631 55,809 52,885
Retained earnings at beginning of year 339,508 333,375 329,150
Cash dividends on common stock (50,985) {49,676) (48,660)
Retained eamnings at end of year $ 335104 $339,508 $333,375
Average shares of common stock 26,511 26,527 26,545
Basic and diluted earnings per average share of common stock $1.76 $2.10 $1.99
Dividend per share of common stock? 1.96 1.92 1.88

' These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsulz Energy Corperation.
? Dividend rates are those of WPS Aescurces Corparation.

The accompanying notes are ar, inteqral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS'

Assets

AL December 31 (Thousands) 1993 1997
Wility plant

Electric $1,715,882 $1,685,413
Gas . 267,892 251,603
Total 1,983,774 1,937,016
Less — Accumulated depreciation and decommissioning 1,206,123 1,113,142
Total 777,651 823,874
Nuclear decommissianing trusts 171,442 134,108
Construction in prograss 42 424 11,776
Nuclear fuel, less accumulated amortization 18,641 19,062
Net utility plant 1,010,158 988,820
Current assets

Cash and equivalents 7,134 8,495
Customer and other receivables, net of reserves 117,206 96,100
Accrued utility revenues 34,175 30,750
Fossil fuel, at average cost 13,152 10,622
Gas in storage, at average cost 20,795 22,080
Materials anc supplies, at average cosl 21,788 20,761
Prepayments and other 26,462 24 645
Total current assets 240,712 213,453
Regulatory assets 70,041 72,849
Net nonutility and nonregulated plant 41,235 28,188
Pension assefs 60,018 55,790
Investments and olher assets 88,223 69,704
Total $1,510,387 $1,435,804
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS'

Capitalization and Liabilities

At Decoumber 31 ( Thousands) 1998 1997
Capitalization
Common stock equity $ 517,190 $ 518,764
Preferred stock of subsidiary with no mandatory redemption 51,200 51,200
Preferred stock of subsidiary with mandatory redemption - 445
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities of subsidiary

trust holding solely WPSR 7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 -
Long-term debt 343,037 347015
Total capitalization 961,427 917,424
Current liabilities
Long-term debt due within one year 884 260
Notes payable 12,703 19,500
Commercial paper 47,590 20,706
Accounts payahle 115490 89,747
Accrued iaxes 2,838 10,114
Accrued interest 7,594 8,711
Other 9,095 12,415
Total current liabilities 196,194 161,453
Long-term liabilities and deferred credits
Accumulated deferred income taxes 122,642 131,197
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 27,150 29 461
Regulatory Jiabilities 50,474 56,487
Fnvironmental remediation liabilities 40,478 40,848
QOther long-term liabilities 112,022 98,934
Total long-term liabilities and deferred credits 352,766 356,927

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 10 - _

Total $1,510,387 $1,435,804

' These statements give effect to the merger with Uipper Peninsula Energy Carporation,

MWW% seotes are ad, intzgral part of thee statements.
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CONSOLIDATEP STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION'

At Decomber 31 ( Thowsasds, &xccptrhaxe;mmtr) 1998 1997
Common stock equity
Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized: 26,551,405 shares outstanding $ 26,551 $ 26,551
Prermium on capital stock 163,438 163,454
Refained earnings 335,154 339,508
Shares in deferred compensation trust, 49,477 and 33,430 shares at an average
cost of $30.42 and $28.44 per share at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively {1,505) (951)
ESOP lpan guarantees (6,448) (3.798)
Total common stock equity 517,190 518,764
Preferred stock — Wisconsin Public Service Corporation
Cumulative, $100 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; with no mandatory redemption
Series Shares Qulslanding
5.00% 132,000 13,200 13,200
5.04% 30,000 3,000 3,000
5.08% 50,000 5,000 5,000
6.76% 150,000 15,000 15,000
£.88% 150,000 15,000 15,000
Total preferred stock of subsidiary with no mandatory redemption 51,200 51,200
Preferred stock — Upper Peninsula Power Company
Cumulative redeemable, $100 par value, 300,000 shares autharized (issuable in series), issued and outstanding
Shares Outstanding
Series 1998 1997
5.25% - 853 - 85
o 4.70% - 3,600 - 360
Total preferred stock of subsidiary with mandatory redemption - 445
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities of
subsidiary trust holding solely WPSR 7.00% subordinated debentures 50,000 -
Long-term debi
First mortgage bonds — Wisconsin Public Service Carparation
Series Year Dug
5%% 1998 - 50,000
7.30% 2002 50,000 50,000
6.80% 2003 50,000 50,000
614% 2005 9,075 9075
6.90% 2013 22,000 22,000
8.80% 2023 53,100 53,100
74% 2023 50,000 50,000
6.08% 2028 50,000 -
First morigage bonds — Upper Peninsula Power Company
Series Year Due :
7.94% 2003 15,000 15,000
10.0% 2008 6,000 6,000
9.32% 2021 18,000 18,000
Instatiment sales contract for air poliutien centro! equipment — Upper Peninsuta Power Company
Term Bonds Year Oug
6.90% 1999 120 230
Total 323,295 323,405
Unamertized discount and premium on bonds, net (817) (890)
Total first mortgage bonds 322,478 322,515
ESOP loan guarantees 6,448 9,798
Notes payable to bank, secured by nonregulated plant 10,943 10,710
Senior secured note 3,886 4,037
Other {ong-term debt 166 215
Total long-term debt 343,921 347,275
Less amounts due within one year (884) (260)
Net long-term debt 343,037 347,015
Total capitalization $961 427 $917.424

! These statements give eftect lo Ihe Merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation,

The accompaiying nates are tn integral part of these statewtents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows'

Year Ended. Decomcber 37 (Thousands) 1998 1997 1996
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 46631 $ 55808 $ 52885
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net eash from operating activities

Depreciation and decommissioning 86,274 83441 70,762
Amortization of nuclear fuel and other 16,257 14,665 28,691
Deterred income taxes (11,940) {6.220) (7.579)
Investment tax credit restored (2,311) {1,049) {1,061
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (173) (154) {255)
Pension income (9,669) {12,548) {12,953)
Postretirement liability 4,491 6,424 8,047
Other, net (9,220) (7.535) 5,329
Changes in

Customer and other receivables (21,106} 17,343 (27,318)
Accrued utility revenues (3,425) 4636 2,200
Fossil fuel inventory {(2,530) (2,112) 477
Gas in storage 1,285 (2,003) (8,911)
Accounts payable 25,743 {10,794) 30,184
Accrued 1axes {7,276) 1,937 (504)
Environmental remediation insurance recovery - 12374 200
Miscellaneous current and accrued liabilities (4,004) {3,373) (4.352)
Gas refunds 684 (318) {6,175)
Net cash from operating activities 109,711 149,533 127,679
Cash flows from (used for) investing activities

Congtruction of uillity plant and nuclear fusl expenditures {94,734) (58,258) {84, 750)
Purchase of other property and equipment {16,075) {8,057) {29,441)
Decommissioning funding (17,239) (16,058) {8,978)
Purchase of investments and acquisitions - - (728)
Dther 4,046 5,086 (270)
Net cash used for investing activities (124,002) {77.288) {124,167)
Cash flows from (used for) financing activities

Issuance of long-term debt 50,233 1,789 15,296
Redemptian of tong-term debt (53,660) - (6,900}
Issuance of notes payable 196,353 97,260 145,525
Redemption of notes payable {203,150) (109,360) (129,625)
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable trust praferred securities 50,000 - -
Issuance of cammercial paper 2,157,808 700,540 345,339
Redemption of commercial paper (2,130,924) (711,184) (325,489}
Cash dividends on common stock (50,485) (49,698) (48,683)
Other (2,745) (1,139) (715)
Net cash from (used for) financing activities 12,930 (71,792) (5.252)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (1,361) 453 (1,740}
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 8,495 8,042 8,782
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 7.134 $ 849 $ 8042
Cash paid during year for

Interest, less amount capitalized $ 26,879 $ 26,663 § 26146
Income taxes 44,553 37,366 34,210
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 3,132 3133 3134

! These statements give affect to the merger with Uppes Peninsula Energy Corporation.

The accompuiying notes are an integral part of these statemeitts,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Nature of Operations—WPS Resources Corporation (*WPSR"} is a
holding company. Approximately 67% of WPSR's 1998 revenues, 92% of
WPSR's assets, and all of its 1998 nef income were derived from WPSR's utility
subsidiaries. WPSR's primary wholly-owned subsidiary, Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation {“WPSC"), is an electric and gas ulility engaged in the
supply and distribution of electric pewer and natural gas in its franchised service
ierritory, WPSR's other whoily-owned ulility subsidiary, Upper Peninsula Power
Company (“UPPCQ"), is an electric utility.engaged in the supply and distribution
of electric energy in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan. WPSR also provides gas
and etectric marketing and energy-related services in nonregulated markets
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, WPS Energy Services, Inc. {“ESI").

WPS Power Development, inc. (“PDI"), another whally-owned subsidiary of
WPSR, participates in ihe development of electric generation projecis, provides
servica to the efeciric power generation industry, and owns a two-thirds interest
in a merchant generating plant, the Stoneman Power Plant (*Stoneman”™). PO
also has signed agreements to purchase hydro, steam, and diese! gensration
facilities from Maine Public Service Company pending approval by the Maine
Public Service Commission. WPSR's ather nonregulated subsidiaries inglude
Upper Peninsula Building Development Company and Penavest, Inc. in

January 1999, WPSR formed a new subsidiary, WPS Resources Capital
Corparation, which will oblain the financing for most nonrequlated projects,

Effective September 29, 1998, Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation
(*UPEN"y merged with and info WPSR, and UPPCO, UPEN's major subsidiary,
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of WESR. The consolidated financial
statements have been restated to give efféct to the merger as if the companies
had been combined ir the earliest period presented. See Note 12 for additional
information related to the marger.

The term “utifity” refers to the requlated activities of WPSC and UPPCO,
while the term “nonutility” refers to the activities of WPSC and UPPCO which
are not regulated. The term “nonregulated” refers to activities other than those
of WPSC and UPPCG.

(b) Use of Estimates—The preparation of WPSR's financial slatements
is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Management
may make estimaies and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclesure of conlingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reparied amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fram those estimates.

(¢} Acquisitions and Nonregulated Investments—At ESI, the price
paid in excess of the fair value of identifiable assets acquired in 1995 is being
amortized over a five-year period.

(d) Consolidation—WPSR consolidates all majority-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany transactions:and aceounts have been eliminated.

{e) Price Risk Management Activilies—WPSR has not experienced
significant price risk activities at its utility operafions which are not recoverable
through: customer rates, however, price risk is experienced at ESI.

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

ESI uiilizes derivative financial and commaodity instruments (“derivatives™),
including futures and forward contracts, 1o reduce market risk associated with
fluctuations in the price of natural gas and electricity sold under firm
commitments with certain of its customers. ESI also ulilizes derivatives,
including price swap agreements, call and put aption comtracts, and futures and
forward cantracts, to manage market risk associaied with a portion of ils
anticipated supply requirements. In addition, ES! utilizes derivatives, within
specified guidelines, for trading purposes.

G&ains or losses on derivatives associated with firm commitments are
recognized as adjustmenis to the cost of sales or to revenues when the related
transactions affect sarnings. Gains and Insses an derivatives associated with
forecasted transactions are recognized when such forecastad transactions affect
garnings. At December 31, 1998, $7.2 million in losses refated to firm
commitments and forecasted transactions were deferred. If it is no longer
probable that a forecasted transaction will occur, any gain or loss on the
derivative instrument as of such date is immediately recognized in earnings.
Derivatives for trading purposes are marked 1o market each accounting period,
and gains and losses are recognized as a component of other income at that
time. In 1998 and 1997, trading losses of $6.1 million and $1.4 miltion,
respectively, were recognized.

Al December 31, 1998, ES! had outstanding 22.0 million notional
dekatherms of natural gas under iutures and option agreements and 1.3 million
noficnal dekatherms of natural gas under basis swap agreements for purposes
of managing markel tisk. The financial instruments outstanding at December 31,
1998 expire a; various times through August 2000. ESI has cerain gas sales
commitmentis through August 2000 with a range of sale prices from $2.36 to
$2.38 per dexatherm and a range of associated gas purchase costs of $2.29 to
$2.31 per dekatherm.

As of December 31, 1998, the fair value of trading instruments included
assets of $0.7 miltion. Except for a minimal level of electric trading
instruments, financial instruments used for trading in 1998 and 1937 were
natural gas derivatives. At Decembar 31, 1998, ESI had outstanding
13.6 million national dekatherms of natural gas under futures and option
agreements and 1.6 millian notional dekatherms of natural gas under basis
swap agreements for trading purposes.

(f) Utility Plant—Ulility plant is stated at the original cost of
construction which inctudes an allowance for funds used during construction
{"AFUDC"). Approximately 50% of WPSC's refail jurisdictional construgtion
work in progress (“CWIP") expenditures are subject to AFUDC using a rate
based on WPSC's averall cost of capital. Major new generating facilities earn
AFUDC on total CWIP expenditures. For 1998, WPSC’s AFUDC setail rate was
approximately 10.4%.

AFUDG is recorded on WPSC's wholesale jurisdictional electric CWIP at
debt and equily percentages specified in the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (“FERG™) Uniform System of Accounts. For 1998, WPSC's AFUDC
wholesale rate was approximately 5.5%.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

UPPCO has not had significant construction projects in recent years and,
therefore, has not capitalized AFUDC.

Substantially ail of WPSC's and UPPCO's utility plant assets are subject to
first mortgage liens.

{o) Property Additions, Maintenance, and Retirements of Utility
Plant—The cost of renewals and bettermsnts of units of property (as
distinguished from minor items of property) is capialized as an addifion to the
utility plant accounts. Except for land, no gain or loss is recognized in
connection with ordinary retirements of utility property units. The cost of units of
praperty retired, sold, or otherwise disposed of, plus removal cost, less salvage,
are charged to the accumulated provision for dapreciation. Maintenance and
repair costs and repiacement and renewal costs associated with items not
qualifying as units of property are generally charged to operaling expense.

Nonutility property ang nonregulated property follow a similar policy
excep! that gains.and losses are recognized in cannection with retirements.

(h) Depreciation—Straight-line composite depreciaticn expense is
recorded over the estimated useful life of utility property and includes estimated
salvage and cost of removal. Except for the Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
("Kewaures"), WPSC's rates approved by the Public Service:Commission of
Wiscansin ("PSCW") on Jaruary 1, 1994, and by the Michigan Public Service
Commission (“MPSC") en Janisary 1, 1994 remained in effect threugh 1998,
New rates have been approved by the PSCW to be effective January 1, 1999.
The estimated effect of the new rates on 1999 depreciation expense is-a
decrease of approximately $1.0 million.

UPPCO's depreciation rates approved by the MPSC on January 1, 1994
remain in effect through 2001. A new deprecigtion study will be filed with the
MPSC in late 2000, with new rates effective January 1, 2002.

Depreciation expense includes accruals for nuclear decommissioning
which are not included in the annual composite raies shown below. An
explanation of this item is included in Note 1(k).

WPIR 1998 ‘ 1997 1996

Annual composite
depreciation rates

Electric 3.57% 3.55% 3.36%
Gas 3.26% 3.26% 3.35%
Wesc

Annirai composite

depreciation rates
Electric 3.55% 3.52% 3.33%
Gas 3.26% 3.26% 3.35%

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nenutility property and noaregutated properly are depreciated using
straight-line depreciation. Most assets have depreciation lives ranging from five
to ten years.

Property at Stoneman is depreciated using various lives, certain of which
are as long as 40 years.

Depreciation for Kewaunee is presently baing accrued based on a 1997
PSCW order allowing for full cost recovery of the remaining unrecovered
investment in Kawauneg by the end of 2002. The PSCW depreciation rate order
authorizing new rates for 1999 also includgs a change in methodology for
recovery of Kewaunee investment after new steam generators have been installed,
estimated to be mid-year 2000. At that time, ihe unrecovered basis of Kewaunee,
incluging the new sieam generators, will be recovered over an 8.5 year
remaining life through 2008 using the sum-of-the-years depreciation method.

{i) Impairment—WPSR fcllows the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of " SFAS
No. 121 requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles be
reviewed for impafrment whenever circumstances indicate that the arrying
ameunt of an assel may not be recoverable. Impairment losses resulting from
application of this statement are reported in inceme in the period in which the
recognition criteria are first applied and met. This statement does not have a
material impact on the current carrying amouni of WPSR's assets.

(i) Nuclear Fuel—The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized 1o electric
production fuel expense based on the quantity of heat produced for the
generation of electric energy by Kewaunee. Costs amartized to electric fue!
expense (which assume no salvage vaiues for uranium and plutonium) include
an amount for ultimate disposal and are recoverec through current customer
rates. As required by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, 2 contract has been
signed with the United States Depariment of Energy (“DOE") for the ulimate
storage of the fugl; and quarterly payments, based on generalion, are made te
the DOE for fuel storage. Interim storage space for spent nuclear fuel is
provided at Kewaunee, and expenses assaciated with this storage are
recognized as current operating costs. Currently, there is on-site storage
capacity for spent fuel through the year 2013. As of Dacember 31, 1998 and
1997, the accumulated provisiens for nuclear fuel totaled: $156.6 million and
$151.2 million, respeciively.

(k} Nuclear Decommissioning—A~usiear decommissioring costs to
date have been accrued over the eslimated service life of Kewaunee, recovered
currenily from customers in rates, and deposited in external trusts. Such costs
totaled $17.2 million in 1998, $16.1 miliion in 1997, and $9.0 million in 1996.
The increase in 1997 was the resuft of the PSCW's approval of the acceleraticn of
Kewaunee depreciation and decommissioning funding as described in Note 1(h).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Based on the standard cost escalation assumptions required by a July
1994 PSCW order, the undiscounted amount of WPSC's decommissioning
costs forecasted o be expended between the years 2003 and 2039 is
$614.0 million under the revised funding plan which became effeciive in 1997
In developing the funding plan, a long-term after-tax earnings rate of
approximately 5.5% was assumed.

WPSC's share of Kewaunee decommissioning is estimated to be
$192.6 million in current dollars based on a site-specific study. The study,
which was performed in 1992, uses immediate dismantlement as the method of
decommissioning beginning after a dormant period extending frem 2002 until
2015. As of December 31, 1998, the market value of the external nuclear
decommissicning trusts tolated $171.4 million. A new site-specific stugy, which
assumed shutdown in 2013, was completed during 1998 with WPSC's share of
Kewaunee decommissioning estimated to be $190.7 million. Based on that
study, WPSC's contributions for 1999 under the 1999 PSCW rate order will be
$8.3 millicn.

Depreciation.expense includes future decommissioning costs cellected in
customer rates and an offselting charge for earnings from external trusts. As of
December 31, 1698, the accumulated provision for depreciation and
decommissioning included accumulated provisions for decommissioning
totaling $171.4 miilion. Realized irust earnings totaled $3.3 million,
$3.7 million, 2ng $3.0 million, and unrealized trust earnings totaled
$16.8 million, $13.8 million, and $6.5 miilion for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 19567, and 1996, respectively. Unrealized gains, net of tax,
in external trusts are reflecied as an increase to the decommissioning reserve,
since decemmissioning expense will be recognized as the gains are realized, in
accordance with segulatory requirements.

Investments in the nuciear decommissioning trusts are recorded at market
value. The investments classified as utility plant are presented et of refated
income tax effects on unrealized gains and represent the amount of assets
available to accomplish decommissioning. The nonqualified trust investments
designated to pay income taxes when unrealized gains become realized are
classified s other assefs. An offsetiing regulatory liability seflects the expected
reduction in fuiure rates as unrealized gains in the nongualified trust are reafized.

{1} Cash and Equivalents—WPSR considers short-term investments
with an ariginal maturity of three months or less ta be cash equivalents.

(m} Revenue and Customer Receivables—WPSR accrues revenues
related to electric and gas service, including estimated amounts for service
renderad bul not billed.

Automatic fuel adjustment clauses are used for FERC wholesale-electric
and MPSC refail-glectric portions of WPSC's and UPPCQ's businesses.

The PSCW retail-electric portion of WPSC's business uses a “cost
variance.range” approach. This range is based on a specific estimated fuel cost
for the forecast year. If WPSC's actual fuel costs fall outside this range, a
hearing may be held and an adjustment to future rates may resuit. WPSC has a
purchased gas adjustment clause ("PGAC”) which allows it to pass changes in
the cost of gas purchased from: ils suppliers on fo system gas customers,
subject to PSCW and MPSC review. The continued use of a PGAC for all
Wisconsin utilities has been reexaminedsby the PSCW, and uiilities were given
the choice between cantinuing under a modified ane-for-one gas cost recovery
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plan or switching to an ingentive gas cost recovery mecharism. The PSCW has
approved a modified one-for-ane gas cost recovery plan for WPSC which is
similar to the gas cost recovery under the existing PGAC. Implemeniation of the
modified one-for-one gas cost recavery plan began in January 1999.

Billings to UPPCO's customers under MPSC jurisdiction include base rate
charges and a power supply cost recovery ("PSCR") factor, Approximately 40%
of UPPCO’s operating expense is power supply costs. UPPCO receives MPSC
approval each year to recover projecied power supply costs by establishment of
PSCR factars. These factors are subject to annual reconciliation to actual costs
and permit 100% recovesy of allowed power supply costs. Any over or under
recovery is deferred on UPPCO's balance sheet, and such deferrals are relieved
as refunds or acditional billings are made.

WPSC and UPPCO are required io provide service and grani credi to
custorners within their service territories and are precluded fram discontinuing
service 10 residential customers during cerain periods of the year. WPSC and
UPPCO continualiy review their customers' credit-worthiness and obtain
deposits or refund deposils accardingly.

Approximately 11% of WPSR's tofa! revenues are from companies in the
paper products industry.

(n) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities—WPSC and UPPCO are
subiject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Eifects of Certain
Types of Regulation." Regulatory asseis represen; probable future revenus
associatec with certain incurred costs which will be recovered from cuslomers
through the ratemaking arocess. Regulatory liabilities represent costs
previously collected that are refundable in future customer rates. The foliowing
requiatory assets and liabilities were refiected in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of December 31:

WPSR { Thousands) 1998 1997
Repulatory assets
Demand-side management expenditures $23,860 $31,360
Environmental remediation costs

(net of insurance recoveries) 30,285 29,882
Coal and rail contract buy-out costs 616 2,293
Debt refinancing costs 1,810 2,078
Encichment facility fee 5,056 5,544
Kewaunee steam generator resleeving cosis - 3577
Other 8,414 5115
Total $70,041 $79.849
Regulatory liabililies
Income tax related iiems $29.617 $32,596
Pensions - 2,443
Conservation costs (2,866) 6,491
Unrealized gain on

decommissioning trust 16,397 11,348
Kewaunee deferred ravenue 4,009 ’ 2518
Deferred gain an emission

allowance sales 3,304 1,352
Qther 13 {261)
Total $50,474 $56,487
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WeSE (Thewsasds) 1998 1997

Regulatory assets

Demand-side management expenditures $23,860 $31,360
Environmental remediation costs

{net of insurance recoveries) 29,021 29,249
Coal and rail contract buy-out costs 616 2,293
Debt refinancing costs 1,623 1,859
Enrichment facility fee 5,056 5,544
Kewaunee steam generator resieeving costs - 3,577
Other 8,159 4,662
Total $68,335 $78,544
Regulatary liabilities
Income tax related items $22,734 $26,119
Pensions - 2,443
Conservation costs (2,866) 6,491
Unrealized gain on

decommissioning trust 16,397 11,348
Kewaunee deferred revenus 4,009 2,518
Deferred gain on emission

allowance saies 3,304 1,352
QOther 13 8
Total $43,591 $50,279

As of December 31, 1998, the majority of WPSC's regulatory assets are
being recovered through rates charged to cusiomers over periads ranging from two
to ten years. Recovery periods for UPPCO's requlatory assets are up io 26 years.
Carrying costs for all WPSC's regulatory assets are being recovered except for
ihose associated with environmental costs. No carrying costs are being recovered
for UPPCO's regulatory assets. Based on prior and current raie treatment of such
costs, management believes it is probable.that WPSC and UPPCO will cantinug to
recover from ratepayers the regulatory assets described anove,

See Notes 8 and 9 for specific information-on pension and deferred tax
regulatory liabilities. See Note 10.for information on environmental remediation
deferred costs.

{0) Investments and Other Assets—Investments include awnership
interests in Wisconsin River Power Company and Wisconsin Valley
Improvement Gompany. Income ralated to these invesiments is included in
other income and deductions using the equity method of accounting. Other
assets include operating deposits for jointly-owned plants, the cash surrender
value of life insurance policies, the tong-term portion of energy conservation

NOTE 2—JOINTLY-OWNED UTILITY FACILITIES

Infgrmation regarding WPSC's share of major jointly-owned electric
generating facilities in service i December 31, 1998 is set forth on the
following page.

WPSC's share of direct expenses for these plants is included in the
carresponding operating expenses in the consolidaled statements of income.
WPSC has supplied its own finanging for all jointly-ownad projects.

loans 1o customers, and the decommissioning trust investments designated for
payment of income taxes.

{p) Reclassifications—Certain prior year financial statement amounts
have been reclassified to conicrm to current year presentation.

{9) Retirement of Debt—Historically, gains or losses resulting from
the satttement of long-term ulility debt obligafions have been deferred and
amortized concurrent with rate recovery as required by regulators.

{r) Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities—In June 1998,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"} issued SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative (nstruments anc Hedging Activities.” This sfatement
fequires all derivatives to be measured at fair value and recognized as either
assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of a derivative is dapendent upon the use of the
derivative and its resulting designation. Unless specific hedge accounting
criteria.are mel, changes in the derivative's fair value must be recognized
currently in earnings. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 199%. WPSR will be adopting the requirements of this statement
on January 1, 2000, and has not vet determined the methed of adoption or its
impact. However, the requirements of this statement could increase volatility in
earnings ard other comprehensive income.

(s) Internally-Developed Software—in March 1998, the American
Institute of Certified Public Accourtants (“*AICPA") issuad Statement of
Position 88-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed of
Obtained for Internal Use.” This staiement requires the capitalization of certain
costs related to software developed or ablained for iaternal use. The staiement is
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 1998. WPSR will be adopting
the requirements of this statement in 1999, While the total impact of WPSR's
adoption of this statement has not been determined, WPSC's adoption of this
statemer is expected to result in a reduction in operating expenses, which has
been substantially considered in the ratemaking process. The capilalized software
costs will then be amortized to operating expense in fulre years.

(t) Costs of Start-up Activities—In April 1998, the AICPA issued
Statement of Position 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities.” This
statement provides guidance on the financial reporting of start-up costs and
organization costs. Costs of start-up-activities and organization costs are
required to be expensed as incurred. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after Decerber 15, 1998. WPSR wil! be adopting the requirements of
this statement in 1999 and does nat anticipate any material impact {o its
financial statements.

Upan closing of an agreement with Madison Gas and Electric Company
("MG&E"}, which is contingent upon sigam generator replacement, WPSC will
acquire MG&E's 17.8% share of Kewaunee. This wil! increase WPSC's
ownership in Kewaune t¢ 59.0%. See Note 10 for aditional information
regarding Kewaunee.
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West Marinette Columbia Edgewater
WESC (Thousands, except for percentages) Unit No. 33 Energy Center Linit No. 4 Kewaunee
Ownership 68% 31.8% 31.8% 41.2%
Plant capacity (Megawats) 83.5 3352 104.9 221.0
Utility plant i service $15,917 $112,307 $22,542 $133,009
Accumulated depreciation $ 2774 $ 63592 $13,504 $ 97,930
In-service date 1993 1975 and 1978 1969 1974

NOTE 3—SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT

To provide short-term borrowing flexibility and security for commerciai
paper outsianding, WPSR and its subsidiaries maintain bank lines of credit.
Most of these lines of credif require a fee.

The information in the tabls below relates to shori-term debt and lines of
credit for the years indicated:

(Thousands, except for percentnges) 1998 1957 1996
As of end of year

Commercial paper oulstanding $ 47,590 $20,706 $31.350
Average discount rate on autstanding commergial paper 4.84% 6.55% 9.73%
Notes payable outstanding $ 12,703 $19,500 $31,600
Average inferest rate on notes payable 5.88% 7.06% 6.16%
Available lines of credit $ 62,102 $27.500 $55,900
Far the year

Maximum amaunt of shert-term dabt $102,033 $80,017 $75,250
Average amount ¢f short-lerm debt $ 50,939 $37.609 $31,254
Average interest rate on short-term debl 5.93% 6.06% 5.18%

NOTE 4—LONG-TERM DEBT

First mortgage bonds are secured by utility plant assets. In July 1998,
WPSC retired the entire $50.0 million issue of the 5%% First Mortgage Bonds.
In December 1998, WPSC issued $50.0 million of 6.08% senior notes due in
2028 secured by a pledge of firsi mortgage bonds. Tne 1998 notes become
unsecured if WPSC were to call all of its outstanding first morigage bonds.
These notes woutd then be secured by WPSC's general credit and not by
WPSC's assets.

NOTE 5—COMPANY-OBLIGATED MANDATORILY
REDEEMABLE TRUST PREFERRED
SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARY TRUST

On July 30, 1998, WPSR Capital Trust | {"Trust"), a Delaware busiress
trust of which WPSR owns all of the outstanding trust common securifies,
issued $50.0 million of trust preferred securities to the public. The sole-asset of
the Trust (s $51.5 million principal amount of subcrdinated debentures due
June 30, 2038, and bearing interest at 7.0% per annum, issued by WPSR. The
terms and interest payments on these debentures cerrespond o the terms and
distributions on the trust preferrsd securities. The Trust has been consolidated
into the WPSR financial statements. The interest payments are reflecied as

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

As of December 31, 1998, $8.1 million has been drawn against PDI's
revolving credit note of $11.5 million which is secured by the assets of
Storeman. An additional $3.3 miilion, which is to be paid in the year 2000, has
been committed against ihis note. The note, which is guaranteed by WPSR, is
due in the year 2000 or when the plant is converted to a 300-megawatt to
500-megawatt gas-fired combingd cycle facility.

distributions — preferred securities of subsiciary trust in the Consalidated
Statement of Incame and are tax deductible by WPSR. WPSR may elact to defer
interest payments on the debentures for a period up to 20 consecutive quarters,
causing distributions on the frust preferred securities to be deferred as well.

In case of a deferral, interest and distributions will continue to accrue,
along with quarterly compounding interest on the deferred amounts. WPSR may
redeem all or a portion of the debentures.after July 30, 2003, requiring an equal
amount of trusf securities to be redeemed at face value plus accrued and unpaid
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distributions. WPSR has entered into a limited guarantee of payment of
distributions, redemption payments, and payments in liquidation with respect 1o
the trust preferred securities. This quarantee, when considezed together with

NOTE 6—COMMON EQUITY

Under WPSR's Stock Investment Plan, WPSR's comman stock has bean
purchased in the open market to satisfy sharehoider and employee purchass
requirements. Beginning in January 1999, WPSR began issuing new shares for
the Stack Investment Plan,

In December 1996, WPSR adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan designed 1o
enhance the abilily of the Board of Directors 10 pretect shareholders and WPSR
if efforts are mate ta gain conirof of WPSR in a manner that is riot in the best
interests of WPSR and its shareholders. The plan gives existing shareholders,
under certain circumstances, the right to purchase stock at a discounted price,
Tne rights expire on December 11, 2008,

At December 31, 1998, WPSR had $328.5 million of refained zarnings
available for dividends. WPSC is restricted by a PSCW order 1o paying normal
common stock dividends of no more than 109.0% of the previous year's

NOTE 7—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financia! instruments far which it is practicable to
estimate stich value:

Cash, Snort-Term investments, Energy Conservation Loans, Notes
Payable, and Quistanding Commercial Paper: The carrying amount
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those investments
and abligations.

Nuclear Decommissioning Trusts: The value of WPSC's nuclear
decommissioning trust investments is recorded at market value.

WPSR’s abligations under the related debentures and indenture and the
applicable declaration of trust, provide a full and unconditional guarantee by
WPSR of amounis due on the outstanding trust preferred securities.

common stock dividend without PSCW approval. Also, Wiscansin law prohibits
WPSC from making loans to WPSR and its subsidiaries and from guarantseing
their obligations.

UPPCQ's indentures relating to first martgage bands contain certain
limitations on the payment of cash dividends on common stock. Under the
most restrictive of these provisions, approximately $7.9 millior: of consolidated
retained sarnings were available at December 31, 1898, for the payment of
common stock cash dividends by UPPCO.

WPSR made a $34.0 million equity infusion into WPSC during the
second quarter of 1998. In December 1998, WPSC paid to WPSR a special
common dividend of $20.0 millign. The special dividend aliowed WPSC's
average common equity capitalization ratio to remain at approximately 54.0%,
the level approved by the PSCW for ratemaking.

Long-Term Debt, Praferred Stock, and ESOP Loan Guarantees: The fair
value of WPSC's long-term debt, preferred stock, and ESOP loan guaraniees is
estimated based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issugs or
an the current Tates cfiered to WPSC for debt of the same remaining maturity.

The estimated fair values of WPSR's financial insiruments as of
December 31 were:

1998

(Thonsands) 1997

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Cash and casi equivaients $ 7134 $ 7134 $ 8495 $ 8495
Energy conservation loang 7,810 7,810 7,195 7195
Nuclear decommissioning trusts — ulility plant 171,442 171,442 134,108 134,108
Nuclear decommissioning trusts — other asssis 16,397 16,397 11,348 11,348
Notes payabie 12,703 12,703 19,500 19,500
Commercial paper 47,590 47 590 20,706 20,706
ESOP loan guarantees 6,448 6,702 9,798 10,243
Trust preterred securities 50,000 50,250 - -
Long-term dsbt 337473 366,038 337,477 360,506
Preferred stock 51,200 53,026 51,645 49,040
Gas commodity instruments 41,800 34,600 504 436
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NOTE 8—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

WPSC ang UPPCQO have non-contributory retirement plans covering
substantially all employees under which annual contributions may be made to
an irrevocable trust established to provide retired employees with a monthly
payment.if conditions relating lo-zge and ‘ength of service have been met. The
WPSC pension plans are fully funded, and no contributions were made in
1998, 1997, or 1996. The WPSC and UPPCQ pension plans and other benefit
plars were merged effective December 31, 1998. The net accrued benefit
iiability assumed by WPSC af December:31, 1998 was $5.7 miilion.

WPSC and UPPCO also currently offer medical, dental, and life insurance
benefils to employees, retirees, and their dependents. The expenses for active
employees are expensed as incurred. The company funds these benefils
through irrevocable trusts as al'owed for income iax purposes. These funded
amounts have been expensed and recovered through customer rates. The

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

non-administrative plan is a ¢ollectively bargained plan and, therefore, s lax
exempt. The investments in the trust cavering administrative employees are
subject to federal unrelated husiness income taxes at 2 39.6% fax rate,

All pension costs and postretirement pian costs are accounted for under
SFAS Nos, 87 and 106, respectively, which require the cost of these benefits to
be accrued as expense over the period in which the employee fenders service.
The transition obligation for current and future retirees is recognized over
20 years beginning in 1993,

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plang’
benefit obligations and fair value of assefs over the three one-ysar periods
ending Decerher 31, 1988, 1997, and 1996, and a statement of the funded
status as of December 31, of each year:

(Thousands) 1993 1997 1996
Reconciliation of benefit obligation ~ pension

Obligation at January 1 $350,669 $299 587 $301,840
Servige £osl 9,014 7.019 7,404
Interest cost 25,264 22,919 22,493
Participant confributions - - ~
Plan amendments 5,762 1,224 -~
Agiuarial {gain) loss 26,085 28,989 (17.296)
Acquisitions - - -
Benefit paymenis {17,43D) {15,911 {14,854)
Curtailments - 842 ~
Obligation at December 31 $399,364 $350,669 $299,587
Recanciliation of benefit abligation - other

Obligation at January 1 $127,705 $116,354 $123,665
Service cost 3,874 3,500 3816
Interest cost 9,126 9,496 9,584
Participant contriputions - - -
Plan amendments - 6,803 -
Actuarial {gain) loss 2,599 34 (16,418)
Acquisitions - - -
Benefit payments (4,489) (4,174) (4,303)
Curtaitments - (4,308) -
Obligation at December 31 $138,815 $127,705 $116,354
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(Thousasds) 1088 1997 1996

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets — pension

Fair value of plan assets 2t January 1 $537,756 $470,176 $431,130

Actual refurn on plan assets 89,618 79,731 51,833
Acquisitions - | - _
Employer contributions 539 ‘ 3,783 2,067

Participant contributions - -
(23)

Plan expenses paid - -
Benefit payments (17,430) (15,911) (14,854)
Fair value of plan assets &t December 31 $610,483 + §537,756 $470,176
Funded status at December 31 $211,119 ., $187,087 $170,585
Unrecagnized transition (asset) obligation {13,467) (17,043) (20,620}
Unrecognized prior-service cost 19,336 15,523 9,467
Unrecognized (gain) loss (156,972) (132,227 {116,172)
Net amaunt recognized $ 60,016 ‘ $ 53,340 $ 43,264
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets — other

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $121,930 o $104,367 $ 88,950
Actual return on plan assets 21,161 20,376 18,198
Acquisitions - - -
Employer contributions 1,239 1,367 1,522
Participant contributions - - -
Plan expenses paid - - -
Benefit payments (4,489) (4,174) (4,303)

[
Fair value of plan asseis at December 31 $139,841 ©$121.930 $104,367
Funded stalus at December 31 $ 1,026 $ {5,776) $(11,986)
Unrecognized transition (assel) obligation 39,434 ! 42 286 47,663
Unrecognized prior-service cost 4,259 i 4583 {1,897)
Unrecognized (gain) loss (87,011) (78,496) (64,432)
Net amount recognized $(42,292) $(37.403) $(30,652)
The net amounts recognized for 1997 and 1996 pension benefits have been The table on the following page provides the amounts recognized in the
reduced for an additional unvecognized regulatory liability related to pension statement of financial position as of December 31 of each year:

costs. The entire regulatory liability was recognized by year-end 1998,
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( Thousands) 1998 j 1997 1996
|
Prepaid benefit cost - pension \
Prepaid benefit cos! $ 60,016 | 52867 $ 43877
Accrued benefit liability - (2,525) (2.208)
Intangible asset - 2998 1,595
Accumulated other income - | _ _
[
Net amount recognized $ 00,016 | 353340 $ 43,264
Prepaid benefit cost - other |
Prepaid benefit cost $ - \ $ - $ -
Accrued benefit liability (42292) | (37.403) (30,652)
Intangible asset - - -
Accumulated cther income - \ - -
Net amoun| recognized $(42,292) s (37.403) ${30,652)
The following lable provides the components of net periodic benafit costs
for the plans far fiscal years 1998, 1997, and 1996
(Thowsands) 1998 | 1997 1996
Net periodic benefit cost - pension
Service cost $ 9014 | § 7019 $ 7404
interast cost 25,264 | 22919 22,493
Expecled return on plan assels (38,282) \ (33,883) (33.283)
Amortization of transilion (assel) obligation (3,576) ‘ {3,576) (3.576)
Amortization of prior-service cost 1,950 ! g1 1,023
Amortization of net [gair) Joss (507} (781} (122}
Net periodic bensfit cost $ (6.137)  § (7.381) $ (6.061)
Curtailment {gain) loss - | 1,088 -
|
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailmenis $ (6137) . § (6293 $ (6.061)
Net periodic benefit cost — other [
Service cost $ 3874 l $ 3500 $ 3816
Interest cost 9,126 | 9,496 9,594
Expected return on plan assets (7.356) (6.378) (6,076)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation 2,852 3,010 3.010
Amortization of prigr-service cost 324 324 {131)
Amortization of ret {gain) loss (2,692) . (2,196) (670)
|
Net periodic benefit cost $ 6128 ‘ $ 7.756 $ 09543
Curtailment (gain) loss - 356 -
Net periodic benefit cost after curtailments $ 6128 ‘ $ 8112 $ 9543
F

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Under a contract with Wisconsin Electric Power Company (“WEPCQ™),
UPPCO had operaied WEPCO's Presque Isle Power Plant in Michigan since
1988. This contract terminated on December 31, 1997, and all employees at the
plant became employees of WEPCO. In 1997, UPPCO recognized a $1.1 miliion

pension curtailment loss and a $0.4 million other benefit plan-curtailment loss
from the termination of the Presque Isle Power Plant aperaling agreement.

The assumptions used in the measurement of WPSR's benefil obligation
are shown in the following table:

1948 1997 1996

Weighted average assumptions as of December 31 — pension

Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Weighted average assumptions as of December 31 — other

Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 7.75%
Expacied return en plan assels 8.75% 8.75% 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase N/A ) N/A N/A

The assumed health care cost trend rates for 1998 arg 8.0% for medical
and 7.5% for dental, both decreasing to 5.0% by the year 2006. Assumed
health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for

( Theusands)

the health care plans. A 1.0% change in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have the following effects:

1.0% Decrease

1.0% Increase

Effect on total of service and interest cost components
of net periodic postretirement health care benefit cost

Efiect on the health care component of the accumulzted
postretirement benefit obligation

$ 2,521 $ {1,955)

5(19.591)

WPSC has a leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust
(“ESOP") that held *,955,468 shares of WPSR common stock (market valug of
approximately $68.9 million) at December 31, 1998. At that date, the ESOP also
had one loan guaranteed by WPSC and secured by commen stock. Pringipal
and interest on the 10an gre to be paid using contributions from WPSC and
dividends on WPSR common stock held by the ESOP. Shares in the £SOP are

$24.684

ailocated to parficipants as the loan is repaid. Tax benefits from dividends paid
to the ESOP are recognized as a reduction in WPSC's cost of providing service
to customers. The PSCW has allowed WPSC to include in cost of service an
additional employer contribution to the plan. The net effect of the lax benefits
and of the employer contribution is an approximately equal sharing of the tax
benefits of the program between customers and employees.
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NOTE 9—INCOME TAXES
WPSR accounts for income taxes using the liability method as prescribed provided in prior years at rates greater than current rates are being refunded to

by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the liability methad, customers prospectively as the temporary diffesences reverse. The net

deferred income iax liabilities are established for all temporary differences in regulatory liability totaled $29.6 million as of December 31, 1998,

the book and-tax bases of assets and liabilities based upon-enacted tax laws As of December 31, 1998 and 1397, WPGR had the following significant

and rates applicable to the periods in which the taxes become payable. Taxes temporary difierences that created deferred tax assets and liabilities:
(Thousands) 19498 ) 1997
Deferred tax assets
Plant related . $ 76,400 $ 68,175
Customer advances 10,599 8,187
Conservation escrow (1,057) 2859
Capital losses/state net operating losses 3,652 1,345
Employee benefits 28,021 22,172
Qther 9,351 3.019
Total $126,966 $106,357
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant related $210,418 $201,239
Demand-side management expenditures 9,421 12,383
Employee benefits 24,009 17,786
Other 5,760 . 6,146
Total $249,608 . $237,554
Net deferred tax liabilities $122 642 $131,197

Previously deferred investment tax credits are being amortized as.a
reduction to income 1ax expense over the-ife of the related ufility plant. The
components of income tax expense are set forth in the tables below:

( Thousainds, except for percentages)

1448 r 1697 1996
Rate Amount . Rate Ampunt Rate Amount

Statutory federal income tax 35.0% $ 25,623 35.0% $31,525 35.0% $29,140
State income taxes, net 5.9 4344 54 4 862 5.1 4275
Investment tax credit restored (2.5) (1,924) (2.2) (1,949) (2.4) (1,961)
Rate difference on reversal of

income tax temporary differences (2.4) (1,761) 2.1 {1,888) - (1.9) {1,579)
Dividends paid to ESOP (1.9) (1,414) (1.5) {1,381) (1.7 (1.424)
Section 29 credits (1.0 {751) {0.2) (220) (0.3) (220)
Other differences, net (1.0) (672) ) 0.2 157 (1.1) {1,015)
Effective income tax 32.0% $ 23,445 _ 34.6% $31,106 32.7% $27.216
Current provision
Federal $ 29,492 ‘ $31,444 $28.478
Staie 7,779 ‘ 7527 7,728
Total current provision 37,21 38,971 36,207
Deferred (benefit) provision (11,902) (5,9186) (7,030)
investment tax credit restored, net (1,924) A (1.949) (1,961)

Total income tax expense $ 23,445 $31,106 $27 216
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NOTE 10—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Coal Contracts

To ensure a reliable, low-cost supply of coal, WPSC entered into a
long-term contract that has take-or-pay obligations lotaling $130.8 million
from 1999 through 2016. The obligations are subject to force majeure
provisions which provide WPSC other options if the specitied coal does not
meet emission limits which may be mandated in future legistation. In the
opinion of management, any amounts paid under the take-or-pay
obligations described above would be considered costs of service subject
to recovery in custemer rates.

Purchased Power

WPSC has several take-or-pay contracts for either capacity or energy
related to purchased power. These contracts total $68.2 million through April
2003. UPPCQ has purchased pawer contracts with external suppliers for
50 megawatts lotating $12.3 million through 1999. Management expects to
recover these cosis i future customer rates.

Long-Term Power Suppiy

In November 1995, WPSC signed a 25-year agreement to purchase power
fram SkyGen Energy LLC, an independent power producer proposing to build a
cageneration facility and sel! electrical power to WPSG. In Octaber 1997, the
PSCW issued a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity authorizing
construction of ihe project. Phase | of the project, which is expected to be
cperational during 1999, will be accounted for as.a capitalized lease with the
capitalized amount being approximately $77.8 million. If Phase Il becomes
operational {Phase Il is currently projected to be operational within five years of
the start of Phase 1}, an additional plant asset of approximately $76.0 million
will be recorded.

Future Nenregulated Commitments

PDI has signed agreements with: Maine Public Service Company to
purchase, for approximately $38.0 million, hydro, steam, and diesel units in
the State of Maine and in New Brunswick, Canada, with a total capacity of
approximately 92 megawatts. PDI is currently awaiting approval of the purchase
by the Maine Public Service Commission.

Gas Costs

WPSC has natural gas supply and transportation contracts that require
total estimated demand payments of $186.2 million through October 2008.

In April 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 which required natural gas
pipelines to restructure their sales and transportation services. As a result,
WPSC was obligated to pay for a portior: of ANR Pipeline Cornpany's transition
costs through various FERC approved surcharges. Though there may be
additional transition costs, which could be significant, the.amount and timing of
these costs are unknown at this time. Management fully expects to racover
these costs in future customer rates since the PSCW and MPSC have allowed
stich recovery 1o date.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nuclear Liabibity

The Price-Anderson Act provides for the payment of funds for public
liability claims arising out of a nuclear incident. In the event of a nuclear
incident invalving any of the ration’s licensed reactors, WPSG is subject to a
proportional assessment which is approximately $36.3 million per incident, not
to excead $4.1 million per incident, per calendar year. These amounts represent
WPSC's 41.2% ownership share in Kewaunee.

Nuclear Plant Dperation

On September 29, 1998, WPSC and MG&E finalized an arrangement in
which WPSC will acquire, at MG&E's book value, MG&F's 17.8% share of
Kewaunee including MG&E's decommissioning trust assets and assuming
MGAE's share of the decommissioning obligation. This agresment, the closing
of which is contingent upon regulatory approval and steam generator
replacement scheduled for the spring of 2000, will give WPSC 53.0%
gwnership in Kewaunee.

The nef book value of WPSC's share of Kewaunee at December 31, 1998
is $35.2 million. I addition, the current cost of WPSC's share of the estimated
costs to decommission Kewaunes, assuming early retirement, exceeds the trust
assets at December 31, 1998 by $21.2 million. [f retired early, Kewaunee would
be placed in a dormant state following the transfer of spent fuel to temporary
storage facilities. Under this plan, Kewaunee would remain intact with minimal
monitoring and maintenance until physical decommissioning begins. Actual
decommissioning would probably not begin until approximately 2015. On
January 3, 1997, the PSCW accepted WPSC's recommendation to accelerate
recovery of the Wiscensin refail portion of both the current undepreciated plant
balance and the unfunded decommissioning costs over a six-year period, 1997
through 2002. The PSCW depreciation rate order authorizing new rates for
1999 includes a change in methodology for recovery of Kewaunee investrrent
after new steam generators have been installed, estimated to be mid-year 2000,
Al that time, the unrecovered basis of the Kewaunee plant, including the new
sleam generators, will be recovered over an 8.5 year remaining life through
2008 using the sum-of-the-years depreciation method.

On October 17, 1998, Kewaunee was shut down for a planned
maintenance and refueling outage. inspection of the plant's two steam
generators showed that the repairs made in 1997 were holding up well and few
additional repairs were needed. In additfon ta the inspection and repair of the
steam generafors, a major overnaul was performed an the main turbing
generator. The plant was back in operation on November 27, 1598.

Clean Air Regulations

WPSG is in compliance with both the Phase | and Phase il suifur dioxide
and nitrogen oxide emission limits established by the Federal Clean Air Act
Amendments of 199C. Additional capital expenditures of $1.0 million fo
$2.0 millign are projected through 1999 for Wisconsin and federal air quality
compliance. Management Delieves that all costs incurred for additional
compliance will be recoverable in future customer rates.

WPS RESOURGES CORPORATION




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In late September 1998, the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA"} required certain states, including Wisconsin, to develop plans
to reduce the emissions of nitrogen oxides ("NOx™} from sources wiihin the
state by lae 2003. On a prefiminary basis, WPSC projects potential capital
costs of beiween $37.0 miltion and $96.0 millien to comply with possible future
reguiations. The curmulative incremental annual operating and maintenance
expense associated wilh these possible future regulations projected fo be
ingurred by 2010 range frem $29.0 miltion to $106.0 million. The costs will
depend on the state-specitic compliance method to be adopted in the future as
well as the effectiveness of the various technologies avaifable for NOx emission
control. Under WPSC's current practice, the capital costs (as reflected in
depreciation expenses) and the annual operating costs-are anticipated to be
recovered through future customer rates.

On December 24, 1998, WPSC joined ather parties in a petition
challenging the EPA' regulations that require Wisconsin to prepare and submit
a NOx implementation plan. On January 22, 1999, the State of Wisconsin
intervened in the litigation and challenged the geographic scope of the rule and
the required timing for implementation of NOx contrals within the state.

No decisions have yet been rendered.

Manufactured Gas Plant Remediation
WPSC continues te investigate the environmental cleanup of eight
manufactured gas plant sites. The cleanup of WPSC's Stevens Point

NOTE 11—REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

WPSC received a rate order in the Wisgonsin retail jurisdiction on
January 15, 1999. The impact is a $26.9 million increase in electric revenues
and a $10.3 million: increase in gas revenues on an annual basis. The new rates

NOTE 12—MERGER WITH UPPER PENINSULA
ENERGY CORPORATION

Effective September 29, 1998, UPEN;merged-with and inio WPSR, and
UPPCQ, UPENs utility and major subsidiary, as well as UPEN's other
nonregulated subsidgiaries, bacame wholly-owned subsidiaries of WPSR.

The merger qualifies as a tax-free transaction and the transaction has been
accounted for as a pooling of interests.

The foregeing consolidated financial-siatements have been restated to
give effect to the merger as if the companies had combined in the earliest
period presented. Certain adjustments have been made to conform the
presentation of UPEN's financial information with that of WPSR. Ia accordance

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

manufaciured gas plant site has been substantially completed with monitoring
of the site continuing. Costs of this cleanup were within'the range expecled for
this site. Future investigation and cleanup costs for the remaining seven sites is
estimated to be in the range of $33.9 miilion te $41.0 million. These estimates
may be adjusted in the future contingent upon remedial technology, regulatory
requirements, and experience gained through ¢leanup activities,

An initial liability for cleanup of $41.7 miliion had been established with
an offsetting regulatory assel (deferred charge). Of this amount, approximately
$2.7 millian has been spent to date. Management believes that cleanup costs
net of insurance secoveries, but not the carrying costs associated with the
cleanup expendilures, will be recoverable in current and future customer rates.
WPSC has received $12.6 million in insusance recoveries which have heen
recorded as 4 reduction in the regulatory asset.

Future Utility Expenditures

Managerment estimates 1999 utility plant construction expenditures at
WPSC 1o he approximately $107.4 million and construction expenditures at
UPPCO o be approximately $6.7 million. Dermand-side management (“DSM™)
expenditures at WPSC are estimated to be $11.1 million. No additional DSM
expenditures will be deferred in 1999, and the cuistanding deferred asset
balance at December 31, 1998 of $23.9 million will be amortized over the next
four years consistent with rate recovery.

will be effective for 1999 and 2000. WPSC was granted a 12.1% return on
equity for 1999 and 2000.
UPPCO is subject to a rate freeze through 2000.

with the terms of the merger, each of the 2,950,001 outstanding shares of
UPEN common stock {no par valug} were converted inte the right to receive
0.90 shares of WPSR common stock. Taking into account the cash paid for
fractional shares, an additional 2,654,443 shares are being issued pursuant to
the merger.

The.summary an the following page depicts selected unaudited
financial data for 1996 and 1997 as reported prior to the consummation of the
merger and restaled to reflect the effect of the merger under the pooling of
interests method.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Selected Restated Financial Data (Quarteriy Data, Unaudited)

WPSR

(prior 10 restatement

UPEN

(prior to rastatement

WPSR
(restated for pooling

(¥ Thowsands, except per share data) for pooling) for poaling} 0i interests)
First Quarter 1997
Operating revenues' $263,013 $ 16,303 $ 279,199
Net income $ 18,235 $ 1924 $ 20,159
Average outstanding shares 23,880 2,969 26,534
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.76 $0.65 30.76
Second Quarter 1997
Operating revenues' $191,360 $ 13,796 $ 204,820
Net income $ 9571 § o666 § 10237
Average outstanding shares 23875 2,969 26,529
- Basic and diluted easnings per share $0.40 $0.22 $0.39
Third Quarter 1997
Operating revenues' $185.225 $ 14,893 $ 198843
Net income $ 12,903 $ (4N § 12,756
Average outstanding shares 23870 2,854 26,524
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.54 $(0.05) $0.48
Fourth Quarter 1997
Operating revenuss' $238,742 $ 15112 $ 2524975
Net income 313,033 $ (376 $ 12,657
Average outstanding shares 23,866 2,950 26,520
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.55 $(0.12) $0.47
Year-End December 31, 1997
Operating revenues’ $878,340 $ 60,104 $ 935837
Nel income $ 53,742 $ 2067 § 554809
Average outstanding shares 23,873 2960 26,527
" Basic and diluted earnings per share $2.25 $0.70 $2.10
First Quarter 1998
Operating revenues’ $276,809 $ 15573 $ 291226
- Net income $ 17,101 $ 851 $ 17952
Average outstanding shares 23,862 2,950 26,516
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.72 $0.29 $0.68
" Second Quarter 1998
" Operating revenues’ $219,620 $ 13,888 $ 232,054
Net income $ 9879 $ 586 $ 10465
Average outstanding shares 23,858 2,950 26,512
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.41 $0.20 $0.29
- Third Quarter 1998
. Operating revenues § 247928
" Net income $ 11,799
Average outsianding shares 26,508
Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.45
Fourth Quarter 1998
Operating revenues $ 292,528
Net income $ 6415
Average outstanding shares 26,505
. Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.24
- Year-End December 31, 1998
(Operaiing revenues $1,063,736
Net income $ 46631
Average outstanding shares 26,511
Basic and difuted earnings per share $1.76

' Restaternent includes adjusiment for inercompany sales.

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




NOTES TO CONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13—SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

Effective December 31, 1998, WPSR adopled SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures of WPSC. The other reportable business segment, ESI, participates in
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” WPSR's reportable nonregulated energy markeing operations.
segments are managed separately due to their different operating and regulatory The tables below and on the following page present information for
environments, WPSR's principal business segments are the regulated electric the respective years pertaining to WPSR's operalions segmented by
ulility operations of WPSC and UPPCO and the regulated gas utility operations lines of business.

Nonutility and

T

Seqiuents of Business (Thousands) Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
1998 Elegtric Gas ES PDI and Other
Incame Siatement

Operaling revenues § 550,004 $165111 $351,258 $ 58,124

Depreciation and decommissioning 75,974 7,791 1,148 140

Other income {expense) 5,461 114 (5,765) 4,71

Interast expense 22,820 4323 592 6,402

Income taxes 27,534 4,429 (4.783) (3,739)

Net income {loss) 40,348 16,052 (6,859) 45,721
Balance Sheet

Total assels 1,053,634 230414 71,839 808,028

Total expenditutes for long-lived assets 64,444 30,537 291 15,537

Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidaied

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ (60,761) $1.063,736

Depreciation and decommissioning - 86,274

Other income {expense) (1923) 2,678

Interest expense (5,500) 28,637

Income taxes : - 23,445

Net income (loss) (48,621) 46,631
Balance Sheel

Total assels (653,528) 1,510,387
Total expendiiures for long-lived assets - 110,809

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION @




ERRATA

A revised Note 13-Segments of Business, as reproduced below and on the reverse side of this page, replaces ihg entire note appearing at pages 42 and 43 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements saciion in the bound 1988 Annual Report with which this errata sheet is associated.

‘l

WPS Resources Corporation
1998 Annual Report

NOTE 13—SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS

Effective December 31, 1998, WPSR adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures of WPSC. The other reportable business segment, ESI, participates in
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” WPSR's reportable nonreguiated energy marketing operations.
segments are managed separately due to their different operating and regulatory The table below and the fables on the following page present information
enviranments. WPSR's principal business segments are the regulated electric for the respective years pertaining to WPSR's operalions segmented by
uillity operaticns of WPSC and UPPCO and the regulated gas utility operations lines of business.

Nonutility and

Seqriints of Business { Thousands) Regulated Utilities Nonreguiated Operations
1998 ' Electrie Gas Esl PDiand Other
Income Statement

(perating revenugs $ 550,004 $165,111 $351,258 $ 9506

Depreciation and decommissioning 75,974 7.751 1,148 1401

Other income (expense) 5,461 114 {5,785) 4,751

Interest expense 22,820 4323 502 4914

Income faxes 27,534 4,429 {4,783) (3,735)

Net income (loss) 50,488 5,912 {6,869) (2,900
Balance Sheet

Tolal assets 1,117,438 246,365 71,839 175123

Cash expenditures for long-lived asseis 64,444 30,537 291 15537

Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ (12,143) $1,063,736

Depreciation and decommissicning - 86,274

(Other income (expense) (1,923) 2678

Interest expense (4,012) 28,637

Income taxes - 23,445

Net income {loss) - 46,631
Balance Sheet

Total assels {(100,378) 1.510,387

Cash expenditures for long-lived assels - 110,809

(Continued on Reverse Side of Page)



ERRATA (CONTINUED)

Nonutility and

Sequients of Businase (Thousands) Regulated Ulitities Nonregulated Operations
1997 Electric Gas ESI PDI and Other
Income Statement

Operaling revenyes $ 539,590 $211.090 $189,404 $ 5426

Depreciation and decommissioning 74,016 7.34% 1,048 1,028

Qther income (expense) 7,395 {701 {1,158) 6,402

interest expense 25,266 4 841 905 2,265

income taxes 29,461 4,211 (3.315) 748

Net income {loss) 53,204 7,878 (4,949) {414)
Balance Sheel

Toial assets 1,089,875 246,842 44,719 75,836

Cash expenditures for long-lived assets 48,592 14,592 78 3,083

Recongiiing WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

Income Statement

Operating reverues $ (9,673) $ 935837

Depreciation and decommissioning - 83.441

Other income {expense) 168 12,106

interest expense {2,261} 31,016

Income taxes - 31,106

fet income (loss) - 55,809
Balance Sheet

Total assets (21,528) 1,435 804

Cash expenditures for long-lived assets - 66,315

Nonutility and

Sequesitts of Busisuss (Thowsands ) Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
1996 Electric Gas ESI PDI and Other
Income Statement

Operating revenyes $ 548,884 $211,357 $161,5838 $ 3380

Depreciation and decommissioning 61,996 7128 1,054 584

Other income {expense) 4,993 58 (2.411) (3,306)

Interest expense 24,339 4229 774 1,533

Income taxes 31,655 2,499 (4,838) (2,100

Net income (loss) 59,807 2,350 (6,307) (3.065)
Balance Sheet

Total assets 1,095,996 268,622 51,823 79,190

Cash expenditures for long-lived assets 73,910 24,304 388 15,589

Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

income Statement

Operating revenues $ (9.010) $ 916,449

Depreciation and decommissioning - 70,762

QOther income (gxpense) 18 (648)

Interest expense (1,758) 29117

Income taxes - 27,216

Net inceme (loss) - 52,885
Balance Sheet

Total assets {32,315) 1,463,316

Cash expenditures for long-lived assets - 114,191
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Nonutility and

Sequients of Business (Thousands) Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
1997 Eleclric Gas ES| POl and Other
Income Statement

Qperating revenues § 539,590 $211,080 $189,404 $ 59,876

Depreciation and decommissioning 74,016 7,349 1,048 1,028

Other income (expense) 7,395 (70N 11,158} 6,402

Inferest expense 25,266 4841 205 2,265

Income taxes 28,856 4211 {3,315 354

Net income (loss) 52,976 8,206 (4,949 54,314
Balance Sheet

Total assets 1,054,225 235,976 44 779 594 414

Total expenditures for long-lived assels 48 592 14,592 78 3,053

Recaneiling WPSH
Etiminations Consolidated

Income Statement

Operating revenues $ (64,123 $ 935,837

Depreciation and decommissioning - 83,441

Other income {expense) 168 12,106

Interest expense (2,261) 31,016

Income taxes - 31,106

Net income (loss) {54,738) 55,809
Balance Sheet

Total assets (493,590) 1,435,804

Total expenditures for long-lived assets - 66,315

Nenutility-and

Sequients of Bustness (Thousands) Regulated Utilities Nonregulated Operations
1996 Eleciric Gas ESI FDI and Other
Income Statement

Operating revenues $ 548,884 $211,357 $161,838 $ 50,365

Depreciation and decommissioning 61,996 7128 1,054 584

Other income (expense) 4,219 58 £2 {2.536)

Interest expense 24729 4,229 774 1,143

Income taxes 32,157 2,499 (4,838} (2,602)

Net.income (loss) 57,795 3320 {6,307) 45,065
Balance Sheet

Total assets 1,047,370 254,684 51,823 608,829

Total expenditures for long-lived assets 73,910 24,304 388 15,583

Reconciling WPSR
Eliminations Consolidated

income Statement

Operating revenues $ (55,995) $ 916,449

Depreciation and decomrmissioning - 70,762

Other income {expense) (2,451) {648)

Interest expense (1,758) 29117

Income taxes - 27,216

Met income {loss) {46,988) 52,885
Balance Sheet

Tolal assets (499,390} 1,463,316

Total expenditures for long-lived assets - 114,191

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)'

( Thewsandy, excapt for share asounts)

Three Months Ended

1998
March June Seplember December Total
Operating revenues $291,226 $232,054 $247,928 $292,528  $1,063,736
Net income $ 17,952 $ 10,465 $ 11,799 $ 6,415 $ 46,631
Average number of shares of comman stock 26,516 26,512 26,508 26,505 26,511
Basic and diluted earnings per share $.68 $.39 $.45 $.24 $176
- ) - ) - N 1997 - '
March June September December Total
Operating revenuas §279,199 $204.820 $198,843 $252,975 $ 935,837
Net income § 20,159 $ 10,237 $ 12,756 $ 12,657 $ 55,809
Average number of shares of common stock 26,534 26,529 26,524 26,520 26,627
Basic and diluied earnings per share $.76 $.39 $.48 $.47 $2.10

' Schedule gives effect ta tha merger with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporalian.

Because of varions factors which affect the wtilily business, the quarterly resulls of operations are not kecesarily comparable.

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

’l

WPS Resources Corporation

The management of WPS Resources Corporation {"WPSR™) has prepared
ang is responsible for the consolidated financial statements and related
financial information encornpassed in this Annua! Report. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepied
accounting principles, and financial information included elsewhere in this
report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements.

WPSR maintains a system of internaf accounting control designed to
pravide reasonable assurance that WPSR's assets are safeguarded and that
transactions are executed and recorded in accordance with authorized
procedures. Written policies and procedures have been developed to support
the internal contrals in place and are updated as necessary.

WPSR also maintains an internal auditing department that reviews and
assesses the effectiveness of selecied internal controls, and reports to
management as to their findings and recommendations for improvement.

The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee, comprised
entirely of outside directors, which aclively assists the Board in its role of
overseeing WPSR's financial reporting process and system of internal control.

The accompanying consofidated financial statements have been
audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, whase

oy 7 bl

Larry L. Weyers
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Koy 72 ttm

Daniel P Bittner
Vice President and Ghief Financial Officer

Doione 7k

Diane L. Ford
Controfler and Chief Accounting Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

To the Board of Directors of
WPS Resources Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and
consolidated statements of capitalization of WPS Resources Corporation
(a Wisconsin corporation) and supsidiaries as of December 31, 1998 and
1997, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, and refained eamings and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 1998. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinicn on these financial siatements based an our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit
250 includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overali financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in al) material respects, the financial position of WPS Resources
Corparation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1398 and 1997, and the
results of its eperations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Clrtho Codoaon. LLP

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
January 28, 1999

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




FINANCIAL STATISTICS'

consnlidated Statements of Incor}ué and Comprehensivé Iﬁcome_

Year Ended: December 31 ( Thousands, except share amoustts) 1998 L1997 1996 1995 1994
DOperating revenues :
Eleciric utility $ 543,260 $536,885 $548,701 $560,105 $543.346
Gas utility 165111 211,080 211,357 174,693 182,058
Nonregulated energy and other 355,365 187,862 156,391 56,155 10,921
Total operating revenues 1,063,736 . 935,837 916,449 780,953 736,325
Operaling expenses
Electric production fusls 110,809 107,988 105,449 105,085 111,240
Purchased power 56,447 63,947 55,844 56,338 58,570
Gas purchased for resale 105,908 147,755 149,388 116,253 126,351
Nonregulated energy cost of sales 346,663 182,863 155,133 53,983 10,663
Other operating expenses 172,876 165,982 183,768 169,067 164,981
Maintenance 52,813 44,325 51,782 54,658 53,988
Depreciation and decommissioning 86,274 | 83.441 70,762 71,345 61,879
Taxes other than income 31402 | 31,375 3671 30,555 30577
{
Total operating expenses 963,692 827 676 803,797 661,285 618,249
Operating income 100,044 108,161 112,652 120,668 118,076
Other income and {deduclions) ‘
Allowance for equity funds used during consiruction 173 154 255 180 116
(ther, net 2505 | 11,952 (903) 5,852 4338
Total other ingome and (deductions) 2,678 }: 12,106 (648) 6,032 4454
Income before interest expense 102,722 120,267 112,004 126,700 122,530
Interest on long-term debt 23,987 26,273 25,494 26,839 27 404
Cther interast 4,827 4910 3922 2677 1,856
Atlowance for borrowed funds used during construction (177 . (167) {299) (80) (149)
Total inlerest expense 28,637 ' 31,016 29117 29,436 29111
Distributions — preferred securities of subsidiary trust 1,488 ll - - - -
Income before income taxes 72,597 ! 89,251 82,887 97,264 93419
Income taxes 23,445 ' 31,106 27,216 33,494 32,157
Minority interest (611) (797) (348) - -
Preferred stock dividends of subsidiary 3,132 3,133 3,134 3,136 3140
Net inceme 46,631 I 55,809 52,885 60,634 58122
Other comprehensive income - ' - — = -
Comyprehensive income $ 46631 ' $ 55809 $ 52,885 $ 60,634 $ 58,122
[
Shares of common stock [
Outstanding at December 31 26,502 | 26,518 26,537 26,551 26,551
Average 26,51 26527 26,545 26,551 26,551
Basic and diluted earnings per average share of common stock $1.76 ! $2.10 $1.99 $2.28 $2.19
Dividend per share of common stock® 1.96 192 1.88 1.84 1.80

' These statements give effect to the merger with Upper Peninsuia Energy Corperaiicn, |
? Dividend rates are those of WPS Resources Corporation, |

— — _ _ — — - . - - - _—————
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FINANCIAL STATISTICS'

Cnnsniidated Balance Sheets

Assets

At December 31 (Thousands) 1998 . 1997 1996 1995 1994
Utility plant ‘

Electric $1,715,882 $1.685,413 $1,639,490 $1,603,632 $1567.346
Gas 267892 251,603 240,791 228,346 202,903
Total 1983,774 1937016 1,880,281 1,831,978 1,770,249
Less — Accumulated depreciation and decommissioning 1,206,123 |, 1,113142 1,028,266 977,163 913,423
Total 777,651 | 823,874 852,015 854,815 856,826
Nuclear decommissioning frusts 171 442 134,108 100,570 82,109 64,147
Construction in progress 42 424 11,776 24,827 18,508 20,577
Nuclear fuel, net 18,641 19,062 19,381 14,275 19,417
Net utility plant 1,010,158 988,820 996,793 969,707 960,967
Current assets 240,112 | 213,453 233,933 202,399 185,582
Net nonutility and nonregulated piant 41,235 28,188 28,470 9,033 5878
Regulatory and other assets 218,282 205343 204,120 212,769 186,544
Total assets $1,510,387 | $1,435,804 $1.463.316 $1,393,908 $1.338,971

Capitalization and Liahilities

Capitalization

Common stock equity $ 517,190 : $ 518,764 $ 510,642 $ 505,178 $ 486,682
Preferred stock of subsidiaries 51,200 | 51,645 51,656 51,703 51,776
Long-term debt 393,921 | 347,015 349,054 350,098 353,679
Total capitalization 962,311 | 917,424 911,352 906,379 892,137
Liabilities ‘

Short-term borrowings 60,293 40,466 63,192 27,425 22,708
Deferred income taxes 122,642 131,197 135,904 141,518 131,541
QOther liabilities and credits 365,141 346,717 352,868 317,986 292 585
Total liahilities 548,076 . 518380 551,964 486,929 446,834
Total capitalization and liabilities $1,510,387 | $1,435,804 $1,463,316 $1,393 908 $1,338,971

' These statements give efiect to the merge! with Upper Peninsula Energy Corporation. ;
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Year Ended. Decentber 31

FINANCIAL STATISTICS

1998 1997 1996 1935 1994
Stock price $ 35% $33% $ 28 $ M § 26%
Book value per share $19.52 $19.56 $19.24 $19.03 $18.33
Return on average equity 9.0% 10.8% 10.3% 12.2% 120%
Nutnber of common stock shargholders 26,319 27,365 27,922 28416 29629
Number of empioyees 2,673 2,902 3032 3002 3,077
Capitalization ratios
Common equify inguding ESQP 53.8 56.6 56.0 587 54.6
Preferred stock of subsidiaries 53 56 5.7 5.7 5.8
Trust preferred securities of subsidiary trust 5.2 - - - -
Long-term debt of subsidiaries 35.7 378 383 388 396
Wheather information
Cooling degree days 519 256 382 808 519
Coaling degres days as a percent of normal 107.0% 53.3% 73.6% 170.1% 107.0%
Heating degree days 6,530 8,099 8,566 7813 7578
Heating degree days as a percent of narmal 82.4% 101.6% 107.5% 98.0% 95.5%

Dividends

Common Stock Comparison {by quarter) Per Share* High Low
1998
1st quarter $ 485 33% 32
2nd quarter 485 34 29"%
3rd quarter 495 35% %
4th quarter 495 3 33

$1.96
1997 ‘ ) ’
1st quarter $ 475 28% 26'%
2nd guarter A75 27% 23%
3rd quarter 485 29V 263
4th quarter 485 REVA 28%s

$1.92

" Dividend rales are those of WPS Resources Sorposation,

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder Inquiries

Shareholders who have questions aboul their stock heldings or the
WPS Resources Corporation Stock Investment Plan {*SIP") can contact the
Shareholder Services Department between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and
4:30 p.m., ceniral time, Monday through Friday by calling 920-433-105C or
800-236-1551.

Addresses and additional telephone numbers are listed on the back cover
of this repart.

Common Stack

Comman stock may be purchased and sold through the SIP deseribed below
or threugh brokerage firms and banks which offer brokerage services.

Common sfock certificates issued before September 1, 1994 bear the name of
Wisconsin Public Service Gorporation (“WPSGC™) and remain valid certificates.

Effective December 16, 1996, each share of common siock has a Right
associated with it which would entitle the owner to purchase agditional shares
of common stock under specified terms and conditions. The Rights are not
presently exercisable. The Rights would become exercisable ten days after a
person or graup (1) acquires 15% or more oi WPS Resources Corporation’s
("WPSR") common stock of (2) announces a tender offer to acquire at least
15% of WPSR's common stock.

On December 31, 1998, WPSR had 26,551,405 shares of common stock
outstanding which were owned by 26,319 holders of record.

Dividends
Cash dividends on common stock have been paid quarterly io shareholders
since 1953. WPSR expacts to continue 1o pay quarterly cash dividends on
common stock. Future dividends a2 dependent an regulatory limitations,
earnings, capital requirements, cash flows, and other financial considerations.
Anticipated payment and record dales for common stock dividends paid in
1999 are;

Record Date Payment Date

February 26 March 20
May 28 June 18
August 31 September 20
November 30 December 20

If 2 dividend check is not received on the payment date, wait approximately
ten days to allow for delays in mail delivery. After that time, call the Shareholder
Services Department to request a replacement chack.

Shareholders may have dividends electronically depesited in a checking or
savings account at a financial institution. If dividends are not electronically
deposited, checks are mailed {0 shareholders.

Stock Investment Plan

WPSR maintains a SIP for the purchase of common stock which allows
persons who are not already shareholders (and who are not employees of
WPSR or its system companies) to become participants in the SIP with a
minimum initial cash investment of $100. The Plan enables participants to
maintain registration with WPSR in their own name rather than with a broker
in “street name.”

The S!P aiso provides shareholders with options to reinvest dividends and
make opticnal cash purchases of cammon stack directly through WPSR without
paying Drokerage commissians, fees, or service charges. Optional cash
payments of not [ess than $29 per payment may be made subject fo 2 maximum
of $100,000 per calendar year.

Cash for investment must be received by the 18th day of the month. Cash
is invested on the 20th day of the month or as soon thereafter as practicable.

Shares held ir the SIP may be sold by the agent for the SIP at the direction
of 1ne shareholder, or a certificate may be requested for sale thraugh a broker
selecied by the shareholder.

Participation in the SIP is being gifered only by means of a Prospacius.
Persons wishing to receive a Prospectus may contact the Shareholder
Services Departrment.

Safekeeping Services

A participant in the SIP may iransfer shares of common stock registered in
his or her name into a SIP account for safekeeping. Contact the Shareholder
Services Depariment for further details.

Preferred Stock of Subsidiary
The preferred stock of WPSC trades on over-the-counter markets. Payment
and record dates far preferred stock dividends paid in 1999 are:

Record Date Payment Date

January 15 February 1
April 15 May 1

July 15 August 1
October 15 November 1

Stock Transfer Agent 2nd Registrar

Questions about iransierring common or preférred steck, lost certificates, or
changing the name in which cerificates-are registered should be directed to the
transfer agent, Firstar Bank Milwaukes, N.A. at the address or {elephone
numbers listed on the back cover.

Address Changes
If your address changes, call or write the Shareholder Services Depariment.

Availahility of Information

Company financial information is available on the Internet. The address
is hitp:/fwww.wpsr.com.

It is anticipated that 1993 quarterly earnings information will be released
on Aprit 21, July 21, and October 20.

Shareholders may obtain, without chargs, 2 copy of WPSH's 1998
Form 10-K, withoul exhibits, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, by contacling the Corporate Secretary, at the Corporate Office
mailing address listed on the back cover, or by using the Internet,

Annual Shareholders’ Meeting

The Annual Shareholders' Meeting will be held on Thursday, May 6, 1999,
at 10:30 a.m. at the Weidner Center, University of Wisconsin - Green Bay,
2420 Nicolet Orive, Green Bay, Wisconsin.

Proxy Statements for the May 6, 1999 Annual Sharehoiders' Mesting were
imailed to sharenoldars of record on March 22, 1999,

Annual Repart

If you receive more than one Annual Report because of cifferences in the
fegistration of your accounts, please call the Shareholder Services Department
so that account mailing instructions can be modified accardingly,

This Annual Report is prepared primarily for the information of sharenalders
of WPSR and is not given in connection with the sale of any security or offer to
sell or buy any security.
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A. Dean Arganbright
(Age 68)
Oshkosh, Wisconsin

Retired Chairman, Fresident,

and Chief Executive Officer
Wisconsin National Life
Insurance Company
(Birector since 1972)

Daniel A. Bollom

{Age 62)

Green Bay, Wisconsin
Retired Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

WPS Resources Corporation
(Director since 1889)

Robent C. Gallagher
{(Age 60}

Green Bay, Wisconsin
President and Chief
Qperating Officer
Associated Banc-Corp
{Director since 1992)

WPS RESOURCES CORPORATION

BoARD OF DIRECTORS™

Michael §. Ariens

(Age 67)

Brifiion, Wisconsin
Chairman

Ariens Company
{Director since 1974)

Sister M. Lais Bush, SSM
(Age 54)

Milwaukee, Wiscaonsin
Senior Vice President-
Mission and Culture
Integration

Ministry Health Care, Inc.
(Director since 1993}

Kathryn W,
Hasselblad-Pascale
(Age 50)

Green Bay, Wisconsin
Managing Partner
Hasselblad Machine
Company, LLP
(Directer since 1987)

Richard A. Bemis

{Age 57)

Sheboygan, Wisconsin
President and Chief

Executive Qfficer

8emis Manufacturing Company
(Director since 1583)

Clarence R. Fisher
{Age 58)

Houghton, Michigan
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Upper Peninsula Power
Company

(Director since 1998)

X q ¥g
James L. Kemerling Larry L. Weyers
(Age 99) {Age 53)
Wausau, Wisconsin Green Bay, Wisconsin
Consultant Chairman, President, and

JLR Chief Executive Officer
(Director since 1388) WPS Resources Corporation
(Director since 1996)

* Directors of WPS Resources Gorporation are also
Directors of Wisconsin Public Service Carporation.
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OFFLCERS AND LEADERSHIP STAFF
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Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

-

®

WPS Resourcas Corporation

WPS . WPS::
SERVICKS v DEVELOAENT o

Larry L. Weyers
Chairman, President, and
Chiel Executive OHicer
Age 53/Years of service 13

Patrick D. Schrickel
Executive Vice President

Age 54/Years of service 32

Phillip M. Mikulsky
Senior Vice President-
Develapment

Age 50/Years of service 27

Daniel P. Bittner

Vice President and

Chiel Financial Officer

Age 55/Years of service 33

Richard E. James

Vice President-

Corporate Planning

Age 45/Years of service 23

Thomas P. Meinz
Vice Presideni-Public Affairs
Age 52/Years ol service 29

Neal A. Siikarla
Vice President
Age 51/Years of service 1

Bernard J. Tremi

Vice President-

Human Resources

Age 49/Years of service 26

Glen R. Schwalbach
Assistant Vice President-
Corporate Planning

Age 53/Years of service 30

Francis J. Kicsar
Secrelary
Age 59/Years of service 32

Ralph G. Baeten
Treasurer
Age 55/Years of service 28

Diane L. Ford
Controller and

Chiel Accounting Officer
Age 45/Years of service 23

Barth J. Woll

Assistant Secrelary and
Manager-Legal Services
Age 41/Years of Service 10

George R. Wiesner
Assistant Controller
Age 41/Years of Service 14

Larry L. Weyers
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Age 53/Years of service 13

Patrick D. Schrickel
FPresident and

Chigf Operating Officer
Age 54/Years of service 32

Daniel P. Bitiner

Senior Vice President-
Finance

Age 55/Years of service 33

Charles A. Schrock
Seniar Vice Presiden!-
Engrgqy Supply

Aqe 45/Years of service 19

Clark R. Steinhardt ****
Senior Vice Fresident-
Nuclear Power

Age 57/Years of service 31

Bradley W. Andress
Vice Presitleni-Marketing
Age 44/Years of service |

Ralph G. Baeten
Vice President- Treasurer
Age 55/Years of service 28

Mark L. Marchi
Vice President-Nuclear
Age 51/Years of service 23

Thomas P. Meinz
Vice President-Public Alfairs
Age 52/Years of service 29

Wayne {. Peterson

Vice President-Oistribution and
Customer Service

Age 40/Years of service 16

Bernard J. Treml

Vice President-

Human Resources

Age 49/Years of service 26

Francis J. Kicsar
Secrelary
Age 59/Years of service 32

Diane L. Ford
Controiter
Age 45/Years of service 23

Barth J. Waolf

Assistani Secrelary and
Manager-Legal Services
Age 41/Years of Service 10

* Employee of WPS Resources Corparation.
** Employee of WPS Energy Services, Inc.
**~ Employee of WPS Pawer Development, Inc.

**** Relired January 31, 1999

Leadership Stat members are employees of Wisconsin Public
Service Corporation, except as indicated.

FSG Energy Services is a division of WPS Energy Services, Inc.

Years ol service Lake into consideration servica with
WPS Resources Corparation or a system company.

Phillip M. Mikulsky
FPresiden! and

Chief Executive Officer
Age 50/Yedrs of service 27

Darrel) W. Bragg
Vice Fresident
Age 39/Years of service 3

Mark A. Radtke
Vice Prasident
Age 37/Years of service 15

Larry L. Weyers
Vice President
Age 53/Years of service 13

Francis J. Xicsar
Secrelary
Age 59/Years of service 32

Ralph G. Baeten
Treasurer
Age 55/Years of service 28

Leadership Stafi

Thomas G. Balzola ***
General Manager-Gperalions
Age 55/Years of service 19

Richard J. Bissing **
Director-Wisconsin Sales and
Markeling

Age 38/Years of service 2

Lawrence T. Borgard
General Manager-Transmission
Age 37/Years of service 14

William L. Bourbonnais, Jr.

Manager-Rales and
Feonomic Fvaluation
Age 53/Years of service 30

Donald R. Carlson
Manager-Energy Supply and
Controf

Age 48/Years of service 23

Michael W. Charles
Manager-Fossif Fuel
Age 49/Years of service 21

Kenneth H. Evers
Manager-Nuclear Piant Supporl
Services

Age 53/Years of service 25

Ranald K. Grosse
Manager-Customer Strategy
Age 55/Years of service 33

David W. Harpole *
Manager-Corporale Services
Age 43/Years of service 21

Larry L. Weyers
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Age 53/Years of service 13

Phillip M. Mikulsky
Vice Fresinent
Age 50¢Years of service 27

Gerald L. Mroczkowski
Vice Presigent
Age 53/Years of service 30

Patrick D. Schrickel
Vice President
Age 54/Years of service 32

Francis J. Kicsar
Secrelary
Age 59/Years of service 32

Ralph G. Baeten
Treasurer
Age 55/Years of service 28

Charles K. Heidemann
Manager-Transco Planning am
Development H
Age 58/Years of service 35

Terry P. Jensky
Manager-Puiliam Plant
Age 45/Years of service 21

Bradley A. Johnson *
Corporate Planning Executive
Age 44/Years of service 19

Jerry A. Johnson
Manager-information Services
Age 49/Years ol service 26

Randall G. Johnsaon

Manager-Corporale Translormation

Age 51/Years of service 26
Paul J. Liegeois

General Manager-Marketing and

Business Development
Age 48/Years of service 25

Dennis .J. Maki
Manager-Weston Plani
Age 50/Years of seivice 28

Betty J. Merlina **
Directar-Chio Operations,
FSG Energy Services
Age 38/Years of service 3

Dale N. Miiler
Manager-Easlern Region
Age 53/Years of service 28

Clarence R. Fisher
President and

Chiel Executive Officer
Age 58/Years of service 35

Daniel P. Bittner
Vice President
Age 55/Years of service 33

Lynwood B. Hart
Vice President-Administration
Age 56/Years of service 16

Franeis J. Kicsar
Secrelary
Age 59/Years of service 32

Ralph G. Baeten
Treasurer
Age 55/Years of service 28

Philip L. Lefebvre ****
Assistant Secretary and
Assistant Treastirer

Age 58/ Years of service 36

Edward N. Newman
Director-Environmental Services
Age 56/Years of service 24

Dale M. Quinn
Manager-Substation and
Transmission

Age 53/Years of service 27

Jack C. Rasmussen
Manager-Purchasing and Stores
Age 51/Years of service 28

Rugaiyah Z. Stanley-Lalles **

Director-Minois Operations
Age 44/Years of service 1

Richard J. Suslick ***
Director-Power Development
Age 55/Years of service 7

Peler J. Van Beek
Manager-Ceniral Region
Age 53/Years of service 30

Daniel J. Yerbanac **
Director-Trading Operations
Age 35/Years of service 14

Kenneth H. Weinhauer
Manager-Kewaunee Plant
Age 54/Years of service 23
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Corporate Office
700 Ngrth Adams Street
Green Bay, Wl 54301

Mailing Address:

WPS Resources Corporatidn‘
P. Q. Box 19001

Green Bay, Wl 54307-9001 -

Telephone:
920-433-4901

Fax:
920-433-1526

Internel Address:
hitp:ifwww.wpsr.com

\1‘ S

WPS Resources Corporation

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Investor Services

Firstar Bank Milwaukee, N.A.

P: 0. Box 2077

Milwaukee, WI 53201

1
|
|
'
|
i
|
{
i
|

[
' Telephone;
414-276-3737 or 800-637:7549

Financial Inquiries

i Mr. Ralph G. Baeten, Treasurer
WPS Resources Corporation

? F. 0. Box 19001

i Green Bay, Wl 54307-9001

Telephane:
920-433-1449

v
1

Shareholder Services Departmenit

WPS Resources Corporation 3
700 North. Adams Streel
Green Bay. WI 54301

Mailing Address:

WPS Resources Corporation
P. 0. Box 19001

Green Bay. W!I 54307-9001%

Telephone:
920-433-1050 or 800-236-1551

Electronic Mail Address:
www.investor@wpsr.com

Stock Exchange Listing
New York Stock Exchange

Ticker Symbhol:
WPS

Listing Abbreviation:
WPS Res

Wisconsin Utilily Investors, [nc.:

Wisconsin Utility Investors, Inc. ("“WUI") is an-independent,
non-profit organization representing the collective voices of utility
shareholders, It monilors and evaluales industry issues and: trends
and 15 & resource for its members. requlators, and-the public.

WUI can be reached by calling 414-221-3849.

Equal Employment Opporiunity:

WPS Resources Corporation and its system companies hire. train.
promote, compensate, and make all other employment decisions
without regard:to race, color, sex. age, religion, national origin,

or disahility.

Credits:

Geese in Flight pholography is by Joseph .Duff, one of Canada’s
teading commercial photographers and a co-founder of Operation
Migration, a charity dedicated to safeguarding endangered species
of waterfowl His speciacular photo images have received
internattonal acclaim,

Excerpts from the poem “Goose Send-0ft" are by Owen Neill, a
' 1 |
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